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Shri Pranab Mukherjee, Hon'ble Union Finance
Minister, inaugurating Dena Bank's New Branch at
Raghunathganj. Also seen alongs1de is Shri DL

_Rawal CMD&ShrlAK Dutt E.D

ﬁ%ﬁwm%mmﬁmﬁa
sifefral 3t Fulerfer.

_Inwtees present at the |naugurat|on of Dena Bank

Raghunathgan] Branch.
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- Shri D.L. Rawal, CMD, handlng over the dividend
warrant of Rs. 17.62 Crores for the year 2008-09.
-to Shri Pranab Mukherjee, Hon ble Union Finance
Mlmster, Seen alongsMe is Shn Bhaskar Sen, the
“then E.D.
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Shri Pranab Mukherjee, Hon’ ble Umon Flnance
Minister, handing over a Tricycle to a physically
challenged person during the mauguratlon of Dena
Bank’s Raghunathganj Branch
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During the year 2009-10, the following General Managers also served with the Bank
A, & RATFAR . g, v, G
Shri. P. Paresh Kumar Shri. U. S. Poojary
(Up to 28.02.2010) (Up to 30.04.2009)
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: ~ Shri D.L. Rawal, CMD, handing over the dividend
warrant of Rs. 17.62 Crores for the year 2008-09.
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Shri Pranab Mukherjee, Hon’ble Union Finance
Minister, handing over a Tricycle to a physically
challenged person during the inauguration of Dena
Bank’s Raghunathganj Branch.
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FHAR JeIHS HRI-Faed YEAR WISE COMPARATIVE PERFORMANCE

Fra-FereT Aeds Performance Parameters

PRIGR A9 UG GATer: Delivery Channels & Resources:

SRETit @ T No. of Branches 1122
FH A Eﬁ%'a@_cf KIIRCIY Of Which Computerised Branches 1122
I & HR i AegeE (o) Out of Which, Branches with Core Bank.Solu (CBS) 0
TEeH o Jw= No. of ATMs 240
HHATRET BT TIT No. of Employees 10156
gt Capital:

g3t Capital 286.82
RfErtar (g?"i@'i’cb_vf Rf&taar o W) Reserves (Excluding Revaluation Reserves) 779
Ej’\él’f qITdT STUTT (%) Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 10.62
PRIGR AFIGS Business Parameters:

BHRIGR AHsT Business Mix 38371
% Q‘i\?gi Increase in % 20.05
T SHRIT Total Deposit 23623
% Tg’%( Increase in % 13.05
[selgl 31ty (cheT) Total Advances (Gross) 14748
% ‘q’f‘s{ Increase in % 243
0T Ud 31 (ETGFT) Loans & Advances (Net) 14231
% q‘ﬁg\' Increase in % 25.84
fafmem (Frae) Investments (Net) 8571
% qﬁg Increase in % -11.61
grIfHehdr &ed B 3w Advances to Priority Sector 6074
% & U H grIfHadr & 31 Priority Sector Advances in % terms 42.20
@ﬁr Agriculture 2363
% Q‘TE Increase in % 35.10
Rea Retail 2249
% Qﬁs( Increase in % 52.27
X[&H, Y Ud HEIH 3TH (UHUHUHé) Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) 1321

2005-06 2006-07

1135

1135

13

269

10120

286.82

B3

11.52

46373

20.85

27689

17.22

18683

26.68

18303

28.61

9325

8.80

7629

42.03

3344

41.51

3419

52.02

3158
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(2. Eh‘\’ﬁ'&' ff) (Rs. in Crores)

2007-08 2008-09

1160

1160

108

316

9957

286.82

1280

11.09

57324

23.61

33943

22.58

23381

25.15

23024

25.79

10335

10.83

8096

43.32

2794

-16.45

4294

25.59

3885

1184

1184

606

387

9883

286.82

1662

12.07

72235

26.01

43051

26.83

29185

24.82

28878

25.42

12473

21.29

9715

41.55

3851

37.83

4424

3.03

4775

2009-10

1223

1223

1223

396

10525

286.82

2106.23

12.77

87066

20.53

51345

19.26

35721

22.40

35462

22.80

15694

25.82

11718

40.15

4826

25.32

5380

21.61

5647
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FHAR TS HII-Fea1e YEAR WISE COMPARATIVE PERFORMANCE

TS 3T
2i Keske)

It 3ma

et 3T

T TT

faer st wfot=
STRTFRT AT

fAfer amma
R R 3ma
fAférat o= s
3NREAT W gfeher
SferaeT w afawer
RIENENEEE]

SATRe JOTTl STFTeT:

Thel T1.U1T.

Jhe STMT B G § Fbel T4 L.

T %
o TrarE

et 31wt @ g # fae eare.
U %

U.ULE. U8 dHavst
JegrETaT FFII:

i HHART RIER
i eRaT HRIGR

Performance Parameters

Increase in %
Financials:
Operating Profit

Net Profit

Interest Income
Interest Expense
Non Interest Income
Total Income

Total Expenses

Net Interest Margin
Cost of Deposit
Cost of Fund

Yield on Advances
Yield on Funds
Return on Assets
Return on Equity
Earning per share
Asset Quality Ratios:

Gross NPA

Gross NPA to Gross Advances

Ratio %

Net NPA

Net NPA to Net Advances

Ratio %

NPA Provision Coverage

Productivity Ratios:

Per Employee Business

Per Branch Business

2005-06

5.09

620.32

72.99

1760

1037

459

2219

1599

2.95

4.58

4.66

7.80

7.46

0.29

9.02

2.54

949.40

6.44

432.85

3.04

52.61

3.64

36.11

(2. Eh‘\’ﬁ'&' ff) (Rs. in Crores)

2006-07 2007-08 2008-09

139

635.37

201.56

2088

1263

422

2510

1875

3.00

4.89

1)

8.66

7.84

0.71

20.83

7.03

744.48

3.98

364.8

1.99

50.05

4.58

44.76

23.02

656.44

3569.79

2676

1817

478

3154

2468

2.67

5.90

©.L19

10.11

8.22

1.06

27.12

12.54

572.60

2.45

215.43

0.94

60.70

5.76

54.03

22.90

726.36

422.66

3447

2383

430

3878

3151

2.91

6.36

6.47

10.71

8.76

1.02

24.05

14.74

620.77

213

313.38

1.09

48.27

7.31

66.45

2009-10

18.26

840.58

511.25

4010

2910

589

4599

3758

2.61

6.21

6.31

10.32

8.52

1.01

23.55

17.83

641.99

1.80

427.53

1.21

78.61

8.27

71.21
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T NOTICE
O By =
DENA BANK
TEITT BIAIeTe : &I PIAINC HeR, w1-10, 51 &iep, JIaT-goel! Practasd, dial (7d), a3 - 400 051.
Head Office: Dena Corporate Centre, C-10, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051.

Skl
UACERT T & Sl & i 37§ & IR Rl o dteedl s
HHT 4T YEHaR, 16 JaTs, 2010 BT URTET 3.00 Fof THNE T
HRTESH UraEIaTet, Seb<i URT&10T FeTaened, of.a1.arsl. Wb, faer
aret (af¥aw) a5 - 400 056. # Fifha BAT B FITed B &G
GRS RS

e 9. 1

31 77, 2010 & A U 3R I TRIG BY FAT T &5 AT U5 21f
oEl, §% & HW HIeT vd Matafeai R e qusa o Rare aur
e UF 3R e R o wredt o Rurd W faar-famef, e
e 3MER BT,

" H. 2
ot 9 2009-10 & foe STl SRR W emerer By &=,

o
TCeld AUSH &b SRR

R 4 (@).2eT.X19e)
f&aia: 5 37, 2010 37e7eT vd yay e
fewfr :

1. gy @ Fg s

THT H UM X6 3R FAeH B BT/ $ U1 YIRYRB 30 I
R [T H BT 37 BT 3uRRIa @ @ Ade™ R’ & fere afafafer
s &< 1 ura g/ gt ufafere gt &, 59 gfe @ gfafafy
frgh B3 o ur srafd gy B # o dicedt aif¥e ara g
@ AR I B A B IR o7 gd srafa wfar 10 A, 2010 @Y
HH-PIST BT T FHG 81 b T I I 44 b B [aee wIe
TR 3G9 9T &1 S TEe.

2. yiftipa sfaffr ot Frgfs

U BTSB! T fhT, ST S DY TRERSD &1, & faferad
gTfergsd gfaffer & w0 & Brg ot UHT it 4T # 3UfRid Xg- a1
HAGT T BT a6 ad UTH el a1 31§ b b 39 faftraa urférgsa
gfaftter o w9 7 gt fovos doe, foq a9 # a8 oika
T3 AT, 3D THMT GRT AT Tohar g3, i gfafafy atagar
e A= |FT &t fafyr & &7 3 IR feq vger srarfd oifar 10
TS, 2010 BT BHBIST BT AT TG &1 F ga B! |iaa,
ST db, T BT, 37T HURE Wex, draxt #ister, T@-10, i
iep, dial-gpell BIeldd, dial (qd), a8 400 051 &5 U STAT
BT S

3. JufRerfer-a-gaer aait

RYRBI B Jfgen o fav suferfa-dg-yaer oot gq aid &
[T [ 2. ATRYURDAEIRATT TReb1/ITI I gfarfear 1

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Fourteenth Annual General
Meeting of the Shareholders of Dena Bank will be held on
Friday, 16th July, 2010 at 3.00 p.m. at Auditorium, Sir Sorabji
Pochkhanawala Bankers’ Training College, J.V.P.D. Scheme, Vile
Parle (West), Mumbai - 400 056 to transact the following business:

Item No. 1

“To discuss, approve and adopt the Balance Sheet as at
31stMarch, 2010 and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended
on that date, the report of the Board of Directors on the working and
activities of the Bank for the period covered by the Accounts and
the Auditors’ Report on the Balance Sheet and Accounts.”

Item No. 2

“To declare dividend on Equity Shares for the financial year
2009-2010.”

By Order of the Board of Directors

/4

(D. L. Rawal)
Chairman & Managing Director

Place: Mumbai
Date : 5th June, 2010

NOTES :

1. APPOINTMENT OF PROXY

A SHAREHOLDER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE
MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF. The proxy, in
order to be effective must be received by the Bank at the place
specified in the proxy form, not later than FOUR DAYS before the
date of the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting i.e. on or before the
close of office hours on Saturday, 10th July, 2010.

2. APPOINTMENT OF AN AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

No person shall be entitled to attend or vote at the meeting as a
duly authorised representative of a company or any body corporate
which is a shareholder of the Bank, unless a copy of the resolution
appointing him/her as a duly authorised representative, certified
to be true copy by the Chairman of the meeting at which it was
passed shall have been deposited with the Company Secretary,
Dena Bank & Investor Relation Centre, Dena Corporate Centre,
3rd Floor, C-10, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),
Mumbai 400 051 not later than FOUR days before the date of the
Fourteenth Annual General Meeting i.e. on or before the close of
office hours on Saturday, 10th July, 2010.

3. ATTENDANCE SLIP-CUM-ENTRY PASS

For the convenience of the shareholders, Attendance
Slip-cum-Entry-Pass is annexed to this report. Shareholders / Proxy
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T NOTICE

IRIY & 6 7 379 fiT T RIF W 30 §ER dRd 3 FHT
RIET R YT IR . AIRYRS & T1iega gfaf=fegert sufertfa-
FE-yae udt # IR a1 grftrgsa ufafafy, st o feifa &, &
3T PR

4. 98 S IGT

J& BT ATRYRD] BT (o1 AR TR 3R0T WX M AT
THT 3R ATHIRT B IHaT GHAread B & 360 I YHaR, 9 JTR,
2010 ¥ YHAR, 16 JTs, 2010 (@1 &1 enfren) dd < 2.

5. SATHIST BT YA

feers Wed gRT URAIfad THIRT &7 YA 37 UIRURD! BT [T
ST f5ds Ut BraR BTst w9 7 Hisle & 3R fSee A 16 Jos,
2010 BT b P IRURDI P IoTex T aof &, AT T IRURSD
TS IRT IR dHASIHa 0 H & I ATHieT & Giam, feutorest
ERT 8 JcTTs, 2010 BT BHDBIS FHINA b FHI YA ATHI Wi
& fga=on gon §6 Wi vd ud & fga=or & 3R W foear sie qer
7T AR e TIfve ATERUT T o ARG & 30 &t & WraR ufvarsmm
= few smo.

6. 3faxur

BT & H enfRe SR gHIoT uAt Bl 3Rt faeng dfgd & & st
U 3ARUT Usi=e T VST STHT TIET.

7. I AT~ FHTRNE AT (U7 § <Y UH) T2 ansier YA &
fore 8o o arferder

%) MRS 3 IRRET F IFER, 1 3RpSR, 2009 ¥ Fiew &
AT | O UNOT B AL FATgI-a FHIRINES §aT (29 § 9 g9)
J gfereenfa fsar & aun da @1 seRw i ™ € % 3 1Ra uvwe
¥ oI Wenr W g6, TIEiey 9o w9 ¥ PR T wHe
&t o) FrAFEIE & 9. do gRT Efed T Td gUS §@ @i
TR Bl Bare. 36 difas w0 vd seragif=e U # IR IE=are
T H TR IGATCT IRYRS 9.07.2010 H Bt BIfcral =T ¢l g8
T & T U9 W GSIPR U 3iaRUT Uete! Bl HeTid Wi ¥ Seed
IPH B BICT JAiAg & A1 3D d6b gRT YSH B TN @il JT
JHad = Fadl . SeagI-d ¥ H IR G-I ARURS 9 Ty,
2010 ¥ Ugel WaTd @ F Haftrd I o wier yiafaa & arer T4
d& @TaT AT 3D TuTtotes! TR (1 OY) BT Jfad T el 30T
Sie W &,

) ITRURS (57 dob @it IR Mraied S gmamsit § €, eaged
T TTT &I 3T qAT AT IRTT b AT I 3hT ATHIST Bl
YT foHar ST, &9 SRRURS! $F 3T d6 @rar g, 36
U4 TIRAT T AW JFad BIAT &I ST&T 9 ADGIDRUT & ATHI IRT
ST AT AR . ATHIY dRe & Idh 9N IR IRRERS! & A1
& ramar 3 faaror gfga @ @t aRet &1 ducyol TwmaraRor
T . UG faaRUT GUH/EHA RURSD gRT Fferfad o w—
09.07.2010 ¥ Uget BIferl Hwem Jfad #=d g UsiihR v 3avor
Ui T YA BT AMET.

holders/ Authorised Representatives are requested to affix their
signatures at the space provided therein and surrender the same
at the venue. Proxy/Authorised Representative of the shareholder
should state on the Attendance slip-cum-entry pass as ‘Proxy’ or
‘Authorised Representative’ as the case may be.

4. BOOK CLOSURE

The Register of the Shareholders and the Share Transfer Register
of the Bank will remain closed from Friday, July 9, 2010 to Friday,
July 16, 2010 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of Annual
General Meeting and for ascertaining the entitlement of dividend.

5. PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND

Payment of dividend to shareholders as proposed by the Board
of Directors shall be paid to those shareholders holding shares in
physical form, whose names appear on the Register of Shareholders
of the Bank as on 16th July, 2010 and in respect of shares held
in dematerialised form, the dividend will be paid on the basis of
beneficial ownership details and address, Bank Account etc. as per
details to be furnished by the depositories as at the end of business
on 8th July, 2010 and the dividend warrants shall be mailed / credited
within 30 days from the date of Annual General Meeting.

6. TRANSFERS

Share Certificates in case of physical holding along with transfer deeds
should be forwarded to the Registrar & Transfer Agent of the Bank.

7.BANKMANDATE FORDIVIDEND ORNATIONAL ELECTRONIC
CLEARING SERVICE (NECS)

a) As per RBI notification, with effect from October 1, 2009,
the remittance of money through ECS is replaced by National
Electronic Clearing Service (NECS) and banks have been
instructed to move to the NECS platform with immediate
effect. NECS essentially operates on the new and unique bank
account number allotted by banks post implementation of
Core Banking Solutions (CBS). The Bank is offering the facility of
NECS for shareholders holding shares in physical form as well as
electronic form. Shareholders holding the shares in Physical form
can furnish the unique account no. provided by their Bank’s along
with a photo copy of a cheque pertaining to the concerned account,
to the Registrar & Transfer Agents quoting the folio number before
09.07.2010. The shareholders holding shares in electronic form are
requested to furnish the new Bank Account Number,along with a
photo copy of a cheque pertaining to the concerned account, to
your Depository Participant (DP) where they are holding Demat
Account well before 9th July, 2010.

b) The shareholders having Bank Accounts in non CBS Bank
Branches will not be covered under NECS and will be paid Dividend
by way of Dividend warrants. These shareholders are required to
furnish their Bank Account number, the name of the Bank and the
Branch where they would like to deposit the Dividend warrants
for encashment. These particulars will be printed on the cheque
portion of Dividend warrants, besides the name of the shareholders
so as to avoid fraudulent encashment of warrants. The above-
mentioned details should be furnished by the first/sole shareholder
directly to the Registrar & Transfer Agent, quoting the folio number
before 09.07.2010.
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T NOTICE

8. arar =1 fope e emeier, afe S gy a

U SIRYRDT forgie faxiar af 1996-97, 1997-98, 1998-99, 1999-
2000, 2006-07, 2007-08 TAT 2008-09 T TTHILT TRET BT TDHEIBOT
e fooar & / emvrer uta e fosar 2, 3 foee 2 6 9 gwliose
TTHIET GRT STRT B & 9 P IGR TF AR 3aR0T Torve A
Tuds .

ST T (3UHAT BT ST U 37axoT) o 1970 ¥ st T8
T3 GRT 1067 & AR TS 3aT AL WA § 3R0T & T auf ad
TATHTST T 3T 37e<T R&T & I 3% To1E Pis ardl el fopar ST ar 37
U I 1956 BT &IRT 205 T b ded TR IRDR gRT R
fraers et v grem w318 § O vws) ¥ sfdRka @ fear smem,
3R 356 Jagr H d a1 371 § O U b THET fhall ard T TR e
Tomam STme.

9. 7 ¥ uRad=

U IRYRS foat R enar gaagif=e w0 # & 3 arRIY &
6 39 dolipa wa #, afe 1% afRkad= g3 & dr 39! T 3
Temfstet &1 < 7 fh SRR T §6 & IR EXATAROT Tatuet ol 3R
U IR ORP, formar AR enRkar 4ifos T d &, A R e fe
3P Usiighd U | AfE HIg TRac a1 ar 39! g FHe=farad ad .
IASRER AT § o IR EXATAROT UUeT Bl &

STeRyT At (fsam at. for.

gfre : e d®

13 U/a AftEaT SIRca, AT 4. 52 I 56

ATHIATEHT eIt TaTarst, 3TERY-goett g,

HTDI ATHT, G5 - 400 072.

e #eer & ameRIgaR
e B
a4y
I g% (@.ee. Iae)
feaie: 5 30, 2010 37eeT vd yay e

8. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND, IF ANY

The shareholders who have not encashed their Dividend Warrants
/ received dividend for the financial year 1996-97, 1997-98, 1998-
99, 1999-2000, 2006-07, 2007-08 and 2008-09 are requested to
contact the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Bank for
issue of the duplicate dividend warrant.

As per the newly inserted Section 10B of the Banking Companies
(Acquisitions and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970, the amount
of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven
years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account is
required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Govt. under Section 205C
of the Companies Act, 1956 and thereafter no claim for payment
shall lie in respect thereof either to the Bank or to the IEPF.

9. CHANGE OF ADDRESS

Shareholders whose holding are in Electronic form are requested
to intimate changes, if any, in their registered address to their
Depository and not to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents and
Shareholders who are holding the shares in Physical form are
requested to intimate changes, if any, in their registered address,
to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Bank at the
following address:

Sharepro Services (India) Private Limited
Unit: Dena Bank,
13 A/B Samhita Complex, Gala No. 52 to 56,
Near Saki Naka Telephone Exchange, Andheri-Kurla Road,
Saki Naka, Mumbai - 400 072.
By Order of the Board of Directors

/4

(D. L. Rawal)
Chairman & Managing Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: 5th June, 2010
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fra rereRa!,
T3 31 WG, 2010 BT JA-TF TAT 31 HIE, 2010 B FA a¥ & e
@ vd g ol & T d@ B arftes Rard 3mueT IRgd d%d ge
I &1 & .

gy

a¥ 2009-10 HRaT efeawIT & faT AMFIa: Joc & a¥ &
IoT WRIT AT St gL, MR srefaawen fuee faa af of #ar &
3Ry 3R anefY oY wE @F Rerfa & erarent SR yafa & faos
3m gt faxita vd wifees At & Fome! 3 FeRIEE 33T 3T
3R srfzawr o #al FH g8 JUT AIIawT I 9T & o
TR 3ARR & T JIfY a¥ 2009-10 H AFGA & g3 3R B &7
R 39T FauRtd gTa usT, iR off R srefraen 3 g o i
ums! for 2009-10 % ARM 7.2% g R &1 3nwHad fowar mar
Siafes 2008-09 ¥ I8 gfig &X 6.7% 2. a¥ P SR U gfig X 4,
HT B AT P AR FRBR GRT BT Ied Febal FAGT BRA B
IR & Tt g%,

afeaw # fae™ & QAU & GERwIfT 6T, ERwITa JIRY §
QEIET T 3 HIY IOE) H YT ¥ fade & BRoT 3RY g% 3R
R-ER 3= &t 7 97 thet TR, SR At &f diAdr § R geae
eI & fae s T8 2.

S

af & IR §fe 3T afed o o i yomett 7 srgenfad v §
e oo, TRERT &7 & dot & fore weom sraftr o Feifaa il &
foirom & e gan smeR wotgd &1 wiw favg a1 <@t o & aRM
RERT &F & A dbi = Goil FEIdT U1 @ 3R 2010-11 & SRE
B3 Jb VT TERICT UT BT bl 3TUET IWd &. 3UP b T 4T 3TeT
A I & SRM WA T § Y37 & GRT BUY 1300 TRIS B AN &
foe wRa R, fow waea I 3R fvar £ 3R 98 9Rd WRER B
Aftpa foarmei= 2.

A 2010 & 3fd # sYfad afoifsas dot & Har s AR #
17% @ 3fg g8 S1afes AT 2009 & 3id H 7€ gf 18.8% . 3gfaa
oIS dabi & IR W@TET 0T /TG 2009 & 37 H 17.5% I o1 H AT
2010 & 3 # 16.7% &. fueer o & SRM §fds 38T & ur srfaRes
TRETT &1 38T 311 fop v T ot fawar 2 iR 39y |qut dfd gomett
T AT JHITad 3.

39S S &1 Fereare=t

R 9 & SR b & T 31FaReh TReAdT a7 & B BROT 3ATh b
o Fraet s 319 W gaTa & 3a foar. ge a7 giad aRd ge g
21l 2 o5 qara & arasye, d 7 31 et axt 3R Rerar o Rerfa @t
FRAR e B 39 AT T A (a1, §6 B ST THE TR
(@A OANR) 12.5% o, 5 s ¥ af & SR § <@ 3R forae
STST 3T BT THIGA 81 I BT ST AP,

# & U &3 & IR § AT argan fore 2009-10 & SR 305 38
et foemes qertar 8.

Dear Shareholders,

| have great pleasure in presenting to you the Annual Report of the
Bank along with the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2010 and
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2010.

The Backdrop

The year 2009-10 was by and large a year of revival of the Indian
economy. Exhibiting a high degree of resilience, the economy
overcame the recessionary trends that had characterized the
previous fiscal and also swam against the international trends
that continued to be recessionary. Both the fiscal and monetary
regulators showed optimism that the worst was over and the
economy had started its journey back towards growth. Though the
year 2009-10 also witnessed deficient monsoon and its adverse
impact on agricultural sector, the Indian economy still managed clear
momentum in recovery, with the GDP growth for 2009-10 estimated
at7.2%, up from 6.7% recorded in 2008-09. The momentum achieved
during the year has led to discussions on ‘Exit Policy’, the reference
to exit being from the financial stimulus packages announced by the
Government of India during the period of recession.

Alongside the recovery has risen the specter of inflation. Inflation
initially started as a supply side issue mainly in the food grains and
other agricultural segments has gradually spread to other sectors
as well. Continuing volatility in international oil prices does not
augur well for the future in the context of inflation.

Banking Sector

The financial systems in the country including the banking industry
have behaved in an orderly manner during the year. As for public
sector banks, strengthening the capital base was a major issue to
support the anticipated asset growth in the medium term. Three
public sector banks received capital support during the year with
many more in line to receive such support during 2010-11. Your
Bank has also submitted proposal to Government of India , Ministry
of Finance requesting for infusion of Rs. 1300 crores by way of
Capital in phased manner in next three years, and the same is
under active consideration with Government of India .

The growth in aggregate deposits of SCBs was 17% at end-March
2010 as compared to 18.8% as at end-March 2009. Non-food
credit by SCBs was moderated to 16.7%, at end-March 2010 in
comparison with 17.5% at end March 2009. During the last year, the
Banking Industry was having access liquidity, which was a concern
and impacted the margins for the banking system as a whole.

Your Bank’s Performance

Your Bank also continued to experience pressure on its Net Interest
Income, mainly on account of excess liquidity with the Bank through
out the year. Despite the pressures, | am happy to inform that the
Bank has overcome this challenge by constantly reviewing its
interest rates and liquidity position. The Bank’s benchmark prime
lending rate (BPLR) stood at 12.50% which continued at same level
throughout the year and thus contain the impact on NIM.

| would like to touch upon some areas where your Bank has
performed well during 2009-10.
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FRISR gfex 3R 3w 3rsf

d% B HA HRIGR 37T P SARIRIEAT 05 et 310 A 2009 #
72236 TRIS I Tedx AT 2010 H 20.52% B G Tof I gL,
. 87066 BRIS AF Ugd T, a & AR GoeT ST ARTAT 19.26% DY
gfg & A1 ©.43051 BT F FEBHY, UEel! R 6.50000 FRIS I AT
UR TR gL, 3.51344 RIS A6 U T 5. 9 &AM Hel 31T 22.39%
e & T 3.29185 FRIT F TeaR 3.35721 TS dd Ugd .

2009-10 & RN P ARG § BT SHRTRGT BT 372 Jed
36.89% &I T Safh fUer af @r 5t 31afer § 9 35.97% o, faa af
2009-10 & SR BT SRR § 23% BI I1E Ts.

a¥ & AR &g Heaw 3g9, Rea aan iy &t # S fowea waad
T gE AEAYUT & 1 0T favaR SIRY @ A/ 2010 B Rea T
21.61% Tl P T .5380 PRIS IS, TH.UT.UA.5. 0T 18 .26% I Ik
& W7 3.5647 TRIG I¥ STATh BT &7 & 0T 25.32% @ Jhg & AT
.4826 PRIS AP Ugd .

a¥ 2009-10 & 7T §& & T 3T 18.60% Ffg & AT T.4599 FRIS
TP TgT T foH 5.4010 FRIS SATST 3T TAT 3.589 FRIS AR
3T eNTHE 2. 1S 3T H 16.33% DI 31 & .

§CC W BT T Wil H TN, TRBRT BRIGR F FHHILA 37T 72T
AR U&7 & 3T b 9aR0T 3 31T R &1 & 96 I Ao &
37 aRoTH 2, TSt meTaR 31 H 36.85% Jha g5, 9 -1 dee |
1T T Wit # a9l # 25.24% B AR Ifg ast Bl &

T I UI9UT Rl gL G 8l & T 31 Ul & T 3 o Y
HHARGT gRT f6d T FHoRk ot & d& &1 fHaa arv ©.422.66
PIS T TedR a¥ 2009-10 P IR 5.511.25 HRIS & AT, I§ 2008-
09 & AR g% I 17.47% @ a1 # 39 a¥ & RM a7 gfg
20.96% &1, Y3 Ig TUT IR g e & & fp d® & fews
HseT 7 fUsel a¥ & 12% ATHIY & THET 20% & JEAX AT Bl
Tegfa & 2.

3R ToTaT

ol | STEHT o faaRoT B ear o 3@ gu ddh & %o 3R e
i fersamT srefezaven o fafym &=t silx sart & fawfsa €. snfeaat
B IFSID B B MY FAGR! UTed B TAT 3UET B AR
JUR P T PR P [¢T8 T YA ARI R JOTed! BriRa
2. aonfy, af o SR ey e ardreReT 6 3G 3T B
foeameT qerm snf¥fe nfafaftrat . uyra ust, fomaes Baawu 6
BT Fha X fawmes snfeaar ara gfg & a1 ©.621 B
Tehx .642 BIS & M. faae s1fiat & ufaera & S o1 faer
T.UT.T. SATT gig O 1T 1.09% | TedhY 1.23% B AT ARATT
ford do o denfaa feenfden & 3MaR aa™ Herst 3T
31 AT, 2010 T 78.61% 2.

T 43N gt AFEs
3MI® §& 7 31.03.2009 P TC Yot GG AFES, foRy "9=ieT || AHES

Business Growth and Earnings

The total business of the Bank i.e. total deposits plus gross
advances increased from Rs. 72236 crore in March 2009 to
Rs. 87066 crore in March 2010, registering a growth of 20.52%. The
total deposits had increased by 19.26% from Rs. 43051 crore to
Rs. 51344 crore during the year, crossing the milestone of Rs. 50000
crore for the first time. The total advances increased by 22.39%
during the year, up from Rs. 29185 crore to Rs. 35721 crore.

The share of CASA deposits to Aggregate Deposits during 2009-10
increased to 36.89% from 35.97% in the corresponding previous year.
CASA Deposits increased by 23% during the Financial Year 2009-10.

The thrust areas for credit expansion, with emphasis on risk
dispersal continued to be on SME, retail and agriculture sectors.
Retail loans stood at Rs. 5380 crores, up by 21.61%, MSME loans
stood at Rs. 5647 crores showing an increase of 18.26% while
loans to agriculture sector grew by 25.32% and stood at Rs. 4826
crores as at March 2010.

The total income of the Bank for the year 2009-10 grew by 18.60%
to Rs. 4599 crores comprising of Rs. 4010 crores as interest
income and Rs. 589 crores as non interest income. Interest income
recorded a growth of 16.33%.

The Bank’s strategy of concentrating on recoveries in written off
accounts, commission income from government business and
referral income from distribution of third party products etc. had
yielded good results, leading to a growth of 36.85% by way of non
interest income. The Bank has registered an impressive growth of
25.24% in recoveries in written-off accounts.

| am privileged to announce that as a result of the above and the
strenuous efforts put by all employees of the Bank, the Net Profit
of the Bank has increased from Rs. 422.66 crores to Rs. 511.25
crores during the year 2009-10. This represents an increase of
20.96% during the year in comparison to an increase of 17.47%
during 2008-09. | am happy to announce that the Board of Directors
of the Bank have recommended an enhanced dividend of 20% as
against 12% for the previous year.

Asset Quality

Your Bank’s credit and investments portfolios are well diversified with
a view to scatter the inherent risks involved by spreading the risk over
various sectors and industries of the economy. An effective Credit
Monitoring System is also in place to identify and track borderline
assets early and initiate corrective steps as required. However,
the overall economic scenario had affected performance of many
industries and economic activities during the year and as result, the
Gross Non-performing Assets of the Bank marginally increased from
Rs. 621 crore to Rs. 642 crore. Despite this increase, Gross NPA of
the Bank as a per cent of Gross Advances came down from 2.13% to
1.80%. Net NPA of the Bank as a per cent of Net Advances marginally
increased from 1.09% to 1.23%. The Provision Coverage Ratio as per
revised RBI guidelines stood at 78.61% as at 31st March, 2010.

New Capital Adequacy Norms

Your Bank had embraced the New Capital Adequacy frame work
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TRT ST &, 30T foTe €. 99T 1| & STl &b o Yott Tt 31.03.2009
BN 12.07% T JeHT H 31.03.2010 BT 12.77% .

A SedTl aTaxT

JfdsT SR a1 A § e & e foe eRer &1 vh T
AHES €. a9 & IR 39 T WA & G & AT & 2009-10 o 3id
o I Pl URUR e IMET3i B G¥=ar 1223 o, GAY F0 § dc 77 24 41
31X 4 g e yeen # a0 Jufifa asof = & 8. b &1 104 IRaE
Qe & A 9T gY, for s I 7% 2010 @@ §6 = 39 W @
1 € 31R 219 eTETe s 2010 & 3 AF Wit & Y. I & verwAr
¥ 2 aETS vérEn o e &, S s o @ et wRE disET
P T &. 31.03.2010 HT §c = 396 TerLA wnfug o< v & 5w &
295 TCITH IMRAT I IR & 31 101 LA UTedhi o Jfaer & fore s
T R fea €

Mg S

TG G & AT ¥ & I TRD! & A1 Fuds B FabelT &
3R 3T H TR Ui & aHet, HTEeRT W et UTed JaT &
HHEIT D ool 2. db 7 FHI TR B HHATRAT D &FT B 390 R
3O UTRTET0T SRR T Gieitod STek! R & e 3 Tereror
HRIGHT, BrAeensii, AHART 3nfs & wreaw 7 farre e =1 SRy
IGT. 2009-10 & AR &6 ¥ 103 T HUBRY it e, formi fafim
faerwsr S0t & aiftreRY o1 |, faceh qar, o da-ie, fauom,
FIft® e e & sfaeRal f qoneTd T 9a™ &= @
gar ¥ gfe & fow &1 w8 &1 faeivsr e ara ufdeor erim
3aTtsTa fpam ST XET @ 3R 39 &7 § 133 srftrerial of fagy wg
J yftrfara fopar mar.

Y P AR 177 HRAURT / FTRIRTT BT faf¥e SrafcAd, Tdedid,
I 3R AT Haer &t 7 aesl uferor & fav e fear man.

e} gRT wuiaRor

T T & A1 Sl SRR ghg o 5 ke & a9
ot B BR ST wewn & siata a= & e d& F s &
TRAT aRATST BT AT Iad T e 7. §9d aifaiRes B dfd
&1 0T JTANT TR B L SFRITTh BT 39gTh U el uRare anTd
B BH B P (0T PRITR UThaT BT gRie 3R fovar 2.

IrYor gge qern fasita gaasE

2009-10 & SR HHSIR aflf a2m g fad sfa den segfad 5=
ST @ 6 & HOT YATE H HH 40.19% AT 24.99% DI Jra
Tt g5, do F foxiiar FAIGe der 319 aob ST Jiaensit ¥ dfaa
IRaRT BT SfdsT FITE Ta™ B B fehar da1 dI . a6 2009-10
% SR & T 2.06 TG T @i (@17 3769 god @) @i & 3R
THd AT & 31.03.2010 BT g7 Wl &I el T&T TghR 5.73 TG
B g 2. 3 d% 7 av & SR 2736 YfHE fea fse FE aem
2542 T AT $hise s SR fhe. a¥ & GRM d& = IaHgR,
WO, ST T Facrarr ¥ are et da i @i g7 dHa B
v forar = feam mar 2

more popularly called “Basel — Il Norms” as at 31st March, 2009. The
Capital Adequacy of the Bank as at 31st March, 2010 stood at 12.77%
under Basel — Il in comparison to 12.07% as at 31st March, 2009.

Ever expanding Outreach

In a service industry like banking, the number of service outlets is a
key parameter that determines growth. The traditional distribution
channels of the Bank stood at 1223 as at the end of 2009-10 with the
opening of 39 more Branches during the year. In all, the Bank has
set its footprint in 24 States and 4 Union territories. The Bank got
licenses to open 104 branches out of which till May 2010 Bank has
opened 39 Branches and the remaining Branches will be opened
by end of July 2010. The Bank’s ATMs include two Bio metric ATMs
that form part of the Bank’s strategy for financial inclusion. As at
31st March, 2010, the Bank had an installation base of 396 ATMs
comprising of 295 on-site ATMs and 101 Off-site ATMs for the
convenience of customers.

Human Resources

Human resources forms your Bank’s interface with its customers
and efficient customer service across the counters is the key to
succeed against tough competition in the industry. The Bank
continued to focus on skill upgradation of employees at all levels
through training programmes, workshops, seminars etc., both
through the Bank’s training set up and reputed external training
set-ups. The Bank also recruited 103 new officers during 2009-
10 including various areas of specialization like Credit, Forex,
IT, Marketing, Personal etc. For enhancing the lending skills of
the officers, a specialized intensive credit training of two months
duration is being conducted and 133 officers are specially groomed
in this area.

During the year 177 Executives / Officers were deputed for external
training program in different functional, managerial, leadership and
behavioural areas.

Transformation through Technology

Technology along with Human Resources is the main catalyst for
growth. The Bank successfully completed its Dena Garima project for
bringing all branches under Core Banking platform. Besides, to harvest
the full benefits of core banking, the Bank has also implemented many
initiatives for Business Process Reengineering aimed both at optimal
utilization of man-power and reducing operational costs.

Rural Initiatives and Financial Inclusion

The Bank’s credit flow to weaker sections and SC/STs had registered
growth of 40.19% and 24.99% respectively during 2009-10. The
Bank has taken various steps to gear up for financial inclusion and
to hasten the process of bringing families into the banking fold,
which were hitherto, not availing of banking facilities. During the
year 2009-10, the Bank opened 2.06 lacs no frill accounts (Dena
Alpa Bachat Khata) and the total number of these accounts stood
at 5.73 lacs as on 31st March, 2010. Further, the Bank also issued
2736 Bhoomiheen Kisan Credit Cards and 2542 Dena General
Credit Cards during the year. During the year, the Bank has also
opened Credit Counseling centers at Palanpur, Mehsana, Bhuj and
Silvassa. These centers are christened as Dena Mitras.
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PURES TSI for ey
ITHIOT TRISHTR I¥1&10T SR (3R
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3o fpar &

SiferaTait B e &1 e

BIARC AT FSTRIGRT & W b T & dp = T oredT f3rer deame
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q1aY ATSIE
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Corporate Social Responsibilities
Rural Self Employment Training Institute (RSETIS)

Dena Bank has set up a society known as Dena Rural Develoment
Foundation (DRDF) with a initial corpus of Rs. 50 lacs to take
up various initiatives in rural development. DRDF in turn has
established 11 Rural Self Employment Training Institutes (RSETIs)
in its lead districts of Gujarat and Chhattisgarh, where bank is
shouldering the responsibility of lead bank. Out of these 11 RSETIs,
8 RSETIs were operationalised during the financial year 2009-10 .
These RSETIs have organised 231 training programmes and have
imparted training to 6063 youth for various activities.

The Bank has further contributed to Rs. 100 lacs to the corpus
of DRDF during the year for running and maintenance of Dena
RSETIs in Bank’s lead districts.

Sponsoring Education of Girl Child

As a part of Corporate Social Responsibility, the Bank under
Dena Laxmi Shiksha Protsahan Yojana sponsor education of Girl
students in the villages served by the Bank. Under the scheme
Bank provides scholarship of Rs. 2000/- and Rs.1500/- per annum
to identified girl students belonging to Below Poverty Line (BPL)
family, to be selected from each of the schools based on first and
second rank respectively secured in 7th Standard, from the villages
under the command area of the Bank. The Bank has so far provided
scholarships to 1856 girl students under the scheme.

The Road Ahead

The economy is expected to be vibrant during 2010-11 with marked
improvement in credit pick-up. Financial inclusion will be a major
program that needs to be attended to in line with the priorities
set by Government of India. Increasing demand for credit from
infrastructure sector may necessitate a relook at asset liability
mis-matches. The switch over from BPLR regime to Base Rate
regime from 1st July, 2010 will also be a major challenge. Above
all, the challenge of acquiring new and retaining existing customers
will be a huge task in the midst of ever growing competition in the
industry. These challenges will determine the path to be traversed
during 2010-11 and beyond.

The Bank has prepared itself for these challenges and will follow a
fine tuned strategic approach as in the last year. You will all agree
that the Bank’s approach last year has yielded good results and |
am confident that the new challenges will also be overcome.

Broadly speaking, during the current year also, the thrust areas of
SME, Retail and Agriculture will continue to be in focus. Enhancing
CASA deposits level, augmenting non-interest income, aggressive
recovery efforts in addressing the written-off accounts, improvement
in asset quality with emphasis on avoidance of concentration risk
etc. will constitute important action points of the Bank’s strategies.
One area where the Bank will focus very sharply is increase in fee
based income through better marketing of bank’s own products that
generate fee based income, commission etc. as well as distribution
of third party products.
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o e

d% 7 ARg Y Ul JAT T § IR & e F=tafaa sua

fee g,

1. ®URT HRIER g i foa arant & areow ¥ Fuke
TEDHI B NETIHAT T B W & hied AT a6 7 4
PHIIRCT BRITR 2 3R 2 it fow amar @ & fomm 3
A HURT HRITR LARETE a 2009-10 & SR Giel T3 77 HeaH
FoH TTEH! o [eTC &9 U4 WG Hisa & W & 9 # fafe= e
Hfadl 7 15 Bargd TN dg wnfid fev & Rea oeet &
3NMETTHATe G &% & fore d& 7 12 Reer snia e zenfug
o €. fo 3 ad & SR 8 mamsi ¥ B d=AT 3R o,

2. BRPR W BRI WTIH G Bl YT I Fieremor <=
AT &R UTESH A aT & fo7e 3mel o5 aR # 39k 79 # i
HYAT.

a¥ 2009-10 & fore Frrceret @ RTE, gare v @ emw ed &1t arar &t
31T B W G [92asT & b 3770 A1 397 a1 &7 TR Bl DY
8% & e Hsd, TSUaT qI T avt b HHANRAT gRT IR
T WG BT 3Mex fepar T &

751 fowart @ o5 oda a¥ & SR 3Me gHIfadl & a1 96 Br 3T
FeM H 36 & TS BT 3T FRaR Tl 3iR FReT0T uTe 8rar 8.

AR

# dF & TG TEDI, AIRURD! T2 YHAIAD! BT db DI YA
3% HE@YUT TNTETT & T8 ST0T EFIaTe eaeh dRall & il Hiae # Y
3 I THY T TEANT B ST BT &,

# 9RA RER 72 ¥RAF Raid 3@ I 9T I |elre, Fecaqot
ATTaRl vd 9 & [ 4T 3MHR I &_al &,

R FeT b TH TRI R 4T TC Ag@yqul dNer & uid 9t # 3R
TH TRAT §, Torics TeamT & foer d g1 &f 715 ymifer Hia 7t 8.
# d & @Ra HRIER fawr Ter gt & snoy R wedn o smen
G &,

&Y. e, Iad

3rezeT ud yeer feere

To improve the credit delivery system and efficiency Bank has
taken the following initiatives:

1. Focus on catering to needs of corporate clients through the
Corporate Business and Industrial Finance branches. Bank
has opened 4 Corporate Business Branch and Two Industrial
Finance Branches of which two Corporate Business Branches
were opened during the year 2009-10. For SME clients 15
centralized processing centres are set up at various regional
offices as part of the Hub & Spokes Model. In order to cater to
the Retail clients Bank has set up 12 Retail Asset Branches
out of which 8 were operationalised during the year.

2. Customers centric grooming of front line staff along with
training to enhance their products' knowledge for better
customer service.

Upon perusing the Directors’ Report, the Balance Sheet and the
Profit and Loss Account for the year 2009-10, | am sure that you will
appreciate that the shareholders’ sentiments have been respected
by the bank’s Board, Management and all sections of the employees.

| hope the Management will continue to have the privilege of your
continued support and patronage in steering the Bank amidst
innumerous challenges during the current year.
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it e,

1. 31 ATd, 2010 BT T [T G & oI@l & ol W& (o
faaRoT T FhaT YaTg [9aRoT & |1 3 b anie RUe U=gd bR

2. ferfra foreare=

2.1 8% &1 uRane oy fuee af & o, 726.36 T 3. 114.22 RIS
(15.72%) @I 3fea &of FA gL, 31 A, 2010 B T ¥ & fore
T, 840.58 PHRI3 dd Ugd 4.

2.2 31 A, 2010 P THIC 9 & feie f7ae e 3. 511.25 BRI dh
UET T, ST fUBe ¥ & fae aTH B, 422.66 FRIS H . 88.89
RIS (20.96%) Y Ffeg T2TaT &

a¥ 2009-2010 & fow & & fara fFoeT &1 IRz 7=
JhR ?:

To
The Members,

1. The Board of Directors have great pleasure in presenting
the Annual Report of the Bank along with the Audited Financial
Statement of Accounts and the Cash Flow statement for the year
ended 31st March, 2010.

2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

2.1 The Operating Profit of the Bank increased to Rs. 840.58 crores
for the year ended 31st March, 2010 from Rs. 726.36 crores in the
previous year registering an increase of Rs. 114.22 crores (15.72%).

2.2 The Net Profit increased to Rs. 511.25 crores for the Year
ended 31st March, 2010 from Rs. 422.66 crores in the previous
year recording an increase of Rs. 88.59 crores (20.96%).

The financial performance of the Bank for the year 2009-2010 is
summarized below:

(W ?b‘\ﬁ's’ ﬁ) Amount in Crore

foa=or 31 91, 2009 Pt fReafer 31 9w, 2010 F1 fReafe
Particulars As of 31st March, 2009 As of 31st March, 2010
IRETET AT Operating Profit 726.36 840.58
&ToT AT Interest Income 3447.50 4010.36
TS dT 2383.07 2910.33
Interest Expenditure

Traer s1st 3 1064.43 1100.03

Net Interest Income

iR =t 3 430.13 588.63
Non Interest Income

UTTEIT U 3T HBATE 303.70 329.32
Provisions and contingencies

R g AT 541.43 686.79
Profit before Tax

HRI P e g1ger= Provision forTaxes 118.77 175.54
fo1aeT &9 Net Profit 422.66 511.25
3. fortra freares @t fafereame 3. Performance Highlight

3.1 31 W, 2010 & T fad af & SRM 96 & pa i
BRIGR T. 87000 TS B TR BT UR B T 2. §b & oot (A3
HRIGR | T. 14830 TRIS dF gftg g8 foa™r ag a¥ 2009-2010 &
37 H 9dR . 87066 PRIS b WR ad Ugd T, ST Usel ay &
PRIGR B, 72236 BIS T 20.53% 27T 2.

3.2 d TARIYAT # T. 8294 FRIT (19.26%) HI Jiea g5 oI
31 I, 2009 & . 43051 PRI dF AT T Fgdx 31 AT, 2010 BT
T, 51345 RIS P U TTs.

3.3 d% & 30t # . 6536 TRIT B Ffez g8, oo™y d% & oot
3TIH 31 AR, 2009 ®T 3. 29185 HRE T Teb< 31 A, 2010 BT
T. 35721 BRI dd Ugd T, i fh 22..40% @ gfeg qerfa €.

3.1 The aggregate Business Mix of the Bank crossed the level of
Rs. 87000 crores during the financial year ended 31st March, 2010.
The total Business Mix of the Bank increased by Rs. 14830 crores to
Rs. 87066 crores at the end of the year 2009-2010 from Rs. 72236
crores recording the growth rate of 20.53 % .

3.2 The total Deposit registered a growth of Rs. 8294 crores
(19.26%) from Rs. 43051 crore as on 31st March, 2009 to
Rs. 51345 crores as on 31st March, 2010.

3.3 The Advances of the Bank increased by Rs. 6536 crores from
Rs. 29185 crores as on 31st March, 2010 to Rs. 35721 crores as
on 31st March, 2010 registering a growth of 22.40%.
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3.4 T U1 U &! Il H o & TEHE! YA I Y B AR 9
TRt @F oTaar ¥ YR g3 2. 6 7 free af # . 380.10 18
@ I B o H a¥ 2009-10 B AR . 423.83 TR DI 9B
I AT v Y © 30 fovar &, aee @ e T @t § agen #§
B. 25.94 TS DI 3T g fora<t 98 AT 2009 H . 100.24 FRIT A
FEH AT 2010 H 3. 126.18 BRIS A Ugd TTs.

3.4 The multipronged efforts of the Bank in recovery of NPA’s has
resulted in the improvement in the asset quality of the Bank during
the year. Bank effected a cash recovery and upgradation of NPA’s
of Rs. 423.83 crores compared to Rs. 380.10 crores in the previous
year. Recovery in writeoff has also increased by Rs.25.94 crore
from Rs. 100.24 crores as of March 2009 to Rs. 126.18 crores as
of March 2010.

('5‘1'3[ aﬁrs ff) Amount in crore

fara=or 31 97e, 2009 @t fRafer| 31 7, 2010 @t Rerfer
Particulars As of 31st March, 2009 | As of 31st March, 2010
ot SRS Total Deposits 43050.61 51344.27
TdbeT 3TTUH Gross Advances 29185.36 35721.41
Tbet (9T Gross Investments 12538.32 15760.14
grIfHear & Priority Sector 9715.00 11718.00
BT Agriculture 3851.00 4826.00
R Retail 4424 .44 5379.91
UIFU?[EI[EE MSME 4774.74 5647.36
T UF U T Gross NPA 620.77 641.99
fo7aeT T Ut € Net NPA 313.38 427.53
el AT o et T O T BT % of Gross NPA to Gross Advance 213 1.80
foraet s1firt # f51ae v 9 T BT % of Net NPA to Net Advance 1.09 1.21
U3i qafedr 3T Capital Adequacy Ratio 12.07 12.77
4. 99 forira @ Key Financial Indicators
DB IHY foaira SREIS) 7 f&r T €. Some of the Key Financial ratios are presented below
fera=or 319w, 2009 @t Reafer| 31 w1, 2010 Y Rearfer
Particulars As of 31st March, 2009 | As of 31st March, 2010
T1aeT samsT WIS Net Interest Margin 2.91 2.61
3MTTAT IR UTaaT Return on Assets 1.02 1.01
3T & ARG 31UId Cost to Income Ratio 51.40 50.22
9T Il & 3FTe HITRTITR CRAR under Basel I 12.07 12.77
U Ul € Rl 3U (3. AR Red d & 7 feenfeel & sgar 84.59 78.61
NPA Coverage Ratio (Prov.) As per new RBI guidelines
SHRISTAT & @G Cost of Deposit 6.36 6.21
férdt & @I Cost of Funds 6.47 6.31
AT R Gfawe Yield on Advance 10.71 10.32
et o= ufawa Yield on Fund 8.76 8.52
sfdaeT R ufawe Return on Equity 24.05 23.55
TTeRTaR 3157 Earning Per Share 14.74 17.83
FEI g Book Value 65.84 84.04
5. SIRAT Aedd 5. Branch Network:

aY 2009-10 3 SR 4 DI GoeT ARIATHT DY AT 1223 T J¢ T
& fSTT 39 4T omETe enfHet & 3T e eTRaTe A & v & Sidia
CAEGRS

6. BAeq Acad

T U CT T &1 T Ieax 396 &1 T, for e 3 e st
R 37afeId 101 € & vq Y 9nfia € 3R UTee IeieRy Jedd &
9,45,000 U &1 THI T T 3TN HR Fhd 2.

During the year 2009-10, the total Branch network of the Bank
increased to 1223 including 39 new Branches and all the branches
of the Bank are covered under CBS.

6. ATM Network:

Total number of ATMs increased to 396 which included 101 offsite
ATMs and customers can have access to 9,45,000 ATMs in the
shared network.
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7. AT

feerd 8@ @ a¥ 2009-10 & AU BUFr 2.00 Ui YR 3riid
20% 3ifcm amrer & fawIRer a=d g ue=dr & & 2. foxira o
2009-10 & AT @merfer &x oA @ ot W 8w, 5 f d g
I fhaT STRIT. a9 2009-10 & o8 ETHIRT & BRUT et YT
F ST ATl AT, dTerfer - Afgd . 67,11,37,606/- BN

8. frraer gufy ua <t 3R E 3R

8.1 § @1 f7aa Fuf 31.3.2009 & 5. 1666.83 RIS & TR I
Feax feHd 31.3.2010 BT 3. 2212.50 TR P TR ad Ugd T3, 3T
5 5. 545.67 BRI (32.74%) BT gieg T &

8.2 AT 2010 ®I Yl &I NG (HTRe) 3N AT (T 3R €
3R) 12.77% &, ST&d A 2009 H Tg 12.07% T, STETAR T&
9% &I @fEe.

8.3 99 & ARM a = Tar=aT ®Ig %o feraat (3 0 S 3E) B
ERT $eT B. 125 RIS DI TR | Goi ThHT .

8.4 W 2010 ¥ ST |1 & e A.3R.U.IR. HIT BT TR | Gair
8.16% &, STdteh AT, 2009 H 98 6.76% .

7. Dividend

The Board of Directors is pleased to recommend a final dividend of
Rs. 2.00 per share i.e., 20% for 2009-10. The dividend for financial
year 2009-10 shall be subject to tax on dividend to be paid by
the Bank. The total outflow on account of dividend for 2009-10 is
Rs.67,11,37,606/- including dividend tax.

8. Net Worth and CRAR

8.1 The Net Worth of the Bank improved to Rs. 2212.50 crore as on
31.03.2010 from Rs. 1666.83 crore as on 31.03.2009 registering a
growth of Rs. 545.67 crore (32.74 %).

8.2 The Capital to Risk (Weighted) Asset Ratio (CRAR) is 12.77%
as of March 2010, compared to 12.07% as of March 2009, against
the requirement of 9%.

8.3 During the year, the Bank raised Tier | capital by way of
Innovative Perpetual Debt Instrument (IPDI) aggregating to
Rs. 125 crore.

8.4 The Tier | capital of CRAR component under Basel Il is 8.16%
as of March 2010 as against 6.76% as of March 2009.

S¥id Basel | S¥e Basel Il
A1l March 2009 | aref March 2010 | Aref March 2009 | @iref March 2010
SR | 43T Tier- | Capital 6.01 6.80 6.76 8.16
SR |1 Y37 Tier -1l Capital 4.72 3.85 5.31 4.61
I Total 10.73 10.65 12.07 12.77
9. e vsa o uRad= 9. Changes in Board of Directors

9.1 31 W, 2010 PT Fewd Hsel # 37e0eT w9 yae FMeerd aur
HRAUTAD 2D, AT JUT BIfcid HewId qel - 3R A1d 370
Fcere enfiet 2

e UH URA WBR Bl ATTHAT HesT:
o UP YR Ra1d db &1 i e

QO

o TP IYPRI HHART e

e U RYIP YR TR GRT A T
+ I ¥R URPI §RI G T FHeerb.

9.2 sft UG AT B! JATSCE db 3% Sfear & sreder vd gder
f1ewrd & B TSEid 89 & BRUT I 28 BRAXT, 2010 I §b &
FIUTeS e T8l 2. Fewe deet S URaR AT gRT a8 B
e Hsa § Ut Meeid & B # 3¢ Bridlet & AR faar
T WEqUT INTEH & feTu 3T ARTET BT &.

9.3 YRA TR, faa e, facira Jare faum =1 sifergemn ve
. 9/12/2009-a131-1 feics 25 ST, 2010 GRT AL IABT dB
(gae ve fafaer graem) arsr 1970/1980 & @S 8 & 3UES
(1) & a1y ufesd Sfdm ot (Fumar o siferrgor sk 3R
arferfsam, 1970/ 1980 B €IRT 9 &F IULRT (3) & WUS (H) B

9.1 The Board of Directors of the Bank comprised of Chairman &
Managing Director and Executive Director, both being whole-time
Directors and seven other directors as under, as on 31st March, 2010:

o One Government of India Nominee Director;

o One Reserve Bank of India Nominee Director;

o One Officer Employee Director;

o One Director nominated by Government of India; and
o Three Shareholders’ elected Directors:

9.2 Shri Bhaskar Sen, ceased to be Executive Director of the
Bank w.e.f. 28th February, 2010, upon his elevation as Chairman &
Managing Director of United Bank of India. The Board of Directors
places on record their appreciation for the valuable contribution
made by Shri Bhaskar Sen during his tenure as Executive Director
on the Board of the Bank.

9.3 The Government of India, Ministry of Finance, Department of
Financial Services vide notification F.No. 9/12/2009-BO-| dated
25th January, 2010 in terms of Clause (a) of Sub-section (3) of
Section 9 of the Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer
of Undertakings) Act, 1970/1980 read with Sub-clause (1) of
Clause 3, Sub- clause (1) of Clause 8 of the Nationalised Banks
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IR ARG Rad 3% 3 wRiTel a1 & a1e sit 3reie &. &
DI, 36 §RT IS BT HIHYR T o ST & arr srfa
arf, 2010 ¥ 31i% 31.01.2014 37Td 3@ Faf-gla & ARG
3R 37T ST b, ST Hl U &, 9 o BRIUed Heed B
wu ¥ g fomar 2.

9.4 st dt. vw. RraguR, Fees, s fe 3T o= @umHr &t
MUEUT Ud 37dROT) fafaaw, 1970 & &RT 9 &F 3T ORT (3) &
Gg (Ud) & 3 g W F, 7 ewe ded 3 @ fear sik
IHT INMIT HRA FRBR IRT 27 TSR, 2009 | g [daT T,
Fcere wea 41 dl. v, RIGAR gRT 46 & [Hewid Hsd # Haeidb
& 9 H 396 HRIBIA B AR & T HEaqol ANEH & fee 39!
RTEAT AT &

9.5 $Y E. MUTAH®H, Tl dE@BR Hawd, i1 fb dfdsm doosr
(3UshHT T 3HTEIEeT v siaRon) sifefaw, 1970 @ 9RT 9 @ 3T
R (3) & WS (311 & 314 14 fexieR, 2006 ¥ Foges foa ™ &1,
3T BB Iof 8 WX 13 feday, 2009 I § & e 6t @
1w H5a S U, MUTAGwH gRT §6 & Mawidh g8a # fHewd &
T H 395 BB B R & T Aeayel aneH & fae 396!
TRTEAT BT &.

9.6 51t vH. g, fewre, 511 o AT duit (3umsat o iferrgor
Ud 3TRoT) ATIH, 1970 P GRT 9 DI 3T ORT (3) H WS (T9)
& 37 31 feddaR, 2007 I g T A, S BAGE U B W
30 fedieR, 2009 ¥ 9% & feve T8 @ s #ea St o
IS GRT 36 & fewid wed # Feerd & ¥9 § 36 s
& 2R e T ARcaypt ane & AT 36T TRTET o &,

9.7 st e SRR, FR HHaRt e, s fe Tama 6
(& vg fafaer grger) arsr 1970 & WS 9 & 3UES (2)(F) D
ey utsd dfdsT o Fumsar @1 siftrgen 3ik siaRo) srfafom,
1970 I €IRT 9 BT IULIRT (3) & WUS (3) b N 19 FadaR, 2007 =¥
s fosdr T 91, srftrafar oF 3y a TETH W 28 HRERT, 2010
& e #eer & fga gu. Feers dsa s vash. Ric grT d6
P Feere dsa & feee & 3T # FH DA & aRF fad T
HE@YUT AN & feTe 39aT FRTET el &.

9.8 YRA WRER, faa warer, foxira Jare fawmr 7 siERg@AT vw
H. 9/10/2009-8131-| {175 18 WRaART, 2010 GRT I IIFHd d (&
vq fafger uraem) arsHr 1970/1980 & W 9 & 3UWS (1)Td (2) B
ey ufsd dfdsm o Fumsat @1 sifergon sik siaro) sifafrom,
1970/ 1980 I TRT 9 BT ITYRT (3) & TUS (T) B IFFAR AR
Rad 6 T mWel =7 & T1¢ S TR v, 3 S 3, 8
& Feers deet § SMREET & aRg AT 18 HRaRT, 2010 &
31l¥ 30.11.2012 T 3rifa 9@ Farf-gra o fafer a1 396 §6 &
AR U ¥ g ae o anrer s el ac, S Y uRe &, JfIeRY
SR fgerd & o # frges fsar &

(Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1970/1980,
after consultation with Reserve Bank of India had appointed
Shri Ashok K. Dutt as Executive Director of the Bank for a period
with effect from the date of his taking charge of the post i.e. 1st
March, 2010 and upto 31.01.2014 i.e. the date of his superannuation
and until further orders, whichever is earlier.

9.4 Shri V. S. Sivakumar, Director, elected under Clause (h) of
Sub-section (3) of Section 9 of the Banking Companies (Acquisition
and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970 w.e.f. 21st November,
2007, resigned from the Board and his resignation was accepted by
Government of India on 27th October, 2009. The Board of Directors
places on record their appreciation for valuable guidance provided
by Shri V. S. Sivakumar, during his tenure as Director on the Board
of the Bank.

9.5 Shri A. Gopalakrishnan, Chartered Accountant Director,
appointed under Clause (g) of Sub-section (3) of Section 9 of the
Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings)
Act, 1970 w.e.f. 14th December, 2006, ceased to be a Director of
the Bank from 13th December, 2009 on completion of his tenure.
The Board of Directors places on record their appreciation for
valuable guidance provided by Shri A. Gopalakrishnan, during his
tenure as Director on the Board of the Bank.

9.6 Shri M. Surya Naik, Director, elected under Clause (h) of
Sub-section (3) of Section 9 of the Banking Companies (Acquisition
and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970 w.e.f. 31st December,
2007, ceased to be a Director of the Bank from 30th December,
2009 on completion of his tenure. The Board of Directors places on
record their appreciation for valuable guidance provided by Shri M.
Surya Naik, during his tenure as Director on the Board of the Bank.

9.7 Shri M. G. Shinde, Workmen Employee Director, appointed
under Clause (e) of Sub-section (3) of Section 9 of the Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970
read with Sub-clause (2)(a) of Clause 9 of Nationalized Banks
(Management and Miscellaneous Provisions) Sceme, 1970 w.e.f.
19th September, 2007, retired from the Board on 28th February,
2010 upon attaining superannuation. The Board of Directors places
on record their appreciation for valuable guidance provided by Shri
M. G. Shinde, during his tenure as Director on the Board of the Bank.

9.8 The Government of India, Ministry of Finance, Department of
Financial Services vide notification F.No.9/10/2009-BO-I dated 18th
February, 2010 in terms of Clause (f) of Sub-section (3) of Section 9
of the Banking Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings)
Act, 1970/1980 read with Sub-clause (1) & (2) of Clause 9 of the
Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous Provisions)
Scheme, 1970/1980, after consultation with Reserve Bank of India had
appointed Shri Ignatius M. Almeida as Officer Employee Director on
the Board of Directors of the Bank for a period of three years from
the date of notification i.e. 18th February, 2010 and upto 30.11.2012
i.e. the date of his superannuation or until he ceases to be an officer of
the Bank or until further orders, whichever is earlier.



O St sro

Annual Report 2009 - 2010 | 19

a9 2009-2010 & fete fereeraT &) Ruid DIRECTORS' REPORT 2009-2010

10. et & FTRaRuca &1 faaxor

a9 31 AR, 2010 BT JAE 99 P fow i aivam IR & |
frmfafed & gie e &

I 9INe o dUR a1 H Aewayol faaeq & Jag # Jgiad
TEIHRUT & AT AL AHDBT BT g fesar T,

Il 3R U o Aot &7 99 fohaT vd 39T FReR e fasar
e v oo vd srgee e S wgfua vd faaeyot & @ifes
foira o & 37 do d6 o w3 e R ovga o 9%
T4 31aty & e da @ e a1 a1 & Rerfa < 9.

. 3B RIS T4 3 AafHaansit & e v Tl T
£q HRA # dobf R o] fafer & graemi & SR g o
Raref & wa-xama & fae agfud vd uaie e o 8.

V. 32 ae aEr, PR SRITR dlel G & TR ) IR
e o,

11. AR

1.1 T9e dsa d6 & 3107 G TIEdT, IORYURSDT am
gufdadr dF d& & T § 37 & Aew@qul ANEH & e 37T
EIATE ITh Xl & T HiaeT § 39k Idd THeiT Ud T anT HF
3TU&TT T 2.

11.2 ¥R TRAR 9T URAT Rod db I UTd GHdiad Jelle,
Hewayol AnieefH vd wmeie & faw off fees dea aifde amuR

Th BRAT 8.

11.3  fees dea 37 fodia dmit der Jeant d&f & gfa 9
FASIdT Th BT &, Torai d P TganT vd auei= fear g,

11.4 W6 Fe & 9 TRT R v 70 Aea@yuf anes & gfa
T eI Hea e SMTHR &xh BT 8, To i TaanT & fomr d
BRI & TS gAId T8I9 =78 &l Feerenor afRa RIeR faem
TAT S F TITeT H I A TSN dbF 3T I &,

o Hsd &b fow 3R o 3R 9

(SR AIE)

31eeT U Uaer Feeid

10. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors, in preparation of the annual accounts for the year
ended March 31, 2010, confirm the following:

I.  Thatin the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
standards had been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures.

Il.  That they had selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Bank at the end of the financial year
and of the profit or loss of the Bank for the period.

lll. That they had taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of applicable laws governing banks in India
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

IV. That they had prepared the annual accounts on a going
concern basis.
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1. Ry 3nfde uRagea

2008-09 @ AMUH af¥ad MU AT B BRAT § a¥ 2009-10 B
i FgerT & w § @M T 2009 &F e fauer § dfvas
3rfeaRen & fadrT ax =1 T UdHE!. Sy SF 31 3 U7 3FJA FHIaT
2 5 favamR 2010 # @O it A & HwraAr &, ey,
fomfad <o & 9RT Adsie o1, dufad 3aed § &Y, 3
SRISTRY &, HASIR ot Jonferat qeim 390 gIRT 3Uae TRIT 0
T Ui & W 03 & 99 @ & BRYT R S
IRl & Hag # T 1 g5 2. dfvas =y anfie aRkfefaar
H IR B HRA Hafd § 9RT gig 721 Rara 37 e # gt
JaTe & 1o 3T | ST S JabdT 8. X faea & 33Rar R 3rf
ZaRRmsit § Hogd gAIid & dod e € S fe Fafa § geR
3R 43Tt sraatE o Ferdr I 985 IR A & HROT E§ & Hard
HiNID! O & JAUH FTHA TE ST & b 2008-09 BT Hal I
IR gL, 3 Ired § gfg, wer df 3/l AHia aur Jar
JFCR | AT & BRUT 2009-10 H FHA B IUE H 7.2% Jrg &
B FUIGT & Fafd 2008-09 H U7 gha aX 6.7% o, WRarg 3rf
AT 7 HF UF FeIH AR & dIdoje Adhd BRel, 31E H Hatgd
gfg R e &,

2009-10 & fole IR ATUH 3AM F IR PV IdE Teds
216.90 fafero ¢ B9 @ Furaer @ S/afes 2008-09 & R
T 234.50 TafeTa= &1 g3m 1. wRI% 3Tt 3R faees aeT #
14.6% oI fiRTaT 3T @ FHTEAT & Sfafh &t & 3 ¥ 0.7%
Irard gig 819 & FdHreHT 8. 33t 3, 3 fs 2007-08 &
SR R TT axg drwar 7 fiRmae dr 2008-09 & AR dfrad
HET & HROT G 3T T, T 3THER 2009 F HRART 2010 &
SR I 2 3! @ g it &) ey 2. fafsmfor Jaex
T 2009-10 (3 A-BRARY) B AR 10.5% gfg &t o & Tafep,
I EA-BRaXT 2008-09 & SR IE Fhg 2.7% ot g4 3@l &
AR gi-amer ddex # ghg, 31 fob FawR 2009 H 9.4% T Ugd
T o, BRaT 2010 § UEHR 4.5% & TS, Hed o 3R Ugra
3Gl o 3TTE BT BISHR T Tl = 3o gia agnal &, Iar
JFe H 2009-10 B AT IR & AR Id g: 9T o 1,
2009-10 & dreR fowmer # fiRmae 3wt smie 2009 I wRaRT
2010 B 3y & a1 HFeR B T I TAY GIR B a1
< & foorva: diesy fawmer & are, 519 6 aredt wi ) el
JATC 517 TITHT BT THA §eE U8 faa=ue=i gRT e me
A qeT taRTe T efif=er grT fuer e anfat 3 a7 sra grar
& b STexY aTaTaRT # BT JUR I 2.

2. MR Red 8 &1 aife Hfqave

2.1 9Rar Red 9@ 7 af 2008-09 & g 3T AT & afis
gebed W Hifed Feafa § g e foar € I a7 /4 3WRal g3
sfeawmsl & g HRa 3 A Ao g oiftd &of & 2. I’
U@ 981 Rl AT an frata § gur qun orf awer § aed
Y31 &7 3TIATE 3TRH 81 P BRUT THT §3TT. T AT & S1G9[E,

1. Macroeconomic Scenario

The year 2009-10 in the shadow of deep global economic slump
of 2008-09 is viewed as a year of recovery with global economy
having picked up momentum in the fourth quarter of 2009. The WTO
projects that the world trade is expected to stage a strong recovery
in 2010. However concerns remain in respect of advanced countries'
macroeconomic environments in view of their large Public Debts,
coupled with reduction in potential outputs, high unemployment
rates, weak financial systems and likelihood of premature exit from
the policy stimulus provided by them. The improvement in Global
Macroeconomic conditions are reflected in the improvement in the
strong turnaround in the Indian exports and return of flow of Capital
in the Indian Economy. The Emerging Market Economies world over
has shown strong recovery which have been mainly due to the huge
domestic demand, supported by improved exports and inflow of
Capital. The advance estimates of Central Statistical Organization
(CSO) show that the GDP is expected to grow at the rate of 7.2%
in 2009-10 as compared to 6.7% in 2008-09 consequent to rebound
in industrial output, improved prospects for crops and flexibility of
services sector in regaining the lost ground during 2008-09. The
Indian Economy has exhibited strong recovery in GDP growth in
spite of reeling under lean and moderate monsoon.

According to the second Advance Estimates for 2009-10, the
agricultural production is estimated to decline to 216.90 million
tones from 234.50 million tones during 2008-09. The Kharif
food grains and oilseeds production may decline by 14.6%
whereas the Rabi production is expected to register a marginal
increase of 0.7%. The Industrial production which was affected
due to international commodity price shocks during 2007-08
and global recession during 2008-09 has shown a remarkable
two digit recovery during October 2009 to February 2010. The
manufacturing sector recorded a growth of 10.5% during 2009-
10 (April-February) as compared with 2.7% during April-February
2008-09. During the same period, the growth of the infrastructure
sector which had significantly improved till November 2009
having reached as high as 9.4% has slowed down in February
2010 to 4.5%. All the sectors with the exception of Crude and
petroleum products have shown accelerated growth. The services
sector after showing improved recovery in the second quarter
of 2009-10 registered a decline in the third quarter of 2009-10.
The leading indicators of the service sectors for the period April
2009 to February 2010 indicate overall improvement particularly
since Quarter 3 with services dependent on external demand
such as tourist arrivals, cargo handled by seaports and airports
and passenger handled by international terminals recovering
substantially indicate improved external environment.

2. Annual Policy Statement of RBI

2.1 Reserve Bank of India’s monetary stance in its Annual
Statement of Policy for the year 2010-11 has noted that like all
emerging economies, India too has registered strong recovery
largely due to huge domestic demand, improved exports and
resumption of inflow of outside Capital into the economy. GDP
growth has improved despite deficient monsoon based on the
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2009-10 @ ey formmel & 3t 3aures # gfig, e o swet
a3, afd # R 4T aT foham Bermi # dsi b HRUT Habel
TR 31E gfg # R g3, qfy, 56 sif=f¥adan & fsme sror
gfg X R gUTd US B UG &, YT 2010-11 & IR @A
AT AR @7 ST, GIRT o ad dF dIAdr § 31Rerdr 3ik
TSR H 3R ARedT P BHROT AT IR Tq1T & 1078 Jhg. aTEIIAT DY
D # dfead ggia df Feraar & qaT Woifd 71 2011 TP 5.5%
& TR X1 DI AU €.

2.2 yRd # Af Fofa siftraterd: gar woifa o swemst o Rer
= 3R 390 ey & a1 Wil gad & g & foe ey ik
JHGT 9 B B, Rl ggH B o f6d I E, anfd a7

3R dmd i qer faxdia ReRdaT & R &1e & gHead of

ST 9.

2.3 9Y® S T 378 HaT ThIT 3THaR 2009 H 1.5% I ol &
FeP< AT 2010 T 9.9% dd d¢ TS ST 3TRY H e yarf &l
Dl ¥ gfg $ SR gl I 31 fafmior samer & off
gef3fa gar € Sfe FavaR 2009 F 0.04% I Tgb< AT 2010 H
47% BN TS,

2.4 2010-11 & foTe AR R § @ AT BT &I 35ae [+t
U4 TRBRT &7 Bl K0T SMaTIBATI DT GIT F P 1078 HATE DY
HAT BT Hferd BT IR 3T A1 & AR aReAar b BROT el
it &7 Tt &= o 5<% BeRawy AT W) <ad gel. 39

goyfH # frmfatad Sfara 3ura sy fee me.

() RO X TP UG I TR 5.25% BF T3

(i) Rast RuT X qpier 919 & TGIx 3.75% o TTs.

(i) FBar gRfEra e srgum, Sife srxfua oo d@f gr
AR R db & U S8 W ST 2, 24 30fer, 2010
3RH & ATl qars ¥ et A iR Rl <ot & 6%

(v) ¥R Rerd d5 7 17 3ma o & aRart a6 6 0T F1
yag ugae & foae A 2011 @ FeiRa saftr qg fear &
3R dbT P IR TRBRT T3 P 1T FUh a1 T 7S
feifg & gom areh By ar wfufaat &1 sRER gfafafer /
TETIH & T | 3TN X b +ewr few €.

2.5 TsT &= ot ygfa

aY & AR 1S &1 | AT T g, STHT Tt a2 ST, e
W TS &1 H A 31 §s. T, 0T 3Tal b 3fad diAd umed
T, IR T H gRaRIAr qer difes Aifa duvor & geaieT §
JYR & HRUT R Re1d 36 7 91 BT 1 JaTs, 2010 I MR
JOTTET T 3T & e feu €. 1 Jemg, 2010 BF 3R 396 e e
E 0T UG AT ITHI 0T URATAT o A IRT Pl MR &R, ST [h

rebound in the industrial production, good prospects of Crops,
improved exports and acceleration in services activities since Third
Quarter of 2009-10. However there are some major uncertainties
that are likely to impact the growth. Firstly the prospects of near
normal monsoon for 2010-11, secondly the volatile crude prices
and increase in demand side pressure due to excess liquidity in
the Market. Complimented with the global trend in the commodity
prices the baseline projection of inflation is expected to be around
5.5% for March 2011.

2.2 The policy decisions in India have been designed largely to
anchor inflation expectations at the same time being prepared to
respond swiftly and effectively to further inflationary pressures,
ensure liquidity to ensure that the growth in demand for credit by the
private and public sector is adequately met and to ensure an interest
rate regime consistent with price output and financial stability.

2.3 Headline WPI inflation accelerated sharply from 1.5% in
October 2009 to 9.9% by March 2010 which has been initially
driven by food prices which has now become generalized reflected
in manufactured products inflation rising from 0.04% in November
2009 to 4.7% in March 2010.

2.4 The thrust of the Reserve Bank's policy for 2010-11 has been
aimed to balance the resource demand to meet the credit off take by
the Private and Public sector at the same time containing inflation
due to excess liquidity resulting in demand side pressure. Against
this back ground the following policy measures were initiated:

(i) The repo rate was enhanced to 5.25% with immediate effect.

(i) The reverse repo rate has been raised to 3.75% with
immediate effect and

(i) The Cash Reserve Ratio to be maintained by Scheduled
commercial Banks with Reserve Bank of India has been
raised to 6.00 % of the Net Demand and Time Lliabilities to be
effective from the fortnight beginning 24th April, 2010.

(iv) RBI has fixed March 2011 as deadline for maximun financial
inclusions for facilitating and channelising credit to low income
households. It has directed the Banks to establish linkages
with NGOS, and use well-run primary agricultural credit
societies as business correspondents / facilitators.

2.5 Movement of Interest Rates

The year saw the marginal north bound journey of the interest
rates. Both, deposits rates and interest rates witnessed marginal
increase. However Reserve Bank in order to facilitate better pricing
of loan products, transparency in lending rates and to improve
assessment of monetary policy transmission has mandated Banks
to switch over to the system of Base rate from 1st July, 2010. All
fresh loans and existing ones coming up for renewal on or after
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ufasr & T FoT & foe 3MerR & B, ¥ Hag fdar se. smeR
R B AFCUS & HUROT § ST PR dF oI, Tdhal TRfard e
U (N AR AR) & [ H M AT Fitared e rura
(T UA 3TR) U 31539 3170 &0 2NHe g,

3. A 3 Y gfRreit

ol vd ATdeiid & B FOT SITAGIIAT DI AT BN GT BRA B
feTe ATTe e T 3aeadhdT B €I H W §P aY & AR ST
JOTIE &Y Gt ST AT H 18% DY afeg B Y g & I & Fon
¥ 99 & SR IR @ F0 § 20% B gl & B TUISHT &

ac dfvad arfcgawr I & e afcd TRel IATER0T H T Whifd
Ugfa & & GATAr & 81 g8 | HRAI 31 Fawe adie -t
% 3R af & IR 3% g Tt sk el PuRe Jaex 7

Heaqul gfe aof & &.
4.9 BTPRISRI et
4.1 fUgel 21 auf & 46 B Pl PRIGR AHS FTTGR & :-

1st July, 2010 will be linked to the base rate, which will be floor
rate for all future lending. The criteria determining the base rate
will include cost of deposits, adjustment for the negative-carry-in
respect of Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) and a Statutory Liquidity
Ratio (SLR) and un-allocatable overhead costs.

3. Banking Industry Trends

In view of the need to balance resource and demand to meet
the credit off take by the private and public sector the aggregate
deposits of the banking system is expected to grow at 18% during
the year. On the bank credit side, the non-food credit is expected to
grow at 20% during the year.

Notwithstanding several challenges not only from the global
economy but also from inflationary trends in the domestic
environment the Indian economy remained resilient and its financial
institutions and private corporate sector has registered robust
growth during the financial year.

4. Business Performance of the Bank

4.1 The composition of Total Business Mix of the Bank for the last
two years is as under:

(A. RE' ff) (Amount in crores)

foa=or 31 9ref, 2009 3t Rafar| 31 9w, 2010 Ft Rafe
Particulars As at 31st March, 2009 | As at 31st March, 2010
T ST et 43050.61 51344.27

Total Deposits

B 0 29185.36 35721.41

Total Advances

A BRIGR AT 72235.97 87065.68

Total Business Mix

4.2 §& & I PRIGR A 2009 § 3.72235.97 BRIS F TGHI
AT 2010 H ¥.87065.68 FR1S A Ugd 7T 3T b fat ad 2009-10
& e 20.53% @ gi T &

4.3 T ST AT 2009-10 & 37T H F.51345 TRIS B TR b
Ugd T ST b fusel af & WR §.43051 BRI H 19.26% DI T
gorfar &

4.4 % & PeT ATYH AT 2010 & 37 # 9.35721 FRIS AP Ugd
e 7 o foee of & ¥©.29185 aXIs & TR § 22.40% & Ifg
gortd &,

5. ST HUEOT

5.1 fo af 2009-10 & SR fafie auf & s AFeRAT § ©.8294
RIS & g g5, foaxt af 2008-09 T2 2009-10 & for ST et
@ goTes Rerfa e geR 2

4.2 Business Mix of the Bank has increased from Rs. 72235.97
crores. in March 2009 to Rs. 87065.68 crores as of March 2010
registering a growth of 20.53% for FY 2009-10.

4.3 Total Deposits has reached to the level of Rs. 51345 crores
at the end of FY 2009-10 over Rs. 43051 crores during the
corresponding previous year registering a growth of 19.26%.

4.4 Total Advances of the Bank stood at Rs. 35721 crores as of March
2010 compared to level of Rs. 29185 crores in the corresponding
previous year. The growth was to the tune of 22.40%.

5. Deposit Mobilisation

5.1 The incremental growth in different segments of Deposit was to
the extent of Rs. 8294 Crs. during the FY 2009-10. A comparative
position of Deposits for the FY 2008-09 & 2009-10 is as under:
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(T.@RIS ) (Amt in Crs)

qUEs At 2009 At 2010
PARAMETERS March 2009 March 2010
Tlef, Current 3498 4507
(8.45%) (9.07%)
§dd Savings 11396 13813
(27.52%) (27.82%)
Jqrarer Term 26511 31337
(64.03%) (63.11%)
e STHIY ST Aggregate Deposits 41405 49657
3R &b 1T T Inter Bank Deposits 1645 1687
ST [ Total Deposits 43051 51345
Tl ST 19Tt
el STHISNT W TT.3ET/4.3T. (%) CASA to Total Deposits 34.60% 35.68%

(DI H [T 7T 3Hicbs gocT STAT RTFeT H FITorT ST 13T BT Habel
&R &)

5.2 9 2009-10 & AR FoeT ST AT H T, TN T @Il SIS
&1 372 fUeeT av & 34.60% & TR F TG 35.68% & T faq af
2009-10 & SR Te, W FaId @Il st 3 23% 3 3 &

6. ua sifuferatsT vd gt

I srTaRIT B 3ATEH &A1 dF K0T AATIDHATT Bl TRELT v
i faftr & gfcd & foe aodes & af 2009-10 & SR d& =
O H 22.40% B g &of DI FHY ¥4 § I P et 0T 71 2009
P 1.29185.36 RIS P TR T TedbR AT 2010 P 37d 7 35721.41
TS dd Ugd WU, Faa A 31 AT, 2009 & F.28877.96 TRIS
& TR F Tedx 31 AT, 2010 B F.35462.44 TRIS & R d® Ggd
e, 7 5 22.50% @ gfe awia &

SHeNiTesT &1 3UdnT Rl §U ARE Gy FH H UTeHeES JUR 83T
€. 0T ydTat &1 2T & e a= & o d6 gri fee e
3T § eNHA €. GO Sraerd o e KA B arelr e
FI UETH (PURc PRIER a3t o o). 3taa s
Tsdie a2 2y foia o & fov sriues fHeee ik 359 3w
PIRAT & fIIPIMUBR P 7qfa 3T=dTer F0T U=ATar BT Fararm
& fole Temae®! B v arg afifa s 7 2.

WBR & HY TG YdsT & SR I BN BT ARG YITE AT &
& TeTu @aR 31w 3UTT o TET &,

do 7 fooms W gudh d9a duR foe & S ke HRIER
ST, 77 HEAH 3THI & 1078 hardded dRaTs da AR Red ol &
fore e anfea bz

d% 7 diafie! smemRa sgHa™ T aRASHRT B daao!
HHIT BT faeelvor FRA & fefe SaFT anidid HTeadr dar b
RO & €. T § a1 BeT Bl 3D FIIe® vd favrest seih
U RS s &

(Figures in bracket indicate percentage deposits to aggregate
deposits)

5.2 Share of CASA Deposits to Total Deposits during 2009-10
increased to 35.68% from 34.60% in the corresponding previous
year. CASA increased by 23% during the Financial year 2009-10.

6. Credit Deployment and Delivery

Bank remains committed to meet the credit requirement of the
productive sectors of the economy in a transparent and equitable
manner. During the year 2009-10 Bank has registered a growth of
22.40% in credit. In absolute terms, Bank has shown Gross Credit
growth from Rs. 29185.36 crores as of March 2009 to Rs. 35,721.41
crores at the end of March 2010. The Net Advances has increased
from Rs. 28877.96 crores as on 31st March 2009 to Rs. 35462.44
crores as of 31st March, 2010 registering an increase of 22.50%.

There has been quality improvement in credit delivery time through
leveraging the technology. Various initiatives taken by the Bank for
speedy disposal of credit proposals include identification of more
direct reporting branches (Corporate Business Branch / Industrial
Finance Branch) to head office / HO). A Committee of General
Manager constitute “Credit Committee” which screens the proposal
which falls under the discretionary power of Executive Director and
above as a part of due diligence & quick decision-making.

In the line with the Government's Farm Credit Package, the Bank
has been continuously taking necessary measures to set up the
credit flow to agriculture.

Bank has created specilised credit delivery channel viz. Corporate
Business Branch, Centralised Processing Centre for SMEs and
Retail Asset Centre for Retail Loan.

Bank has also set up a Techno Economic Viability Cell for
technology based research and to analyze technical viability of the
projects. The TEV Cell is strengthened with modern infrastructure
and specilised manpower.
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7. grf¥ar &= &) i

ITIFHABAT &7 T 0T 9T & A1 96 370 ATHIToTd JaRaTdacar ar
R frded ax zer 2. 3% 3 wrifiedr & s1fimT & fafis aat
T YA dei & (e 9 & SR a8 IHE! ATSH SRy, A1
2009 & .9715 FRIS DI G H 9 b UTATHET &1 & ST AT
2010 H ggax ¥.11718 FXIS dd Ugd L, 3 s fuee af & are
20.62% I g &ot B &. T 2010 H FHANTST f1aet b TR
F grafhedr & AHT &1 s Hame feenfee & 40% @
T H 40.15% ET. el JUR WAl H H TTHT 80% ITRBATS P
g & St & Siata o U7 g3T .

8. By 3R

WBR & HY TR Tdhat & IR H 36 HY &7 I H0T Y8
e B TR 3UTT & IET 2.

¥ & M PT 3UR AT 2009 & F.3851 IS (WRAT RKad
d& & Fened feenfeel & 3UR) & WR I d6d: AT 2010 BT
.4826 BRI & T, ST 25.32% D I oAl &, db & FHaoTe
fae 3aR ¥ BT sHmT 3UR BT 3T 15.83% oI,

8.1 faR oY wRa s & sicnfa yifer

d& 7 @Y 2008-09 & ARM F.1500 FRIS & AT DI g # [y
T OIS & AT 100.79% Aed TIRd Tof Bl gE 9.1511.95
RIS [9aRd [he. et 0T YdTE H I AT 9T, 31 5.1268.79 FRIS
AT €, 43421 € fHTHT I o9 TEANT U Y& HIY B JerTa
e fosar mar.

8.2. T fram hfec ore

Y & AR b ¥ W.271.27 RIS & 32324 7 b thise B (b A
) IR e &, forasy af & 3id & 9 g1 SR fepe e e s
IS DI oot T 175144 TAT HOT TaRAR %.1622.15 BRI & 7T &.

8.3 &7 Riamg usfr (w9 371% vw) & sierta ey

g7 R ugha @ ficied & & e 86 3 a9 TR 1=
Rareger do fafies & amer gean & geu Riar ugha & S
& Toe 2602 THeTHT BT et ¥.40.37 BRIS o 0T faaa fope &,

8.4 R WBR B 2% STST G TSI & Ted foami I Ied

JF 7 YRA TSR D 2% SATeT 3 AT & 3faid 2009-10 &
AR ur fsamT @1 Icred 0T & T .16.15 RIS B Tt AT

IR TIdhd D 8.
8.5 forar FeTel &) a1

§6 7 9 P SR 223 U 6T Feral o =T § GERIAT Ua B
& foray o & 37 # Sab! oot =T 1501 B TS &, I8 3e0r xAT
39gh BN o TR 15T # e fofer 7 gHRY Age S gRT

7. Advances to Priority Sector:

The Bank has been consistently fulfilling its social obligations in
respect of priority sector lending. The Bank had adopted multi
pronged strategies during the year, to augment credit flow to
various segments of Priority Sector Advances. Priority Sector
Advances of the Bank have thus increased from the level of
Rs. 9715 crores as of March, 2009 to Rs. 11718 crores as on
March, 2010 registering a growth of 20.62% over previous year.
The ratio of priority sector advances to Adjusted Net Bank Credit
stood at 40.15% as of March, 2010 against the regulatory guidelines
of 40%. Out of the total borrowal accounts, about 80% borrowers
have been benefited under the category of Priority Sectors.

8. Lending to Agriculture

In line with the Government’s Farm Credit Package, the Bank has
been continuously taking necessary measures to step up the flow
of credit to agriculture.

During the year, the outstanding under agriculture credit increased
from the level of Rs. 3851 crores. as on March, 2009 (as per revised
guidelines of RBI) to Rs.4826 crores. as on March 2010, representing
a growth of 25.32%. The outstanding exposure under agriculture
credit represented 15.83% of the Adjusted Net Bank Credit.

8.1 Progress under Special Agricultural Credit Plan

The Bank has disbursed Rs. 1511.95 crores during the year
2009-10 under Special Agriculture Credit Plan as against the target
of Rs. 1500 crores thus registering 100.79% achievement. Out of
the total credit flow, the major chunk of flow of credit to agriculture
amounting to Rs. 1268.79 crores was channelised under direct
agriculture benefiting 43421 new farmers.

8.2 Dena Kisan Credit Cards

The Bank has issued 32324 fresh Kisan Credit Cards (KCCs)
involving credit assistance of Rs. 271.27 crores during the year,
taking the total number of KCCs to 175144 involving an outstanding
credit of Rs.1622.15 crores as at the end of the year.

8.3 Progress under Micro Irrigation Systems (MIS)

In order to promote micro irrigation system, the Bank has financed
2602 farmers aggregating to Rs. 40.37 crores for installation of
micro irrigation systems in collaboration with M/s. Gujarat Greeen
Revolution Company Ltd.

8.4 Relief to Farmers under Govt. of India’s 2% interest
Subvention Scheme

The Bank has granted total interest relief amounting to Rs. 16.15
crores under 2% interest subvention scheme of Government of
India for production credit to the eligible farmers during 2009-10.

8.5 Formation of Farmers’ Clubs

The Bank has facilitated formation of 223 new farmers clubs during
the year, taking the total number of farmers clubs to 1501 by the end
of the year. It is noteworthy to mention that Dena Singhali Farmers

Club promoted by our Mahuda branch of Kheda district in the state
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grad o1 Tl fRa dae 7 oRId 159 # 399 s feam
TG & B H AT Bard fad H3 b PR HHAT I MG JRIBR
e fope &,

8.6 ¥ WETAAT W (0¥ v 3h) ot fowiram
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of Gujarat has received the National Award at the Hands of the
Honbl’e Union Finance Minister as the best performing Farmers
Clubs in the state of Gujarat.

8.6 Financing to Self Help Groups (SHGs)

The cumulative number of SHGs credit linked by the bank increased
to 19458 as of March 2010 involving an outlay of Rs. 73.93 crores
as against 6633 SHGs credit linked upto previous year.

8.7 Credit Flow to Women

The aggregate credit flow to women has increased from the level of
Rs. 1185 crores as of March 2009 to a level of Rs 1579.35 crores
as of March, 2010 representing a growth of 33.28% as at the end of
the year. The outstanding credit flow to women constituted 5.41%
of the Adjusted Net Bank Credit as against a target of 5% set by
the Govt. of India. With a view to create awareness on women
empowerment, the Bank had organized a number of events on the
International Women’s Day.

8.8 Advances to weaker sections

Consistent with the growth in priority sector advances, the
advances to the weaker sections increased from the level of
Rs. 1462 crores as of March 2009 to Rs. 2049.54 crores as of March
2010, representing a growth of 40.19%. The Bank’s advances to
weaker section stood at 7.02 % of the Adjusted Net Bank Credit.

8.9 Advances to SCs / STs Communities

The aggregate level of advances to SC/ST Communities, within the
priority sector increased from the level of Rs. 492.71 crores as of
March 2009 to Rs. 615.88 crores as of March 2010 showing a growth
of 24.99%. The share of advances to SC/ST increased to 5.26% of
the priority sector credit as against 5.07% during the previous year.

8.10 Coverage under CGTMSE scheme

The Bank has been participating under the guarantee scheme of
the Credit Guarantee Fund Trust for Small and Micro Enterprises
(CGTMSE) to provide collateral free loans to small and
micro-enterprises. In order to mitigate the burden on entrepreneurs,
the Bank is also bearing the 50% of the Guarantee fees. The total
number of cases covered under the scheme stood at 3318 with a
guarantee cover of Rs. 119.67 crores as at the end of the year.

8.11 Golden Jubilee Rural Housing Finance Scheme (GJRHFS)

In order to promote financing of dwelling units in rural areas, the
Bank has been implementing GJRHFS. The Bank has granted loan
to 3046 beneficiaries during the year and achieved the target to the
extent of 101.50% under the scheme, during the year.

8.12 Dena Surya Urja Scheme

The Bank is financing installation of solar water heating systems
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for domestic, industrial and commercial sectors at soft rates of
interest under tie up arrangement with Indian Renewable Energy
Development Agency Limited (IREDA) under the aegis of Ministry
of New and Renewable Energy Resources (MNRE). Under the
scheme, an aggregate loan amount of Rs 103.00 lacs has been
extended to 308 beneficiaries.

8.13 Prime Minister’s 15 point Programme for the welfare of
Minorities

As per the guidelines of the Govt. of India, the Bank has prepared
road map laying down specific state-wise annual targets over the
next three years to ensure that priority sector lending to minority
communities is raised to 15% by the end of March 2010. The Bank's
advances to specified minority communities stood at Rs.932.89
crores which constituted 7.96% of Priority Sector Advances as of
March 2010.

8.14 Government Sponsored Schemes

The Govt. of India has introduced Prime Minister's Employment
Generation Programme (PMEGP) by merging Rural Employment
Generation Programme (REGP) and Prime Minister's Rozgar
Yojana (PMRY) for generation of employment opportunities through
establishment of micro enterprises in rural as well as in urban areas
effective from 01.04.2008.

The Bank is actively implementing government sponsored schemes
aimed at eradication of poverty and for generating self employment.
The Bank has sanctioned loans to 432 beneficiaries under PMEGP
amounting to Rs. 14.97 crores and 3538 beneficiaries under
Swarnajayanti Gram Swarojgar Yojana amounting to Rs. 24.15
crores and also granted loans to 1620 beneficiaries under Swarna
Jayanti Shahari Rozgar Yojana (SJSRY) to the tune of Rs. 6.10
crores.

8.15 Dena General Credit Card (DGCC) Scheme

The Bank is providing overdraft facility upto Rs.25,000/- under this
scheme to borrowers of small means under rural and semi-urban
areas. The Bank has issued 9197 DGC Cards as of March 2010.

8.16 Dena Bhoomiheen Kisan Credit Card

The Bank has introduced a special scheme for tenant farmers, oral
lessees, share croppers, landless labourers etc. wherein credit
facility up to Rs. 25,000/- is granted for various agricultural and
allied purposes with a provision of consumption also. Under the
scheme, 2736 Bhoomiheen Kisan Credit Cards have been issued
during the year.

9. Credit Counselling Centers / Financial Literacy

RBI has directed the Banks to open the Credit Counselling centers
in the respective Lead districts in order to increase the outreach to
the remote places and ensure banking services to the uncovered
population, in the district with the coordination among Banks
branches to ensure 100% financial inclusion. Accordingly, in
pursuance with the guidelines of RBI to set up Credit Counselling
Centres, Bank has rolled out its first Credit Counselling Centre
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at Himatnagar (Dist. Sabarkantha) in Gandhinagar Region on
08.08.2007. Bank has opened Credit Counselling centers at
Palanpur, Mehsana, Bhuj, Himmat Nagar and Gandhinagar in the
state of Gujarat and Silvassa in the UT of Dadra & Nagar Haveli.
The said centers are chiristened as Dena Mitras.

10. Financial Inclusion

The Bank has prepared a Financial Inclusion Plan which envisages
road map for provision of banking services through banking outlet
in 801 villages allocated to it by various SLBCs under Lead Bank
Scheme. The Plan apart, from provision of banking outlets, also
includes extension of facilities like “No frills” accounts, Dena
General Credit Cards (DGGC), Dena Kisan Credit Card (DKCC),
Micro insurance and Mutual Fund products, etc.

The Bank has signed a MOU with M/s. Zero Microfinance Saving
& Support Foundation as Business Correspondent and with M/s. A
Little World as technology provider for the financial inclusion in two
districts of Gujarat and one district of U.T. of Dadra & Nagar Haveli
covering 135 villages.

A MOU is signed with M/s. FINO Fintech Foundation (FFF) as
Business Correspondent and with M/s. Financial Information
Network & Operations Limited (FINO) as technology provider for
the financial inclusion in Chhattisgarh.

11. Corporate Social Responsibilities

11.1 Rural Self Employment Training Institute (RSETIs)

Dena Bank has set up a society known as Dena Rural
Develoment Foundation (DRDF) with a initial corpus of Rs. 50
Lacs to take up various initiatives in rural development. DRDF in
turn has established 11 Rural Self Employment Training Institutes
(RSETIs) in its lead districts viz. (i) Ahmedabad, (ii) Kutch,
(iii) Mehsana, (iv) Banaskantana, (v) Sabarkanta (vi) Patan in the
state of Gujarat and (vii) Durg, (viii) Dhamtari (ix) Mahasamund
(x) Raipur (xi) Rajandgaon in the state of Chhattisgarh, where
bank is shouldering the responsibility of lead bank. Out of these
11 RSETIs, 8 RSETIs were operationalised during the financial
year 2009-10. These RSETIs have organised 231 training
programmes and have imparted training to 6063 youth for various
activities.

The Bank has further contributed to Rs. 100 lacs to the corpus
of DRDF during the year for running and maintenance of Dena
RSETIs in Bank’s lead districts in the state of Gujarat and
Chattishgarh.

11.2 Sponsoring Education of Girl Child

As a part of Corporate Social Responsibility, the Bank had
introduced a nobel scheme viz. Dena Laxmi Shiksha Protsahan
Yojana to sponsor education of Girl students in the villages
served by the Bank. The scheme aims at providing a scholarship
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of Rs. 2000/- and Rs.1500/- per annum to identified girl students
belonging to Below Poverty Line (BPL) family, to be selected from
each of the schools based on first and second rank respectively
secured in 7th Standard, from the villages under the command area
of the Bank. The Bank has so far provided scholarships to 1856 girl
students under the scheme.

11.3 State Level Bankers’ Committee (SLBC) Responsibilities

The Bank has been successfully discharging its responsibilities as
a Convener of SLBC for the State of Gujarat and also as Convener
of UTLBC for the Union Territory of Dadara & Nagar Haveli. The
SLBC has played catalytic role for the development of banking in
the State of Gujarat through constant monitoring of various Priority
Sector and developmental schemes. The Bank has also been
monitoring the credit flow to MSME, auto, housing sectors under
the stimulus package announced by the Government of India. As
the Convenor for SLBC for Gujarat State, the Bank has identified
3520 villages having population in excess of 2000 and the same
have been allocated among various Banks to provide banking
services through a banking outlet by March 2012. Besides, as the
Convenor Bank, it has also identified 30 villages having population
in excess of 2000 and allocated the same among various Banks
operating in UT of Dadra Nagar Haveli to provide banking services
through a banking outlet by March 2012.

11.4 Lead Bank Scheme

The Bank is successfully discharging its Lead Bank responsibility in
13 districts of which 7 districts are located in Gujarat, 5 districts in

Chhattisgarh and one in Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli.

12. Agriculture Debt Waiver and Debt Relief Scheme 2008

The Hon. Finance Minister during his budget speech on 29th
February, 2008 announced a scheme for small and marginal
farmers and land less labourers along with other farmers named
as Agriculture Debt Waiver and Debt Relief Scheme, 2008 for
implementation by all schedule commercial banks besides RRBs
and cooperative credit institutions.

The scheme is successfully implemented in all the branches. Bank
covered 27547 accounts under debt waiver and thereby granted a
waiver of Rs. 76.94 crores. Further, Bank covered 17521 accounts
under debt relief scheme involving relief of Rs. 44.31 crores.

Under debt waiver, out of total claim of Rs.76.94 crores, Bank has
already received part claim amounting to Rs. 49.81 crores.

13. Regional Rural Banks sponsored by the Bank

The Bank has sponsored two RRBs namely Dena Gujarat Gramin
Bank (DGGB) in the State of Gujarat and Durg Rajnandgaon
Gramin Bank (DRGB) in the State of Chhattisgarh. Both the
RRBs sponsored by Dena Bank have a network of 249 branches
spread over 10 districts of Gujarat and Chhattisgarh. The
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total business mix of these RRBs stood at Rs.3416.87 crores
(unaudited) as of March 2010. For the financial year ended
31st March, 2010, both the RRBs together have earned net profit
of Rs. 24.16 crores and has accumulated surplus of Rs 100.49
crores as of March 2010.

14. Advances to SME Sector

SME Sector continued to be one of the key segments in the
growth of Indian Economy. The Government of India had passed,
the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
[MSME Act, 2006] in June 2006 for promotion, development and
enhancing competitiveness of MSME units. Besides defining the
MSME units, supporting structures for facilitating growth of MSME
have also been laid down under the said Act.

In the light of the above enactment, the Bank had given further
momentum to the steps already initiated to foster the flow of credit
to SME units and had continued the following initiatives.

v' 68 branches are identified as SME Branches to have focused
attention on SME finance.

v" SME Help Desk has been introduced at Regional Offices for
providing counseling and guidance to SME Entrepreneurs
on their projects and assessing their credit requirements.
Regional MSME Care Centres have been set up at all
ROs to attend to requirements and grievances, if any, of
SMEs.

v To expedite the processing the SME proposals 15 SME
processing centers / cells are functioning at various centers.

v' The Bank continues to encourage SME units for interest
incentives through its arrangement with SMERA for credit
rating and with SIDBI for co-financing of units.

All these measures resulted in growth of SME credit by 18.28%.
In absolute terms, the SME advances increased from Rs. 4774.74
crores as on March 2009 to Rs. 5647.36 crores as at the end of
the year. Credit to Micro and Small Enterprises grew by 22.38%.
In absolute terms, Micro & Small Enterprises advances increased
from Rs. 4035.37 crore as on March, 2009 to Rs. 4937.82 crores
as at the end of the year.

15. Restructuring of Debts

Restructuring of debts is undertaken in case of the borrowers who
are not in a position to repay the dues of the Bank because of
market conditions, problems faced by them or because of any other
genuine purpose. The restructuring is done by the Bank and also
under Corporate Debt Restructuring (CDR) Mechanism.

In case of large borrowers who are enjoying limits under consortium
/ multiple banking arrangement the limits are restructured under
CDR Mechanism.
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a¥ & SR 422 @Al & gifed fear mar f3=9 31.03.2010 &
F.429 BRI DI Pl AT T T,

31.03.2010 &I §fee & 3fafd goet ST IRt .1363.46 TRIS
(ST T =T 8272) o,
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B .4424.44 RIS I TeBL AT 2010 BT 0.5379.91 PRI Ah Ugd
T 57 {5 5.955.47 RIS (21.60%) BT i i &

16.1 e anf emame.

§b & ReeT oT TTTHT B T & [T U FHGTT3I BT o
IO JAT JER OTaT, FHHAT UF Jedidd 3R WIPIT di i
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IETe HrRiRa &, Reor anfea o Rea aifimt & dafera e
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16.2 YIS BT IREHOT

§ = 3 fafig Rear dremms swifa <o fo=mar arsHn, &
gfaer dafed 0T, &1 3ifer fom, &1 e smar foar 3k &
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B Y& B AR &1 b,

16.3 3arT fae

3TTATT 0T & 3Fifd aY o QR 9.866.12 HRIS & A0 faaror
fopu v F5Ta=y 9hram ot AR 2009 H ¥.2865.94 BRI T TEHR
a¥ & 37 § ¥.3594.13 FRIS A Ugd T 311 fh 25.41% & Ihg
T &,

16.4 Sterfore kor

Ste1OTeh 0T ATSTT &b 3T TPTAT K0T 1.252.11 PRIS T Tghx Iy
¥ 37 ¥.289.38 TRIS dd UET U 3T b €.37.27 FRIT (14.78%)
o gfg i €

During the year 422 No. of accounts are restructured having
aggregate outstanding of Rs.429 crores as of 31.03.2010.

As of 31.03.2010, the aggregate outstanding under restructuring
are Rs. 1363.46 crores (No. of Accounts 8272).

16. Retail Credit

Retail Credit has been identified as one of the growth engines
for increasing credit portfolio of the Bank. The Bank has 9 Retalil
Banking Schemes catering to various needs of a customer. The
schemes are modified from time to time keeping in view the
market scenario, customer requirements and feed-back from field
functionaries. Concerted efforts were made to popularise the retail
banking schemes through wide publicity.

During the financial year, the outstanding amount under direct
retail credit registered a growth of 13.29% showing an increase
of Rs.454.84 crores to reach the level of Rs. 3877.25 crores as of
31.03.2010. The total retail credit has increased from Rs. 4424.44
crores as of March 2009 to Rs. 5379.91 crores as of March 2010
registering growth of Rs. 955.47 crores (21.60%).

16.1 Retail Asset Branches

In order to take advantage of the potential available for enlarging
Bank’s retail lending portfolio and also to ensure better quality,
uniformity and speed in appraisal and sanctions the Bank
operationalised 8 more Retail Asset Branches (RABs) at Hyderabad,
Bangalore, Chennai, Lucknow, Pune, Surat, Bhopal and Bhandup
(Mumbai) during the year besides the existing 4 RABs at
JVPD-Mumbai, Ahmedabad, Kolkata and New Delhi. Presently in
all 12 RABs are operationalised. The Retail Asset Branch will carry
out all the functions relating to retail advance and is expected to
ensure quantitative and qualitative growth of retail business and
also cut down multiplicity of functions and efforts at branches.

16.2 Refinement of Schemes

The Bank further refined its various retail schemes like Dena Rent,
Dena Suvidha Personal Loan, Dena Auto Finance, Dena Niwas
Housing Finance and Dena Vidyalaxmi Educational Loan schemes
so as to make these schemes more customer friendly.

16.3 Housing Finance

Fresh disbursements to the tune of Rs. 866.12 crores were made
during the year towards housing loan, enabling net increase in
outstanding credit from Rs.2865.94 crores as on March 2009 to Rs.
3594.13 crores as at the end of the year, thus reflecting a growth
of 25.41%.

16.4 Education Loan

Outstanding under the Educational Loan Scheme, increased from
Rs.252.11 crores to Rs. 289.38 crores as at the end of the year i.e.
an increase of Rs. 37.27 crores (14.78%).
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17. Investment

Aggregate gross domestic investments of the Bank grew by
25.70% to reach Rs.15,760 crores as on 31.03.2010 from the level
of Rs.12,538 crores as on 31.03.2009.

The increase was mainly due to increased SLR requirements due
to increase in deposits and also on account of less off take in Bank’s
credit during the year to industrial and corporate sluggishness
in major part of the year as after effects of global recession and
turmoil in 2008-09.

SLR Securities have increased from Rs.10,075.80 crores to
Rs.13,371.18 crores (an increase of 32.70%) whereas NON SLR
Securities have decreased from Rs.2,462.52 crores to Rs.2,388.96
crores i.e. reduction of 2.98%.

Bank continued to be an active participant in Government Securities
auction. Bank concentrated in investment in Govt. Securities, PSU
and Corporate Bonds to augment its income from Treasury.

The total income from investment operations increased from
Rs.888.21 crores for the year 2008-09 to Rs.1,139.56 crores for
the year 2009-10 i.e. a percentage increase of 28.30% on year on
year basis.

The investments have been maintained with various maturity mixes
consistent with risk perceptions and investment policies of the bank.
The Modified duration of the AFS/ HFT portfolio increased from
3.28 to 4.71 as a result of acquiring high yield State Development
Loans in AFS portfolio which were mainly of long tenor to increase
the Portfolio yield as well as to contain the depreciation in AFS /
HFT Portfolio.

The yield on investments decreased to 6.87% during the year
ended 31.03.2010 as compared to 7.04% during the year ended
31.03.2009 due to sizeable offloading of high coupon bearing
securities in the earlier year to book profit and replacement of
investments were at lower yield. Further, the yield has come down
on account of increased investments in RIDF, MSME Category
having average yield of around 5%.

18. International Operations

As an outcome of global economic crisis merchandise exports has
declined since November 2008. Cumulatively, world merchandise
exports during January-November 2009, in dollar terms, showed a
decline of 22.9% as against a growth of 18.2% a year ago. The same
has started recovering consistently since May 2009. According to
International Monetary Fund’s (IMF) International Financial Statistics
(IFS), in November 2009 the world exports showed a positive
growth of 5.5%. There has been strong convergence among the
world exports & the exports of advanced economies and emerging
and developing economies since May 2009. India is ahead of
many emerging market economies on the road of recovery. Global
ratings major Standard & Poor's (S&P) has recognised India growth
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projections. S&P has revised ratings outlook for India to 'stable' from
'negative’. Ratings of S&P have affirmed India's long term ratings at
"BBB-" and short term ratings at "A-3".

18.1 Country's Exports & Imports position

Economic recovery of the country which began around the
second quarter of 2009-10, has been positive and since showing
sustained improvement. Surveys & forecast of RBI as well as of
others suggest that business optimism of country has considerably
improved. It is further assumed to have a normal monsoon and so
a sustained encouraging performance of the industry and services
sectors. Reserve Bank has projected real GDP growth for 2010-11
at 7.5 per cent with an upside bias.

During the period April 2009 — January 2010, Indian exports stood
at US$ 131.8 billion, posting a decline of 17.9 per cent as against
a growth of 22.8 per cent during the corresponding period of 2008-
09. In particular, during April — August 2009, Gems and jewellery
exports stood at US$ 11.0 billion recorded a sharp decline of
24.7 per cent as against a high growth of 84.4 per cent during the
corresponding period of the previous year. However, overall exports
turned around by exhibiting an increase of 0.3 per cent in October
2009 and the positive growth in exports continued thereafter
(monthly average growth of 13.0 per cent during November 2009
to January 2010).

This trend indicated stability & positive growth in exports. Foreign
Exchange reserves of the country as at 12th March, 2010 stood at
279.70 billion.

After a continuous decline for one year, imports had also turned
around in December 2009 by exhibiting an increase of 27.2 per
cent. The positive growth in imports continued in January 2010.

18.2 International Banking business of the Bank

The Bank has its Integrated Treasury Branch housed at Head
Office in BKC Mumbai and is functioning as Category ‘A’ Authorised
Dealer (AD) branch. The Bank continues to extend support to
exporter customers & importer customers through its 34 Category
‘B’ Authorised Dealer (AD) branches spread over the country. Our
Authorised Dealer branches & Treasury branch are supported with
up-to-date state-of-the-art technology and are performing with right
coordination.

Bank maintains 19 Nostro accounts abroad in nine major currencies
to cater to the business need of our Customers. Bank is also
maintaining relationship with number of Foreign Correspondents
around the globe to cater to customer's specific needs. Bank is
a member of The Clearing Corporation of India Ltd., (CCIL) for
settlement of Government Security deals and Interbank Forex
deals in USD / INR.

The Government of India's Export Interest Subvention Scheme on
Pre-shipment and on Post-shipment Rupee Export Credit of 2.00
percentage points for certain employment oriented export sectors
was extended till March 2010.
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19.1 fUeer ¥ & SR 3fdie Al JaT 3G oreeT &} W 39d
gfidpe UHa @7 &I H I@d gE 86 F SR JoradT B JIRA
W 3T & hied 3@ IR fomes snfadl @ o o) w® foorm
e Tear wan, aifes a7 giafead & w% s R Fwmes snfaat
(ETITE) T TR gAaH & & & § TAULE §U @l & 399,
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ERTEAULE. # Il &g MReR ya 6l T, §9 Sgqa! Uaii &
GRT A P R 3NRTAT B Joraar § R g3,

d BT Tbe U Ul T 3FUTA 31.03.2009 & 2.13% H 33 3R 3iH &
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FEHR aY b 3d H 1.21% & TAT &,

The Bank extends its three foreign inward remittance channels
namely (a) ‘Dena India Remit’ for a safe and efficient cost effective
solution to remitters who are based in USA, UK and in EURO land
(b) arrangement with Western Union Money Transfer Services
and (c) the tie up with UAE Exchange Centre LLC, Abu Dhabi for
providing money transfer facility in Rupee Drafts to expatriates from
Gulf countries and also from UK.

Foreign currency assets of the Bank are valued based on rates
issued by FEDAI and the resultant profit / loss arising out of such
revaluation are accounted for in the Profit and Loss Account.
Guarantees, letters of credit, letters of comfort, acceptances,
endorsements and other obligations in foreign currency are
revalued on the rates issued by FEDAI for the purpose of Balance
Sheet exposure. Income and Expenditure items arising out of forex
transactions are recognized at the exchange rates prevailing on
respective dates of transaction.

19. Asset Quality and Recovery Management

19.1 The Bank bestowed attention on improvement in asset
quality considering the economic slowdown and consequential
adverse impact on the asset delinquency rate in the previous year.
Reduction in Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) was given thrust to
ensure that level of NPAs is restricted to the minimum possible.
Continuous efforts were made for upgradation of recently slipped
NPAs, recovery in NPAs through compromise settlements and
action under SARFAESI Act, 2002. This multipronged approach
resulted in improvement in asset quality during the year.

Gross NPA ratio of the Bank stands improved by 33 bps to 1.80%
from 2.13% as on 31.03.2010. The Gross NPA, in absolute terms,
marginally increased by Rs. 21.22 crores from Rs. 620.77 crores
as on 31st March, 2009 to Rs. 641.99 crores as at the end of the
year. Net NPAs increased by 114.15 crores from Rs. 313.38 crores
as of 31st March, 2009 to Rs.427.53 crores as of 31st March, 2010
and Net NPA ratio increased by 12 bps to 1.21% as at the end of
the year.

. HRIST ﬁ) (Rs. in crores)

At March 2009 | #Tef March 2010

oot 31T Gross Advances 29185.36 35721.41
B TAUIE Gross NPAs 620.77 641.99
el 31TIHT § bl THUIE Gross NPA to Gross Advance 213 % 1.80 %
foact 317\ Net Advances 28877.96 35462.44
9 BT Net NPAs 313.38 427.53
foraer arfirat & faer TUIT Net NPA to Net Advances 1.09% 1.21%
UTae dHavat 3UTd (faddyut secward 4T emfie) 84.59% 78.61%
Provision Coverage ratio (including Prudential write off)
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TFHE TG 2008-09 H B. 188.72 DY JAT H, I & SR 5.195.43
TRIE Q). a & AR 370 Y 2008-09 H 5.191.38 FHRIS I JeT

The cash recovery during the year was at Rs.195.43 crores as against
Rs.188.72 crores in 2008-09. Upgradations during the year were also

T 3778 31T 5.228.42 TS e higher at Rs 228.42 crores as against Rs.191.38 crores in 2008-09.
s GRER] ) (Rs. in crores)
At March 2009 | A March 2010
U RAUST Fresh Slippages 675.71 629.93
FHE I Cash Recovery 188.72 195.43
3999 Upgradation 191.38 228.42
§eC @I ST T WAl § Il Recovery in Write Off 100.24 125.54

19.2 3N YoTa § YR & fere ueer
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20. faftre Jare / go= sifteR sifbfam

20.1 Jot / fafra wwemsit sk s gaffafor sufsrat o erdie
o1 fawa

HRarg Ro1d 96 gRT &Aid 23.04.2003 TAT 13.07.2005 B AR
fooe e feenfoeelt & sFgERoT #, 9% 7 a9 2009-10 & ARW TH
AT @IT ARt giad gecier fafties & faga ue uamRer &1
5. 12.06 BRIE § fopar. a¥ 2005-06 & R fadr b W A
WagH UaR o fafice &F a1 BATer TR Yaa TRer
fopad T3TRRANIMSTT gRT 5.8.29 IS H 3ifenrgor & 718 |

19.2 Initiatives on Improvement in Asset Quality

Special attention was given to recovery in NPAs during the year
by designating officers' at all major centres to augment recovery
efforts through negotiated settlements. Special recovery drives
were introduced for recovery in written off accounts. The
progress in recovery made in reduction of NPAs was reviewed
on a regular basis by NPA Recovery Cells at Regional Offices.
Attention was also paid to the small NPA borrowers and the
Bank had extended Special One Time Settlement scheme for
Small Borrowers (outstanding up to Rs. 2 lacs) by another year
i.e. up to 31st March, 2010.

Special recovery drives were also organized for recoveries in
smaller written of accounts up to Rs.10.00 lacs in all Regions. As a
result, the Bank was able to recover Rs.125.54 crores in the written
off a/cs as against Rs.100.24 crores in 2008-09.

Bank conducted 1589 recovery camps in various Regions during
the year which were attended by 19379 borrowers. A total of 3503
accounts were settled for Rs.20.66 crores and 1644 accounts
were upgraded for Rs.38.66 crores during the year through such
recovery camps.

A total of 4246 accounts with compromise amount of Rs.91.41
crores were considered for OTS compromise under bank’s OTS
scheme during the year ended March 2009-10 against which
a cash recovery of Rs.83.31 crores was effected as against
1614 accounts with compromise amount of Rs.112.21 crores
with cash recovery of Rs. 38.41 crores effected during the year
ended March 2009.

20. Legal Services/ RTI Act
20.1 Sale of NPA amongst Banks / Fls and ARC

In Terms of the RBI Guidelines issued on 23.04.2003 and
13.07.2005, the Bank has during 2009-10, sold one NPA A/c to an
ARC for Rs. 12.06 crores and two half yearly Deferred Payment
Guarantee Installments sold during 2005-06, were taken over by
ARCIL with an aggregate amount of Rs. 8.29 crores.
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5. 311.03 PRIS BT AT GTeT YT @At § 1469 Arfed SIRI T, af
2009-10 & SR d&b 2053 @Al (T8 9 @i oY enfiyer &, f5e
e fueer af SIRY f5d T &) § B, 103.42 FRIT B AR TYA
H | T <&l

20.3 TS ITRTETT & ATSTH A aElt ©

faftres Jae miteRY sttfm & siarfa nfsa e srered & wareom
3 foaret & i e iR 31 gadatat F a¥el &) & fo 36
BT AN SFeTAd! B TG B & (o0 JaT axar & form
YdEHT 4d UF Gt & aTe 37iq a1g aR e 1R are e @t &
e &g 33T 31 A, a¥ 2009-10 & SR d (et auf # e
e wer 4t 2nfieT) 2290 WAt H %5.2.87 TS G fhU.

20.4 0T aYett siftraxor / fafae =araera # aR gl & areaw
ﬁaﬂ\?ﬁ:

31.03.2010 B EIR d& § . 1273.77 TRIS B AR & 2527 aTaT
TR | fafim ot axgent siftraon fafae =mareai # dfaa &
TAT . 868.03 BRIS AT & 1925 fediepd @ faf¥re or o
sittreRoll/ Rafaer =arareal # dfed 8. 9 7 W amar arR
femipd @l # af & ARM %.75.78 BRI B M 3G B

20.5 3itefis 3k farira gafiaforad ama (Sangewamr)

T Hed gRT SrgHITEd el A & 3IAR, SITEEHTR A
BT THT B b fow 75 oot wrafaa § v Asd iR &
TEIE B TS & a¥ B AR, THST, SIMSTHIR g day fou
ST/ BHT 3 1Al & §¢ &9 & BRUT 29 HTHaT BI gel fear T &
& 7 5. 10.93 TRIE DI IHH IYA DI I B AR 5.68.12 TRIS
HI AT P 5 A0 THet / ey S8 T . 9§ P 37 H SRR /

TE3TS Uh3TR &b THET 3. 353.72 BRIS & 31 M dfdd 2.
20.6 YT & ISR F1 3rftfrom

I & UBR BT 3w 2005 & T&d IRA & ARSI
I FHaeA R f9aR dR &g 96 7 159 Ad YA ATTPRT g
AT A I SHBRT B Tifad oo €. d = T5a A gae
SUBRT / Bard A a1 TBR! & Foidr & Raars smirelt &
faem & foe srivas fFeerd @1 siia MYeRT & w9 # g
fear 2.

a9 & AR d& @ o HeR afafaw & aga 567 3maed
T gE qUT HFEST & 3R 555 3deH! (Teer av & 17 3ded
Y wnfier) 1 U fovar mar. af & SR arde aTferdRy BT 132

37T U7 g for & AEST 3 3R 130 et (et af & 05
31aTet 4 @mier) &1 e fosar o

20.2 Recovery under SARFAESI Act, 2002

For expediting recovery in NPA accounts under the Securitisation
and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of
Security Interest Act, 2002 (SARFAESI) 1469 Notices were issued
in the eligible accounts involving an amount of Rs. 311.03 crores.
The Bank was successful in recovering an amount of Rs. 103.42
crores in 2053 accounts (including those where notices were issued
during previous years) during the year 2009-2010.

20.3 Recovery through Lok Adalats

For an early resolution of disputes and recoveries from its defaulters
through Lok Adalats constituted under Legal Services Authorities
Act. the Bank endeavours to arrange maximum Lok Adalats
wherein both pre and post litigation i.e. suit filed and non suit filed
accounts can be placed for settlement. The Bank has recovered
Rs. 2.87 crores during 2009-10 (inclusive of recovery made in the
cases settled during previous years), in 2290 accounts.

20.4 Recovery through Suits in the Debt Recovery Tribunal /
Civil Courts

As of 31.03.2010, our Bank is having 2527 Suit Filed accounts
in various DRT/Civil Courts involving an amount of Rs. 1273.77
crores and 1925 Decreed accounts in various DRTs /Civil courts
involving an amount Rs. 868.03 crores. During the year, the Bank
had recovered Rs. 75.78 crores in the above suit filed and Decreed
accounts.

20.5 BIFR Cases

In terms of Recovery Policy approved by the Board, a Nodal Officer
stationed at New Delhi, has been identified for co-coordinating the
BIFR Cases. During the year, 29 cases were removed on account
of closure of accounts due to compromised, rejection / abatement
of reference by BIFR. The Bank has recovered a sum of Rs. 10.93
crores. 5 new cases / references were added during the year
involving an amount of Rs. 68.12 crores. At the end of year 31 cases
involving Rs. 353.72 crores are pending before BIFR / AAIFR.

20.6 Right to Information Act

Bank has designated State Public Information Officers & Central
Public Information Officers for dealing with requests received from
Citizen's of India under RTI Act, 2005. Bank has also designated
the Executive Director as Appellate Authority to dispose the appeals

received against the decision of SPIO/CPIO.

During the Year the Bank has received 567 requests under RTI
Act, and disposed off 555 requests (inclusive 17 requests carried
forward from previous year) as per the norms. The Appellate
Authority has received 132 Appeal and disposed off 130 Appeals
(inclusive 05 Appeals carried forward from previous year) as per

norms during the year.
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21. TRPRI FRITR

WOR ¥ FTUT e BT T &g 2005 I I HAataa §
BRI BRIGR fTamT HRiRa 8. g9RT d& 30 794 wmamstt &
HTEH I hg TR b U HIT 31id JeT, dard fafaa, e
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22, & T
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i. ST Ul SoRIP gaNeHe HoN fatHes
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a1 3curel &1 faaRor

d% 7 T Rt § WEDT I FHI ST 3G AT PR TG
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HHIT: 3T ST SIHT 3G U AT a1 3Tl & faaroT & fere

BRITRI TES T B 2.

% o et § & ataet o fafie fata S affafaar suaer
IR & foe § 7 Frafa rg mRer fm (S<ien=) & aner Toses
fpar 2.

21. Government Business

The Government Business Department is functional at Head
Office since 2005 for dealing exclusively in Government related
Transactions. Our Bank acts as agent on behalf of the Central
Government for payment of Pension through 794 branches to
the Central Government pensioners, viz., Defence, Central Civil,
Railways and also Telecommunications, State Political Pensioners
and Pension to the State Government pensioners in the States
of Maharashtra, Gujarat and Chhattisgarh. The Bank collects
Direct and Indirect Taxes, Excise and Service Tax for the Central
Government and Sales Tax and VAT for the State of Maharashtra.
Besides the Bank is designated for maintaining the Accounts of
Post and Telegraph Department, Ministry of Legal Affairs and other
Ministries. On behalf of the Revenue Department Franking of stamp
duty on Documents is also undertaken. It also carries out Central
/ State Treasury Operations. By using the latest Techonology,
the Bank has enabled its customers to make E-payment of Direct
Taxes, Excise and Service Tax from all CBS Branches.

Public Provident Fund Scheme, 1968 is operated through 88
Authorised branches. RBI Bonds and Senior Citizens Savings
Bonds are issued through 36 designated branches.

The Bank has earned a Turn over Commission of Rs. 7.46 crores
in the F.Y 2009-2010 as against Rs. 5.93 crores earned in the
previous year, registering a growth of Rs. 1.53 crores in absolute
terms and achieving 25.8% growth over the previous year.

22. Bancassurance

The Bank is committed to providing a wide range of financial
services to its customers and has taken up the activity of distribution
of third party products viz. Insurance and Mutual Funds to provide
value addition to the customers.

Distribution of Mutual Fund products

The Bank has strategic marketing alliance with Asset Management
companies of 14 major Mutual Funds for distribution of their
mutual fund products through the selected branches. During the
year the Bank has entered into Tie-up with the following three
AMC’s

i DSP BlackRock Investment Managers Limited.

ii. FIL Fund Management Pvt. Ltd. [Fidelity Mutual Fund]
iii. Shinsei Asset Management (India) Pvt. Ltd.
Distribution of insurance products

The Bank has existing Bancassurance tie ups with the Life
Insurance Corporation of India and The Oriental Insurance
Company Ltd. for distribution of their life insurance products and
general insurance products respectively to make available the
entire range of insurance products to the customers at all branches.

The Bank has also tied up with the Export Credit Guarantee
Corporation [ECGC] to provide their various insurance policies to
exporters at the Bank’s branches itself.
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31T U o 3cTET dl fat ¥ § & saoiaR 3 | g g &, 9y
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23. famforedt wewifiar San

d 310 TTEd BT Y31 aTeTR eTar e g faerdTet eTar vd g5
gd omar H Ry & avgert dhar 9 feuifotest Sate yaH aR T §. 31|
d% 37 Jamtt @1 feilRa et 3 fafie & & fovaRa &=
B AT &7 | &,

24. 3 3R T
24.1 3

Y & ARM a6 DI PeT 37 BT a¥ & 3.3877.62 TRIS B WK
@ JeHT § 5.721.37 TRIS (18.60%) TEHR .4598.99 TS &I TS,

Jb & ST 3T 16.33% DY gha b T 5.4010.36 BIS &
ST 3T 31T 36.85% FEHR ©.430.12 HRIS T 5.588.63 TRIS

GRS

ffia &7 & 3R § 99 3UR &R a1 39 9 R R F0T yem
R 2] TqId P d1asE AHET A U A H 17.28% B Ik gs.
d GRT 3T 37T aTel OI 71 g, JAT HEIH 369 U9 Rea aam i
3MTe TR & Bigd B ATl VM S ST & HRUT 3R a9
BIURE FUIT & JAHIB b HRUT TE AHd &1 L. Y &b QAR
fada aoiR Refodt & aasie fael & o1 &rst 3T & 15.91%

Hafees

TSR 3T BT df 3.158.51 TS (36.85%) &1 {5 =y a8 AT
09 & 3.430.12 TRIS T TP AT 2010 ¥ 3.588.63. PRI &I TT5.

24.209

el oy &f Je # 99 & AR et FT H 19.27% B! IS Ts.
DT Y HRUT ST & Ad ¥ 3hg & HeRawd &1 Ja 7
22.12% Jfg 8. TRaneFTa & § 10.40% & 3fg g8, g9 A,
. & T ATATCATT b 3TeRTd FHTA 3TN TRIT da Tener & fog
.70 TS BT ac FIaen o et &.

243 eiTHyedr fagasor

T 9 & SR d B! (et TSI 37T 3.1064.43 RIS DI JeT
# .1100.03 RIS BT 5 37T 3T 3.34% DI IT3 Es.-

3 37T 2008-09 & ©.430.12 PRIS I Fehx 2009-10 H 3.588.63.
BUE & TS SNIE 158.51 HRIS B gl a2l 8.

a9 & AR a6 7 ge¢ AN o e 37HmT # il )R SR &
SIRI @7 FoTRaes heRawy $9H 0.125.54 FRIS d a9l gs. fued
T & R 3 3THAT H FREAr 2.100.24. BIS 2.

The sale of third party products also enables the Bank to boost its
non-interest income. The total income from sale of insurance and
mutual fund products in the year 2009-10 was Rs.9.82 crores.

23. Depository Participant Services

The Bank has been providing Depository Services to its customers
from Capital Market Branch and two collection centers at Juhu Vile
Parle Branch and Mulund East Branch. Bank now plans to extend
this services to various centres from identified Branches.

24. Income and Expenses

24.1 Income

Total income of the Bank for the year has increased by Rs. 721.37
crores. (18.60%) and stood at Rs. 4598.99 crores as compared to
an Income of Rs. 3877.62 crores earned during the previous year.

Interest income of the Bank has increased by 16.33% to record
a level of Rs. 4010.36 crores while other income increased by
36.85% from Rs. 430.12 crores to Rs. 588.63 crores.

Growth in interest income of the Bank was achieved mainly due to an
increase in the interest income from advances i.e. by 17.28%, despite
continued pressure for lending at sub-PLR rates from corporate
sector. The achievement could be attributed to the strategies adopted
by the Bank by concentrating on high yielding credit viz. SME, Retail
& Agriculture, etc. and re-pricing of bulk corporate loans. Interest
income from investments showed an increase of 15.91% during the
year inspite of adverse market conditions.

Non-Interest Income has increased by Rs. 158.51 crores (36.85%)
from Rs. 430.12 crores as of March 09 to Rs. 588.63 crores as of
March 2010.

24.2 Expenses

Total expenses has registered an increase of 19.27% over the
previous year. This was mainly on account of increase of 22.12%
in interest expenses due to increase in cost of deposits. Operating
expenses showed an increase of 10.40%. This includes adhoc
provision of Rs. 70.00 crores on account of anticipated industry
level wage revision under negotiation with IBA.

24.3 Profitability Analysis

Bank’s net interest income (NIl) has increased substantially
by 3.34% and stood at Rs. 1100.03 crores as compared to Rs.
1064.43 crores posted during the previous year.

Other Income increased from Rs. 430.12 crores of 2008-09 to
Rs. 588.63 crores of 2009-10 showing an increase of Rs. 158.51 crores.

The Bank has continued to give thrust on recoveries in written off
advances during the year, which resulted in recovery of Rs. 125.54
crores under this segment. During the previous year, the recovery
under this segment was Rs. 100.24 crores.
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24.4 UR=eERTT ATy

el a¥ & IRM T e T 6.726.36 TRIS HI JoT H 96 &
29 aY BT URATATIT e 15.72% S6dhR 2.840.58. HRIS & 4.
TR @Y Fhg AR §b g & A1 Jraieny & staifa denfaa semr
TR I N P HRUT F.70 TRIS & acd yraes f6d 5= &
e gIATE.

24.5 e e

TST AN DY B B W A6 BT S digd & & A1, §G¢ @Y
ST T WMl § Il W 3AId 9 a7 I Uhe arel 3 &
3TARI TR &I & &5 BRUT A aY & SR -1ael ol § 20.96% @F
gfg &t B o Aha &1 96 &I g oy fUsel av & %.422.66
FRIS B JaT 7 3.511.25 TS G3T.

3T, T AT YIGETHT UF 3B RABd3i @ [Uge a¥ 3 Jered
fefe A & € &

24.4 Operating Profit

Operating profit of the Bank has registered an increase
of 15.72% and stood at Rs. 840.58 crores. as compared to
Rs. 726.36 crores posted during the previous year. This growth
is after providing for adhoc provision of Rs. 70.00 crores on
account of anticipated industry level wage revision under
negotiation with IBA.

24.5 Net Profit

With the Bank’s focus on containing interest costs, looking for
opportunities of high yielding advances and a major thrust on
recovery in written off accounts, the Bank has successful in posting
20.96% rise in Net Profit during the year. The Net Profit of the Bank
stood at Rs. 511.25 crores. as against Rs. 422.66 crores posted
during the previous year.

A comparison of income, expenses and provisions & contingencies
with the previous year is given hereunder:

2. PS T Rs. in crores)

f&a=o Particulars f&.3.FY08-09 f3.a.Fyo9-10
&T51 31T Interest Income 3447.50 4010.36
3R &TST 31T Non-Interest Income 430.12 588.63
@l 31T Total Income 3877.62 4598.99
15T AT Interest Expenses 2383.07 2910.33
IR Operating Expenses 768.19 848.08
T IY Total Expenses 3151.26 3758.41
GRETERTT @ Operating Profit 726.36 840.58
YTIEN U9 3T HHaTs Provisions and Contingencies 303.70 329.33
f7aeT @meT Net Profit 422.66 511.25

25. fquoE uge:

¥ 2009-10 o A U9, g U MR Hifsar &
ey ¥ gAR 9 o fafirg samet va A=t &1 s R
fomar .

2009-10 @ 3ifaw fammer & SR 2= ar SR AR & Ty g7
o g% fovar . 39 favar & A d6 & fasmo et Sar
et e fear weEl R feary W, ffe Mifgar § §6 & fasmo
T UGB & 9@ IS R YH1er (o m. g1 fawa &1 sifaems
9o vd 3m3es R Aifsar § o fear ma.

TR | IERT H I TR T H10H I & 3TdTET, SO | U9 ErER
1l 9T H SIS vd TamsT R 35T & 7oy ¥ §6 31 R
Tomar o,

d& 7 3= FarHY AregHr oy o6 $ai et WX §ifE, gag # uf¥em
U4 Hgd eel IR X At o+ UR UTer anfe &t 43t 3w fovar. e
fedvet anfe W SifeT fovar o, [ &3 ¥ 37 U3l o WRIeT o
T8 3R d forwrrdr aXie I SeR T § arif-ad gam.

25. Marketing Initiatives

During the year 2009-10, a wide publicity was given to different
products and schemes of our Bank through press, electronic and
outdoor media.

A major campaign was launched in the last quarter of 2009-10 with
the tagline "Dena Hai to Bharosa Hai". Bank's Advertisements with
the theme were shown on popular TV Channels & Radio Stations.
In Print Media Bank's Advertisements appeared on the Front pages
of the major publications. The same theme was extended to the
Online Advertising and Outdoor Media.

Bank's visibility was increased in Tier Il & Tier Il cities through
advertising on Hoardings and Glowsigns in these cities besides
maintaining the level in Tier | Cities.

The Bank has also utlised other innovative mediums such as
Branding on Ezee Cabs, Painting the entire Local Train on the
Western and Central lines in Mumbai. Branding on Railway tickets
etc. These initiatives received high appreciation from all the corners
and the Bank was able to extract good mileage in a very cost
effective manner.
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T @ Ge & aR # o geaRys fasnE, @fgw qer udf

faaRoT & A1e0H ¥ AUh YR fhar T,
26. SfEq yae=

26.1 3% 7 IRAES SEH Y& Jorer AR gHar giar wnfud
frar €, fo/ = anfed shifem ydem & feee afufa grr fRer
WY ST €. 3NN <adT (37TehT), TG S EH Tee (T3TRTHRT)
g URETE=Td SREw gaer (3M3TRUART) W yaed Wi afifaar
A STEH FaeH JUITel & g 3T €. b =1 uRRarerrra sifaw
Hed! W O Phigd dRA $ [ae G491 e safaar 4 siaq
TS eI o T Uga o & 3R 35 fore ufeneror o wawer o .

26.2 9% 7 SRIC-| AMGST & 3IHY B9 0T 3R TSR ST B
JUEHRT dRIPp T TN B DT ghe & FGT Ffera 3
Tt @1 st 3R sraT fear €. §6 & W SdhedenT
ftpamsit &g SRERT FRazar Ao &9 78 & §& 3 30 R
§tmr aRkamemt & foe uRarerrra smuer yaem dg O wnfua fear
& 3R af & <R 39T 3uanT o fear &

26.3 ¥ & e 3Mfte &1 Aorgg fovar o & 3ik areTR Sifew &
gurar FREY &7 & foe 39 fosatdan sifés @ smeaR o)
T T E. d& & feerd Hed 7 af & ARM T 3dRe arg e
Hisel &I 3gAe foar & o e fow o & @y fosar smem.
JYRGBAT & FHOT i B A & [T Th YUTelt 3TRH & Tg
3R 3T O R &I Bied B &g FOT HIRM! GOl BT 3R
I TR T HRIR AT 7T 2.

26.4 ¥ & 0¥ I8 3URGAT3I, foer e 76t g8 &, o e a=m
# 3% gfaen a1 & foe, 9@ 7 <o o 937 o 9w e weifar
(PR, foptae, fipa vd sTEASIRE) & AT FHsitar =R fpar 2. &
JHF ITRGATS R [IRIYSR 7Y FeaT IaH &7 Tl JIRBATI
R FaTe T Yo # Rarad o €. 36 7 Frome & fearn frdert
& AR, I D FHIPT SITEH DR TIR B BT YOIl Pl
STRY T & forasy wwfvaa Shiem gdem o= & gfaem 8.

27. AT e Yae
27.1 919G Yl &1 9ef vd faar

& & & A TeneH faer & g a1 ¢ 6 e e
IR # ST BAT 31 7 Had URATANT S&aT b $B i
JABID! GRT AT ST &, afcd gad faxira Jamsit o Joradr &
FIER 4T T ST 8. 9 B Gfcraaiardar d FHeiRa o #
IB BT BT YT TR, FFER U 51 HE@YUT JIHT 4T 2.
8 1 fefar o1 o favg g8 & b SRR uriadl & [ Aa
FATE YFE IUMITd BT FYRId TR 8. I8 39 a1d W SR
et & o S 1 Y e R ao=er e 37oeiY A19a g5 abt el dr
IR &G UTTaGT i BAL. & S T AT & 10 IRATAHIA
QT & 37eTTaT, BEER W UTEHT DI INTTABATIN T STUE3T I

A wide publicity was also given to the opening of new branches,
through News Paper Ads, Hoardings, and Leaflet distribution.

26. Risk Management

26.1 The Bank has put in place structured risk management
systems and architecture that is overseen by a Committee of
Directors on Integrated Risk Management. Management level
Committees on Asset Liability (ALCO), Credit Risk Management
(CRMC) and Operational Risk Management (ORMC) constitute the
core level of focused risk management architecture. The Bank has
also identified Risk Managers at all controlling offices to focus on
operational risk factors and arranged for their training.

26.2 The Bank revised and updated its risk related Policies in
line with the Basel Il norms, changes in operating environment
and with a view to manage credit and market risks in an effective
manner. Business Continuity Plans have been formulated for
all critical processes of the Bank. The Bank has also set up and
operationalised Disaster Recovery Centre for its Core Banking
Operations and also made use of the same during the year.

26.3 Mid-Office of the Bank was strengthened and its functions
were made broad based further for an effective monitoring market
risk. The Bank's Board has approved new Internal Credit Rating
Models during the year, which are made effective from the next
financial year. A system of verification of the credit rating of
borrowers was also introduced and credit monitoring system was
further streamlined for focused attention on improvement in asset
quality.

26.4 The Bank has entered into Memorandum of Understandings
with the four major external credit rating agencies of the country
(CARE, CRISIL, FITCH & ICRA) for facilitating the Bank's large
unrated borrowers to get themselves rated. These MOUs provide
for concessions in rating fees to be charged to the Bank's borrowers,
particularly for SME sector. The Bank continued with the system
of comprehensive risk profiling of the Bank in line with regulatory
guidelines that will facilitate integrated risk management.

27. Human Resource Management

27.1 Adding and Developing Human Values

The core function of HRD practices in Dena Bank is to facilitate
performance improvement, measured not only in terms of certain
financial indicators of operational efficiency but also in terms of
quality of financial services provided. The skill level, attitude and
knowledge of the personnel play an important role in determining
the competitiveness of a bank. The primary concern of the bank
is to bring in proper integration of human resource management
strategies with the business strategies. It emphasis faster cohesive
team work and create commitment to improve the efficiency of its
human capital. Apart from operational skills Dena Bank believes
behavioral changes through imparting "soft skills' training to attend
the needs and requirement of the customers at the counter.
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it
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31.03.2010 d 1064 feiftep! ¥ & H a1 WHR B

8 7 B vd gegH yeeT daaET § fafig &7 # fagrest et
¥ fore weif ufwar e o &

Bank has continuously focused on enhancement and sharpening
of the skills of its employees by providing continuous learning
opportunities.

During the year, the Bank has provided training in various thrust
areas like Credit, Rural Banking, Risk Management, Treasury,
Retail Banking, Information Technology, Marketing, Management
development, customer orientation etc. In order to enhance its
lending base, the Bank has also started imparting intensive credit
training of 02-months duration to officers in which 133 officers were
specially groomed in this area.

The Bank also utilizes expertisation of external training resources
from reputed management and training institutes in India and abroad,
with a view to providing specialized training, skill development
to its officers and executives. During the year 177 executives/
Officers were deputed for external training programme in different
functional, managerial, behavioural areas and leadership, enroute
to transformation. 12-officers were deputed for abroad training/
conference during the year.

Training for Frontline staff: Bank has identified the process of
sensitizing the frontline staff to cater to the needs of customer as well
to orient them to be more customers centric in their approach. Bank
has developed programmes named as “SMILE” and conducted on
pilot basis at Kolkatta and North India. The programme is planned
to rolled over in other centers. Trainees identified, trained will be
conducting the programme. It may also be outsourced so that
maximum employees can be covered. So far about 150 employees
have undergone the programme.

27.2 Staff Strength

The staff strength of the Bank increased from 9883 as on
31stMarch, 2009 to 10525 at the end of the FY 09-10, including 2132
women employees. The total strength comprises of 4218 Officers,
4171 Clerks and 2136 Subordinate staff. The representation of
Scheduled Caste, Scheduled Tribe employees in the Bank is in
conformity with the prescribed level.

Keeping in mind the rolling over of all functions to CBS, the
staff-rationalization exercise is being carried out by the Bank through
Business Process Re-engineering. This will help in assessment of
manpower requirement for targeted business growth in a more
rational way.

Recruitment

During last year 103 Officers joined the services of our Bank in
various scales and disciplines.

Bank has completed the recruitment project for clerical cadre and
as on 31.03.2010, 1064 clerks joined the service of our Bank.

Bank has also initiated recruitment project for specialized cadres in
various disciplines in Junior and Middle management scales.
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27.3 Grievances Redressal Mechanism For SC/ ST/ OBC
Employees — Activities during the year 2009-10

SC/ ST Cell is set up at Head Office and Regional Office level
to attend to the complaints received from SC/ST employees/
Associations. The quarterly meetings are also conducted at
HO/ RO levels to redress the grievances of SC/ST employees.

The Bank has appointed a Chief Liaison Officer at Head Office
of the rank of General Manager to look after the interest of SC/
ST employees. Besides, the Regional Managers (who head the
Regions) have been appointed as Liaison Officers of the respective
Regions.

The Chief Liaison Officer also visits to the Offices/branches and
interacts with the representatives, listen to their problems and take
suitable action for redressing their grievances/problems.

The Bank has set up SC/ST Cell at Head Office headed by Senior
Manager (Scale lll) and assisted by a Manager. Both are from
reserved category. The Bank has also set up SC/ST Cells at 21
Regional Offices.

Overall representation of SCs & STs as of 31-03-2010 are 20.51%
& 11.73% respectively. Bank is imparting Pre-recruitment training
for 6 days and Pre-promotion training for 10 days to the SC/
ST candidates to enable them to perform better in recruitment/
promotion test/interview.

Bank is implementing Reservation Policy in Direct Recruitment
and promotion as per extant guidelines. The Bank is also granting
relaxation/concessions to SC/ST candidates as per Government
Guidelines. OBC candidates are also granted relaxation as per
Government Guidelines.

The quarterly meetings with All India Dena Bank SC/ ST/ OBC
Employees Federation were held on 17.07.2009 (March quarter),
21.11.2009 (June and September, 2009 jointly) and 22.02.2010
(December 2009) at Head Office to address the problems/
grievances. Quarterly meetings are also conducted at all 21
Regions with their respective local unit.

Complaints related to SC/ ST/ OBC staff members are recorded in
a Complaint Register maintained at Head Office. Due cognizance
is taken of the complaints and same are disposed off within a
reasonable time.

Post based Rosters of the Bank, as per Government of India
guidelines, are maintained which are inspected by Chief Liaison
Officers periodically.

During 2009-2010, Hon’ble Chairman, Dr. Buta Singh, National
Commission for Scheduled Castes, New Delhi, along with Vice
Chairman & Member visited our Head Office. Hon'ble Chairman
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conducted meeting with AllIndia DenaBank SC/ ST/ OBC Employees'
Federation as well as our Management. During the same year, Shri
M. Sivakumar, Director, National Commission for Scheduled Caste,
State Maharashtra & Goa and a team of officials headed by Shri
L. K. Meena, Dy. Secretary & Chief Liaison Officer along with Shri
M. Sahu, Under Secretary from Ministry of Finance, Department of
Financial Services also visited our Head office for in depth verification
of rosters and Implementation of Reservation Policy. All the three
agencies expressed their satisfaction over maintenance of rosters
and implementation of reservation policy. Ministry officials also
verified rosters of 2 RRBs and found the same in order.

27.5 Industrial Relations

As part of the Industrial Relation initiative an incentive scheme
linked to achievement of corporate goals is in place with a view to
creating competition amongst the branches and boost the morale
of the employees. The Industrial Relations during the year was
cordial.

27.6 Career Progression

During the year under review 343 staff members in all levels
i.e. Officers, Clerical and Sub staff cadre were promoted to shape
the career progression of deserving aspirants as well to boost their
morale.

27.7 Staff Welfare Schemes

A well defined welfare scheme for employees is in operation in the

Bank. The broad coverage of the scheme are as under:

Merit scholarship and Sports scholarship to the children of the
employees. Payment towards educational expenses incurred by
permanent part time employees for their children.

Payment of medical expenses over and above eligibility limits,
including dental surgery, Health check up scheme for all employees

and their spouse who are above 40-45 years of age.

Assistance to legal heirs of employees, who die in harness
(Rs. One lac) or in case of permanent total physical incapacity,
while in service and has to voluntarily retire on medical
ground.

27.8 Staff Incentive Scheme

Staff incentive scheme is formulated to recognize and reward the
staff members of branches/ Regional offices/ H.O by way Cash
incentive. All best performing Branches, Regions and departments
of H.O are covered under scheme. Staff members of top 3-best
performing branches, regions and departments of H.O are eligible

for incentive.
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28. IT Initiatives
28.1 Core Banking Solution (CBS)-‘DENA GARIMA’

The Bank has embarked upon a process of transformation through
technology with a view to enhance customer satisfaction and to
leverage business growth. It has engaged the services of M/s Wipro,
a leading service provider in IT enabled services, for providing an
end-to-end solution for Core Banking Operations of the Bank. It is
backed by ‘Finacle’ software support from M/s Infosys Technologies
Ltd. The Core Banking system bundles a host of customer friendly
services like Internet Banking, Phone Banking, Mobile Banking
and Cash Management Services etc. besides software system for
Integrated Treasury operations. A number of third party software
solutions are also being integrated mainly with a view to address
Regulatory concerns.

The Project was kicked off with migration of existing operations at
bank’s Mahim Branch in Mumbai on 12th March 07.

As of March 2010, the entire business of the bank has been
brought under CBS. This covers 776 centres and 28 states/union
territories. The Bank is in the process of providing connectivity at its
Satellite branches, which would also be completed shortly, and will
enable customers in such remote areas to enjoy the benefit of the
transacting with the Bank.

Other IT Initiatives

28.2 Networking

Recognizing the significance of communication infrastructures in
the Bank’s drive towards transformation through technology, the
bank has connected all its branches and administrative offices
through DENANET - its Wide Area Network using various
connectivity media. “DENANET” is continuously being monitored
on 24X7 basis by a Network Monitoring team for ensuring more
than 99% up time.

28.3 ATM Installations

In keeping with the universal trend of introducing ATMs as the
most popular and convenient mode of delivery channels, a total of
396 ATMs have been installed as on 31st March, 2010 all over the
country. Out of these ATMs, 295 are Onsite and 101 are Offsite,
covering more than 260 centres. 2 of the ATMs are bio-metric
to facilitate illiterate customers operating the ATM with thumb
impression. The bio-metric ATMs also speak out instructions to the
customers.

The Bank has ATM sharing arrangement with SBI and through
CASHTREE, VISA, CASHNET & NFS tie ups, enabling more
than 60000 ATM access points and more then 4.70 lacs
Merchant Establishments (MEs) in India and more than 1 million
ATMs and 26 Million MEs abroad, to Bank’s customers; Debit/
ATM Card base is around 9.45 lacs. The Bank also provides
Dena International Gold Debit Card to HNI customers with Visa
affiliation. Bank is charging fee from its customers for operation
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at ATMs owned by affiliate banks as per the revised RBI
guidelines.

The Bank has number of value added services through the ATMs
viz. Mobile Pre-paid Top-ups and Post Paid Bill Payment etc. Debit
Card customers can also make online payment for purchases of
goods and services using Debit cards on Internet.

28.4 Network based Services & Applications

With a view to channelise this infrastructure for customer satisfaction
and maximize the ROl made in creation thereof, we have introduced
the following network based products and services:

»  CBS application

»  Other applications viz ALM / AML, Online Balance sheet etc.

»  ATM/ Debit Cards

»  Data Transfer & Remote Support

»  RBI Payment systems like RTGS & NEFT etc.
»  Corporate E-MAIL

> Intranet

» IP Telephony

»  Video Conferencing

> Internet Banking

The Bank has launched “Dena i Connect” — the internet Banking
Service for customers of its Branches. This enables the customers
to access their account information through Internet in the form
of (a) Balance inquiry (b) Mini statement (last 10 transactions)
(c) Detailed Statement of Accounts (d) Cheque book inquiry (e)
Cheque stop request (f) Tax e-payment. (g) Fund transfer within
the Bank (i) Outward cheque inquiry etc. Additional services viz.
RTGS/NEFT transaction, online trading etc are in the offing for our
customers through Dena i Connect.

Bank has started Alert facility through which customers gets SMS
on occurrence of certain events. To start with we have enabled
this facility for Debit card holder. Our Debit card holders get SMS
instantly on Cash Withdrawal through ATM of amount more than or
equal to Rs.5000 and on any amount transacted on POS.

28.5 Bank’s Web site

Bank has its website with netizen friendly features like Branch
Locators, Calculators, Two-click navigation system etc. The
webmaster keeps the website updated and dynamic on an ongoing
basis.
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With robust IT infrastructure; the Bank is well poised to take the
leap forward to drive technology towards affording greater customer
convenience.

29. Customer Service

The Bank has concentrated on internalizing customer expectations
and aspirations more intensely. During the year, the Bank has
continued the various measures to improve customer satisfaction.

29.1 ISO 9001:2000 Certification of Branches

During the year, 25 branches has obtained ISO 9001:2000
certification, increasing the tally of ISO certified branches to 362
as of March 2010.

29.2 Redressal of Customer Grievances

The Bank is according top priority to resolve customers’ complaints/
grievances expeditiously. The customers of the Bank can
correspond directly, through letters, e-mails or through the web-site
of the Bank and pose their queries/ grievances/ suggestions, if any.
The complaints/suggestions can be registered through Toll Free
Number 1800-225740 of the Bank.

29.3 Standing Committee on Procedures and Performance
Audit of Customer Service

The Bank has constituted a Standing Committee on Customer
Service which is headed by Chairman and Managing Director.
Besides Executive Director, General Manager (Resource, Planning
and Administration, Nodal Officer), General Manager (IT & IRM),
General Manager (Forex & Treasury), General Manager (Credit)
are the members of the Committee. The committee also has
two customers as permanent members and two to three special
customer invitees are called for the quarterly meetings. Four
meetings were organized during the financial year 2009-10.

29.4 In addition to above, the Bank has formed Customer Service
Committee of the Board at the apex level to advise measures
for enhancing the quality of customer service and improving the
level of customer satisfaction. Every Branch holds a customer
meet in a month for redressal of customer complaint at the grass
root level.

29.5 Code of Bank’s Commitments to the Customers

RBI has constituted Banking Codes and Standards Board of India
for measuring the performance of banks against a benchmark
reflecting the Best Practices (Codes & Standards). The Bank has
adopted “Code of Bank’s Commitments to the Customers” and is
fully committed to its adherence.

The Bank is a member of BCSBI and a top executive in the rank of
General Manager is appointed as the “Code Compliance Officer”
on behalf of the Bank.
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30. MG edd vd faer
30.1 IMETeam

a¥ & R da = <2 o fafir amt # =2 = df emranit &
foe 104 =TT vd faeriigsd emanst srifq BHiRe HRIER ST
& ToTu 3 CeRi™T U fohu. EHRI SMEE J9Rad: ST & Uread T
37T [RIT vd FeRTE, # e & 2009-10 & SR d = 0= dhal
@ e fovar & et 39! Jufkeifa wmvg vd &w 2. 3 dog gae
HEY YT U ITRIES 2. PRIGR AHGHT BT €1 H I g §b
dfdsm glaemsit 7 dfad &3 w9 SieusieIs JHe 9gd fordl df
STt 7 STaTeT &1 / Bal DI TETH D T

a¥ 2009-10 & SR, dc 7 39 AT ARET @ell &, I I Rt
39, RO, ITRIES, R U4 TS A H IAD H 1,
ISR BF IR Yo § s # 2, ufvad ame, feeen, e geer
H Ud® # 3, FHCHd v AHeHg H IS | 4, TSR 04 HERTG
T yd® # 6, 39 TBR MG B T T 1223 Tl 8. dF
TCIRIRID HHETT Sgl fotell H AT STRATe ud dfchiT Jamsit & dfad
f3ell 7 &9 emRae et 2.

d& 7 glowRa, W@ vd 3fs gfawa aer Rea dfaam &
fafor &=, den Sifew vgam, Sikew o=, Sifew AR e
SR 3uem= snfe Aecayul 7l & A= & foe g shies
JSE JOTEl! IfUa a3 8 o2 & fafyg st # 12 Rea s
Ha% vd seneEme ¥ d6 o & sienfie fow emam & ik gag #
T &g 86 7 af & RE 9, T3 fEeel vd Hadiar § 3 HURT
BRIGR AT Gt &.

31 T, 2010 P Ja5 PI RIS &7 &AFIR fgavor 39 UK &:

30. Branch Network and Expansion

30.1 Branch Network

During the year Bank has received 104 licenses to open new
General Banking and 3 licenses for Specialized branches
i.e. Corporate Business Branches in various parts of the country.
Our branches are mainly concentrated in Western part of the
country i.e in Gujarat and Maharastra. During 2009-10, Bank has
consciously included centres where Bank’s presence was negligible
and sparse. These centres are mainly in Jharkhand, Bihar, West
Bengal, Sikkim, Meghalaya, Tamil Nadu, Orissa, Madhya Pradesh
and Uttarakhand. Keeping in view the business potential. Bank has
identified areas / centres, mostly falling in the category of under
banked area as well as under Minority dominated districts.

During the year 2009-10, Bank has opened 39 new branches,
1 each in Sikkim, Assam, Haryana, Uttatrakhand, Kerala and
Madhya Pradesh, 2 each in Rajasthan and Uttar Pradesh, 3 each
in West Bengal, Delhi, Andhra Pradesh, 4 each in Karnataka,
and Tamil Nadu, 6 each in Gujarat and Maharashtra, taking the
tally of branches to 1223.The Bank has opened nine branches
in the Minority concentrated districts and ten in under banked
districts.

From 1st April, 2008 onwards, Bank has opened 12 Retail Asset
Branches in various parts of the country to build up and maintain a
well diversified, healthy and high yielding retail portfolio and to set
up effective Risk Management System to address key issues like
Risk identification, Risk measurement, Risk monitoring and Risk
mitigation etc.

Bank has two Industrial Finance Branches at Mumbai and
Ahmedabad and Corporate Business Branch at Mumbai. During
the year Bank has opened 3 Corporate Business branches at
Chennai, New Delhi and Kolkata catering to the credit needs of
large corporates.

The sector-wise breakup of the branch network of the Bank as on
31st March, 2010.

ax MG BT HE&T HeT BT gfereraT
Sector No. of Branches Percent to Total
ITHIOT Rural 450* 37
31ef9TERT Semi Urban 229 19
9T&<T Urban 226 18
AEFTRIT Metro 318 26
@l Total 1223 100%

* 3TEAIT STRATC 4T SN €. * including Satellite branches

31. fFriYeror ve sriaRe aramater

e 9= # et g5 d ot i wreansii & et W Ay Fdaor vd
TAET G &G 6 H SRS JoTen veet F & Alse . 2,
&I BTl dT T BRI & [aHIT B cRaTaRIer & Iaer 3

31. Inspection and Internal Audit

The Bank has an in-built system of effective control and
supervision of the functioning of its various branches scattered
all over the country. In compliance with guidelines of RBI on audit



O St sro

Annual Report 2009 - 2010 | 47

gaer foemR famst vd fageiwor MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AR Reid 6 & feenfeet &1 srues a= &g FRiemor fawm
T AT TR JATARD RIEIDT TIT TN el oTEdRI D BHT qar
V3778 T, / E1.318 U0, 376l YT AT UGeH olaTRIeid anfe
® gr1 fafaw yaR & cramRiam dafea a&=ar © oo feilRa
BRIYUTE Ud STl o1 e Suie giivad g 3R 3fear, afe
DI 8, BT T TR S [hdT 51T Teb. 3NHHD oIRaT URIET P 37T,
ST T SRR &, SNGH STENR 3ara RIS, [l oikaT wRia,
USE oI WRIET, AT YOl crETeRIel, Toid crareRie, 3ittae
CRETORYET B TIE. 37 feparesend & foTe 3w awdrd st (O o ST &
3R T Hse gRT SFFAITCT ATl &b TR fhe ST &.

AR Rod 4@ & feenfeel & sy 3R s’ & sfafa
amemstt & e ¥ d% F f&Aid 01.04.2007 I FRyeor %
foe Siew amenRa 31aRke CTEMIRIE(3IREI3NST) BT I &.
QRT3 &7 TRI&T0T Sryaret AfEraRar @1 st amenfa srafks
T TRIET R o fore g ufteror fear war €. af & dRM da
T SRS TR R GiRIar MRiedT & JI-91 SHAT e aral
oIET URIETDT b HTEIT 735 RIS @ SR e fiaiked
CTETORIETT .

oM v T @Y iR FoE ARy 3 e da YRR 7 B
o o fear &, fafie emanstt & wwadt ot wiem & wreom &
I BT & FRISOT [aHRT gRT FARMT &7 31T 2. $rF qer
wrdfaferat & Tt srgue fove T W faey ear & afea s
gfteamror 3§ g8t e § eramsit o e e § gur gan & d®
B TRETCFT cerdT Bd faf-ame Jea MaReT & gURT / 7w
&R &g Fvemor Raret # aarg 78 sifrafidanit # R amfas
JUR F 6 B 3TIR TR JHITLATE HEH 3T T &.

FRIg®r & 779 / erarRieT FYuer & 3999 8 SR HRiedr
Ud 9T aRaTRIeTd! & fee gfereror w3 smafsid f6a W sae
31faIfReh, &3 FAfed ©R R FHad] ARauRIed! b arer fommer
THIET SPT BT HTRIT B TS

86 § PR dfchT JoTelr b ST T T IRET3T BT 5 YUTell &b
3ex fordr ST WR, § =1 2mansil & HRIER foareant & R
TR & WRIeT R JoTed! 3 & 2.

32. gaddl

d% & PURE BRATAT H JHG! Fabal FawT & [ THF 7aT
TS TR B T Tl STUPBRI 2. 3BT &3l & STraferd qadsal
FferIRar I Feraar fiedt 2. faum & e vd d aF TR
37t AR vd deAra Ut & &

GIETIET DI TSI BT HH BT &g 90 GRT MaRD Ul IR AT
SR feam 31T 2. 2ran wR W AR adar At o1 1e faar
TIT & S FHRATST F TEE ST ATk 2NET U &I BT TR
TR YTl B UG <l T Ordh [T 5T |, ATET H g elrarerfsar
@ HRIYUTE T8 HRATT d TG & ATEH 3 YT I o HHaTRAT

of Branches, Regional Offices and Departments at Head Office,
the Inspection & Internal Audit Department is conducting various
types of audits through internal inspectors, external Chartered
Accountants firms and CISA / DISA qualified IS Auditors from
time to time and ensures strict adherence to the Bank’s laid down
systems and procedures and timely plugging of loopholes, if
any. Risk Based Internal Audit, Concurrent Audit, Management
Audit, Information Systems Audit, Revenue Audit and Propriety
Audit apart from Snap Audit as and when required are conducted.
These activities are well documented and guided by the policies
approved by Board.

In line with directives of RBI and to comply with requirement
under BASEL |l accord, Bank has adopted Risk Based Internal
Audit (RBIA) for inspection w.e.f. 1st April, 2007. The officials
inspecting the branches have been given adequate training for
conducting RBIA. During the year the Bank has carried out RBIA
of 735 Branches by internally trained inspectors as well as by the
experienced empanelled external auditors.

To further strengthen adherence to the systems and control,
the Bank has geared up monitoring mechanism. Monitoring is
done through concurrent audit at various branches by Inspection
department at Corporate Office. The strategic approach with
special emphasis on strict adherence to systems and procedures
has enabled improvement in the inspection ratings of large
number of branches. The effective steps taken are monitored on
an ongoing basis for timely rectification of irregularities pointed out
in the inspection reports to help/improve the operational efficiency
and regulatory rating of the Bank.

To upgrade the knowledge/audit skills training sessions are
conducted for internal inspectors and concurrent auditors. Further,
quarterly review meetings are arranged with the concurrent auditors
at Regional Office level.

With the onset of Core Banking System in the organization and all
the branches being brought under its umbrella, Bank has introduced
an off-site surveillance system for monitoring of business activities
of the branches.

32. Vigilance

The Bank has an effective Vigilance set up at its Corporate
Office headed by Chief Vigilance Officer of General Manager
rank. He is assisted by Zonal Vigilance Officers in the field. The
role and function of the Dept. are both Preventive and Punitive
in nature.

More emphasis is given by the Bank on preventive measures
in order to minimize incidence of fraud. Preventive Vigilance
Committees have been formed at the Branches levels which
identify problem area so as to tone up systems and procedures at
the branch level and Regional Office level. The modus operandi
of the frauds occurred in the branches as well as those received
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o STaTel AR 3UTdl & IR § S o UTRTeTor St & gerefor
P R TAd fpar AT 2. do § g8 earafsal ) R @ &
fore feeres dsa wR o afafa nfea &

FHHART & Ta0g HRAE B I U8 IFd 9YH T4 Jar-1ad aret
foflt @ st e & 3 ST ST 8. yHTar SRS drRiaTE]
TR T SRR UTIBRI, S USRI T JRgdad! STTdRI

T yfreror feam siar 2.

§h YRT IRBR, Hald Siid AN Ud YRAT Rod db I Iddbdl
BT IR YT 3reel / feenfeett w1 srues giafeed a=ar 2.
33. [STHINT ST / TR UHTeH

§6 7 3 o 9y & SR 4T fg<) & drafaaT & fou

3T IO U TR Y. TY & R b Bl I e 1D, DI
ST e vd $-et & Aremm ¥ B & prafauT R dhigd &

33.1 REBR

arag Reid §@ gRT a¥ 2008-09 & faw smafsa g uber
yfeafirar @ fewnfe Sof # dF o s 7 afer o s
& fore agef ReER T g3 o 2008-09 & SR FERTE, I
e & & aransit 3 srafeat § Ter &= & o sriaaE
& e 7erTg 5T WY d6R Al (TSTHmET), gOT & 3R F
T AT §f EAR 3@ BT Jard JREPR UTa g3

33.2 gf¥reqor

8% 7 3 Srafaar qr emEnRt # &< S g9 & gerdr & &
35w 3 faRry ufdreroT HrIwaT &1 s SR @, aY & AR
& 7 B s verfae, YRdaa Rad §6 & dorr Jeam 3
TSTHINT TTU@IRAT & e femr gfors giRrerr srima aor fewar
ATFedIR TFTETT BRIHH BT AT fhar. UTIeror U TS
3B RY fafirg Sraterar v IRamRT § SriRd AATHIRAT v Wb

TETEMENT a¥ P AR 94 T&=al Sraemamst aer f&<r dvedaR
TTSTeTOT SIIeHAT BT TS e T 54 836 31f&raTRaT vd 688
30 HHANRAT BT GfeTeror fear . 596 37amaT, drafad= drI
f&el § TR &g BHAIRAT BT DTTEIRS YTIEI0T Y B o fere
112 3% Uf¥1&T0T SRIGHT BT 3T fosar T,

33.3 fe=d) HiteaoR

B! gRacHT B M I8 IE@d gE, 56 o fafye gemafs
HATEA! U SREsi § YT # ¢ S I8 G et § dHex
amenRa fewfve o Smes giaem gem of & Fend a¥ &
RM, 96 T Aaed TRt & fov e #f5 e fe<r arreaor
BT BRITaIT STRI TG, I8 Adedax 3 & SR 800 I Y 31t
QA3 § 3UCTe FRIC T & 3 G & JA B ggrdT o &

through IBA is being shared amongst the staff. The employees
are sensitized about the fraud taken place and of the preventive
measures to be taken at the training establishments of the Bank.
The bank has a Board level Committee for monitoring of large
value frauds.

A distinction is made between the bonafide and malafide decisions
of the employee before initiating action against. Training is imparted
to the Disciplinary Authority, Inquiring Authority and the Presenting
Officers for effective conduct of the Disciplinary Proceedings.

The bank ensures implementation of the instructions/guidelines on
Vigilance functioning received from Govt. of India, Central Vigilance
Commission and Reserve Bank of India.

33. Implementation of Official Language/ In-house publications

The Bank continued vigorous efforts for implementation of official
language Hindi during the financial year under review. During
the year Bank's focus was on implementation of Hindi Softwares
through word processors, Core Banking solution and E-mail.

33.1 Awards

During the year under review Bank was awarded IV th prize by
Reserve Bank of India for it's house journal "Dena Jyoti" in
bilingual category for the year 2008-09. Bank received llird prize
in the competition organized by Maharashtra State Level Bankers’
Committee (Rajbhasha), Pune for excellent performance in
implementation of official language Hindi in its offices and Branches
situated in the Maharashtra State during 2008-09.

33.2 Training

The Bank continued to conduct special Training Programs to
promote the use of Hindi in its offices and branches. During the
year Bank has organized Hindi Unicode Training Program with the
faculty support of College of Agriculture Banking, Reserve Bank of
India and Hindi Software Training Program for Official Language
Officers, who in turn will impart the training to officers and staff
members working at various offices and branches.

During the year under review 94 Hindi Workshops and Hindi
Software training programs were conducted in which 836 officers
and 688 other employees were trained. In addition to these 112
Desk Training Programs were also conducted to impart practical
training to the employees for doing the official work in Hindi.

33.3 Hindi Software

Keeping pace with the technological changes, the bank has
provided computer based bilingual word processing facilities on all
computers in use at various administrative offices and branches.
During the year under review Bank continued the implementation
of Hindi Software "Script Magic" for CBS Branches. This software
is provided to over 800 branches during the year. Hindi Software
training programs were conducted to promote the use of these
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foe fe=ar Srreaar ufvrenr srign smafad fee . §6 4 ya=
Praterg vd fafie el o oamsi § fewal ArdedaR 3 Ud soil
HeR & TaRTy 5% UTreroT drigH st fdr. 3@ gRT wwenfua
|4 vCIeRt # fgnfyes gamT oF giaen ude #]1E TS 8.

33.4 Ty Hemera gy faor

Y & AR HGh a2 (JISTHTT), fowira Fare fawm, faa #amea,
WRA TRBR F JISTHET & YT YT B FR1e01 & foe gaR germ
FIATT HT AT fHar. 32 3o Rard &, geare srfaa vd &5
A ISTHT & Hraao_ & fav e d@ gRT f6dr 5 3 yarst &
T B &

33.5 JOR ¥ fe=t SryanT

3T ST 3R TTeeht | 319+ fafirs arsmsi &1 vaR 3 & fee,
R fafire arsms & dueie vd gaR 9 =) § OR aRp
Tied P 7.

AT WY A § I IMETU / BT HRA IRBR DI TSTHTET el
& BTG B TR H IR B B [ oaR 5o < ) & 3l
EARI UTed AdT § IR & 01T 337 AUTUT BT 4 ATEH a1 &
foe yomRa €.

33.6 fgamdt 7 afder

PIARE JUTT § I fewal & YT & deM & few a2
AR % e & Adaw fawat vd fafire fparseamt & ar &
SHFGRI & & e, §F F 31T & ubiesr "1 st & oids fafie
dfd fawat & foermies & ou # feumt vu § goiterd fosar. afa
# ore, wmrER g nfafaftar fenfyes oo gt fee s & aifes
& BT IS GHART 39 FTHIad &1 b,

34. 31G¥R wd Rt

Tt srfea=R Y Asiad B & e afva Ureares dosat a1
FA B B (70 TR TRBR T IR Ro1d §6 gRT $& 3u1T
& o < € afe dgfera gfeaivr & SRor Fw = ffd
3P S g & I foraraemdt § Reifa gere a2m 2010-11
& SR AR TFGA S FH1T § AIfTad &7 BT K0T YA §
IR B BF FHET 2.

TEIH B D FUaT 8. 9 & 3fd § AR o &ret = H
At 3fa g8 e 3oa AT R qa1 ISR S0t W B 31T
& TGO H ST &=l H URad= qidl &, a.9L.0e.3R. & RO
TR 3R &X 3TRY B ST & BRUT dbi gRT 3R &= b Fei=or
# 9ER URERIAT 8nf. 9@ MR & uRged & BROT 349 74T
AT BT AT BT H A& L

Tgfy, 9§ & RM gfg ® maid U ¥ IERAS a5 6 D
FHTET &, TROR GRT T81 YR TAT & FThifa # Ihg B HROT

facilities. Bank has conducted Special Desk Training Program for
Hindi Software Akruti and Easy Mailer at Head Office and branches
of various regions. All the ATMs installed by the Bank have been
provided with bilingual access facilities.

33.4 Inspection by Ministry of Finance

During the year the Joint Director (Rajbhasha), Department of
Financial Services, Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India visited
our Head Office for inspection of progressive use of official
language. In his report he has appreciated the efforts of our bank
for implementation of official language at the Head Office and in
Regions.

33.5 Use of Hindi in Publicity

In order to popularize our various schemes among public at large
and customers, pamphlets and publicity material of our various
schemes were prepared and printed in Hindi.

Bank Branches / offices in all the three lingual regions are
constantly making efforts for improving level of implementation
of official Language Policy of Government of India and striving
to make it as a prime medium of communication to improve our

customer service.
33.6 Bilingual House Journal

In order to maximize the role of Official Language Hindi in
corporate communication and educating our staff members
about various activities and current subjects, Bank published the
various issues of its house journal "Dena Jyoti" as Special Issue
on various banking subjects in bilingual form. Articles, news and
events are published in bilingual to have its reach to every staff
of the bank.

34. Opportunities and Threats

Although some small measures are being initiated by the Government
of India and Reserve Bank of India to exit from the stimulus packages
announced for reviving the economy but balanced approach has
ensured that the overall liquidity conditions remain comfortable.
The flow of credit is expected to improve to commercial sectors with
acceleration of stronger recovery in economic activity duly supported
by assumption for normal monsoon during 2010-11.

All the three major components, viz. agriculture, industry and services
are expected to support sustained momentum in growth. The year
end saw marginal increase in deposit rates reflecting change in
the interest rate environment resulting from higher policy rates and
hardening yield on Government bonds. The introduction of the Base
Rate in place of BPLR is likely to impart greater transparency to
fixation of lending rates by the bank. Bank will be able to position
itself for the new challenges posed by the Base Rate regime.

Even though the growth is expected to remain overwhelmingly
positive during the year, concerns remain from large government
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faar a7 @ & dura ¢ foes 35 97w @ A qen fAaer
B T ¥ gfig & BRUT AN §¢ At &, By § &arelt Ihq
g R R @ Sife v siffeaaar 8. 3fvas srefemawer =
JTORIE & Hohd [ & difche 3THT | a8 190 & 3R 39T
3R frafa iR ug daar & 8% aie] @rdT vd god @rar S
¥ gfg & U Ao, Fee W for @rat # a¥el ae e
e 31 7 g SN 9 & SR TaTe gAtaar o
HTAAT B AR

35, H1dT UGG

famr uftear @1 yafaa f&r fomm gar wifa @1 e W disa
wRara (ed §6 & Aifa Fofa T 2010-11 B UG THRIHD
@ €. e gfg & guR & FoT B 7 g 3R dF @1 a7
wara X2 i a7 fafim et @ gfaant axi o= %ot 3uerer dxR.

TR T & R H YRd TRBR & A Taid a2l BT arer
T B AT S 3 IR TS 37 / Yedb STeRa 3 ¥ 3fg
& 1 310 TS BT TEdR a4 B Tihar H &

d T SNl B [oTadT § IR & [eT8 9 B F0T Y& JoTeir
3R Arg fARET gomTety wecayet gt fram. e d@ o e
¥ @ A F s oRomw firer € gafoe d@ T e § F4r
ETE WX 70T favaR o1, A weas JamT, Rea qen Hiy &
HED &, AN B HH B B 1078 BT ST AT H FUR, T
@1 fory e @t # agent & FRAOR 9aT aeir d5ad 310 3ATal dr
foT 31 & &1 afe 3= vail & el & fauor ¥ iRt / e

3TEnRA 3T TG TR 37T €47 e T,

fcers #ea & fore siR e IR |

(E).ue. 1ae)
3rezrey vd gaer e

borrowings and the increase in inflation which may push costs
through demand for higher wages and increase in input costs.
The revival in the growth of agriculture is subject to assumption of
normal monsoon resulting in uncertainties. The global economy has
shown signs of recovery but is still fragile and shall have impact on
the exports. Bank with its multi pronged strategy of increasing the
CASA deposits, recovery in written off accounts and augmenting
fee based income shall overcome the challenges it shall face
during the ensuing year.

35. Outlook

With the policy decisions by RBI concentrating on containing
inflation albeit without hurting the growth process the outlook for
2010-11 appears to be optimistic. The recovery in economic growth
shall see the increase in credit demand and Bank shall endevour to
make it available to different sectors at competitive rates.

Apart from attending to the Government of India policy guidelines
on Financial Inclusion, Bank is in the process of rejunuveting its
resources for augmenting its non interest income/fee Based
income.

The Bank's credit delivery system and credit monitoring system will
play a vital role in improving the Asset Quality of the Bank. As the
Banks strategy during last year has yielded good results it shall
continue to remain focused on expanding its outreach by opening
new branches in hither to new areas, concentrate on thrust areas
of SME, Retail and Agriculture, improve CASA Deposits to bring
down the cost of deposit, sustained efforts in recovery in written
off accounts and increasing non interest / fee based income by
marketing of not only its own products but also cross selling of third
party products.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

V/

(D. L. Rawal)
Chairman & Managing Director
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1. 1fireme Sfear ) d% @t Aifa

% # HURC AT BT HAGHA § IR qo7 i &1
faear g™ & o gfe & vg@ RS & T9 & 797 FM@r € SR
AETIR, BIURE AR I # A geai, dafthed yidwo]
v fopardmamdl & et & § Iprar U a8 $AMART,
Afqear v craefae 3R & uTe & wntHe fHar m d6
BT IS U HHART 3Gd THT AORYRDT BT T92aT< S I&H
& foTe uRefefdrn, fomieRT wd et &5 Aewyqot ot & 3o &
gt gfdeg €.

% 7 fafie ®ie wael & 91T A9 R a7 e
TAIaGdT IR & TS 49 & e BriRe M o dfedr o
qofe: wraffead fear €. d& o suRe sfremaT e wac faftrs
vd wifaftres sensit & 3T & e & F81 A S, afed e
& Ui v qo-agar 9 2

oS

(@) fafers vd Aifering ugfa & SaReRS! & qea @1 gerT

(@) dF P UEDI DI IHE JA J&T BT

() TTEdI, HHARET, FHIRTdT T2 FHTST B Feb UF 3fad aramaxor
TG =T eI

(@) UReRI Ud Aradr Smend gae giHf¥ad d=T.
Afear TR @Y Apa™

T § 7 AT AR @F AHAM $ fav Jar (Afear mr Fue)
faframi 1992 &1 senmstt & sy "9 TUR B IHAH B
e &1 d 3maRor Hfear e e 3maRor diedr iRk o
2. 99 feee, IS 69U TR & HHAR! UF 8 & 3T AN,
fomar §6 & UGG Jea Haeiid Ja-T a& Ugd 2, 89 o
J THENTNA &, 9 =1 H T35, o1 BT SIUTe ATTBRI b 27 H
frges fmar & o 3 o ufayfaat & =R &= & fae gefaat
feiiRa &%= vd 3R dfear & o & fav Heer &
FETEMEN ¥ & R 3% e &1 faféraq suTe gan 8.

TR ifear

freere #ser 7 s Fewrel dor wEmded! & o WRda d6
g gRT uRanferd et smaR <fEdr @ srHe yea faar 8. ©ie
H 3 qMEAT B -1 $AMGRT U A dafthd SR, @Ry
yfereaert, gRefefar va fafer qen fafemt snfe & ufe ufaegar enfe
2. AR Tiedr §& &) 99 I18e R ety BRIl 7T 2.

2. foeere deat

¥ & e Hsa &1 Tod deer! fafam sfufaaw 1949 3k
dPBRI T (3UHAT BT 35T 3R 37d=on) 3rfEfTom 1970 qer
IETaHd d6 (deH ve fafaer graen) drsEr 1970 & gaEEr &
a7 31firenfad grar 2.

1. Bank’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

The Corporate Governance in the Bank is viewed as a key element
in improving efficiency and growth for enhancing investor’s
confidence and accordingly the corporate governance policy has
been imbibed with strong emphasis on human values, individual
dignity and adherence to honest, ethical and professional conduct
to achieve excellence in all fields of activities. The Management
and Employees of the Bank are committed to uphold the core value
of transparency, accountability and integrity in building confidence
of all its stakeholders.

The Bank has implemented the Code of Corporate Governance
under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements, as amended from time
to time, entered into with various Stock Exchanges. The Bank’s
Corporate Governance policy is considered as not only compliance
to the legal and statutory requirements but also as commitment to
the following:

(a) To enhance shareholders value in legal and ethical manner
(b) Provide best of the services to the customers of the Bank

(c) Provide free and fair environment to the customers,
employees, investors and society at large, and

(d) To ensure transparent and merit based management.
Prevention of Insider Trading

Dena Bank has instituted a comprehensive code of conduct for
prevention of insider trading namely, “Dena Bank Code of Conduct for
Prevention of Insider Trading” in accordance with the requirements
of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992. All
the Directors, Employees at senior management level and other
Employees of the Bank who could have access to the unpublished
price sensitive information of the Bank are governed by the code.
Bank has appointed Shri S. K. Jain as compliance officer who is
responsible for setting forth procedures and implementation of the
code of conduct for trading in Bank’s securities. During the year
under review there has been due compliance with the said code.

Code of Conduct

The Board of Directors has approved a Model Code of Conduct
circulated by the Indian Banks’ Association for its Directors and
General Managers. The code covers amongst other things the
Company’s commitment to honest and ethical personal conduct, fair
competition, transparency and compliance of laws and Regulations
etc. The code of conduct is posted on the website of the Bank.

2. Board of Directors

The constitution of Board of Directors of the Bank is governed by
the provisions of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Banking
Companies (Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970
& Nationalized Banks (Management & Miscellaneous Provisions)
Scheme, 1970.
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& 31.03.2010 &1 2w Hea § 9 faeers wnfaer €, 5=
a1 gofsrtae Feere sifq ReR gRT fgeh sreger vd yde
feers qem eduee feee. dor 7 iR-erdues e, 7
R-Brauas fFevel § § ve YR TROR &I ATl IRART
feerd, th WRara Rad da o gfafafyr feers, v st
HHATRAT BT yTar1e fees, th Maes 9Ra ReR g1 g0
T STrar & 3R a1 2! BT g TRBR P 3TATdT, TIRURDT
gRT ga fomar e 8. f&ie 31.03.2010 B U6 HITR HHARY
feer®, v Ial TTETHR Meed vd YRd TROR GRT g af
ezt & e R &

2.1 HSAI ! dob

AT aY & R e 3Th HEd B 14 dod =fenad faroar &
sqmﬁﬁ?rg's‘

As of 31.03.2010, the composition of the Board consists of 9
Directors including two whole time Directors viz., the Chairman
& Managing Director and the Executive Director appointed by
Government of India and 7 non-executive Directors. Out of 7
non-executive Directors, one Official Director Government of India
Nominee, one Director represents Reserve Bank of India, one
Director represents Officer Employees of the Bank, one Director
appointed by the Government of India and three shareholder
Directors elected by the Shareholders other than the Central
Government. The post of one Workmen Director, one Chartered
Accountant Director and two Directors appointed by Government of
India are lying vacant on the Board as of 31.03.2010.

2.1 Meetings of the Board of Directors

During the year under review, 14 meetings of the Board of Directors
were held on the following dates:

29.04.2009 23.05.2009 17.06.2009 11.07.2009 25.07.2009 22.08.2009
26.09.2009 26.10.2009 27.11.2009 19.12.2009 27.01.2010 28.01.2010
20.02.2010 20.03.2010

2.2 et & faazor 2.2 Particulars of Directors

3Telredr 9 & 3iaia fHeerd Hed & MRl & 3awad faaor o
T B Jodi # 36! T BT fgazor srgdy & vd v A fean
T

3. Fee! ot wfafrt

IRag Red 96 gRT o feenfeet & sew ik @nmike
3R 3fe & ARTeRlt Rygidl & 3R a6 7 31 faerd wea
! fafie afufaal o 1o+ fear € fomer <ir 59 gaR 2

3.1 f'eee dsa &) yao= afufa

% 7 Igaed d6 (y§ed vd fafay grae) dreEn 1970 &
TGEHT & IR UG e ATt BT T4 [daT 7. |t &b 93 Braf
H 31eTe Ud UaY Mevid & faddredd USRI I s & A
URTAT 1 WIPIdT, YT Bd ITeTRa g & SFIAIGT & Uwaid 3R
WRBRI vd 3= 3rAIea gfasfcar, grert, smsiar FueRT ywdra
Ud g6 W SleH & YR 3Nt afed dHut-ah / BRe IaRl /
fsdaRt / afet # fraer qon yeem wfifa o1 s dsa gRT o=ga
PIS 3T AT IMHA 2.

TfHfa & Tewal B TGO 9T dod! H 39d! Juierta &7 faaor
uRere @ vg 7 H fear mar 2.

3.2 fRee dea o) erar ader afufe

feere #sa 7 IRA Red §6 & 3 & AR 3RpaR,
1995 # feord Hsa @I o@r wienm gfafa o1 med fear

The necessary particulars of Board of Directors and status of
attendance in the Board meetings during the year under review are
given in the Annexure A, B and C.

3. Committees of Directors

In accordance with the guidelines issued by Reserve Bank of India
and the guidelines on Corporate Governance etc., the Bank has
constituted various Committees of the Board of Directors, the
details of which are given below:

3.1 Management Committee of the Board

The Board had constituted Management Committee as per
provisions of Nationalized Banks (Management and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Scheme, 1970. The main functions of the Committee
include sanctioning of credit proposals, Loan Compromise / Write-off
proposals, Filing of suits / appeals, proposals for approval of capital
and revenue expenses, investments in Government and other
approved securities / shares/ Bonds and debentures of companies
/ Corporates, including underwriting, proposals for acquisition and
hiring of premises, donations etc. which are beyond the discretionary
powers of the Chairman & Managing Director and any other matter
referred to the Management Committee by the Board.

The composition of the members of the committee and details of
attendance at its meetings during the year under review are given
in Annexure B and C.

3.2 Audit Committee of the Board

The Board had constituted Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors in October 1995 in accordance with the guidelines of the
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URd WROR gRI UF F&T U6 & 19/20/2007-a130-1 e
18 TR, 2008 GIRT &l TRIT JaT & 3TFR Hg 2008 H FiHTT BT
gTiiee forar T

o wRrer Al & Bt 7 orkar wie Hrif & GhaeT a1, 36
& forira Sl FoemesT o FHTe a1, Fwad / 3 fFRIeoT / oiar
QRT3 &5 AE@qUT I+ ehul @7 FHIE BT, T A! T2 AR
SR & JAldadl BRR & T8 49 & ded [aHi® 37 Amel &
FUTEH BT STHe 2. 36 afifa fommer / affies ot a1 feers
HEeT b STAIG £ T¥gd B & Ugel 39 IR T 09 faaR &=l 2.

9 Aea & o e Ififa #§ feure d@ea & g gewd
gftafed €.

Tffa & Tl B GXTHT UF dodl | 396 uifa &1 faavor
aRRfere @ vd v fear mar 2.

3.3 et ot wilRsfhe afifa

G Id &7 & ITH b ddl b JOIHIed HMaudl & TRAHSG
HRA PR gRT FeiRa foe Fd €. 3197 & & # 9Ra IWAR
BRI B e Hiedes smenfRa arsmr aRY & ¥ 2. 3R 39
3T & T 9RA TRBR & a2l &b AR 9 - e Avsd
o wRefie afafa &1 1o faar £

o o 0 o

gffa & Teal H GRIAT U9 dodbi § 376! Juifa &1 faavo

gRf¥Te @ vd 7 H fear war 2.
3.4 ARURS / Fravie Rreraa afifa

d% 7 FHURe PHERE R Jat & feentdel & 3gaRT § IRR
TEIRI & AT §C JAaedl IR & TS 49 & IFUeH & e
SRRYR®! / APl & AT 31 - ¥R / §isl & SiaRvn, af®
Rare 7 fyer, amwier / sarst =1 fhe anfe Rierdr & Haror &g

SRRYRS / 19916 ToTehrad IfHfd T e+ fohar 2.

TfHfa & T B GXTAT Ud dobl H 3qdT 3ulta &1 faavor
aRRkfere @ vg v fear mar 2.

S T . oI, HET U e (oi¥dT vd F9.9.3), i Uil b [l b
& 3IUTeH STUERT €.

FHreTe_ 9§ & ARE 96 P vt ¥ 34 e / gBars /
forrort et g8 31k 9t 34 et / qudTs / st a1 faeret
@ Agfe & 3R fueH faar mar 3R 31.03.2010 T TIRGRST
J Prs W Brwpraa / o sifoffa =&t e

3.5 FAfehd SREH gaeq o= e e & afifa

& o a9 SRy yae nfafafert o wddenr &3 & fov aafed
S geem W et & afifa nfsa & 18 &1 g% o[t #§
Shiaw ddel sraeRomst dfed Tt shiew dde orif w AR
T, SieT geaied 3R Shifed & oA o ari-fafer ag
=1, Sired fefa &g o 'R HeafRa &=, sifew gdeq )
g & fder 3R Siieq o0 o= @ de-ie anfe waTfae &

Reserve Bank of India. The Committee was re-constituted in May
2008, as advised by Government of India vide communication No.
F. No.19/20/2007-BO-I dated February 18, 2008.

The functions of Audit Committee include overseeing the audit
functions, review of Bank’s financial performance, review critical
findings of concurrent/other inspections / audits, compliance with
accounting standards and all other matters specified under Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Stock Exchanges.
The Committee discusses and considers the Quarterly / Annual
Accounts before recommending the same to the Board for approval.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors comprises of five
members of Board of Directors.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.3. Remuneration Committee of Directors

Remuneration of whole time Directors of PSU Banks is decided by
the Government of India. Recently performance incentive scheme
is introduced by the Government of India and for that purpose
as per Government of India directives; Bank has constituted
“Remuneration Committee” of Board of Directors.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.4 Shareholders / Investors Grievance Committee

The Board had, in compliance of the SEBI guidelines on Corporate
Governance and Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into
with the Stock Exchanges, constituted a Shareholders’ / Investors’
Grievance Committee for redressal of the grievance of shareholders
/ investors like transfer of shares / bonds, non-receipt of annual
report, non-receipt of dividends etc.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

Shri S. K. Jain, General Manager (Accounts & IRC) is the
Compliance Officer of the Bank for Stock Exchanges.

During the year under review the Bank received 34 requests
/ enquiries / complaints from the investors and all 34 requests /
enquiries / complaints had been resolved to the satisfaction of the
investors and no complaint / correspondence from Shareholder
was pending as of 31.03.2010.

3.5 Committee of Directors on Integrated Risk Management

The Committee of Directors on Integrated Risk Management is
constituted to oversee all risk management activities of the Bank,
including identifying underlying risks perceptions, prescribing risk
assessment and quantification methodologies, fixing tolerance
level for risk exposures, guiding the line management on risk
management and mitigation techniques etc.
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Tfafd & Tl & I=TAT Td dobi | 396! 3utfa @1 faaxor
aRRfere @ vd v & fear man 2.

3.6 S I arel erETEfsal o) AR @ g il

FET IBH ATl grRarafsdl R FIRM @ & FHevet o v 39
Tfufa &1 e fear mar €. d6 # 579 FW O g’ gedr € A
Tf¥fer 921 IBH arelr eiaTefsal B THTe Rl € 3R 3 AP B
3T fedr ST &

Tfafa & T B GXTAT Ud dodl H 3qdT 3uita &1 faavor
uRkfere @ vg w # fear mar 2.

3.7 IR ROyt

AR IR 3fa=0T Farerm AT gRT TG sfFac ART / FUs]
& 3IRUT 31aT Y9UT & 3FFAIG Bd 3% 3RAIDA PR, Fwildbe JHTOT
T SR TRA & 368 A IR 3Rvr wfufa & we fosar man
JrAfT $96 T & AIRUTRGAT BT T, TN ORG JaAl adT
37RO Xeg fd ST 1S &7 ot &= <l &,

JfHfa & Fewdl o W1 Ud dodi § 3@ Jureifa @ faaxor
oRfere @ vd 7 # fear mar 2.

3.8 ITES T Afufer

|HHfT 6 H Ued A1 I TorEdT 3R Ted & Ribrdl &
e # @rarer ymfa @ o weiten aar &, 97 Ued JaT § guR
& fore arext wet afed e 3t W 9 faeR aRa g,

Tffa & Tl B GXTHT U9 dodl | 39dr uitd &1 faavor
aRkfere @ vg v # fear mar 2.

3.9 Yo ad-ie At

foemT o ddbie gamal giaemsii &1 sifedman 3uan gHRad
T, §6 & I de-ie HeH W fgaR &=, Aifama amar &
der § G dbie aUmT dF fger & qen e, uRaemr
31fc & Praaas W FIRF! B &= # @ gU o db-iid &
foe dea & Freeme! o afafa Tiea & & sTavadhdr Fegd o
TIY. Wee 7 fE&ATd 26 3R, 2005 B AT 31T dodb H AT
T WR FTaerebl Bl ATl Tiod dr.

Tfafd & el & TRTT w9 dodl § 36T 3ufRitg @1 faaror
aRRfere @ vd v A fear man 2.

3.10 3rgarer affer

IRag Red 9@ 9 U9 U7 S SeTE.sion.
JIR1.6/11.01.005/2006-07 f&=Td 20 3T, 2007 GRT dbT # SFUTET
F & foe feentder o € 57 foenfcel & smoR ) &% 3
IO SIUTE 1T SR & foeT 3FgATe Heerd #sd = farid
27 fe=iwR, 2007 @1 Ao dow # o & Aifq & wagE &
FIER, UIEH W [Hewid! ol Al o1 Mo fdar .

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.6 Committee for monitoring Large Value Frauds

A sub-committee of the Board for monitoring Large Value Frauds
is constituted to review the large value frauds, whenever such
incidences take place in the Bank and the preventive measures
taken.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.7 Share Transfer Committee

The Share Transfer Committee is constituted for the purpose
of approval / rejection / transfer / transmission of Equity Shares
/ Bonds, issue of Duplicate Certificates, recommended by the
In-house Share Transfer Scrutiny Committee. The Committee also
takes note of shareholding pattern, top holders list and Transfer
rejections etc.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.8 Customer Service Committee

Committee reviews the customer services in the Bank as also the
progress in attending to customer complaints and grievances. It
also considers new measures for improvement in customer service,
including external issues.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.9 Information Technology Committee.

With a view to facilitate optimum utilization of the existing IT
infrastructure, envision the IT mission of the Bank, to direct IT
department on policy matters and monitor the implementation
of CBS project etc., a need was felt to constitute committee of
Directors of the Board for IT. The Board at its meeting held on
26th August, 2005, constituted Committee of Directors on
Information Technology.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.10 Compliance Committee.

Reserve Bank of India, vide their communication No. DBS.
CO.PP.BC.6/11.01.005/2006-07 dated 20th April, 2007 has
laid down guidelines for Compliance function in Banks. Based
on these guidelines, the Bank had formulated its Compliance
Policy which was approved by Board at its meeting held on
27th December, 2007. In accordance with the provisions of the
Policy, a committee of Directors on Compliance was constituted.
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29 FHERY, 2009 HT A(HTT BT gATTG T T2,

JfHfa & Fedl o IR 0 dodl § o Jutefa &1 faavor
uRfere @ vd v fear mar &

3.11 TR |ffer

uRdg R5d d6 T 309 U Ixer. SiEIsisl. oS e
47/29.39.001/2007-08 feqid 1 Fdax, 2007 gRT daw f=aifad
e, s frataw & e s T sRa €, & arTar vd
siffacr @ Refa & FeaiRor &9 &g Sifa usdie gichan &= &g
FeeTe! @f AT afafd (@ Wdd / IR s e nfea
T & gR ¥ gfud fear 2. &7 feenfdel & smaRr w), #eet grRT
27 faR, 2007 BT AT 3T Sob | AHIDT T BT TS
Tomar o,

o o0 o

gffa & Teal B GRIAT U9 dodbi § 396! Jurfa &1 faavo

gRf¥Te @ vd v H fear war 2.
4. HrAUTED! B afufeai

3% & fea-ufafeT & SRiGAmT & oo ¥9 F FdeH & o8 36
T IS SATARS AUl BT | T (6T 8. BB SRS ATHTAT
SIUPRE :

4.1 Fw dedht amet 3R g1 SR oRaes ¥ @&
Frfue®! ot sialke afif

d6 = foer dadr Al iR a1 Ok aRaeHl & Hag #
SrfuTee! B sidRe afafd @1 e fisar &, 3% afafa fHae vd
i yge Fe q4T oi=-a HIHel o FHIET BT & AR JaeTdD
feemfrder yam ol & wfhfa & dods gfafe & &

[T BF 3reErT S o e U uae feed 3R 3@ srutwfa
T HRIUTed Meed B &, A a¥ & aRM aiifd o af-d
IR R Jod AT Gs.

4.2 3N Tar gae it

§ T 3T TTar g e AfHtd (TUAsiIa) &7 o foar 8, 5w

eTe d o 3reFer U9 yay feve € 3R e seuhefa o
Frfuteis faewre afifa o dob B sreaerr aa 8. afafd &
P W 3T AT B TATI-TTY TR SEH TS, IRedT i 1E
e, 3Raal Td a3 Bl el Hdeadl iR FRmY
G v TeT =i 3nfE ot freiRor wfmfaa &

PIATHD AZISED U4 T ST & 30 SRIUD FiHid & 37
e . A dY & R §b § UEATH Sraadd § WId Jaer
foaR-fawet vd wfren o= &g At &1 17 dodb Smaaid gs.

The committee was reconstituted on 29th January, 2009.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

3.11 Nomination Committee.

The Reserve Bank of India, vide their communication DBOD.
No.BC.No. 47/29.39.001/2007-08 dated 1st November, 2007 has
notified to constitute a Nomination Committee of Directors (all
independent / non-executive directors) to undertake a process of
due diligence to determine the “Fit and proper” status of existing
elected Directors, who file their nominations for election. Based
on these guidelines, the Bank had formulated its Nomination
Committee was constituted by Board at its meeting held on
29th December, 2007.

The composition of members of the committee and details of
attendance at the meetings are given in Annexure B and C.

4. Committees of Executives

For proper and efficient functioning of day-to-day functions of the
Bank, the Bank has also formed various in-house Committees.
Some of the in-house Committees are as under:

4.1 In-house Committee of Executives on Investments and
Money Market Operations

The Bank had constituted an In-house Committee of Executives
for Investment and Money Market Operations. The said Committee
reviews all the deals / transactions and the matters relating to
investments and funds management transactions and gives
necessary guidelines. These meetings take place everyday.

The Committee is chaired by the Chairman & Managing Director
and in his absence by the Executive Director. During the year under
review, the Committee has been meeting daily.

4.2 Assets Liability Management Committee

The Bank had constituted Assets Liability Management
Committee (ALCO) with Chairman and Managing Director as
Chairman of the Committee andin his absence Executive Director.
The functions of the Committee inter alia include overseeing
market risk management, Liquidity Risk Management, interest
rate sensitivity of assets and liabilities and fixation of interest
rates etc.

The functional General Managers and other executives from Head
Office are other members of the Committee. During the year under
review, the Committee met on 17 occasions to discuss and review
ALM functions in the Bank.
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4.3 3R R sicRor Hdter afif

d = 37 AR B 3ITROT BT 3FAGT B B [(1C J& B BIAUTCTDT
T JaRke IR FRoT Hatem afufa &1 o7 oot &, 5 5
ASGR vd IR 3fAR0T volet gRT wAMYa fobr A €. |fhfa
qHY-FHI TR JHIISIHRUT B & # g yiifd & Rerfa 3Rk 3
& IRI & Yol # g5 ge-9¢ dF WY 3TAfd U FHET Bl .
RIS (CIT), TeTddh Aeueed (Maeid Tudh dg), TeTad el
Jaeid (Fect Aradierd) 9o e (Faeres duds $g) / Hu afad
afifa & Tawa €. Temeed (o) 3 iHfd & 3eTeT &, 3
I & R AHHTT DI 19 Job FU= 3.

4.4 IRIR et AT UR SRIUTAS] B Tidike aite

it & e Bt 36 & TRIRT S ueeiga/RaTia@art TRERT &1
31fénrgvT, ucer AdTeRoT 3R ycegd uReRT 3nfe & a1 dter
Fafa & €. Aemded (YET daoid B [ad Sirad gae),
TR SIS (HTd T8 T €M), HeT GaeId (IITHedT &5 vd &t
IMH0T §%), TEEED (TN, HEMEEd (TTeH Ud J9e-) e
TETIS HET UGS (T T2R) Tt o e 8. AT a9 &
R aff ot 28 dod 8.

5. fFRee! & uRsifie

ey vd yae e 3R Sues Meee 3 YRd IRER &
oA feentden & AR dade / wiRsifie & Serel o T8
JoT d6 & eI Hser vd 30 Afffaat o dobi # 3ufed &
* foe 372 foel PR & do@ Yo df IR G DY T, HRA
WBR & feenfeen & SR BRI Hed BT BIgax 3 a4
IR P e BT §6 & FEIE Hed B TA® dob H Wi
o & fole 5. 5000/- 31 3= AfHfaal o TS dob F AT o &
fae . 2500/- T YT dob Yo & w9 H 37T fovar M.

T R BRuas et o dowt # Jufed @ &g sfafea
dE® P P 3TCTAT FART, ATAT, TERA 3G b A DI 4T ITergfe] b
T, IR SRS e & iRsthe | e ted ame, I
§ (ydem vd fafaer yraem) arsmT, 1970 § SfcaRad yraem=r giRT
o &.

a¥ 2009-10 & e HaToa vall d1 Yo fou T aiRsthis &1
fga=or 2009-10 & IS RUIE HF ST - 18 AT U & Fq
fewforat » # fear mar 2.

6. TTEIRUT 94 &1 dodb

e a9 aut & aiffies SRATERUT AT 4T U9 AT THT &
IRT g fEar mar & 9 dok vh & W 9YIE, 9 GRIEs
UIRRITATAT Scbe TTeTeroT Herfdanera, 7.ar.ar.sl. averr, faeraret
(afeem) a5 - 400 056 H Es.

4.3 In-House Share Transfer Scrutiny Committee

The Bank had constituted an In-House Share Transfer Scrutiny
Committee of the executives of the Bank for approving /
recommending shares transfer, which are processed by the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Bank. The Committee
also periodically reviews the progress of the demat position and
movementin share prices of the Bank. General Manager (Accounts),
Asst. General Manager (IRC), Assistant General Manager (Board
Secretariat) and Manager (IRC)/ Company Secretary are the
members of the Committee. General Manager (Accounts) is the
Chairman of the Committee. During the year under review, the
Committee met on 19 occasions.

4.4 Internal Committee of Executives on Premises

The main functions of the Committee are to review and recommend
the proposals of acquisition of leased/ ownership premises,
renewal of lease and surrender of leased premises etc. General
Manager (I.T. & IRM), General Manager (HRM), General Manager
(PS & RRB), General Manager (Accounts), General Manager (R &
A) and Assistant General Manager (GAD) are the members of the
Committee. During the year under review, the Committee met on
28 occasions.

5. Remuneration of Directors

The Chairman & Managing Director and the Executive Directors
were paid salary / remuneration as per extant guidelines of the
Government of India and are not paid sitting fees for attending
the Board and other Committee meetings of the Bank. All other
Non-Executive Directors except Government Director were
paid sitting fees of Rs.5,000/- for attending each Board Meeting
and Rs.2,500/- each for attending any other Committee meeting
respectively as per guidelines of the Government of India.

All the Non-Executive Directors are also reimbursed the expenses
incurred by them towards conveyance, traveling, halting etc., for
attending the meetings in addition to sitting fees as mentioned above.
All matters relating to remuneration of Non-Executive Directors were
governed by the provisions contained in the Nationalized Banks
(Management & Miscellaneous Provisions) Scheme, 1970.

The details of remuneration paid to related parties for the year
2009-10 are given in Schedule - 18 “NOTES FORMING PART OF
THE ACCOUNTS” of the annual report for 2009-2010.

6. General Body Meetings

The details of last three Annual General Meetings and last three
Extra Ordinary General Meetings are given below. The Venue
of all meetings was Auditorium, Sir Sorabji Pochkhanawala
Bankers’ Training College, J.V.P.D. Scheme, Vile Parle (West),
Mumbai - 400 056:
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@1 BTRT Details of the Meeting

aRg 3R 9 Date and Time

TREG! ATy A THT 9IfaR, 11 TS, 2009 3TRTE 3.00 Fof
Thirteenth Annual General Meeting® Saturday, 11th July, 2009 at 3.00 p.m.
IREd! T ATHT THT 9If9aTR, 12 ST, 2008 3TRTE 3.00 Fof
Twelfth Annual General Meeting Saturday, 12th July, 2008 at 3.00 p.m.
TIREA! i AT 4T YIHAR, 29 3, 2007 3TURTE 3.00 §
Eleventh Annual General Meeting Friday, 29th June, 2007 at 3.00 p.m.
STATENRUT AT THT (AT IORYRG F2r) JHaR, 9 ATd, 2009 YaTg 11.00 Faf

Extra Ordinary General Meeting (Election of Three Shareholder Directors)

Monday, 9th March, 2009 at 11.00 a.m.

ART B R-Fagd BT

Delisting of Shares from DSE & ASE)

FATERUT AT 4T (A1 YRRYURS QeI &1 g1 Ud SITHs 2T 008 o

Extra Ordinary General Meeting (Election of Three Shareholder Directors &

THAR, 16 ATd, 2006 YAT+E 11.00 TaF
Thursday, 16th March, 2006 at 11.00 a.m.

IR A 9T (it ad st e & foe SreRe! & sgAe)
Extra Ordinary General Meeting (Approval of Shareholders for Second Public Issue)

AR, 25 Fd6%, 2003 370RTE 4.00 §of
Tuesday, 25th November, 2003 at 4.00 p.m.

et aTfties =g T & S €. uet. 319 - 3reTet vd gaer e
ARIR I — HIUTAD 2T, 3T, TRAH TS - TRBR AT S,
A Ig fpeR - R, & T feerms, st v Mueew™ - a9ar
TEIHR Feeid td eraTRien |iHfa & srege, S e, i A,
HRA TRPR B AH eI , BT. HHTLT HAR A — HRA TRBR
& A Fewr®, S oa ot Rie - dR e, &1 daw g,
SRR YR Ha2d, BT, FAId J&l, IRURS Maerd adm 5 Jfed
@1, IRURS e Juferd 3%,

3w A AT dod § BS99 Hoe gxaifad et fadr
T 9.

gl Ader - fUed fad av & SR d6 = fHar e Adem &1
AT 18T foaT.

7.9dc .

7.1 HEAYUl AR a1 3Nfe Hee BT Ude: 31 Wi, 2010 @
AT fore o 7 § 31k 3% et & dra fesit yeR &1 Aeayef
e fEr uer & oi-a, 3N - a1 Hder B IS VA e e
g5, ForaT s 0 I 96 o fedi & A1 HHT ThRI &l

7.2 §% gRT3FUEH 7 foidr ST 1 diferd g wmer yarer # T8
3T & AT AR 1SR / et AT bt 31 Hifaferes oiferesRor gRr
fieel O auf & dRM Yol a3 Hafera foedr o amet 7 9
R BT UBR BT FAMT/ 3TET Tl T T,

7.3 TN fg Jar (@ fcar R e fafam 1992 & fafaw
12 (1) & 3FROT # I = a1 TR $F AB & v 3iaRkd
BT B9 3TTeROT A e &1 Sra~ad (odT & a2 b df gfayfar
F siidRe AR T BT B oL HURT Tdhed &g drifafer @

FefRa o ©.

7.4 < § GRI IS TaRialt & a1 fosdr T Yaliagal BRRT b W
47 () B IETFRIR, 37T STaT &> ATI-ATY 3FR0T, Y90, 39 fIma,
D AT STAICT IRT o 3TEH & & T H TRIADRT B T
TN & 37aX ISR BT AT I TS B8 e H THIOS T
BT BN, S JHOTH BT STRI 81 & 30 fe & 37Xl v9 € vg v
v § @1 3T foar amar &, 57t $faact o gaes &

* The Last AGM was attended by Shri D. L. Rawal- Chairman &
Managing Director, Shri Bhaskar Sen- Executive Director, Dr.
Tarsem Chand — Government Nominee Director, Shri Chandra
Kishore — RBI Nominee Director, Shri A. Gopalakrishnan — Chartered
Accountant Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee, Shri M.
Surya Naik - Government of India Nominee, Dr. Kamlesh Kumar
Goel - Government of India Nominee, Shri M.G Shinde - Workmen
Director, Dr. Pritam Singh — Shareholder Director, Dr. Sunil Gupta -
Shareholder Director and Shri Rohit Khanna— Shareholder Director.

No special resolutions were put through in the above said Annual
General Meetings.

Postal Ballot — Bank has not conducted any postal ballot during the
last financial year.

7. Disclosures:

7.1 Disclosure of Material Transactions and Pecuniary
Relationship There have been no significant related party
transactions, pecuniary transactions or relationship between the
Bank and its Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2010 that
may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Bank at large.

7.2 There were no cases of non-compliance by the Bank and no
penalties / strictures were enforced on the bank by Stock Exchange/
SEBI or any other statutory authority on any matter related to the
capital markets during the last three years.

7.3 Pursuant to Regulation 12(1) of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 1992 as amended, the Bank has implemented
a Code of Internal Procedure and conducts for prevention of insider
trading and also laid down the procedure for Corporate Disclosures
for prevention of insider trading in the securities of the Bank.

7.4 As required under Clause 47 (c) of the listing agreements
entered into by Dena Bank with stock exchanges, a certificate is
obtained every six months from a practicing Company Secretary,
with regard to inter alia, effecting transfer, transmission, sub-division,
consolidation, renewal and exchange of equity shares within one
month of the lodgment. The certificate is forwarded to BSE and NSE,
where the equity shares are listed, within 30 days of issuance.
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7.5 ST & IR TT SITUSANY THITSCICNN A3SITR-16
feaies 31 feder, 2002 & SFER, 37T AT & ATI-ATY &1 § B
o ffa / gaar $faract dan & Ay wifas wu § T femfse
& U @ TR G SfFact IR YN BT FHRIGH B & 3qeTT
J DEgS S Gtad @ B gRT fomEr areR ) atadra
CRATIRIET @ T 8. 39 Gaer § SR GH0 &.09.8 U U.0a.8

7.5 In terms of SEBI's circular No. D&CC/FITTC/CIR-16 dated
31st December, 2002 a Secretarial Audit is conducted on a
quarterly basis by a firm of practicing company secretary, for the
purpose of, inter alia, reconciliation of total admitted equity share
capital with the depositories and in the physical form with the total
issued/ paid up equity capital of Dena Bank. Certificate issued in
this behalf are forwarded to BSE and NSE, where the equity shares

@ 3ifya fovam ST & et § & $faact IR qaes .

7.6 3% gRISFUEH Y 1§ R-31farf siramstt ot ok g €

7.6 The Clause of Non-mandatory requirements complied by the Bank is as follows:

of the Bank are listed.

o T
Sl. No.

319

Requirement

Compliance

1.

B & a5 W AT D B HT BAG Af a9 1 D
& ¥ H [1gh foa 11 e 2, 3agad ATt ud 3FHa &l
& S ST & e 3wdnT @nil q@r S, Bur @ ghe |, Tl
w7 feerd o 2Fad J ot ®F gHTar & F I o #
3 e S &

Independent Directors may have a tenure not exceeding,
in the aggregate, a period of nine years, on the Board of a
Company. The Company may ensure that the person who is
being appointed as an independent director has the requisite
qualifications and experience, which would be of use to the
Company and which, in the opinion of the Company, would
enable him to contribute effectively to the Company in his
capacity as an independent director.

¥ & 918 R Wd7 et &1 dride A auf I ifEd T8l
2. R Red 96 & feqid 1 Fdex, 2007 & feenftreen &
3I9R, 96 & a8 B AP AHIT GRT AT B9 Fyfad Fefa
1 freriRor fosar T 2, 39 UBR 18 & I3 Wad 4 e 9e I
T4 3T €.

The tenure of Independent Directors on the Board of the Bank
is not exceeding in the aggregate, a period of nine years. As
per Reserve Bank of India Guidelines dated 1st November,
2007, Fit and proper status was determined by the Nomination
Committee of the Board of the Bank and thus all the independent
directors on the Board are well qualified and experienced.

a1 PRIUTe® ol & foe FMide aikafis teher o) oA
»r it Aifa HuiRa a7 & fov ve afstys gfufa o
ST BN

The board may set up a remuneration committee to formulate
company’s remuneration policy on specific remuneration
package for Executive Directors.

feiRa fed T 3AR 909 U &= &, qfy, 9RT IWRBR
¥y feenfden & AR SRl smeniRa yieres re
R foaR &= & fore aiRsifies afafa srika 2,

Not applicable, as Executive Directors draw salary as fixed by
the Government of India. However, a Remuneration Committee
is in place to consider Performance Based Incentives in terms
of guidelines received from Government of India.

U o o1t faeiia faaxforat & sorawerm & 3R 3R &

Company may move towards a regime of unqualified financial
statements.

§ ¥ g 3T&TT BT SFUTCH fovar 2.

The Bank has complied with this requirement.

HAddT A A
Whistle Blower Policy

§% & d1E 7 Fadbar Jad AT D T AT BT SFAIEH o &
TSI 3iaie U guTTel 9nf¥er & 1 & 6 v pHary sFifad
HAER, ITE DI &, IRATID 3T FTeTeT ENGTETST IT TTROT AT e
& 3CCTET O A H Y AT STU®RT / Jae aif d dot Rure
IR ARATE. 39 A T 3T BHIRT P SIS P g1d P AT 3T
ME, ST P ITAATE,. 33 IRTT & Aedq I §cb T

1 Wi w ¥ g T T .

The Board of the Bank has approved a policy known as
Whistle Blower Policy, under this also a mechanism has
been incorporated as to how an employee can report to the
CVO/ management about unethical behaviour if any, actual
or suspected fraud or violation of conduct or ethics. This
mechanism also provides adequate safeguards against
victimization of employee who avail of this mechanism. This
has appropriately communicated within the Bank by circular.
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8. fortrar ufRore vd S9sor & AeE

S 310 et 3R AT IR BT 36 fedl I ddfera geamsit
I 32 3T G BT HTIIBAT DI AT ST 2.

o & faarer / srdaiie / afie uRkom fFefRa gwa S & 3=
P TITISI W IR hE T & STl 9 b IR UGG ©. 599D
71 8 fermmeY / srgarfies / anfes oo wifaftres smremsit & sr=ea
ST A BRI vaayd / fea e avmey (& umn) |
ATpAd / FaeTiad ¥ gor fe=al § JauRd ¥ yaiina fov od €. §6

gRUMH & 1T SRR enfRaT &7 %990 3R 2R gea d& oF
JeaTs e 3rafd www.denabank.com. TR Hr yef¥fd foor T €. a8 d&
% IR # BrfadH u¥ foafid vd 3= agayef faavor f gelfa
FRATE. I T UG DIRT DI SUERR, ST 3P Tl Tasiait
@1 30 faeiia vd 37 ga SS9 H URgd B & ST,
It gomer iR I sAmHTea™ thg (U 38 &) gRT I
T gOIaCIHd STeT SThRHTM BISieT v R (3513 UHTaTR)
& T 3 3T 41 IR PR &,

yeer faar famet vd fagayor aiffes Raré & amr 2
9. IRGURS & fere o

I v Sad anfvTioad 9 &, fordenT vam srafaa o
H . 1223 UGS & Hedds & AT db B JuTeRIT FYUT ARG
LS

d& & gfact IR, a3 IR TR fafies @vws), oM wis
TR ST 3T $fsar (T7e), § s &

8. Financial Results and Means of Communication

The Bank recognizes the need for keeping its members and
stakeholders informed of the events of their interests.

The Quarterly / Half Yearly / Annual results of the Bank were
submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the Bank
are listed, within the stipulated time frame. Further, the quarterly
results / half-yearly / annual results were also published in Financial
Express / Business Standard in English, Lokmat/ Navshakti in
Marathi (Regional Language) and Navbharat in Hindi as per the
statutory requirement. The Bank also furnished the physical copy of
the annual results to the Shareholders.

The results as well as shareholding pattern and share prices were
also displayed on the website of the Bank i.e. www.denabank.com. It
also displayed official press releases and other important details about
the Bank. As required by SEBI and in the Listing Agreements, Dena
Bank files its financial and other information online through Corpfiling
system in addition to the physical submission to the Stock Exchanges
and on the Electronic Data Information Filing and Retrieval (EDIFAR)
website maintained by National Informatics Centre (NIC).

Management Discussion and Analysis forming part of the Annual
Report.

9. Shareholder information

The Bank is a Scheduled Commercial Bank having its Head Office
at Mumbai. The Bank has its presence all over India with a network
of 1228 branches.

The Equity shares of the Bank are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

b I fpu B ﬁlﬁlﬂ?ﬂ'\’ & The stock scrip codes are as follows:
i TaeisT Stock Exchange $IS Code
3T Alpha ?{ﬁlﬁ_cﬁ Numeric
§Ivas BSE ST §% DENA BANK 532121
TAUEs NSE ST & DENA BANK .

3ATET @Y 2010-11 & fole AFT T TaRial @l afid Garagal Yedb
BT AT B fear T £

% ¥ THT-99T W g9 UF (SR | Td ¢RI 9o & w9 H
3uRad=a a1vs IR a0 &, 3% et fgaxor FeveR &:

Annual Listing fee for next financial year 2010-11 has been paid to
both the stock exchanges.

The Bank has issued Non-Convertible Bonds in the nature of
Promissory Notes (Tier-l and Tier-Il Capital) from time to time. The
relevant details thereof are as under:

ferta o1 faa=or AT (BI BRI H) e ot fafyr gRugaar ot fafyr | snsesnges S
Particulars of the Issue Size (Rs. in Cr) Date of Allotment Date of Maturity ISIN No.

6.20% 1% SIoR- Il qIg(IGe VII) 150 31.03.2004 30.04.2013 INEO77A09021
6.20% Lower Tier-1l Bonds (Series VII)

7.30% T SroR-I1 qig(g@ar Vil 210 31.03.2005 30.04.2014 INEO77A09039
7.30% Lower Tier-Il Bonds (Series VIII)

9.25% = SIoR- Il qIg(IGe 1X) 106 25.03.2008 24.05.2018 INEO77A09062
9.25% Lower Tier-Il Bonds (Series IX)
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ferta o faa=or HET (B9 IS ) e ot fafyr qRudaar o fafyr | snesndes v

Particulars of the Issue Size (Rs. in Cr) Date of Allotment Date of Maturity ISIN No.
11.20% 17 SHaR-1l 978 (IEeT X) 300 30.09.2008 30.04.2019 INEO77A09070
11.20% Lower Tier-Il Bonds (Series X)
9.50% =11 CraR-Il §78 (I=aaT XI) 200 29.01.2009 29.01.2019 INEO77A09088
9.50% Lower Tier-Il Bonds (Series XI)
9.20% 3T EIOR-Il §78 (G |) 300 30.09.2006 30.09.2021 INEO77A09047
9.20% Upper Tier-1l Bonds (Series |)
10.05% SHIATCT 1S (I 1) 125 31.12.2007 U Perpetual INEO77A09054
10.05% Perpetual Bonds (Series |)
9.00% JHIACT &S (e 1) 125 28.05.2009 IHITEl Perpetual INE077A09096
9.00% Perpetual Bonds (Series II)

I | dfg AYH Wid Aot 31T gfsar fafies w e € vd
d& = I Ta=iaT Bl 3T faa a 2010-11 & v a1 Faragar
I[eT T YA B feam &

TR d& & aist oY o1 & oY Rfer Credit Rating position of
the Bonds of our Bank (As on 31.03.09 & 31.03.2010 aﬁ):

All these Bonds are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.
and the Bank has paid the Annual listing fee for next financial year
2010-11 to the Stock Exchange.

Credit Rating position of the Bonds of our Bank (As on 31.03.09
& 31.03.2010):

S S YR LS R I Ratings e Ratings
Types of Bonds Agency 31.03.2009 31.03.2010
= Rl fpfaer cRISIL AA - / Stable AA/ Stable
Lower Tier-Il P CARE CARE AA - CARE AA
ft5a FITCH A+ A+
I CIOR 11 T 3T UISIaS fopfaa cRISIL A/ Stable A+/ Positive
Upper Tier-Il & IPDI PUX CARE CARE A CARE A+
fopa FITCH A (Ind) A (Ind)

9.1 3R BT IBNSIHROT

d& & IRT BT AR TS WY I TGN @ey § fa&ar srar
2. SIRIEAl § b T H, 36 -1 TR B THNSBRT & ¢ THeaeTa
3R eI & T Th dRR oo 2. Jar feenfdel @ wdt &
IR, §6 B IFoRGR 3R TR 3eR0T 3! o 36 & TIRURDT
BT 3IAROT / THRTSIDBROT / JABIISHEBRUT B JIae < 32 &.

eI 31.03.2010 TP §F P 2,06,677 JIRURS I 570 F b &
38,887 YTIRERE 370 IR BTG T H &R0T fobw gL 9 31k 1,67790
SRRER®] = 370 TR S ¥ H ¥ gP 2. e 28,68,23,200 RIRT
7 3 14,68,20,000 TR HRA IRBR GRT SIqGIh 90 H W L E |
99 14,00,03,200 TR ST/ foxira Sl / faRi vRAraT saife
& U & 31R 398 I 276466602 (96.39%) TR FIaCI+db Ya&d H T
1,0356598 (3.61%) IR BRIST Wy H Tqerd &,

9.2 3R 37cR0T Uegifel 31X FHawre! o el o1 faror

8 T a9 oroRuy Ifdas (gfvsan) ursde fafies (3mREvse)
BT S P IR ARV Taic & Y H Hrd Fiar & 31 R / 9708
3RO / UNUT, e YA 3R ave e s v S

9.1 Dematerialisation of Shares

The shares of the Bank are traded compulsorily in dematerialised
mode. The Bank, as an issuer, has entered into agreements
with NSDL and CDSL for dematerialization of shares. In terms
of SEBI guidelines, the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the
Bank is also extending the facility of transfer/ dematerialization /
rematerialisation etc., to shareholders of the Bank.

As on 31.03.2010, the Bank had 2,06,677 shareholders out of
which 38,887 shareholders of the Bank had been holding their
shares in physical form and 1,67,790 shareholders hold shares in
demat mode. Out of 28,68,23,200 shares, 14,68,20,000 shares are
held by Government of India in electronic form and the remaining
14,00,03,200 shares are held by the Public/ Flls/ NRIs etc. out of
which 27,64,66,602 (96.39%) shares are in electronic mode and
1,03,56,598 (3.61%) shares are in physical mode.

9.2 Share Transfer Systems and Redressal of Investor Grievances
The Bank has engaged M/s. Sharepro Services (India) Private

Limited as Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (R & T) of the Bank
and the Share/ Bond transfers / transmission, Dividend / Interest
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AR ISR v 37eRvT Usie & drfera gRT fioe 57rd 8. SR
T4 ¥R 3RT Taie fHawdl & 3RIEl R BRAs B & a8
32 db B BRIUD! ®I ARd AR 30T Farem Irafa &
e I ST & 3R g Afhfa §6 & rort & 3iaxor / gyor anfe

T 3T HTET / FEfeT axell &,

SIRYR® 30 37dR0T fdeieg (hdet BRTsil o H 1R 217 & ATHel
) 3tk forerad afed 3ra B8 yorg § & IFSRGR vd IR 3iaxor
voie & e gd o 95T G6d € 3R 599 Saitd TR e,
fs PS8, 3 I & a9 Tudh B & 7 far T od ® &=
BT .

payments and all other investors’ related matters are attended to
and processed by Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at their office.
The R & T, after processing the requests of investors, put the
same to the In-house Share Transfer Scrutiny Committee of the
Executives of the Bank which approves / recommends the transfer
/ transmission etc. of shares of the Bank.

Shareholders may lodge their transfer deeds (only in case of holding
in physical form) and any other document, including complaints at
the following address of Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the
Bank and also refer correspondence, if any, at the Bank’s Investor
Relations Centre at the address given below.

oo

TR SrRYT AiawreT (3t urgae o
TBM 9. 52 3 56, fafeg 3. - 1354,
SATDFIDT CrlD TaeTisT & UINT,
as - 400 072.

S Tel: 67720300/400/353/385
SelthaT Telefax: 28375646

Unit: Dena Bank, Samhita
Complex, Gala No.-52 to 56,
Bldg. No. 13 A-B, Near Sakinaka
Telephone Exchange,
Andheri-Kurla Road, Sakinaka,
Mumbai - 400 072.

[HCS M/s. Sharepro Services (I) Pvt Ltd

T 8, TE Hrafed, MI2ih Wb dg, Dena Bank, Head Office,
3RT A, ST PURE Hex, H-10,
aier (7d),

T3 - 400 051.

Investor Relation Centre, C-10,
G Block, Bandra-Kurla complex,
Bandra (E),

Mumbai - 400 051.

I Tel: 26545318/19/20
CTN-UhaT Tele-fax: 26545317
’s‘-flﬂ E-Mail: irc@denabank.co.in

HRara giayfd vd fafma a8 (@a) 7 Jadidg dH-al o Jam
a1 & fop Fraeret f Rl & Harvor &g 9 falvre §-7e a1 s
Fivga &, degIR, 96 7 el & R &g we faftre
?f—flﬁ STIS;.E?Linvestorgrievance@denabank.co.in feaa fear €.
URRYRD! I 3R & b 9 f:T 1 oRe & Rrpraai & wwer o
3 giaer & 3w .

9.3 forfa betvsx:

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has advised the
listed companies to designate an exclusive e-mail ID for Redressal
of Investor Complaints. Accordingly, the Bank has provided a
dedicated and exclusive e-mail id investorgrievance @denabank.
co.in for the Grievance Redressal. Shareholders are requested to
avail of this facility in case of any grievance.

9.3 Financial Calendar:

foira af

Financial Year

1 318d, 2009 & 31 9, 2010 db
1st April, 2009 to 31st March, 2010

ol W foaR #&A vd anfen, afe B8 &1, & WRgia a1 & o 98a o dob

Board Meeting for considering the Accounts and recommendation of dividend, if any

27.04.2010 (HITcTdR Tuesday)

Date of Fourteenth Annual General Meeting

T2 §€ 8 Bf AR 09.07.2010 3 to 16.07.2010 AP
Dates of Book Closures 09.07.2010 to 16.07.2010
TERI B T = & 3ifem fafer 10.07.2010

Last date for receipt of proxy form

dicgal ATt AT THT B TRIE 16 s 2010

16th July, 2010

B dob

e < fomfeat & foe IR amRifaa oRommt &1 sifiere § o &g feere #sa

Board Meeting for taking on record the Un-audited results for first 3 quarters

aferd forer & srel el o sifew T
Last week of the succeeding month of the relevant
quarter

Jregal g TR THT T TIeT

Venue of Fourteenth Annual General Meeting

TYNE, TR ARG UrRaTHTaTeT acpe FTeTeror
HETGETeTd, HUR SRYATS & UTR, STarare! arswr,
faeraret (af¥am), 4% - 400 056.

Auditorium, Sir Sorabji Pochkhanawala Bankers'
Training College, Near Cooper Hospital, J.V.P.D.
Scheme, Vile Parle (West), Mumbai - 400 056
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9.4 af 2009-10 & SR vA.0H.§./ &1.09.5. & AreT® | WIS/ 99 T 2RI 31 T AR PrHa
Shares Price and Volume of Shares traded on NSE & BSE during the year 2009-10:

O St shoe

ATFA WIS CTiST (T.09.5.) Heg WP vadst (81.89.8.)
National Stock Exchange (NSE) Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)
rafyr I T. s TR/ I T IS . e/ 9 M
Period High Low R DY AT High Low TR DY AT
Rs. Rs. Total Volume of Rs. Rs. Total Volume of

shares traded shares traded

STQ\FT, April 2009 43.50 32.00 3,24,51,073 43.50 32.05 1,35,39,740

Ilé, May 2009 55.10 36.55 3,98,35,366 55.20 37.00 1,60,28,448

of, June 2009 67.00 49.10 6,57,73,861 64.80 49.70 2,31,12,477

31?*‘IT§, July 2009 57.20 4510 3,95,27,074 57.20 44.90 1,23,62,984

3T, August 2009 57.20 49.00 3,07,57,559 57.00 49.00 95,91,778

ﬁ‘ﬁ@?, September 2009 69.45 50.20 11,19,78,339 69.50 50.20 3,53,20,569

3Hax, October 2009 79.90 58.65 12,38,97,827 80.80 58.85 3,47,87,503

Ad¥R, November 2009 85.60 54.60 19,65,04,057 85.60 54.70 6,23,48,107

ﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁ, December 2009 93.00 77.90 19,26,58,310 93.00 77.85 5,78,23,236

S-FIT:RQF, January 2010 90.45 71.25 9,64,74,140 90.50 71.05 2,59,46,322

Wﬁ, February 2010 82.95 /3.5 5,23,48,474 81.50 73.00 1,19,29,983

j:I'IET, March 2010 87.85 77.00 3,51,20,784 89.00 74.30 78,41,581
¥ & SR At Highest during the year Rs.93.00 Rs.93.00
¥ & SR ~I-dH Lowest during the year Rs.32.00 Rs.32.05

9.5 faie 31 AT, 2010 B JTREMRAT BT I 9.5 Shareholding Pattern as on 31st March, 2010:

31 ATd, 2010 P TG I &G 9P DI YRR BT WGwy 7 The shareholding pattern of the Bank as on 31st March, 2010 is

UHR & as follows:
%. 9. Soft R AR DY F=T ARURAT BT %
Sl. No. Category No. of Shares held % of Shareholding
1 HRI IXDHR Government of India 14,68,20,000 51.19
2 § v fadra W= Banks & Financial Institutions 99,355 0.03
3 I3 U8 / 91.9.¢ Mutual Funds/ UT 32,20,851 1.12
4 T YT Insurance Companies 1,96,33,270 6.85
5 T FFifaa Bodies Corporate 1,42,80,331 4.98
6 3. f.49T. NRI/ 3T, OCBs 23,00,794 0.80
7 ot @t feég sifawes oRar / =3 anfe 5,66,74,447 19.76
Resident Individuals/ HUF/ Trust, etc.
8 el IImTId f991® Foreign Institutional Investors 4,37,94,152 15.27
$He TOTAL 28,68,23,200 100.00

9.6 (®) famie 31.03.10 B Yacia 3R Yo THg o Hvi & Haftra safpal 3 SrarenRar yaf¥ia #3= arar faazor

(A) Statement showing shareholding of persons belonging to the category "Promoter and Promoter Group as on 31.03.2010

%. 9. IRURS BT AR e IR Y T FEARATHT %
SI. No. Name of Shareholder Number of Shares held % of total holding
1 HRA & wg'cri%r President of India 146820000 oil:19
e TOTAL 146820000 51.19
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(@) 1% 31.03.2010 B IRT B FoT HEAT S T Ufererad | 31fes roRenar 3R 'sar 3 Siof 3 Hafta afeal of SrorenRar gafia

B) Statement showing shareholding of persons belonging to the category "Public" and holding more than 1% of the total number of

shares as on 31.03.2010

®. |R IR DY A0 IR DI EET | AR o A TSNS
. |Category of the Shareholders Number of gferera & ®UH IR
S. Shares held Shares as percentage
No. of total no. of shares
1 | 9RArT T AT 9 Life Insurance Corporation of India 19449503 6.78
2 IHITSTAT YIS, UeTdl Acacia Partners, LP 8400000 2.93
3 |fafeyy werae wrdses miRers a1, fa. Citigroup Global Markets Mauritius Pyt. Ltd. 7405519 258
4 |3NURIHR ST B W TIBR eATH T BT B 7000000 2.44
Oppenheimer Funds, Inc. Oppenheimer International Small Company Fund
5 | srier gReceMe aIcR. Tl Acacia Institutional Partners, LP 3120000 1.09
% Total 45375022 15.82
9.7 faAie 31 7T, 2010 P roReENRar &1 fe=or Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2010
faa=or (IR Y =) IRYRS Shareholders SIORENRar Shareholding
Description (No. of Shares) TET Number FADT% H&IT Number FADT%
% to total % to total
Upto 500 ddb 1,91,695 92.75 3,15,94,288 11.01
501-1000 9,101 4.40 76,01,104 2.65
1001-2000 3,177 1.54 49,33,225 1.72
2001-3000 993 0.48 25,54,786 0.89
3001-4000 359 0.17 12,85,986 0.45
4001-5000 366 0.18 17,37,971 0.61
5001-10000 498 0.24 37,06,393 1.29
Above 10000 ¥ 31ferH 488 0.24 23,34,09,447 81.38
@ Total 2,06,677 100.00 28,68,23,200 100.00

9.8 v vus Y Wereay o) & IaR-gerd 3 g § 31 §6 & 9oR o1 fersaree frrergaR geifa @

Performance of Dena Bank Share in comparison with the movement of S & P CNX Nifty is shown here below:
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9.9. IR IR & feTe Yo Shareholders information:

o 1 Fr=feiRad aut & fore amarer e fBaT The Bank had declared Dividend for the following years:

B4 af AT (%) HA. af ATHIE (%)
SI.No. Year Dividend (%) SI.No. Year Dividend (%)

1 1996-1997 12% 7 2002-2003 Nil

2 1997-1998 15% 8 2003-2004 Nil

3 1998-1999 16% 9 2004-2005 Nil

4 1999-2000 6% 10 2005-2006 Nil

) 2000-2001 Nil 11 2006-2007 8%

6 2001-2002 Nil 12 2007-2008 10%

13 2008-2009 12%

HRA WRBR - 30 AR & 16 3TaIeR, 2006 & GRI
ST FHrOT (JUTHHT BT SR va 3faRon) iferfm 1970 @1 g
renféra fosar & 31k femias 16 staaR, 2006 3 dfdsT wroT (Fugsal
P AWET U 37qRon) qorr faxira s fafér (Ferem) sifetam
2006 T AT B 7 fear &,

39T I SMUTTIH B GRT 10 @) (2) TF (3) B AR, 9 o
39 w5 TR 8 3 qd fo=r A areter &1 qut 4 siiferds
FY Oy foaT €, 3 16 3RHaR, 2006 | AN T & IR™
8 & 6 AN P IR " §F BT 31ET ATHI TraT (@9)" AHD
TR @I 7 376 ATHIRT BT 3TARUT HRAT 8. I -1 IuGTH 3Uam
&7 UTeH X foram & 3R 81 @l § UST g S1eTaTdsd eTHieT ol 1T
DT 37eT ATHIT Wi H 3dRa B fear &

degaR, for YaRgR®T & af 1999-2000 3R ¥ 2006-2008 &
fore emuter uTe SEY g3 & 9 puan e & foe §6 & owe
T g AT AR IR U1, A (3fsam) utsde fa. & awd o)
Thd . 9 7 9§ 2000-2001 F 2005-2006 b &b T8 BIS Y AT
ofyd et fmar &

9.10 ST&T W U §.37. UH. Gfaet 3uaer & aat (Haerdt @ A
Sl RN JaT & "redd ¥ aier faaRd &= & o
SIS GRT IRd 96 @il & [aRol &7 I9ANT B &g el =
3 9 diag st & foe sifvard &= fear €. o § e
gfgem uaer 7 8- o Rfa # yrram foad w faerdt o amarer
foeror & foe d @ & faaxor giea am.

9.11 BTSN T # IR & 16T IIRYRS foree dab 3iferaer faxor
| & arftreer faavor # gU aRad= & s T& dxEn T @ 9 gt
T ARC & NS Jdd FHAIBRUT | T o foe 3= 3T &
H g fovar e,

9.12 HUdT I8 &= ¢ b f5 IR aRepl & 2oR BTt w0 7 &
I 3 da srfereer faexor sk ua # ge uRad=, af &g & o,
IRRYRDT B JTHG BT 3T B B felv db & Hawe Jwudh
&g a1 AR AR . |fdw (@feam uigae fafics, ga8 @ a9
Tadd &, U AIRERS (51! IR enfReT Se (3oaei+d) w0 § &
3 do WAt & faaRoT, AIRURS 317 & I BT e w0 I 35T
FIH & fore e femfae gewnh ¥ Twd o

The Government of India vide its notification dated October 16,
2006 has further amended the Banking Companies (Acquisitions
& Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970/ 1980, and enacted the new
law called the Banking Companies (Acquisitions and Transfer of
Undertakings) and Financial Institutions Laws (Amendment) Act,
2006 w.e.f. 16th October, 2006.

As per Section 10(B) (2) & (3) of the aforesaid Act, the Bank
has to transfer the whole or part of any dividend declared before
the commencement of the above said Act, unpaid dividend to a
special account called “Unpaid Dividend Account of Dena Bank
(year)” within six months from the commencement of the Act. i.e.
16th October, 2006. Bank has complied with the above requirement
and transferred the same to “Unpaid Dividend Account".

Accordingly, the shareholders who have not received the dividend
for upto year 1999-2000 and year 2006-2009 may please contact
Investor Relations Centre of the Bank or M/s. Sharepro Services
(India) Private Limited for assistance. Bank had not declared any
dividend during the years 2000-2001 to 2005-06.

9.10 SEBI has made it mandatory for all listed companies to use the
Bank account details furnished by the Depositories for distributing
dividends through National Electronic Clearing Service (NECS)
to the investors where NECS facility is available. In the absence
of NECS facility the Bank shall print the Bank Account detalils, if
available, on payment instrument for distribution of dividends to the
investors.

9.11 The shareholders having physical shares, who have not
provided the Bank Mandate details/ change in Bank Mandate
details may furnish the same to avoid fraudulent encashment of the
dividend warrants.

9.12 It may please be noted that the shareholders who are holding
the shares in physical form may send their Bank Mandate details
and change in address, if any, to the Investor Relations Centre of
the Bank or M/s. Sharepro Services (India) Private Limited, Mumbai
for updating record of the shareholders. The shareholders who are
holding the shares in demat (electronic) form may approach their
Depository Participant for necessary updating of the particulars of
Bank account, address of shareholder etc.
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10. 3TE8T Ud gael e gie, SRIUes fHeie a2 7el g sih
(@) ERT YA

fcers dea

& i,

jiEH]

&1 UEgRT 31 1T, 2010 & I foxirar af & fore fawir faazom

qAT FeheT YaTe fTaRoT &Y THIeT T 31T FaTdd sTHbRI J fagarg
P STIR W JAIOTT BT & b -

i, = foRon § Hifas w0 3 1S med fgaxer T8t & srear w9
BIg Hifdd TeT gew 78 T & 3reraT 3 UN g faRor T8t
g 3 TR &R B,

i. I foaRor vl AT 9% & BW B9 D T Tl I WE© Bid
URd A &, 9 & I d& & faxira aRomr 7 ye foe me
yatad craid AT, garsa faférar  fafaet & soas &
3T €.

iil.  EHRI FaTTH THBRI g a9 & 3R, a¥ 2009-2010 & GRM
& gRT U IS o3 T oA AT ST ey, srde 3remar 6
P AR A& BT IeeTE BRaTer a7 B Farr 39 forar
Raré e Heel / wRar Raid §6 o1 e 18 2

iv. B9 3fdRe TEFun 1 wfud & v 3TdhT I T Bl
T WIPR IR €. 8 ab df 3MdRD (=0T JUTetr B
YHTATHTHT BT Hedd 1hdT & Bd g TR FHi=0T JuTTell
P TR g TR & TaT8d 37 Hiadl (o= 89 37d 8, &
IR T oI WRIETh! g eraT URIeT [fHfa ol gar far & aen gu
3 BT BT IR & foTe 3ferd ded o ©.

1. @9 B AR AR [FRI0T JUTell § Pl Ae@yqul gRad
Tel gE E;

2. 399 & AR oEied Afadl § BIs Ae@qul aRad
et ge & faara 39 foe d0 & faxiiar ofkommt # yae
o fear man &;

3. TRue dsa / wRaa Rad d o1 o 18 {Rad &

[a¥ (d Q

BIS®HR, Yae 3reaT fonelt HHaRT foraest weeayof

d% of 3aRa o gomet 7 2, & 0% fod wecayof
BO-PUC & DIy AERVT Ta1 I & Torasy wd e ferar
B 31aTT e & M E. 579 B IS SNATere! IR g% &
ar Aefa HHaRT & faog 3Tawad SRS dRa%s

o TS 2. dfaey ¥ g9 HaRoT daeit mavas U 9

fRR T fersm R &
(TF.3p.514) (T.3p.) (E1.TeT.319)
HET UGeIdh (CRdT)  BRIUd M9l 37eUeT vd gae feers
feaf®: 27.04.2010 W= g&%

10. CERTIFICATION BY CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR,
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND GENERAL MANAGER (ACCOUNTS)

The Board of Directors

Dena Bank,
Mumbai

We hereby certify that for the financial year, ending 31st March, 2010
on the basis of the review of the financial statements and the cash
flow statement and to the best of our knowledge and belief that :-

i These statement do not contain any materially untrue
statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

i. These statements together present a true and fair view of the
Bank’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting
standards, applicable laws and regulations, as disclosed in
the financial results of the Bank.

iii. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no
transactions entered into by the Bank during the year 2009-10
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Bank’s code of
conduct, except as reported to Board / RBI.

iv. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining
internal controls. We have evaluated the effectiveness of the
internal control systems of the bank and we have disclosed to
the auditors and the Audit Committee, those deficiencies, of
which we are aware, in the design or operation of the internal
control systems and that we have taken the required steps to
rectify these deficiencies.

v.  We further certify that :

1. there have been no significant changes in internal
control system during the year;

2. there have been no significant changes in accounting
policies during this year, except as disclosed in the
financial results of the Bank;

3. there have been no instances of significant fraud of
which we have become aware and the involvement
therein, of the management or an employee having a
significant role in the Bank’s internal control system
except as reported to Board / RBI. Whenever any frauds
were detected necessary disciplinary action was taken
against the concerned employee. Further necessary
preventive measures are also being taken on ongoing

basis.
(S. K. Jain) (A. K. Dutt) (D. L. Rawal)
General Manager Executive Director Chairman &
(Accounts) Managing Director

Date: 27.04.2010 Place: Mumbai
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PIURE TR R a1 U1 &Tdh! &T JH10T o
Jar ¥,
IBESIEREG]
1 o,

T BIATd, ST HIUIRE IJex,
H-10, "SI TP, TET-Pell PrIcIad,
aiaT (qd), §&% - 400 051,

ST §6 GRT -I9Md i Tad ol 3T $isar [, (T7ee), ot Tidb
TTdS (SI¥s) & I U M0 JAaEd IRR (AT FHT W AT
3MeNTer) & s 49 # 7y [HeiiRa 31 Ard, 2010 & FAE a¥ & forw
ST 3 GRT HURC SRR B 20! & SFUEH D & 3i1d D 8.

HURET HTHAR DI 2! & AT BT allded Jae BT & 87
ST HRATs, PURE AT DI el BT S FHRad d
P o0 S gRT AR S Srfater 3R SrataaT HRT db AHT
ot g 7 dr oraTRier € 3R 7 & §% & faxira faexoit w) dae o
1fireafcs 2.

&9 gAIId o & o gAY I § 3R ARy gaftm TR 3R
FH Uad WRIGRUT & AR TR 96 = 0fTh Faraear R
& 39g 3fcailRaa @ 49 # gar eaiRa suRe stiem o ot
&I IUICH [T €. 519 dd 9 9Rd TR / HRArg Ratd 3@ gRT
SR feemfaden & sriva T8t 2.

&1 I BT IR & b § & IFoRgR v 3iavor sifiasdl gRT arem
TV § & MIeId & Faterd i 97 Fdrad vh A8 I 31ies
T & fore cifad et o

ZH T A e ITEd & b U STUTe 7 a1 3 @ HIdT agriar
& B0 H AR 2 3R T & 39 BRI 3R gHETcHGdr @,
5 yae aif 7 9 &b BHEBIST BT T [haT.

Auditors’ Certificate on Corporate Governance

To

The Board of Directors

Dena Bank,

Head office, Dena Corporate Centre,
C-10, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051.

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate
Governance by Dena Bank for the year ended 31st March, 2010,
as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements (as modified
from time to time) entered into with National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE).

The compliance of the conditions of corporate governance is the
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to
the procedures and implementation there of, in terms of aforesaid
Clause 49. Itis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statement of the Bank.

We certify that, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the Bank has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the
above mentioned Clause 49 of the listing agreements, so far as they
are not inconsistent with the guidelines issued by the Government
of India/ Reserve Bank of India.

We state that no investor grievance is pending for a period
exceeding one month against the Bank as certified by Registrar
and Transfer Agents of the Bank.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as
to the future viability of the Bank nor the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Bank.

Fa H. 3R, . AUS S .
T CRATR

Fa . & T Evs .
T CRATR

U0 3TR.HE&T 00314504 U0.31R.4. 0009333
3Rfde 3leRTT .9

WATeER TR

(=T 5. 090479) (Fe=IaT H. 80958)

Ha 9. bt 1R vos vaifaees Ha . S HteR s &,
e ATETBR KR ARGECIG
Uh.3TR.H.10756458 Ut 3R 1132675
AT U i R |

WATeR AR

(Fe=gT . 39713) (Fe=IT . 14871)
el A, TG UUs |1

TECT TRETBR

U0 3IR.H&IT 1036245

e AU

EAIRII AR fesi: 27.04.2010

(HEEdT 4. 35107)

For M/s. R. K. Deepak & Co
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No. 003145N

Arvind Oberoi
Partner
(M.No. 090479)

For M/s. P Parikh & Associates
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No. 107564W

Sandeep Parikh
Partner
(M.No. 39713)

For M/s. Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
F.R. No. 103624W

Uday Sathaye
Partner
(M.N0.35107)

For M/s. B. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
F.R.No. 000933C

S. Prasad
Partner
(M.No. 80958)

For M/s. Jain Chowdhary & Co.
Chartered Accountants
F.R. No. 113267W

S. C. Jain
Partner
(M.No.14871)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 27.04.2010
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& 31.03.2010 1 HeT ot wfuferal & 1o ot Rufd COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD as on 31.03.2010

3rgaer &t Annexure B
|fafa COMMITTEE 31e7eT CHAIRMAN eI MEMBERS
o It S 21, Ue. J[aeT S U.dp.a< Shri A.K. Dutt

Management Committee

Shri D. L. RAWAL

Eil G IR Shri Chandra Kishore
ST 31TS . TH.37HST Shri . M. Almeida
ST, . B. I Dr. K. K. Goel

st '\Tﬂﬁ T Dr. Sunil Gupta

GRCIRNSIRSIEITS]

Audit Committee

8T griret e

Dr. Sunil Gupta

Y T.85.a Shri AK. Dutt

8. dRI9 < Dr. Tarsem Chand
El ﬂ'cfﬁﬁ%'ﬁ? Shri Chandra Kishore
Y ATed =T Shri Rohit Khanna

RS |fHfT

Remuneration Committee

8f 9| Ia
Dr. Tarsem Chand

1 e {2} Shri Chandra Kishore
81, Yiaw {68 Dr. Pritam Singh

st '\Tﬂﬁ T Dr. Sunil Gupta

IRRYRD! / 9wt &) e fraror gfafa

Shareholders / Investors Grievance Committee

Y Jfed =T

Shri Rohit Khanna

ST U.3p.a Shri AK. Dutt
21. . B. MIA Dr. KK. Goel

Committee Monitoring Large Value Frauds

Shri D. L. Rawal

Tuf~ad SRET geed o afafa Y 8. UA. 1ae ST U85S Shri AK. Dutt
Committee on Integrated Risk Management Shri D. L. Rawal 8. G99 d< Dr. Tarsem Chand

7Y T fNR Shri Chandra Kishore
TS I aTen eneEreatsar of FREY afafa I 81 UeT. aet 2 T.05.a Shri A.K. Dutt

2. 9%YH T Dr. Tarsem Chand
21. . &. MIA Dr. K. K. Goel
Y Jfed @=ET Shri Rohit Khana

Customer Service Committee

Shri D. L. Rawal

QIR 3TAROT ATHT ST ST. e, 1aeT S ©.3p.ad Shri. AK. Dutt
Share Transfer Committee Shri D. L. Rawal 1 3 %a AT Shri Rohit Khanna
TS Jar arafa Y Y. e, 1aeT Y T.3p.a Shri AK. Dutt

ST, aX¥¥ I< Dr. Tarsem Chand
Y g MR Shri Chandra Kishore
ST 31TS . TH.31GHET Shri |.M. Almeida
&7, Wy g Dr. Pritam Singh

Compliance Committee

Dr. Sunil Gupta

BERIFIBIREIRSIEITE 4 &1, uel. 1ae A1 .05, Shri AK. Dutt

Information Technology Committee Shri D. L. Rawal &7, uraq g Dr. Pritam Singh
ST J4TEd =T Shri Rohit Khanna

CEIGERSIEIR] . e e A T.%. T Shri AK. Dutt

ST. a¥¥ I< Dr. Tarsem Chand
&Y. gIIe T[T Dr. Sunil Gupta

iR AHTd

Nomination Committee

8 9| Ia
Dr. Tarsem Chand

Ei) G 21X Shri Chandra Kishore
ST 31TS.TH.37HST Shri |.M. Almeida
ST, P. B. I Dr. K.K. Goel
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freere! & fda=or DIRECTORS' PROFILE

2 .U e 7 <1 § b b 37eTeT vd uay 9 BT diHR
1 3TaRT, 2009 T TET fhar,

A a0 BT BRI Uo7 FeFa 96 F 3Ry gan. Reer dfesm
e By 310 & foe Fom smenRa 3uR ugfa sy &= #
dufat & gaer e den feers & o ¥ Fda gerd faear

A 19 7 AR Red 9% gr1 ~geh e wwr 36 &
ITUERUT g & AfHfd & FexT, 0 2 dRg ddb &5 N
R T &R o el & foe aRda §& J grT s
Jihfa & e, TR ASHR a1 TRIST INIe= HATT gIRT
R 2Ry RISt BT & K0T Y& T & [ole Hried &
Tt P Te, vRa Red 9, et g1 nfsa va.eq.s.
W SUGERYTE |l & Jewr aer af 2008-09 & T Hiy
PRITR ToIT TR THGH UR 3775910, B GHATd b Fad &b
T o 31U FAaTU YSH D

I8 P & BT K0T YdTg W 1S 910, 3 37 il & G
& 3R URATT § T = 3P GREDIT - UF BT TSR B [T
2

IAHE § 98 WRA ot arar e & e dsa § fHeure

2 3R foxira Twaee W) afiia & Tesg 91 2.

S aet fast 7 3=t & Ty Haw § 3R 3fEem $Reee
31T Shd b AEHIZS IRATNIC (J.U.3TE.3MS 1) €.

s e.&.30 & FRIUES Mewd & vu § g 1 A1, 2010
Bl g5, &1 §p H AARH I Ugel A1 &<l -1 1978 U SeTgrare b
H 37T JaT 3TRY @ oY 3R a1 H &7 AeE e, HIABIT B
72 W Feh gE. SARIaIE 8% # 31U BRIGIT &b AR 41 &
Pl Teme, fafi & o siad Sraferdl a1 g faHmT
H UERY T,

S & $.ea.A. fofes # feere 9or §6% aere, Pradar &
e Ifaa 9 32

At & fagm § FadR 3ufer ura 31k gfgaw gRece 3w
dod & afcwEs e (@esms.smsar) € 3= .
ar.e. feult e SR smferde # fewrmr Ay fear 2. s
T J HAT It A6 Hsrite, Aave gfqaiier, guae
T Bfesr gl g&. & TR Wpa gRT fad
e SaeUHT Bk HURC Taied U Ui¥reror i ura

fear &

3. A9 I 9 & fRUE Hsd ¥ YR WRIR B
gfafafera s=a & ada= & |, 3 foxira o fgum, ara
IRER, 78 feeet # 39 Afaa €. 3 fasm § SdeR €. 376
U Yiea 8t vd vava.ar. fsfiar off &

1.

Mr. D. L. Rawal took charge of Dena Bank as Chairman &
Managing Director on 1st January, 2009.

Mr. Rawal's career began from Punjab National Bank.
He was instrumental in introducing Rule-Based Lending
System for Retail Banking and Agricultural Advances. He
has also headed host of subsidiaries of Punjab National
Bank in his capacity as Managing Director and Director.

Mr. Rawal has served as member in Committee of
Empowered Group on Regional Rural Banks appointed
by RBI, Committee appointed by IBA for deregulation of
interest rates on loans upto Rs, 2 lakhs, Task Force to
provide Micro-Credit to the Urban Poor set up in the Ministry
of Urban Employment & Poverty Alleviation, Committee
on Retail, Agriculture & SSI Advances constituted by IBA,
Empowered Committee on SMEs constituted by RBI,
Delhi and IBA Committee on Agro Business & Financial
Inclusion for the year 2008-09.

He was Convener in IBA Sub-Committee on Flow of Credit
to Agriculture Sector and his approach paper has been
accepted by IBA.

Presently he is on the Board of LIC as Director and also a
member of Committee on Financial Inclusion.

Mr. Rawal is a graduate in Science with Hons. and Certified
Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers (CAIIB).

Mr. A. K. Dutt was appointed as Executive Director on
1st March, 2010. Prior to joining the Bank, Mr. Dutt
was working at Allahabad Bank since 1978 in various
capacities. During his time with Allahabad Bank, Shri Dutt
was posted in Personnel Administration, Corporate Office,
various Regional and Zonal Offices and General Manager,
Credit Dept., Head Office.

Mr. Dutt was a Director on EMC Ltd. and Hon. Secretary of
Banker’s Club, Kolkata.

Mr. Dutt is a Post graduate in Science (Gold Medalist) and
a Certified Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers (CAIIB).
He also holds MBA Degree and Diploma in Computer
Applications. Mr. Dutt has attended Training on Leadership
Development for Corporate Excellence organized by
Kellog School of Management, Nortwestern University,
USA and Summer School at Cambridge University, U.K.

Dr. Tarsem Chand represents Government of India on
the Board of Directors of the Bank. He is presently Deputy
Secretary, Department of Financial Services, Government
of India, New Delhi. He has Post Graduate degree in
Science. He also holds a Ph.D and LL.B. degree.
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glde = ST 3TN, WM JRRdbR0T HAE a2l g% HaR
o & o BRI fohar 8. 370 YRT TReR d HIiHG Jae T,
foira FoeiaeT ve uRRkars qeaias &t & ot 3gva 2.

i g% fFeR, HRAT Re1d 6 & Jar-iga &I FeMead,
TR Red d6 o wiRer ) 9Rd RSR gRT fees &
20 T T BT T €. I/ et § TP IR (ST T Uet.uet.
ar. fEl o @ €. 9 gag fovafaoay & va.w. (Fpd)
gfeam Recye 3 dad & Aicwgs AT (J.0.3TS.
CIEICIDR: NS

A THeiR & oy Sfdsm 3aT &1 40 9 & A A4S &7 3gHa
& 3R a7 IRdg Roid §6 & Bara a8 oF orar uRieT |t
$ e Ifad 3. IR Rotd d6 & 310+ Aarhiet &b R 9
1ot aex & faf¥e It & 91 | &, 98 Uate vd e §6 &
e gsat & feee O =

At 371 vH. NS IRBR gRT AHHT JHTUHRT iR Feee
& w9 # Frgep fohd T

IIVTST® 2T | TR A 3778 UH 31eTHasT 1976 H 8 o
s g iR sitenfie foa e, e axgett e 9 3feR
ST FHIE H B Y # 3T @dT 3gHd & aduH §, 9
IRae wRAT &7 § fERT T, gag gfe & wer afua &
3R 3ifaet HRAT &1 § USRI AERIT &b I HeT Afera &
T 31EeT ARATT § SITIBERT BIHSH & 30 HeT Arad o &
3R aREe YRATT T TIET d6 STUBRT FERY & HYTH HeT
KIECES

R Feed & o0 # Tifira fear mar 2. 8f. dwerer AR
e, AEdE!., UHALE, TALEE., vavadl., $Reege 3
TS FBECCH 3N Ffear & HBar AR qur Reeyge 36
HUT AepekisT 3T sfear & e Jar €. 376 U 36 a9
3 4T 37T BT AT THT 8. 1996 I 2000 AP 9P 3HTH
sfear & 129 & ©u ¥ SRIGT & SR 98 uded afifd &
TSI TAT O] URTeTT Aiafd P 3reder o X, & 378 0B .31, =
3% RR @fean) fafies & foo feers fges fear &

TE 3D NI / TR I / SfR & genr ot <2 3iix
fafire fawdi & 3md ol 9 Y S 2. I §isan gexeHd
JRX & I &,

w=sht . i Rig vs SroReRss fees €. 81 arftrsas
o # FADITR §, 3 gfearr gfafder , goar e
are. 3R gdes § QT . g @ &

&1 i ydem famrT e (o 8§ 31%), TETia | yeeH o &
3R I T & @HT 70 TRIHT & T Hed b G T B

4,

Dr. Chand has worked with Planning Commission,
Ministry of Food Processing Industries and Department
of Telecommunications. He has a vast experience in
Government of India in Personnel Management, Finance
Control and Project Appraisal Areas.

Mr. Chandra Kishore, a retired Chief General Manager
from Reserve Bank of India, is nominated as Director by
Government of India, on the recommendation of Reserve
Bank of India. He has a post graduate degree in Arts and
LL.B. degree. He also holds a M.A. (Sanskrit) degree from
Mumbai University and a Certified Associate of Indian
Institute of Bankers (CAIIB).

Mr. Kishore has more than 40 years experience in the
Banking Industry and he was Member Secretary to Audit
Committee of Central Board of Reserve Bank of India.
During his time with Reserve Bank of India Mr. Kishore was
on the Board of various Private Sector Banks. He was also
a Director on the Board of Punjab & Sind Bank.

Shri l. M. Almeida is appointed as Government nominated
Officer Employee Director.

Post graduate in Commerce, Shri | M Almeida joined the
Bank in 1976. Currently, he is General Secretary of All
India Dena Bank Officers Association, Mumbai Unit and
also General Secretary of All India Dena Bank Officers
Federation. He is also Deputy General Secretary of All India
Bank Officers Confederation and Joint General Secretary
of All India Nationalized Bank Officers Federation.

Dr. Kamlesh Kumar Goel is nominated by Government
of India as a part-time non-official Director. Dr. Kamlesh
Kumar Goel, Ph.D., FCA, ACS, LL.B, is a Fellow Member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and
Associate Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India. He has professional experience of more than 36
years. During his tenure as Director - Bank of India from
1996 to 2000, he was member of Management Committee
and Chairman of the Audit Committee. BIFR has appointed
him as a special Director of Singer (India) Ltd.

He has been a speaker at many national / international
conferences/ seminar etc. and is associated with several
articles on different subjects / topics and is a member of
India International Centre.

Padma Shri Dr. Pritam Singh is a Shareholder Director.
Dr. Singh has post graduate degree in Commerce, M.B.A.
from Indiana University U.S.A. and a Ph.D. in Management.

Dr. Singh a management guru from Management
Development Institute (MDI) Gurgaon, has actively initiated
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T H PHURC AT | A gRacd Ufohar HT Aiaar I o
foram 3R R fepam. 9 7 Shatfores uiaftod g vd 50 STRTE
UIRT & oG . A ¥ D! IHT A3 B AT & FY
ay 2003 H I HRA B IGUTT 7 T TBIHD "T=I5T" [RIBR
J gEta foar. 39! &% 370 IfToias gdee RIBRT I
FaATST T, 3 ¥ B YW RIBR & THPIC 3aTS (1979
Td 2002), IR 37dT8 (1984), IHS AUIDG T 315 315
TH., SR 31ATS (1993), HRAIT Y& IHdll Bl P e eh
3rare (1998), THReT Arp! T@iea 2fe &is 31aTS 2005, TIH
U318 .UH.U. d5del AT 37dTs - Yae forer # sterfvrs .

e ¥, 9 YR Reid de, mrexs, feor Sar, ggdeny, s,
3118 .0H. Bleiide 31fe & e deal # e 2.

. A [T 0P RURS [aed & a8 alvrsa e #
e & 3R " 3dRe ERIeT e favg ) 3=
gidexe fHar .

J UH AMENETd 96 dW@eR ¢ 3R 3mE sy e vd
e Resc R AT ReroRen e i SR PTG I

J TP Alehd TMHITSTd BRI, oD T Il &. 37D a0
J¥Ip! U9 YT FHTAR AT / GHAI3 3 6%g & ¥ H JHIR
g3 ©. 9 3 fea & faval w oRaaisi &g g ree= =
ferg o €. 9 fafye dutaat ve amisie S & Mo
Hger o &,

sht Afed @1 v IRURSG R & S wEr fooon
faeafaarea & ST # 3R Fas ¢ iR gF<aege 3w
TS BISCeH 3MTh S5 & Hall o 8 & T T
TEIBR . UHIfde gaeH, faxia Tod & &3 § 9 faersr
2 3k dfpw fam, fafer vd suRe FrRiGaTT & 396 fagw

foTaT Ud 3 T 2
&9 vd BRIER, eramRrer, wReeferdr, foesh ger faer vd

faeel wedT & &t § 3@y 24 af F 31ferEs B I R T
B UBTUBRA] Uil & e &

and enabled the transformation process in the corporate
world as member of the Board of nearly 70 institutions of the
country. He is author of seven academically reputed books
and over 50 research papers. His distinguished services
were acknowledged by the country when President of
India conferred on him the prestigious “Padma Shri” in the
year 2003. He has also been conferred with many other
prestigious management awards notable among these are
ESCORT Award (1979 & 2002), FORE Award (1984), Best
Motivating Professor IIM Bangalore Award (1993), Best
Director Award of Indian Management Schools (1998),
Mirbis Moscow Global Thought Leader Award 2005, The
First AIMA Kewal Nohria award- Academic Leadership in
Management Education.

Presently he is a Director on the Boards of RBI, Godrej,
Dish TV, Parshwnath, IIM Kozikhod etc.

Dr. Sunil Gupta is a Shareholder Director. He is a
Commerce graduate and has done doctorate on the topic
“Study of Internal Audit System”.

He is a Practicing Chartered Accountant and Fellow
member of ICWA and ASSOCHAM.

He is an active social worker, writer & orator. His works
have been published in the shape of books as well as
articles in leading News Papers/ Magazines. He is also on
the boards of various companies and social organizations.

Shri Rohit Khanna is a Shareholder Director. He is an
honours Graduate in Commerce from Delhi University
and is a Chartered Accountant being a Fellow member of
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. His expertise
lies in the areas of strategy Management, Financial
structuring and special skills and experience in Banking,
Finance, Law and Corporate affairs.

He has more than 24 years of experience in areas of
Finance and Business, Audit, Consultancy, Foreign Direct
Investments and Foreign Collaborations. He is a Director of
several closely held Companies.
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GIOTT-I
RIS TavTaisil & A Gelagal 3 Haeh HIR Y €749 (1) (€ S SR 3reder vd yae fes o 3% 3 siwon

aIyd e ST € 16 96 & Feerd Hed & 9ewdl auT AR Jae- HIHd! 7 Tid Tadai &b A1 JuaGdl B Ja8l TR & TS 49
(1) BN  faffee smaR <ifedr & AR 31 71, 2010 BT A a2 a9 & fTe dagIR 3FuTer df gite #R & 8. 33 AR Hfedl f 3
DI JeNTge W | AT T &

Hd &1 db

e
L34
3 .uel. @
I §a% 3rezieT vd gay s
feqid: 27.04.2010

DECLARATION

Declaration of the Chairman and Managing Director pursuant to Clause 49 () (D) of the Listing agreement with Stock Exchanges.

It is to declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Bank have affirmed their compliance with the Code of
Conduct for the Financial Year Ended on 31st March, 2010 in accordance with Clause 49 (I) (D) of the Listing Agreement entered into with
the Stock Exchanges. The said Code of Conduct has been posted on the Bank’s website.

For Dena Bank

i/

D. L. Rawal
Place : Mumbai Chairman and Managing Director
Date : 27.04.2010
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Basel-Il Disclosures

Disclosures under Pillar 3 in terms of New Capital Adequacy
Framework (Basel Il) of Reserve Bank of India

I.  Scope of application :
a) The framework of disclosures applies to Dena Bank.

Bank has no Subsidiaries.

2] O
-

o
=

Bank does not have any investment in an insurance entity.

Bank is having 20% or more stake in the following domestic

SRR . entities.
HAE. | DU HTAH Taifie &Y Har
SI. No. | Name of Entity Extent of Ownership
1 T IASIEd AT §6 Durg Ranjandgaon Gramin Bank 35.00%
2 é:ﬂ? SIRTdT TTHTOT §b Dena Gujarat Gramin Bank 35.00%

2. it giem

®) d% @ TR | goir # gfFacr gan, Fa=r iy ®or foaa
(3T 1 S 371%) @ fafie ueR @ sRfafaat & Sor 1 e #
O: et STRTera i, | &t sTRfard vd A sniaar
& foae gmaems, 3o SR 11 gt sk o SR 11 gt enfie €

Il. Capital structure :

a) The Tier | capital of the Bank consists of equity capital, Innovative
Perpetual Debt Instruments (IPDI) and various types of reserves.
The tier Il capital consists of Revaluation Reserves, General Loss
Reserve and Provisions on Standard Assets, Upper Tier Il Capital
and Lower Tier Il capital. The terms of unsecured redeemable

3T A AT O B 2t 7 IBR &: debts are as under:
Fea R 11 g5t Upper Tier 2 Capital:
el TR gRueaar o) aRg P9 (5. PRIS W)
Series Interest Rate Date of Maturity Amount (Rs. in crores)
| 9.20% 30.09.2021 300.00
iR g : Lower Tier 2 Capital:
J@e e gRuaadr &Y akig IBH (T. HIIS H)
Series Interest Rate Date of Maturity Amount (Rs. in crores)
VI 6.20% 30.04.2013 150.00
VIl 7.30% 30.04.2014 210.00
IX 9.25% 24.05.2018 106.00
X 11.20% 30.04.2019 300.00
XI 9.50% 29.01.2019 200.00
@) d® o R | 4on = UeR & (T IS H)
b)  The Tier 1 capital of the bank is as under: (Rs. in crores)
T SIAR | 43 Total Tier | Capital 2451.64
3T ¥ Out of which
ged Y3l Paid up capital 286.82
31TS UT 81 37 IPD 250.00
Ui STRI&T BT BIgdx 3MRf&d fférai Reserves Excluding the Revaluation reserve 2106.23
d delfirai Total Deductions 191.41

M) §F B CRR I G DI e IBH D. 1385.05 BRI (SR 11 GTT b F+ae I9H) 7.

c) The Total amount of Tier 2 capital of the bank (net of deduction from tier 2 capital) is Rs.1385.05 crores.

g) I IR 1 g § e a3 e T g foraa &

d) The debt capital instruments eligible for inclusion in Upper Tier Il Capital are
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. P H
Rs. in crores
et IRTAT 3T Total amount outstanding 300.00
IIa 9 & R @E‘I’gf 1TSc Of which raised during the current year S Nil
g3t & B0 # MUHT & fTe o IBH Amount eligible to be reckoned as capital 300.00
g) = SR 1 gET § enfhet a=e o fere e Titor Kot g foraa €
e) Subordinated debt capital instruments eligible for inclusion in Lower Tier Il capital are:
(®. IS H)
(Rs. in crores)
et IRTAT X 3T Total amount outstanding 966.00
JAI aY P AR E\],E'I's‘ Tl'sc Of which raised during the current year Nil
q'\S‘rﬁ P B0 H UHT & o um IH Amount eligible to be reckoned as capital 864.00

) YT G B UM B [T &1 AHI0T dbT H d I ORETRAT & [eTe 3.10.86 FRIS SR 11 Tt F 6T e T &,

f)  For computation of Capital Adequacy, a deduction of Rs.10.86 crores has been made from Tier |l Capital towards bank's stake in the

2 Gramin banks.
B) P U gl 7 enfher &:

g) The total eligible capital comprises of:

(5. IS H)

(Rs. in crore)
SRR | Tier | 2451.64
i Total 3836.69
3. g3i vafear : lll. Capital Adequacy :

®. U1 S TH e e

§b & 0T SNGH Y€ & B F0T SEGH Jee IR Meeid Hsd
GRT 3gAfea ifa # aRwfya ufpansit & saR € 3@ o For
Tfa 7 o1 FRGT gaeq & gl & 3R W &g ShIsaT dr
aRaerTeAs T feer fer wr €. 86 = wor e, Tufeds yaem
oI NGH g & IR § 9 Tfaai daR of . g7 Afqar o ayed
3R OR HI&TT dF ST .

S 3RS BT H 3. 10.00 NG I 37TEIH & FON & [ole IS 0T
S IFET Tomell BT 3UaT A & &. I Fometr yiq uret fafie
SRH BRBI & vhd forg Tab BT H B & & 3R Fafid oo
# wont R Fofa o & mee axar 8. T yomet ot shiaw & 'gaer
vd T fog qermar &

d% @ vF gge T FARET yomet € S dF & won § aRfue
G Fobdi B UTd BT b folT TIR Bl T 2. BraRe drafad
3. 50 G 3R 399 31f¥® P T AP K0T WAt R R gdr
2, &9 Brafad B, 10 oG 3R 39 3186 B, 50 TG deb P K0T
@l R R 3@ & 3R ara 9w @t ) R 3@ € 5
JUTel & GRT ST @ral & Ugd™ B a7 37 R JRa IR &
3UTT B T eI Herd! 8. U IR fooar i @rd & aiferd & o
o gga fed 519 IR 39 W R & /73 g6 & S .

A. Credit Risk management

The credit risk management function of the Bank revolves around
the processes defined by a Board approved policy on credit risk
management. Loan policy of the Bank provides operational level
guidelines to field units based on the principles of credit risk
management. The Bank has also formulated policies on Credit
Rating, Collaterals Management and Risk Mitigation. These
policies are reviewed on annual basis.

The Bank has been using a comprehensive credit risk rating system
for all exposures of over Rs. 10 lacs internally that serves as a
single point indicator of diverse risk factors of counter-party and for
taking credit decisions in a consistent manner. The rating system
indicates ‘entry’ and ‘exit’ points for exposures.

The Bank has a well laid down credit monitoring system designed
to capture early warning signals in its exposures. While Corporate
Office directly monitors all standard exposures of Rs 50 lakh and
above, Regional Offices monitor exposures of Rs 10 lakh and
above up to Rs. 50 lacs and the rest of the accounts are monitored
by the Branches. The system facilitates identification of stressed
accounts early and to trigger prompt corrective action. Once an
account is identified as stressed account, the level of monitoring
is escalated.
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da5 o1 I 3iaRoT guTTett B At R R Fafia vu F avem
FRAT T, 36 T 3 81 (T W &) T3 T ST (TP R IAEH) &
3 & e Ud & &1 faem o @ ¢ 3iR doem Siifam &
UETH & T oY U @far IR o XET §.

eI Heet o Thf~ad Siew yaes afafa (38 3T vq ) FoT
ST yeed & AMal H 3715 3R UF 31 / FHeeid #ed gRT 3rgHITed
fat 3R 3= AR & BraaaT & v 3T TaRIa 70T S Red
gaee dfHfa & B R 9 FEREY <@g,

§h 7D, 5 BRIE 3R 3T 31d B I § SRGH G el b
3T AT & B H R 0T e1=aT R YOIl (F0T FHIET d
[0 3R TH]) IR & 8.

Wipfaear TiieRT grT sifaq fofa o 3 uga wds sifaw
e A & e FrRiues ees ik 339 35 wisiRar
P HNUBRT & 3T 37 arl THI K0T Y=aTal I K0T FHT &
HETH 3 R [ ST & 39 |tita # Sired yeee fawm, o
ufRamer faumT snfe & ufafafer g & s yeR e prafag TR
W AT yaerd 3R 3R 3 iRt B AR F 37 arer T
RATAl BT e OT A gRT & S & for T, greifiasar
&, agen, fafer qem Frreror faum & SRy enfhe g € aife
IRTAT B TER OIS FAeTd Bl S .

T, A15TR SIEH B dRerdT Siad e e

ISR SREH Ud aRedT Si1aH BT YSe Maerd #ed gRT srgHlied
R T gaes il ar fHaer AT & gr@aer & AR db
P Tufad ISP gRT fHar Far &, 37 Sifda 7 iR Shhed
T IReTal Sad ¥ ugaH, A, FREY 3R 39 7 & & o
g1 e mr €. 5 it @ fafie oo 3aret # fafga shfamt
P gR § oo Afed 9o & T fafie sifant & & e fafie
o vd arraRe S & wi €. T & uRada w Fafia v
7 FARET 7@ S

TRTT b BT H ISIHIT H Uhe 3ithd, ad 3nfth 31k fis 31ty
otHer 2. s Siiftha & orf SiRaw gaee dem .ot 9.3, & &
P I SSH I AT IW@T TAT & dlfcp SNEH TS Jomen F

3! T AT Ud GHITIar GHfad of 511 db.

eI d5a, 311, TR, UH. . JT U UeT. 9. 3. 9% & qoIR SEH
gdeF, 39! uftsar, Froms gRT SRy S yae feer et &
BT, 3f¥ad BT T SO S ale I99 SAGT Gae afchansit
& fore fomier 7 5k a7 ghfvaa o=t € i siaRe amcs afear,
FEER / Al R SEH I [qamyuT QImsil BT 3uTes fdar
ST &, 5T @ fem-afdfe @ miafaféat &1 Faer v ga1 aeR
gfRaTerT F AR AHifd gRT & MR IR THIeT B 3 &,

§b P dRear shiew o1 HuRr fatig Taa St # 9 aikgaadn
& YR TR 2T TafHe aReraT uTdl & 3TUR TR TRudadT (=it
P 3iaxTa faereior & Aread & fovar Siar § 3R 39dT yeee 39d
fore freffa faaayot Srmseit & siex fevar ST &

oS 9 c o oo A\

faf¥rer aReTaT arareReT & Srarfa st it AT IR aRe
& e 307 a1 oI Ga1d ST, S®HRVT / Haedr fagersor anfe
frafi siaRTe W fopdr 3 €.
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The Bank is regularly carrying out credit rating migration analysis
at annual intervals. The Bank is also developing framework
for estimating LGD (Loss Given default) and EAD (Exposure At
Default) and also the framework for identifying concentration risk.

The Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC) of the Board
of Directors oversees the functioning of the high level Credit Risk
Management Committee (CRMC), for implementing policies and
other strategies approved by IRMC / Board in matters of credit risk
management.

As an integral part of Risk Management System, the bank has putin
place a well-defined Credit Audit System [Loan Review Mechanism
(LRM)], in respect of all exposures of Rs. 5 crores and above.

All loan proposals falling under the powers of Executive Director
and above are routed through a Credit Committee consisting
of representatives from Risk Management department, Credit
Operations department etc. for independent risk assessment
before taking a final decision by sanctioning authority. Similarly,
at R.O. level, all the loan proposals falling under the powers of the
Regional Manager and above are screened by a Credit Committee
consisting of officers from Credit, Priority Sector, Recovery, Legal
and Inspection functions for ensuring better asset quality.

B. Market Risk and Liquidity Risk Management

The Market Risk and Liquidity Risk are managed by Integrated
Treasury of the Bank in line with the provisions of Board approved
Asset Liability Management Policy and Investment Policy. These
policies provide for identification, measurement, monitoring and
mitigation of Market Risk and Liquidity Risk. These policies provide
for various regulatory and internal limits besides defining the risk
appetite of the Bank including addressing the inherent risk in
various treasury products. Migration of ratings is tracked regularly.

Structurally, the treasury comprises of Front Office, Back Office
and Mid Office. The function of Mid Office is kept independent by
attaching with Risk Management function and ALCO so as to ensure
its independence and effectiveness of Risk Management system.

The Board, IRMC & ALCO are responsible for the market risk
management of the bank, procedures thereof, implementing risk
management guidelines issued by regulator, best risk management
practices followed globally and ensuring that internal parameters,
procedures, practices / policies and risk management prudential
limits are adhered to. Day-to-day activities of treasury are reviewed
by In-house Committee on Investment and Money Market
Operations on daily basis.

Liquidity risk of the Bank is assessed through gap analysis for
maturity mismatch based on residual maturity in different time
buckets as well as various liquidity ratios and management of the
same is done within the prudential limits fixed thereon.

Advanced techniques such as Stress testing, simulation, sensitivity
analysis etc. are conducted on regular intervals to draw the
contingency funding plan under different liquidity scenarios.
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d& = st gaer o a & o foxga aRkares shfam giar
(3. 3TR. TH) Afed GuRHT 3. 3R, TH. =i JT 3Mawad o
TR fear 2. aRares e usem orf &1 gdderr gRkeme
Shfvew afafa grr fear o 2. §6 3w vefaa s 39 e =ses
31T TAT USATE WoRkHe 31T (T UH ©) # ugae & fae 3faa @9
o a3 & ufcpar & &

d% 0T & e # weterd @il BRIGR 37T & SRaH B g=1
TR & feTe G I@dT & dlfcs STIdiail q A= o ekt df U
FUTET g1l & JarT 5T T, §6 & U TH PR & SiraHi
H IS Y F i o AR @1 FeiRa &= a1 6
qHeT UG YT BT 3Mae B & fore feeid Head gRT srgHrted
aRe Yot gafear fHeRor srar ifa (o d ve @) & afe
frame vd sfdfe goi @ & fore qufa: wfaa silew / 43 diea
FIR fova a1 A,

T Y3 qATeTar g & SRR e & (o8 3 = 0T SEH &
o0 Te~eREgss 31T, URamed s & foe afes fsdex s
TAT Y. 3R, T. 3R, B UM & feTe a1eTR ShfEd 2q ¢ e<egss td
ST 3T BT T &.

USt &I Saedddl Hamd ST &, 96 & fohardarn oy
e vd oo Reifaal & sifew sa 8 € d6 & 4o &
TS gt @ S & arfes aRad-eie snfife Rerfoat qer
RI® AT & FHF | Yoil I aadr gHvad o 51 Jb. 39
ufeear # da:

o % o gIHM YT SMITIDBAT TAT

o ufawy # yarfud anfa siftmeer & ura & & faw goi @
STATTHAT BT STHBRI TTeT BT 2.

d& 39T YT STaTAhar b FHIET a7 Y ST 3-5 Ju &
foe wezm TR B AR & MR W AT & 3R 39 arfve
ST H FHIET FRAT ¢ dd THIGT & SMER W 9 R | a1
SRR 1l B g5 §% & e Hed &F 3gAfT ¥ JerT . 36 b
gsT watadr o Rfa @ witer §6 & fHees dea grT fammer
3R W B ST &,

d& o ST wiika TRt (3TR S U) T =g Y37 3agadsd
AT ARATISD Y37t TaTTaT femias 31.03.2010 & AR 4 UBR &:
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C. Operational Risk Management :

Bank has put in place an elaborate Operational Risk Management
Framework with a well-defined ORM Policy and necessary
mechanism to capture required information. The Operational
Risk Management function is overseen by the Operational Risk
Management Committee (ORMC). Bank is also in the process of
developing suitable platform for moving on to advanced approaches
viz. the Standardised Approach and Advanced Measurement
Approach (AMA).

Bank maintains capital to cushion the risk of unexpected losses in
value of exposure, businesses etc. so as to protect the depositors
and general creditors against such unexpected losses. Bank has a
Board approved Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
Policy (ICAAP Policy) to comprehensively evaluate and document
all risks and substantiate appropriate capital allocation so as to
evolve a fully integrated risk/capital model for both regulatory and
economic capital.

For compliance with the New Capital Adequacy Framework, the
Bank has adopted Standardised approach for Credit Risk, Basic
Indicator Approach for Operational Risk and Standardized and
Duration Approach for Market Risk for computing CRAR.

The capital requirement is a function of the regulatory requirements,
the risks arising from bank’s activities mainly due to economic and
market conditions. Capital planning of the bank is to ensure the
adequacy of capital at the times of changing economic conditions,
even at times of economic recession. In this process, the Bank
recognizes:

®  Current capital requirement of the bank; and

®  (Capital requirements to sustain projected asset acquisition in
near future.

The Bank reviews its capital requirements and capital strategy
based on medium range plans for 3-5 years and reviewed annually.
On the basis of the annual review, the bank raises capital in Tier-1
or Tier-2 with the approval of Board of Directors of the Bank. The
Capital Adequacy position of the bank is reviewed by the Board of
the Bank on quarterly basis.

The Bank’s Risk Weighted Assets (RWA), Minimum Capital

Requirement and Actual Capital Adequacy as on 31.03.2010 are
as under:

(i) | =0T siRew & fere gt srawsar (5. BAFH)
Capital requirement for Credit risk (Rs. in crores)
0T SN & ferdr Siam 9fa snfeaai Risk Weight Assets for Credit Risk 25665.88
Q'T\H?{%WT ST Securitisation exposures 0.00
(i) | degH IR Rew & foe gsht smavasar
Capital requirement for Market risk in respect of
15T X SNTEH & e Shiaw wika snfaar Risk Weight Assets for Interest Rate Risk 1110.25
facem g1 s (wavf afea) & foae s wiRa sniaat 62.50
Risk Weight Assets for Foreign Exchange risk (including gold)
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sfract Sy & foe Siifvem aiRa anfaar Risk Weight Assets for Equity Risk 233.98
ISR shiew & foe < AdH q\s?r 3ATaRHAT Minimum Capital Requirement for Market Risk 1406.73
(iii) | R sRaw & fore gsht smawamar
Capital requirement for Operation Risk
& A 39T & ST uRares sied & foe siifes sika s 2073.05
Risk Weight Assets for Operational Risk under Basic indicator approach
(iv) |eT YN vd ¥ 3TR E 3R
Total Capital & CRAR
0T, ISR UF GRaTe SifEd & e =geaw ot snaeadar 2704.30
Minimum Capital Requirement for Credit, Market & Operational Risk
aredfaes ferfa Actual Position 3836.69
UTd TR | g1 Eligible Tier | Capital 2451.64
T TR 11 3T Eligible Tier 1l Capital 1385.05
5T Ut Y37 Total Eligible Capital 3836.69
I 3R U 3TR CRAR 12.77%
3R B U & 301d § IR | Y37 Tier | Capital to RWA 8.16%
3R B&Y U & 31T H TR 11 G3i Tier | Capital to RWA 4.61%

4. 70T SNEH & Gae 3 G 9o
®. 4P DI 01 3NN & TiTHI0T > felw o B N geR 2:

iR foreares snfaar (@ @ v): IR fwres snfa (@9 @ v) 98 =or

1. {2 smafers o1 & Aer # &re 3R/ a1 gered @ fowd 90
& & a1ftres araftr 9o soran W& &,

2. {30 3ieREIoT / b 0T (30 € / A A) T AW H @1

3. W< 3R YR W et & Amer W faer 90 o I st srafyr
& fore e <gar &,

4. JCATETY BT & T qered & fohea a1 39 R 1S & B
A a sifaear e 8,

5. Arofafer Bt & o gerem & fovd a1 39 R 15 U B3
A & foe sifaca wgar &

PIS AT NS/ AT, aTdT FS=as gobram TeT Tdigsd ST / 37TExoT
AR F FRAR 31ftres et & 397 "1frafia @rar arm S 8. o
AT #§ et 4 aRaad @i # I AT WIghd [T/ 3TER0T
IR I FA 8, dfb ge 9 B dRIE BT TR 90 e &
3raftr g oI o Al ST 'Y O W & a7 39 srafyr & fow A
TN T SATST dF IBH B I & Tae ST & T3 1T gafe =1 &
ar ag @ra sfrafhd 7 S & {9 wor gfaer § §6 & <g
fafer @1 =1 fovar s, 6 @1 IR Fwes sniaar @ smr AR
= it # arifesa fesar e &:

IV. General disclosures in respect of Credit Risk :

a. The policy of the Bank for classifying bank’s loan assets is
as under:

NON-PERFORMING ASSETS (NPA): A non-performing asset
(NPA) is a loan or an advance where:

1. interest and/or installment of principal remain overdue for a
period of more than 90 days in respect of a term loan,

2. the account remains ‘out of order’ in respect of an Overdraft/
Cash Credit (OD/CC),

3. the bill remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in the
case of bills purchased and discounted,

4. the instalment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue
for two crop seasons for short duration crops,

5. the instalment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue
for one crop season for long duration crops.

An OD/CC account is treated as 'out of order' if the outstanding
balance remains continuously in excess of the sanctioned limit/
drawing power. In cases where the outstanding balance in the
principal operating account is less than the sanctioned limit/
drawing power, but there are no credits continuously for 90 days
as on the date of Balance Sheet or credits are not enough to cover
the interest debited during the same period, these accounts are
treated as 'out of order'. An amount due to the bank under any
credit facility is ‘overdue’ if it is not paid on the due date fixed by the
bank. Non Performing Assets of the Bank are further classified into
three categories as under:
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39 TG S 3 AT 71T & 51 o6 12 78 a1 3997 & 3rafer ad
T, Y. U 3@ . el & Y U 30 W @At W Y L ard E.
Tfe Yol g@mar AT & Adhe I B ST @ T 39 @I BT 7D
STt § R 3709 Bam S Fdhar 2. T IBR Ifc [l @ Bl
J-Ics! BRUT & U4, WU & U H quiighd o T & dT debeiias!
HROT B FHTLH 84 TR @I BT 39T T SR,

wfere snfear

afe IS @Idr 12 7 & 37af8 db 3T AFG A0 H |1 & ar
39 Hferer 3 o § aiiisd fooar o, @iat & Gae § STat 3uaer
ufrsfar & g gara M & 50 Tfcrerd I &H 81 a 39 @A dr
Tferer & ou H arfiesd fopar sam. f57= 30 A 31k wferer @t &
q: freriRor fomar ST @ 390 e ar gered, S o uga XA A, &
ST BN & 16, TIH AW Hf dRIE F 1 99 B 37314 & a8 aHd
o 3999 fHar S Awar &, gt {6 39 srafer & RM 39T
e Sarvead 3 &

a1+ s

gt snfvaar 3 snfar € f5w d gr a7 siiaRes o aresl o
wrerp! gRT a1 YR Retd do F*rvemor grr arfs feffRa o w8
2. g1+ 3Rt & ATt # 3uetey ufafcr & el ang Jed abrar
/ §% BT <7 A & 10 yfaer & sfes 78 2. gfe ufasfa o
& I A& BN, GAEROT/ goat R faaR &R |4a |raem
3 fovar st anfee.

@, $ A5 v FrfarfEar

T SIREH gdee & Wew@yul &l & foe 96 @ EER
JuRHTTA 0T A1f, R 3UR =TT, 0 o § =, 0T Il i
3R Frawrfa &

o arfeuawRn & fafirg el & fee, fafire ueR & 3eRSdfa 3k
6 U 3R 3T & fere =oT HA.

o  FUTycH B H 3d TaER dIe.

o I & fafim wr & witeiRarl & fae o1 wied o &
faameaR.

® XU YoM @*A ¥ wnfid ddde & - wield ud e,
RG], Feata, TAIgid, XATdsT IR &A1, FRMT 3
.

o X qufRa &=

. o1 SiRew fegia, W1 vd S 31 yonferai T IoR &

0T ST fegia:

> 3G CIaT UEE (T U BH) BF 3aRdadt & STER Here
BT ATHETT AT,

> T TTEdT B 3UGTh T SIS BT T B b 1078 0T
AT 3R AR AEST # A giedIoT 319 3R 2
0T 07T o9 & 3TCT1aT T2 TTED SiTSdhR TTED TR TGHT.
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Sub standard Assets:

A sub-standard asset would be one, which has remained NPA for a
period less than or equal to 12 months. All the recovery measures
are relevant in sub-standard assets also. If the entire overdues are
recovered by way of cash recovery, the account can be upgraded to
standard category immediately. Similarly, if an account is classified
as NPA due to technical reasons, the account shall be upgraded on
clearance of technical reasons.

Doubtful Assets:

An asset would be classified as doubtful if it remained in the sub-
standard category for 12 months. In case of accounts, where
the realizable value of security available is less than 50% of
the balance outstanding / dues, these accounts would also be
classified as Doubtful. Sub-standard and Doubtful accounts, which
are subjected to restructuring/ rescheduling, can be upgraded to
standard category only after a period of one year after the date
when first payment of interest or of principal, whichever is earlier,
falls due, subject to satisfactory performance during the period.

Loss Assets:

A loss asset is one where loss has been identified by the bank
or internal or external auditors or the RBI inspection. In Loss
assets, realizable value of security available is not more than 10%
of balance outstanding/ dues. Since security back up will not be
available, the restructuring/ rehabilitation, if required, should be
considered with utmost care.

b. Strategies and Processes:

The bank has a well defined Loan Policy, Retail Lending Policy,
SME Policy, Loan Recovery Policy and Investment Policy covering
the important areas of credit risk management as under:

° Exposure ceilings to different sectors of the economy, different
types of borrowers and their group and Industry.

° Fair Practice Code in dispensation of credit.

° Discretionary Lending Powers for different levels of authority
of the bank.

° Processes involved in dispensation of credit — pre sanction
inspection, rejection, appraisal, sanction, documentation,
monitoring, and recovery.

° Fixation of pricing.

c. The Credit Risk philosophy, architecture and systems of the
bank are as under:

Credit Risk Philosophy:

>  Profitable deployment of resources in line with Asset Liability
Management (ALM) requirements.

» To aim at a common approach in credit appraisal and
monitoring standards to meet genuine credit needs of existing
clients and to enlarge client base through client acquisition
besides facilitating quick and prompt credit decisions.
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» To set up standard and uniform credit evaluation system
and procedures to monitor portfolio performance and set up
guideposts to augment income from non-fund exposures.

»  Strengthen the credit delivery system and to clearly lay down
the preferred deployment area of credit, keeping in view the
socio-economic obligations, profitability, past experience of
asset impairment and with greater focus on retail banking.

» To address issues of credit concentration and to set up
prudential credit exposure norms.

»  To build and maintain a well diversified portfolio for an orderly
asset growth.

»  Toset up a Credit Risk Management System with parameters
for risk identification, measurement, monitoring and mitigation.

»  To provide for Loan Review Mechanism.
>  Toset up arisk based Loan Pricing Policy.

»  To provide for dissemination of information to enable informed
credit decision-making at all levels and to facilitate proper
training of field staff on credit appraisal and monitoring.

» To provide for adequate delegation of discretionary authority
at all levels.

Architecture and Systems of the Bank:

» A Sub-Committee of Directors has been constituted by
the Board to specifically oversee and co-ordinate Risk
Management functions in the Bank.

»> Credit Risk Management Committee has been set up to
formulate and implement various credit risk strategy including
lending policies and to monitor Bank’s Enterprise-wide Risk
Management function on a regular basis.

»  Formulating of policies on standards for credit proposals,
financial covenants, rating standards and benchmarks.

» Credit Risk Management cells deal with identification,
measurement, monitoring and controlling credit risk within the
prescribed limits.

»  Enforcement and compliance of the risk parameters and
prudential limits set by the Board/regulator etc.

»  Laying down risk assessment systems, developing MIS, and
monitoring quality of loan portfolio, identification of problems,
and correction of deficiencies.

»  Evaluation of Portfolio, conducting comprehensive studies on
economy, industry, test the resilience on the loan portfolio etc.

>  Improving credit delivery system upon full compliance of laid
down norms and guidelines.

d. The Scope and Nature of Risk Reporting and/or Measurement
System:

The Bank has in place a robust credit risk rating system for its credit
exposures. An effective way to mitigate credit risks is to identify
potential risks in a particular asset, maintain a healthy asset quality
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and at the same time impart flexibility in pricing assets to meet the
required risk-return parameters as per the bank's overall strategy
and credit policy.

The bank's robust credit risk rating system is developed in-house
and is designed to assist the bank in determining the Probability of
Default and the severity of default, among its loan assets and thus
allow the bank to build systems and initiate measures to maintain
its asset quality.

e. The Quantitative Disclosures in respect of Credit Risk are as under:

(F.HRIS H)
(Rs. in crores)
F.9. ey smenRa
S. No. sHT + frae
Fund Based
Outstanding + Investment
(i) |Pet o (Frae yraem) 35462.44
Total credit (Net of provision)
(iiy | 310AT BT Himfere faa=or
Geographic Distribution of Advances
> fadsht Overseas 0.00
> aeit Domestic 35462.44
(i) | SReY o BT IMER faezor.
Industry type distribution of domestic exposures
Y= 3R 3@ (BIIeT Afed) MINING & QUARRYING (INCL. Coal) 14.28
ITET Ud 39T IRON & STEEL 1401.06
31T 1qU T4 97q 3916 OTHER METALS & METAL PRODUCTS 108.45
T gf5rafar ALL ENGINEERING 820.49
TS TEAIAT COTTON TEXTILE 408.16
Sl IE3ANT JUTE TEXTILE 2.46
31T IEA3ANT OTHER TEXTILES 695.31
I SUGAR 10.87
T TEA 0.54
W FA1g9 FOOD PROCESSING 315.52
W I (Gl Aied) VEGATABLE OILS (INCL. VANASPATI) 183.52
HNIST U BRTST 341G PAPER & PAPER PRODUCTS 177.37
g8, WIed 3dE RUBBER, PLASTIC & PRODUCTS 262.55
T, 31 I, Ue ud sty foras 975.64
CHEMICALS, DYES, PAINTS & PHARMACEUTICALS of which:
> @& FERTILIZERS 95.34
> UgI-X|rId PETRO-CHEMICALS 412.47
> 3itwered wrfwgfe®deT DRUGS & PHARMACEUTICALS 343.65
e CEMENT 522.63
e} U tex 3dmE LEATHER & LEATHER PRODUCTS 150.00
Y U SIeeRT GEMS & JEWELLERY 604.67
fmfor CONSTRUCTION 155.61
UeIferay, BIIET 301G U9 IRATV] 369 PETROLEUM, COAL PRODUCTS AND NUCLEAR FUELS 22.97
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F.9. ffer smenRa
S. No. ST + fraer
Fund Based
Outstanding + Investment
qTe, T8 Yo Ud UfRaes 3UaRuT VEHICLES, VEHICLES PARTS & TRANSPORT EQUIPMENTS 190.70
HYER VFeddk COMPUTER SOFTWARE 4.50
gi-ramel giqemstt & foe, f5=9 & INFRASTRUCTURE of which: 9206.06
> fagaPOWER 5676.29
> g WOR TELECOMMUNICATIONS 1218.13
> AsTd W ROADS AND PORTS 523.99
> =g gfdeme OTHER INFRASTRUCTURE 1787.65
U900 3.0 NBFCS 2761.75
¢fET TRADING 925.02
U9 v dwTd% BEVERAGE AND TOBACCO 8.27
T Ud dds! 3cE WOOD AND WOOD PRODUCTS 42.80
31T 3T OTHER INDUSTRIES 859.90

forga & 1 feam T et 0T %.5676.29 TS & ST Ioet 0T BT
16.01% & T '3 F-IaTar e I fem T T 5.1787.65
TRIS T 511 P 0T BT 5.04% ©.

7. R-frrees 31fim v fraer s Saa # ude :

Total credit exposure to Power sector is Rs.5676.29 crores which
constituted 16.01% of total credit and to ‘other infrastructure’ is
Rs.1787.65 crore which constituted 5.04% of total credit

f. Disclosure in respect of Non-performing Advances and
Investments:

(P) Wl‘ﬁ.ﬁ.?: (a) Gross NPA
ol Category w PUASH
(Rs. in crores)
34 HIHD Sub-Standard 319.72
HTeTeT - 1 Doubtful - 1 131.75
TTeTer - 2 Doubtful - 2 81.75
TTeTe - 3 Doubtful - 3 40.32
g1 Loss 68.45
%l T.ULLE Total NPA 641.99
(@) fact e.9).u B I 9.427.53 IS 2.
(b) The amount of net NPA is Rs.427.53 crores.
(M e e s A ueR @
(c) The NPA ratios are as under:
® ot AUHT H Adhet TH.UL.T Gross NPAs to Gross Advances - 1.80%
e  fygar 37fImT # f9aeT TH.97.U Net NPAs to Net Advances - 1.21%
(&) PeT .9 H 3R Terd FrayeR
(d) The movement of gross NPAs is as under:
Y. |fqaxor | PSH
SI. No. |Particulars Rs. in crore
(i) ¥ & 3IRY F 3717 A Opening Balance at the beginning of the year 620.77
(i) |ad & SR gf& Addition during the year 629.93
(i) |3 & SR TeT Reduction during the year 608.71
(iv) |a¥ & 3id & sfa AT Closing Balance as at the end of the year (i + i - iii ) 641.99
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(e) The movement of provision for NPA is as under:
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I 9. ferazor IPsH
SI. No. Particulars Rs. in crore
(i) ¥ & IR T 37T A Opening Balance at the beginning of the year 292.25
iy |9 P SR fpE T U@ Provision made during the year 97.79
(i) |9 P SR STeT MU ge M. Write-off made during the year 184.86
(iv) ¥ & SR aos fawe e 31fére uTaem Write-back of excess provisions made during the year 0.00
(v) |3¥ & 3iaH 3fd AT Closing Balance as at the end of the year (i+ii-iii-iv) 205.18
@) R freares el oY aw.11.39 U5 2.
(g) The amount of non-performing investments is Rs.11.39 crores.
®) IR fruores e & fore fooe e graear T &t B 6.11.39 FRIT B,
(h) The amount of provisions held for non-performing investments is Rs.11.39 crores.
(&) Fraet = qrogr & fore et § AR dea sHUPR & -
(i) The movement of provisions for depreciation on investments is as under:
I . ferazor B PsH
SI. No. Particulars Rs. in crores
(i) ¥ &b RY T 37 99 Opening Balance at the beginning of the year 65.24
(i) ¥ & SR fHE T graemT Provision made during the year 26.11
(i) | & SR BT M e WIT Write-off made during the year 0.00
(v) |Tach e ¥ 3iaRd e v/ U U of & Sfaifd e &1 981 4o geiaR it Jeders. 25.44
Depreciation adjusted by reducing book value of Investment under AFS/ HFT category shifted to HTM
(v) |39 & 3id & 8fd AT Closing Balance as at the end of the year (i+ii-iii-iv) 65.91

5. U1 SR : Weslews 3 & S UR Hiam &1 yde :

V. Credit risk: Disclosures
standardised Approach:

for portfolios subject to the

W EeTERE 3T & Fd dob, TRl 0T & & foe g Re1d §&
GRT 3AIET §. 370,38 (Faaeh =T feriRor wverm) SR 1. u.amR.
g, 13RS v 378U, fWhcd Ud 31 A .3RE. df IfET WdR
aar 2. faeeh ol & fav §6 e vos y3r, g8 vd fres @F
IfET WPR Far &.

S 98 PIURE ITRBATSI BT $. 9.3, I fET ot =+ &b e
ST ST & aeT STel Bl 9 e 3ucter & 39T 3udnT shfeq
arelr 3nfat o1 e & forw o= 2.

¥ sslews W & HTAR SIRGH HH PR & d Sirad aika
iRt ffeiad sRg de Siies Sorl 3§ fe srgaR e

Under Standardized Approach, the bank accepts rating of all RBI
recognised ECAls (External Credit Assessment Institution) namely
CARE, CRISIL, Fitch, and ICRA for domestic credit exposures. For
overseas credit exposures the bank accepts rating of Standard and
Poor, Moody’s and Fitch.

The bank encourages large corporate borrowers to solicit ratings
from ECAIl and has used these ratings for calculating risk weighted
assets wherever such ratings are available.

The risk weighted assets after risk mitigation subject to Standardized
Approach (rated and unrated) in the following three major risk
buckets are as under:

(i) T=fer smenfa o1 (B9 FAS H) (i) Fund based exposures: (Rs. in crores)

0T T SR arett snf¥aar
Exposures Risk weighted Assets
100% ¥ HH At below 100% 22347.93 8628.21
100% T & T At 100% 11440.18 11440.18
100% ¥ 318 At more than 100% 1221.57 1731.44
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(ii) = Ffer smenfRa o {5 smmelRa/ sy dime o enfie & (®. I H)
(ii) Non-fund based exposures including undrawn/unutilized limits: (Rs.in Crore)
0T T SRaw arett snfaai
Exposures Risk weighted Assets
100% I BH At below 100% 6501.82 919.44
100% T & TR At 100% 6565.16 1889
100% 3 ATEIH At more than 100% 897.26 681.64

6. 20T ST REH U :

P 30T IURGBATSIT BT Tew M ot (Fier smenfRa va I=-Ffer smenka)
o gRen o fore fafim uaR & afayfoat (= uifeda i o
THET ST AT &) YT BT & AT FemaR o wfafaat @ ag
yrerthies wfsfar & T wuifedds e o S €

1. Id INTar oI i, I AR 3nfe
2. 3ra aniaat Sy JfH, W=, @i v FeeRy
3. & P 3T ST AT

4. TACHH, RO, PO, RART g8, ¥RAT Rad d5
P 78, stta= s e o aifataar snfe

5. IR iy smenRa glaensit w wwe wfs=

6.  <quf 3T
7. SrgANCd IO & IR IR

d& @1 gwiRa gfagfaat & qeaies & fav §& & o gieiRa
aifers &.

T SN g & e 96 -7 39T B9, 9. 3 I 6 W 3fcataa
gfrgfarat @1 3uam fsar 2.

d% & 0T SITEH R & UBR B TRER 39 TOR &

o  fth (BT TREN)

* FruRc

® g WHR

* WX

o SIMMAL

o AMSNUTHIEH

IR . "uiede ufaufear siftrarera: 6 o s smmnt w®
T TRBRI Tfergfarat, st arar o diferet ) ot & fore 3ucrer

g araRen fayfaar IR fafr smenRa giaemstt s Rt vd
I g3t & fore o &t S &

§b & Ol & o WIRT $ T § g TRerdar (39 1) H
IIIR R ¥ | BERTST TWRBR, §.47.30.37., W37 ew.red £,

f&TTd 31.03.2010 T TEHAT 0T | | FHe Il &b T8 UT Foet STRRRAT
FuTafoie T shifaw faferic ©.2394.71 a8 &

VI. Credit Risk Mitigation :

Bank obtains various types of securities (which may also be termed
as collaterals) to secure the exposures (Fund based as well as non-
fund based) on its borrowers. Generally following types of securities
(whether as primary securities or collateral securities) are taken:

1. Movable assets like stocks, movable machinery etc.
2. Immoveable assets like land, building, plant and machinery
3. Bank’s own deposits

4. NSCs, IVPs, KVPs, Govt. Bonds, RBI Bonds, LIC policies,
etc.

5.  Cash Margin against Non-fund based facilities
6. Gold Jewellery
7. Shares as per approved list

The Bank has well-laid out policy on valuation of securities charged
to the bank.

The Bank has applied securities mentioned at Sr. No. 3 to 6 above
as Credit Risk Mitigants.

The main types of guarantors against the credit risk of the bank are:
o Individuals (Personal guarantees)

e  Corporate

e  Central Government

e  State Government

e ECGC

e CGFTS

CRM collaterals are mostly available in Loans Against Bank’s Own
Deposit and Loans against Government Securities, LIC Policies/.
CRM securities are also taken in non fund based facilities like
Guarantees and Letters of Credit.

Eligible guarantors (as per Basel Il) available as CRM in respect of
Bank’s exposures are mainly Central/ State Government, ECGC,
CGFTS.

The total volatility adjusted Credit Risk Mitigants eligible for
deduction from the outstanding exposures as on 31.03.2010 are
Rs. 2394.71 crores.
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VII. Securitisation :

The Bank does not have any case of its assets securitised as on
31st March, 2010.

VIII. Market risk in trading book :

The Bank defines market risk as potential loss that the Bank may
incur due to adverse developments in market prices. The following
risks are identified as Market risk:

» Interest Rate Risk
»  Currency Risk

»  Price risk

To manage risk, Bank’s Board of Directors have laid down various
limits such as Aggregate Settlement limits, Stop loss limits and
Value at Risk limits. The risk limits, control the risks arising from
open market positions. The stop loss limit takes in to account
realized and unrealized losses. Bank has put in place a proper
system for calculating capital charge on Market Risk on Trading
Portfolio as per RBI Guidelines, viz., Standardised Duration
Approach. The capital charge thus calculated is converted into Risk
Weighted Assets. The aggregated Risk Weighted Assets for credit
risk, market risk and operational risk are taken into consideration
for arriving at the CRAR.

Capital charge on Market Risk (as per Standardised Duration

FTIR) R g\s’ﬁ TR M IR & Approach) as on 31st March, 2010 is as under:
HH 9. SfEw o IP9 (8. PRI H)
SI. No. Risk Category Amount (Rs. in crores)
l. ST (8+41) Interest Rate (a+b)
a) |WTURUTSSIR ST General Market Risk 99.92
(i) | F1aa ferfa Net Position 99.92
(ii) grstica m%ﬂﬁ%r Horizontal Disallowance 0.00
(iii) | afEapeT 3RATPHIT Vertical Disallowance 0.00
(iv) | fTaeeT Options 0.00
Il. gferad iR Equity Risk 21.06
a) STETRUT SToTR SGH General Market Risk 10.53
by |fafere SRaw Specific Risk 10.53
M. Tt fafsma sifRaw (zaof |fga) Foreign Exchange Risk (including Gold) 5.63
IV. wealaws SR 310 (1+11+111) & Sicfa aoTR siifaw & fore per doit gar 126.61
Total capital charge for market risks under Standardised duration approach (I+11+111')

9. gfR=mer sifaw

TR Red §6 & feenfaeet & smeR ), 86 7 aRames shfes
& foe g5t &F smazadmdrsil & aRebed & foe 9Fae gfedex suma
3T 2. & 31 A, 2010 37 uRaeT Sigd & fore S
gTelT 3R .2073.05 PRIS .

IX. Operational Risk

In line with RBI guidelines, Bank has adopted the Basic Indicator
Approach to compute the capital requirements for Operational
Risk. Risk Weight Asset for the Operational Risk as at 31st March,
2010 was Rs. 2073.05 crore.
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FRE R 31 (IRUReS 3ieRTe fagervon (sreamafs) :

X 3T P 3T db B aeT saTet 31T R 15T &R § uRad= b
R yTa @1 faweryor fosar s 2.

(i) Tl aramexol § SifRew § s 315t @1 faeatyor oo goR
frearmang :

1. 3T $d FNGH : MR qor Saamsil & fae 9 & 3R
0.50% TRad=T JHT ST 2. § Jara=or § 157 &% H 50 3R
3t & fiRTae F 3nTer a¥ & foe o st 3ma R . 13.41
FRIg T UfIger THTd g,

2, TR ARl § 3R Shfew enfie far s @ foad )
Foraer 3R T & fore, sifing wfavmr & fow ==&, 50 smeR
3ih HH BT I &. 3T IIAaRYT § afe 1s7 &I 7 50 MR
3it @f fIRTae 31T & ar 3 @ Fad &I1sT 31T R . 34.35
PRI BT GHRIHD THTT 2.

(ii) $Trach @1 3nfie g (3rafty siarTer fagayon (Srafaftn

®) sfaach & e Jea 1 A &g STaact df Fed smafe
UT X & faw anieaal qer Soami o Senfed safer o
TUMT @ ST & $fdact & InfE e & SRR & UG B
foreersor srafér sfavrer ugfa & ooy aRaremt & fae fafhd
JTORTEAT TR 100 3TTEIR 37ehT DI &X UR BH HRp [aT STIdT 2.

W) &S &I H 100 MR 37 HH [HE ST & SR b Bl Haa
Fufd R P TAHRIHAB IR W], IRaaHr & fee feisw
31.03.2010 BT ¥.910.04 HRIS T,

d% 7 9Rag Red 6 grT Ry 99 1 feenfeel &1 srueH
forar & form =gmaw 43T STagadsdt, Udhed 3Maeddhal entid €.
PRITR P aRM b 7 INtHe shives of FHaiRa &=, 395 g9
P GO, 3T BH BT DI dhIId TAH/AT FANRGAT BT HH BT
P o 39T 3UTT HF B & fae gomen 31k uferar daR @ &,
3 O SREAT ) R 3R 3901 HF R BT drf FRaAR 3R
R STRY &
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X. Interest rate risk in the banking book (IRRBB) :

The interest rate risk is measured and monitored through two
approaches:

Earning at Risk (Traditional Gap Analysis) (Short Term) :

The immediate impact of the changes in the interest rates on net
interest income of the bank is analyzed under this approach.

i. The Earning at Risk is analyzed under different scenarios
as under :

1. Yield curve risk : A parallel downward shift of 0.50% is
assumed for assets as well as liabilities. In this scenario, a fall
in interest rates by 50 basis points will adversely impact NIl for
the next year by only Rs 13.41 crores.

2. Basis risk is included in the second scenario where the rates
are shocked down by 50 bps for investments and deposits
and not for advances portfolio. In this scenario, if interest
rates fall by 50 basis points, the Bank’s NIl will be impacted
favourably by Rs 34.35 crores.

ii. Economic Value of Equity (Duration Gap Analysis) (Long term):

a) Economic Value of Equity is done by calculating modified
duration of assets and the liabilities to arrive at the modified
duration of equity. Impact on the Economic Value of Equity
is analyzed for a 100 bps rate shock at regular intervals for
domestic operations through Duration Gap Method.

b)  The net favourable impact on Net Worth of the bank against
100 bps downward movement in interest rates is Rs. 910.04
crores as on 31.08.2010 for domestic operations.

The Bank has thus complied with the Basel Il guidelines issued
by the Reserve Bank of India including maintenance of minimum
capital requirements, disclosure requirements. In the course of its
business, Bank has set in place systems and procedures to identify
the risks involved, measure the impact thereof, adhere to mitigation
techniques / take necessary steps to mitigate such risks. Further,
monitoring of such risks and mitigation thereof is done on an
on-going basis.
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31 AT, 2010 B RAfer & 3HR = 95 BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2010

(3.000 BT BTs T & Rs.000s omitted)

At 31.03.2010 @t 31.03.2009 @t
ffassgar Rfad sear
As at31.03.2010 As at 31.03.2009
Schedule 2. Rs. 3. Rs.
Y3h 31k T Capital and Liabilities
g3 Capital 1 2868232 2868232
aRf&fat ik arferery 2 23148657 18836725
Reserves and Surplus
SR Deposits 513442759 430506141
3YR Borrowings 15619155 14431273
3T TgATE TAT JTae= ® 20786961 17962695
Other Liabilities and Provisions
SIS TOTAL 575865764 484605066
3T Assets
aRarg Red §& & Favar 3ix arfaey 6 43550318 49824094
Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India
dot # 37fcrRIy 3iR 7T W q2 3167 YA W U o 7 7594891 8747054
Balances With Banks and Money at Call & Short Notice
fafem= Investments 8 156942274 124730819
31TIH Advances 9 354624428 288779570
fer st Fixed Assets 10 4072764 4051552
31 3T Other Assets 11 9081089 8471977
SIS TOTAL 575865764 484605066
3B D ST Contingent Liabilities 12 131747082 115067985
Fgur & fae fSa Bills for Collection 204817425 30274710
HEqUl ei@ieH S Significant Accounting Policies 17
AT 9T & B9 A fewforat Notes forming Part of Accounts 18
Iufes o A 3feeRaa sl gam-u ot sifim s .
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of Balance Sheet
S1. wet. Jrae vdb.ad S A da g frax 1. &.%. Maet 1. e g
3TeIe] Ud yae et sriuds feeis e s freee s
D.L. Rawal A.K. Dutt Dr. Tarsem Chand  Chandra Kishore Dr. K. K. Goel Dr. Pritam Singh
Chairman & Mg. Director  Executive Director Director Director Director Director
2. w Afeaa=n 31TS U 31ewsT IR, on. fep S mf tm.é;@h
S TSI R SCZR A 39 HETI T D ERISELGR)
Dr. Sunil Gupta Rohit Khanna I. M. Almeida R. M.Tiku G. C. Garg S. K. Jain
Director Director Director Chief Manager Dy. Gen. Manager General Manager

TR Her wafeAifesa 31erT Rl & SR As per our separate report of even date attached

Fd IR & &P LIS B
REANGECIGAIN

For R. K. Deepak & Co.
Chartered Accountants

&l &, [T EUE .
ﬂ:m"rllalﬁ?grda‘r\f

For B. Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Arvind Uberoi S. Prasad Sandeep Parikh
NG Partner HANIGR Partner HANIGR Partner

(A . M.No. 90479) (TH. 9. M.No. 80958)

w1 a3, feaia: 27 snia, 2010
Place: Mumbai, Date: 27th April, 2010

(THH. M.No. 39713)

gﬁ?fd’r.;:‘rﬁgrauuge@ﬁuaja Ha St dtek) eus &.

EEANGECI RS

For P. Parikh & Associates For Jain Chowdhary & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

fRacgmet st

Siddharth Jain
HANIGR Partner
(TH. 5. M.No. 104709)

A. MG U8 |10

EEANGECI RS

M/s. Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants

3ag {Iou

Uday Sathaye
HHMMGR Partner
(TH 5. M.No. 35107)
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31 9, 2010 P FANT I¥ & fore @rer vd @f<r&@r PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED, 31st MARCH, 2010

%.000 BT BT T Rs 000s omitted
AT 31.03.2010 Y 31.03.2009 BT
e s e g af & fae
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
Schedule 3. Rs. 2. Rs.
I. 3T Income
st st 13 40103560 34474953
Interest Earned
3T 31T Other Income 14 5886338 4301255
S TOTAL 45989898 38776208
Il. =g Expenditure
g fHaT T TS Interest Expended 15 29103337 23830709
IR T Operating Expenses 16 8480782 7681900
39T 3R HTHHDB ST Provisions & Contingencies 3293248 3036977
s TOTAL 40877367 34549586
IIl. @/ g1+ Profit/Loss
Iy & TeTe T9ae o Net Profit for the year 5112531 4226622
3T &TaT 7T f9ae o / 81 Net Profit/Loss Brought Forward 0 0
S TOTAL 5112531 4226622
Iv fafsas=r Appropriations
Tifatere MRTETaaT § 37aR0T Transfer to Statutory Reserve 1533759 1267987
faery ey sTRf&fal § 37aRUT Transfer to Special Infra Reserve 150000 200000
GSTNT STRTEIfCraT # 3faRUT Transfer to Capital Reserves 164043 261254
T JTRf&faal § 37T Transfer to Revenue Reserve 2593591 2094699
URAIfad GTHTT (ATHTST X Sfgd) Proposed Dividend (Incl. Dividend Tax) 671138 402682
JerT T 3T o ST 7 31fa2IY Balance Carried over to Balance Sheet 0 0
SIS TOTAL 5112531 4226622
argig- et Significant Accounting Policies 17
AT 9T & B9 A fewoft Notes forming Part of Accounts 18
Sucfes it ¥ sfeeaa SRR o ol ' ora B s s
Schedules referred to above form an integral part of Profit and Loss Account
Y. vet. ad u.d.ad g AT T g fpeiR 1. &.&. M 1. dram g
3TeIe] Ud yay et sriuds eeis frees s e s
D.L. Rawal A.K. Dutt Dr. Tarsem Chand  Chandra Kishore Dr. K. K. Goel Dr. Pritam Singh
Chairman & Mg. Director  Executive Director Director Director Director Director
& @;ﬁw RUGEACEN 31T U 3TeHsT IR. . e it wi &3
N feers T yeed 39 HEME LD RIS IH
Dr. Sunil Gupta Rohit Khanna I. M. Almeida R. M.Tiku G. C. Garg S. K. Jain
Director Director Director Chief Manager Dy. Gen. Manager General Manager

TR Here wafeAifesa 31erT Rl & SR As per our separate report of even date attached
Hdl 3R & dUS WS & ﬁ%mma Fa @t R@eseaifiees  Fa s dteR wos &.

TET CTEThR

EEANGECI RS EEANGECI RS

For R. K. Deepak & Co. For B. Gupta & Co.  For P. Parikh & Associates For Jain Chowdhary & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Arvind Uberoi S. Prasad Sandeep Parikh Siddharth Jain
WNER Partner HTTER Partner HTTER Partner HTTER Partner
(A . M.No. 90479) (TH. 9. M.No. 80958) (THH. M.No. 39713) (TH. 5. M.No. 104709)

w1 a3, feaia: 27 snia, 2010

Place: Mumbai, Date: 27th April, 2010

. MEe 28 |10

EEANGECI RS

M/s. Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants

3ag {Iou

Uday Sathaye
HHMMGR Partner
(TH 5. M.No. 35107)
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31 AT, 2010 & e U & HIT & T § 3YfUai SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2010
3.000 P 818 f&ar & Rs. '000s omitted

31.03.2010 &Y 31.03.2009 &
fefisagar Fefaossgar
Asat31.03.2010  As at 31.03.2009
3. Rs. . Rs.
ST - 1 gt
SCHEDULE-1 CAPITAL
. 9iftrpd Authorised
UI® . 10/- & Hed dTel 300,00,00,000 AR 30000000 15000000
300, 00, 00,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each
(free af y&® . 10/- & Fea a1 150,00,00,000 TR )
(Previous year 150,00,00,000 Shares of Rs 10/- each)
FRY, 31f¥ee 3R g gai 2868232 2868232
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up
U® . 10/- & Hed dlel 28,68,23,200 FTAC! AT BT et oball Yot
28, 68, 23,200 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up
5T ¥ 14,68,20,000 IR HRA TRBR &b Wi d &
Of which, 14,68,20,000 shares are held by the
Government of India
3 TOTAL 2868232 2868232
ST - 2 sRfEfera sk sifte
SCHEDULE - 2 RESERVES AND SURPLUS
I. wifaftre sTRféfaar Statutory Reserve
3R Opening Balance 5908360 4640373
¥ & SR gRae Addition during the Year 1533759 1267987
SIS TOTAL-| 7442119 5908360
Il. g3 sRféferar Capital Reserve
3R Opening Balance 941288 680034
g9 & 2R uRkaef= Addition during the Year 164043 261254
S TOTAL- Il 1105331 941288
lIl.  g¥eaie siRfafrar Revaluation Reserve
3T Opening Balance 2215854 2341465
¥ &b SR gRag Addition during the Year 0 15677
¥ & R Pelfaar Deduction during the Year -129461 -141288
SIS TOTAL - llI 2086393 2215854
IV. 2R ffRT SHARE PREMIUM
3T Opening Balance 2560064 2560064
¥ & SR gRkaefq Addition during the Year 0 0
S TOTAL- IV 2560064 2560064
V. Xord AIRf&far Revenue Reserve
KRNI Opening Balance 6761159 4666460
9 & SR gRae Addition during the Year 2593591 2094699
SIS TOTAL-V 9354750 6761159
VI. ey sTaRya sIRfafrar Special Infra Reserve
37T Opening Balance 450000 250000
¥ & R Pelfqar Deduction during the Year 0 -
¥ & SR gRkaeiq Addition during the Year 150000 200000
SIS TOTAL- VI 600000 450000
SISTOTAL (I + 11 + 11l + IV + V +VI) 23148657 18836725
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31 HTe, 2010 & Je™ U3 & HIT & T § 3YfUai SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2010
%.000 ®I BTE f&ar § Rs. '000s omitted

31.03.2010 Y 31.03.2009 &I
ffassgar T & sgaR
As at31.03.2010  As at 31.03.2009

2. Rs. 3. Rs.
el - 3 v
SCHEDULE - 3 DEPOSITS
A I. #HifH&T Demand Deposits
i.  dI I From Banks 1410687 786844
ii. 3T From Others 45068298 34969708
Il. odde f4eT Savings Bank Deposits 138130847 113955789
. wafer e Term Deposits
i.  df I From Banks 15457688 15668049
i. 37T Rom Others 313375239 265125751
SIS TOTAL 513442759 430506141
B () ¥Rd¥H e amamnt o smrifEmar 513442759 430506141
Deposits of Branches in India
(i) URd ¥ Tex g et & sERIs™ 0 0
Deposits of Branches outside India
SIS TOTAL 513442759 430506141
S - 4 36
SCHEDULE - 4 BORROWINGS
| TR H IR Borrowings in India
i. YR 51 §6 Reserve Bank of India 0 0
i. 37 d& Other Banks 0 0
iii. 3 TRITE 3R 3IfBRT Other Institutions and Agencies 10155 14073
iv. dig Bonds 2500000 1250000
T a) AN R FUTREd (3MSUISIANS)
Innovative Perpetual Debt Instrument (IPDI) 3000000 3000000
W) b) FRI R || I8 Upper Tier |1 Bonds 0 0
M c) R o St 2R (TAae) 0 0
Perpetual Cumulative Preference Shares (PCPS) 9660000 9660000
) d) Ufaed IR - o It 9OR (3R 0.9 aY.09)
Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares (RNCPS)
g) e) UldeT T e IOR (3IR.T.OY.0H)
Redeemable Cumulative Preference Shares (RCPS)
) f) 3wl 70T FOT Subordinated Debts Unsecured@
Il.  ¥Rd P deX I 3R Borrowings Outside India 449000 507200
SIS TOTAL 15619155 14431273
@fS=# 1 1R 11 g3 &1 T fER @ Out of which, eligible part of Tier Il capital 8640000 8904871
3T - 5 3T <dTE 3R grae
SCHEDULE - 5 OTHER LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
I. ¥ fad Bills Payable 2248133 3423006
Il 3R BraTed THTS (ﬁ’dﬂ) Inter Office Adjustments (Net) 3825106 6329561
Il 9Tad 15T Interest Accrued 2371535 1800329
IV. Ha MRl & 3MBd UTaer Contingent Provisions Against Standard Assets 1555669 1891684
V. 3 (Uae Sfgd) Others (Including Provisions) 10786518 4518115
SIS TOTAL 20786961 17962695
3TN - 6 YR Rard d& A Y 31k saferdw
SCHEDULE - 6 CASH AND BALANCES WITH
RESERVE BANK OF INDIA
I. g1 ¥ Fobal (sﬂ'ff foeely o :ﬁ'c'?iﬁ:lﬁ?f%) Cash in Hand (Including Foreign Currency Notes) 2306542 2201991
1. ma'ﬁﬁaa‘ & # 31fa9IT Balances With Reserve Bank of India
i. e @Ml H In Current Accounts 41243776 32622103
i. 3 A ¥ (TETEEH & d&d) In Other Accounts (Under LAF) 0 15000000

g TOTAL 43550318 49824094
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31 AT, 2010 & T U & W & T4 H 3FYfrar SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2010
3.000 P 8BTS f&ar & Rs. '000s omitted

31.03.2010 B} 31.03.2009 &
Rerfa & s/ Feafar & SR
As at 31.03.2010 As at 31.03.2009
3. Rs. 3. Rs.
ST - 7 ST H TR TAT AT Bd 3769 YT IR YT &
SCHEDULE - 7 BALANCES WITH BANKS AND
MONEY AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE
. 9RdH In India
i Sl # 31Td2IT Balances with Banks
a) E!'IFJ_;E‘IFﬁ T In Current Accounts 1255117 1964197
b) 3 STHT Wi # In Other Deposit Accounts 7626 7626
ii. AT 31X 3767 AT WX YT € Money at Call and Short Notice 0 0
a) Sl & U With Banks 0 0
b) 3T A3 P URT With other Institutions 0 0
SIS TOTAL - | 1262743 1971823
.  ¥Rd & e Outside India
i ﬂ'@@l?ﬁ ¥ In Current Accounts 5434363 2137021
i. 31 STAT WIdl ¥ IN Other Deposit Accounts 897785 4638210
ii. @A 3R 3T LIT IR YT &9 Money at Call and Short Notice 0 0
SIS TOTAL- I 6332148 6775231
SIS TOTAL (I + 1) 7594891 8747054
g - 8 faferem
SCHEDULE - 8 INVESTMENTS
| 9Ra ¥ =1 7 fafemT Investments in India in
. IRORI Yfayfaar Government Securities 133070786 99589107
ii. 3 3rgHrTed Uil Other Approved Securities 441789 1005832
ii. 2R Shares 1463488 1289271
iv. fSdTR 3R g9UF Debentures and Bonds 5520461 12538777
v.  EIE 3HR/37rAT 98 3T Subsidiaries and/or Joint Ventures 217225 217225
vi. 31 Others
a) 3TH Y3 Venture Capital 70472 70472
b) TIGIA B8 B ITC Units of Mutual Funds 55000 55000
c) 3IR3SSIH STHRITT RIDF Deposit 10182797 8082563
d) arurfsad 99 Commercial Paper 388567 1459486
e) U3MRA &f Uiy urac U Security Receipts of ARCS 379399 423086
f)  STHT UHIUT U Certificate of Deposit 2639415 0
g) UHTHERS (SfEw g5 fftr MSME (Risk Capital) Fund 123675 0
h) UTHEHEHS gHTad MSME Refinance 1543600 0
i)  3TR.UISI.UB RHDF 845600 16228525 0 10090607
SIS TOTAL 156942274 124730819
. ¥YRd® W%ﬁ?ﬂﬁ Investments Outside India 0 0
SIS TOTAL (I + 1) 156942274 124730819
Toher TafIe Gross Investments 157601404 125383171
HTIU: 3I&TIT P AT TTaer= 659130 652352
Less: Provision for depreciation
T1ae fafqem Net investments 156942274 124730819
T Q'f\ﬁ‘iiﬁﬁ 'ﬁ'%ﬁ *Includes encumbered securities 140000 140000
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31 AT, 2010 & e U3 & HIT & T § 3MYfUai SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2010
.000 P BIS f&ar & Rs. '000s omitted

31.03.2010 @Y 31.03.2009 @
fafassgar  fossgar
As at 31.03.2010 As at 31.03.2009
3. Rs. 2. Rs.
relt - 9
SCHEDULE - 9 ADVANCES
®. i WRIC SR g T f9d 10049117 12856051
A. Bills Purchased and Discounted
i, Ade IR, 3MAR g iR 77T o gfeie o 160172594 137227042
Cash Credits, Overdrafts and Loans Repayable on Demand
iii.  Tafer 9T Term Loans 184402717 138696477
3ﬁ$ TOTAL 354624428 288779570
WB.i. I SNl GRT AfTHd" Secured by Tangible Assets* 249281761 219833249
i. db/IRPRY Qm{\ﬁﬁﬁ RT I=f&Td Covered by Bank/Govt. Guarantees 33237356 16581164
iii. 37T Unsecured 72105311 52365157
Eﬁs' TOTAL 354624428 288779570
*F8T 0T R U e 31fimT 9 * Includes advances against book-debts
T.C. | 9Rd # 31T Advances in India
i gTeIfHesar & Pr|or|ty Sector 116034593 97439855
i, YRA IR I T I (CESTYSIIRTH - 2008 & 3iaifa) 697360 695509
Amount Receivable from GOl (Under ADWDRS - 2008)
ii. AdSHS &F Public Sector 84444388 59328763
iv. o Banks 2004473 2068817
v. 31 Others 151443614 129246626
s TOTAL 354624428 288779570
Il. YR & dTeX 31T Advances Outside India 0 0
SIS TOTAL 354624428 288779570
ST - 10 FR st
SCHEDULE - 10 FIXED ASSETS
A. ¥ 3iTai TANGIBLE ASSETS
I. 9™ Premises
. aY o 31 WY I R & FIAR N TR 4253567 4231795
(U3 Tt 7 Bfauar iRkt & gFHeieT & SR 9w # g afq)
At Cost as at 31st March of the Preceeding Year
(Includes increase in the value on account of revaluation of certain premises in
earlier years)
i. ¥ & AR JYeAid & HRUT uRaes 0 15676
Addition on Account of Revaluation during the Year
ii. 99 & R UiRkaeT Additions during the Year 79668 6096
iv. a9 & &R Pelfaar Deductions during the Year 0 0
v.  3TId- AJ&TUT Depreciation to Date -1404523 -1245014
vi.  f=mfomelT ¥a= Building Under Construction 2173 878
Eﬂ?_;TOTAL | 2930885 3009431
I 3= fReR snf¥aar (wreR 3R e afe)
Other Fixed Assets (Including Furniture and Fixtures)
i, gdadi gy df 31 AT B AT & AR and ) 3685415 3522104
At cost as on 31st March of the preceding year
i. 9¥ % R uRae= Additions during the year 375425 341284
ii. dY & AR Belfdar Deductions during the year 143962 177973
iv.  3TId- 3Ad&TIUT Depreciation to date -2814350 -2687633
NS TOTALII 1102528 997782
S‘ﬁg TOTAL (I + 1) 4033413 4007213
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31 AT, 2010 & Je™ U3 & HIT & T § YU SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2010
%.000 BT BTE f&aT & Rs. '000s omitted

31.03.2010 @ 31.03.2009 @
ffasagar  ffd & sgar
As at 31.03.2010 As at 31.03.2009
3. Rs. 2. Rs.
B. 31'lj§f anfaar INTANGIBLE ASSETS
. »RgX ATEIIR COMPUTER SOFTWARE
i, gdadr ay @f 31 A1 B Rfd & SER dana )
At cost as at 31st March of the preceeding year SBT3 345578
i. I¥ % R uRae= Addition During the year 19887 10155
ii. 9¥ & SR detfadr Deduction during the curent year 0 0
iv.  3Ta UfkeNe Amortised to date -336269 -311394
SIS TOTAL 39351 44339
ga_cTa’I‘:-‘; GRAND TOTAL (A+B) 4072764 4051552
ST - 11 31 STt
SCHEDULE - 11 OTHER ASSETS
I SER-BrRET FHAEH (F&) Inter-Office Adjustments (Net) 0 0
Il. W &T35T Interest Accrued 3842981 3228251
. 3T B H Few BRATd R HIeT T T (I T1ae™)
Tax Paid in Advance/Tax Deducted at Source (Net of Provision) 1894608 841924
IV. 3TRIFT & 3N (Y&) Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 1766110 2776410
V. oI g 3R e Stationery and Stamps 35799 39939
VI @@l & fues waou g R-dfd snfaat
Non-Banking Assets Acquired in Satisfaction of Claims 98600 98600
VII. 37T Others 1442991 1486853
SIS TOTAL 9081089 8471977
ST - 12 HHRAS T
SCHEDULE - 12 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
I 3% & foog 0 @ f5 %01 & ©u § WieR = fiear mar &
Claims against the bank not acknowledged as debts 20929044 19186714
Il 37erd: e YRl & BRUT I
Liability on account of partly paid shares 0 0
. g 3m fafaa dfgent & sroT et
Liability on account of outstanding Forward Exchange Contracts 65637517 53007615
IV. TTEST df 3R & & T gearyfoar
Guarantees given on behalf of constituents
F) YRAH a) In India 26737712 28000132
W) HRIY B b) Outside India 0 0
V. gfaues, gt 3R 3 qregdre
Acceptances, Endorsements and other Obligations 18442624 14867404
VI, 3 v e Tomis o d Tt o & sorerr €
Other Items for which the bank is contingently liable 185 6120
S8 TOTAL 131747082 115067985
TrguT & fow f3a Bills for Collection 204817425 30274710
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31 T, 2010 ) T I & ForE o7 Tl Iy o & Waifrar sryfera

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2010

%5.000 BT BT T Rs.000s omitted
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
D T af & fere P 9T 9 & fore
Year ended 31.03.2010 Year ended 31.03.2009
3 - 13 ifSfa samst
SCHEDULE - 13 INTEREST EARNED 3. Rs.
I sfimifeal ) @rsvaeer
Interest/Discount on Advances/Bills 30093315 25659781
I fafemt wsma
Income on Investments 9598731 8281335
. 9Rara Raid d & rtaemt 3iR 3/ 3R d& it w st
Interest on Balances with Reserve Bank of India and other Inter Bank
Funds 202240 171957
IV. 31 Others 209274 361880
Eﬁg TOTAL 40103560 34474953
STRIE - 14 30 3T T
SCHEDULE - 14 OTHER INCOME
I pwrer, fafama 3R @
Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 1275458 1323217
Il fafemi & fampa o ame 1535140

Profit on Sale of Investments

verge: fafyemt & fawa = afy

Less: Loss on Sale of Investments 0 1535140
. 4 vd 9a qur 37 3Rl & fama R av (g9

Profit on Sale of Land, Buildings and other Assets (Net) -5015
Iv.  faeet fafrma ocs w e (g19)

Profit on Foreign Exchange Transactions (Net) 332643
v. focell wra # Rera sl duf-al g sgmi & amrer sfe & o &

3rtsta 3

Income Earned by way of Dividends etc. from Subsidiaries / Companies

and/or Joint Ventures Abroad/ in India 183269
vI. fafder 3 Miscellaneous Income 2564843

SIE TOTAL 5886338

1143470
600238 543232
-7094

438634

11480

1991786
4301255
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FFgfral SCHEDULES

31 AT, 2010 P A T9 & foTe @14 wd &1f+1 o & Haftra s
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2010

3.000 BT BT f&aT Rs.000s omitted
31.03.2010 31.03.2009
D a9 & fere B I dY & fae

Year ended 31.03.2010

Year ended 31.03.2009

ST - 15 = fear rar s
SCHEDULE - 15 INTEREST EXPENDED

et = &
Interest On Deposits
qRara Red do/3iR-86 3aRt R &rs
Interest on Reserve Bank of India/Inter Bank Borrowings
3T Others
SIS TOTAL

I - 16 URETER G T
SCHEDULE - 16 OPERATING EXPENSES

VI.

VII.

VI

XI.

XII.

HHANRAT BT YA 3R 3 foe ez

Payments to and Provisions for Employees
foszra, & 3iR fasTerr
Rent, Taxes and Lighting
HEUT 3R eRa- AT
Printing and Stationery
fasmo 3k IR
Advertisement and Publicity
d& B Il 1R 3TaeaoT
Depreciation on Banks Property
feeret & v, = iR
Directors Fees, Allowances and Expenses
oTET TRIEThT B! BN 31 T (ITRaT o oraT-uRieTh afed)
Auditors Fees and Expenses (Including Branch Auditors)
fafer gur
Law Charges
g1 WY, aR 3R SelwI anfe
Postage, Telegrams, Telephones etc.
TR 31X 3FRETT
Repairs and Maintenance
araT
Insurance
3 Tg
Other Expenditure
SIS TOTAL

27611989

5006
1486342

29103337

5115855

730010

105269

108044

276088

13295

82426

51718

241058

180358

480566

1096095

__84so782.

22558997

168906
1102806
23830709

4678897
688552
99360
112057
268413
13967
74470
44386
128805
193145
384687

995161
7681900
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¥ 2009-2010 & T@I & WA & w9 H AT
SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNT FOR 2009-2010

srggferi - 17

Heeaqul eraie Stfer

17.1 TGS $T TR

J oY ATHERI PRIAR aTel AT DI ADeaT BT AT PR P
UfeTRIe AT & STER IR AR @ U JIR 6 e & o &t
TE A 3T 30T &, 3 a0 G gL [ifaferd qraemi vd wigd
A tigich TR & 3190 2.

17.2 fafem

P) DT

aRara Rord 3 & feentden & 3aR wa<a fafweamt @1 d=
Jftrdl § srafa i) oRuaaar ae eiRka i) fada gg uae ik
iii) MR &g enfRa & auiiesd fova mam & @ ol # 3% ©: Sifvrt &
TCURI ITAHT & 915 Frael Jod W gdbe fehar T &

w gea-frefon

fafremt &1 gea-HaRor 9Rda Red 36 & feenfadeni & sgaR
frmfaRea oo # fear smar &

i. SITETR:

TRYFIAT db TR

S AN &b 3fia ek fafre=i o1 afedi # ST 3ot oI W 3 o
ST T &, Al 1y N 7oi TR SFeT oA T & |l S/ AV gRyeedr
Ay R FRAR o Wit &1 Jomell &1 &Ml $Hvd §¢ IR fmam
HEIES

T & 1w 3uetey a2 "R & foe enfa

& fafemt & aeiR & fov uga™ R 31eT W 3T 8. Td
B Sifvrl & foe JeogmaRads &1 e foan mar 8. gde Son
& foe faer qeog™ afc 1% &1, & yraa foar ma 8, fog faa
siftreae @1 Brs fear mr 8.

i. —orifafr:

d& &\t Frarett o1 qeaie Frfi w7 it amd fafér 9 foean s
& faer & wma # 3fua ufaefoat & aoiR geg, ot & foe sucer
3R =R & foae efka siforat afea @ araar o whe e
F TR HIT &R AT AR R51d 96 B Aea-gdl & IR T
forar mar 2.

SR aTeTR HTa 3ueted 7 &1 3R R gfua ufayfedt & 7me § gea
&1 FEROT AR grIfiear fadsar §9 gRT Had 3a-aT aeTR 3R
AR G G & T AGeh B9 I A1 JeaaRuaaar 37 =
TAT TR /TR DI RGIIA B8 B JHei/oasR & faa snie
T Td Ul 3 YRT & [Haet 98t Hed & 3UR R fehaT S &.
& TOT ST 7 SR G, SRt Afgd fafen ik ws
foe, arfdTsg oo o= ImioT SR aeR fad §Tus & Jeae aferd eamTd
xR femar mar &,

M 3mafreiRored faaeyef aress:

d& 7 9Rdg R 6 gRT 99g-a9g R T aftaxuT, 3T
freiRor vd fafremi & yee= & ddw & i foe me fagmygot

TGS BT ST fovar 2.

SCHEDULE - 17

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accounts have been prepared by following the going
concern concept on historical cost basis, consistently, and are
in conformity with the applicable statutory provisions for the time

being in force and generally accepted accounting principles,
save as otherwise stated.

1.2. INVESTMENTS

a) CLASSIFICATION:

Investments have been categorized as per guidelines of
Reserve Bank of India (i) Held to Maturity, (ii) Available for Sale
(iii) Held for Trading and are disclosed in the accounts under six
classifications at the value net of depreciation provision thereon.
b) VALUATION:

Investments are valued as per Reserve Bank of India guidelines
in the following manner:

i BASIS:

‘Held to Maturity’

Investments held under this category are carried in books at
their acquisition cost. Premium, if any, paid on acquisition is
amortized using constant yield method over the remaining period
of maturity.

‘Available for Sale’ and ‘Held for Trading’

These Investments are marked to market scrip wise. Depreciation/
Appreciation for each of six classifications is aggregated; net
depreciation, if any, for each classification is provided for, but net
appreciation is ignored.

ii. METHODOLOGY:

All investments of bank are valued consistently on Average Cost
Method. Market value of quoted securities in case of Investments
included in the ‘Available for Sale’ and ‘Held for Trading’
categories is taken based on market quotations of recognized
stock exchange/s or price list of Reserve Bank of India.

The value in case of unquoted securities and securities where
market quotes are not available, is determined based on Prices
/ Yield to Maturity declared by Primary Dealers Association of
India jointly with Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives
Association of India and Net Asset Value in case of units of
Mutual Funds/ SRs of ARCs/ SCs and Net Book Value in case of
Shares of Companies.

Treasury Bills, Commercial Papers, Rural Infrastructure
Development Funds and Investments including Share Capital
Deposits in Regional Rural Banks are valued at carrying cost.

c) INCOME RECOGNITION AND PRUDENTIAL NORMS:

Bank follows the prudential norms formulated by Reserve
Bank of India, from time to time, as to Asset Classification of
all Investments, Income Recognition and Provisioning on such
Investments.
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fafver= e el ) HHIeE, ccren, Wisa 3@y & &rsT anfe @r
e & 9§ § T g1 i § 9y 51 fepar e .

ufRudradT e e ST o dgd faf=emr & 3 fafemt o famr o
gE @Y & g1f oy 7 ferar mar & 31k 39 a1e sRfard gt @
# faferanfsra fevar sirar 2, el fawr w afy & e ee afv e
o Tt foam Simar 2.

17.3 3fim

F) dp = 3 aettexor 3ma fFeiRor 3R 31fm & o uraene)or
® deg ¥ R Rerd §6 gRT 999 - 99 R FeiRa faaemawa
HEST BT IRV ThaT & AT AR THT ST I 7D ST,
Tfeer va 3reiresr 3N o o0 & Tehd fovaT 1T 2.

@) AU EE G aay #§ gHnfed @t & 3fud gea # firmae &
geot ® yrawm, fafae @ # 29 (@1et deia)oT - gifed @), g
13778 .31 37 a9/ $.3050. 9 & 3R FHEieE 8 ad siffa
R T, 37 I 9T 3R 3T @T H @ T

M A Il W faddawra gigens 3R tA.u.E @At o faor
# SRS TTae et U= & 3 9. 5 H 3T <adTe JT YTaen-
3= ¥ enfa foee s &

g) TAUE @Al B T I Ga9IH IHrT JAeT § FEifoid
DI ST & v e feT afE B 8, d 3 3y T S &

§) SR QAMHIOT G (TITRAT) AT fTHRoT U (T
& g T T dufat & w7 afe faer g fae a8 g
(ET.a.aY) 3t 98 Jeg-uae= F &F & o 39 @Y v g1 @
7 sfae fdvar mn 2. Al ol oo Maer a8 4ea 1 3ifes & ar
UTae & 37Tee 1T BT TATatdd B o ToiTd IADT JTANT ST
g d.afa & & a0 T 3 fai snfvaat # @9 aren et o
HRUTS & foha STTe.

) oo wemiat § fa & & adr 1 i st &
@t % afE faet gog faa a8t gog (@I ar ) S dH g O 39 Ay
g @ 7 3fae far mar @ 8k ot foor e Forow a8 90 &
e & dr gtaems o siftres IR @1 gemafdd a7 & g 3¥@T
39AIT ST T8 31 foira sniRerat # @ aTeTl @11 @l #RUTs & fohar
STTET.

17.4 31ae sfaai 3R geogm

®) TR (POD TR Pl BISAR [ofe JAHIDd IbH TR
Tertar T ®) v Rer aniaat & Seera efaeiie v R fear
ST 8.

@) IR ¥ Biqug dufaal § Faft fi o o amd enfhe &
fS=Y 31erT =& o S \awer &

M HGEX FEIAR S 01.04.2000 ¥ TEA W W &, W
25%yfaay &f &= J s, 1. aY. faftr I geagra e Siar @ Sefe
BRI BEATR {SHdI 01.04.2000 BHY AT 3P & Wl 7T & 37
W eI o Ay 3@ fafer 9 33.33% gfaad &F = geogr
THITAT ST &1 99 R MR 3w 1962 o Sicrfa FrefRe &) W = gu
IoJ (Sey 1.41.) fafdy & Hoasrd < i .

¥) e i & AN &1 uiReied, uge & 3aty v fear
T E.

g) UHHcdiiod & W AT TT SaeraeT YA id SR afd
o R g fosar mar &,

Commission, brokerage, broken period interest on investment
transactions are debited and/or credited to Profit and Loss
Account in the year of transaction.

Profit on sale of investments under the category “Held to Maturity”
is taken to Profit and Loss Account and thereafter appropriated to
“Capital Reserve Account” whereas loss on sale of Investments
is recognized in the Profit & Loss Account.

17.1 ADVANCES

a. Bank follows the prudential norms formulated by Reserve
Bank of India, from time to time, as to Asset Classification of
Advances, Income Recognition and provisioning thereon.
Accordingly all advances are being classified into Standard,
Sub-standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets.

b)  Advances are net of Provision for Non Performing Assets.
Provision in lieu of diminution in the fair value of restructured
accounts, balance in Sundries Account [interest capitalization
— restructured accounts] in respect of NPA accounts, DICGC
Claims/ECGC claims received and held pending adjustment;
part payment received and kept in Suspense Account.

c) Prudential provision on Standard Assets and excess
provision on sale of NPA accounts are included in ‘Other
Liabilities and Provisions — Others’ in Schedule 5 to the Balance
Sheet.

d) Recoveries in Non-Performing Advances are first
appropriated towards principal outstanding and surplus, if any, is
recognized as income.

e) Incaseofsale of financial assets to the Asset Reconstruction
Company (ARC) / Securitisation Company (SC) at a price below
the net book value (NBV), i.e. Book Value Less Provision held,
the shortfall is debited to the profit and loss account and in case
of sale at a value higher than the NBV, the excess provision is
not being reversed but is kept for utilization to meet the shortfall/
loss on account of sale of other financial assets to ARC/SC.

f) The shortfall, in case of financial assets sold to the Banks,
Fls and/ or, NBFCs, where the sale is at a price below the net
book value (NBV), is debited to the profit and loss account, but in
the case where the sale value is higher than the NBV, the excess
provision is not reversed but being retained to meet the shortfall/
loss on account of sale of other non-performing financial asset.

1.1. FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

a) Premises (except certain premises which have been stated
at revalued amount) and other fixed assets are stated at historical
cost.

b)  Premises also include cost of land in some of the properties
where the same could not be segregated.

c) Depreciation is charged on Written Down Value (W.D.V.)
method at the rates prescribed under the Income Tax Rules,
1962 except that the computer hardware purchased before
01.04.2000 are depreciated @ 25% p.a. on W.D.V. method
and those purchased on or after 01.04.2000 are depreciated
@ 33.33% on Straight Line Method.

d) Cost of leasehold land is amortized over the period of
lease.

e) Depreciation attributable to revalued portion is charged to
the Revaluation Reserve Account.
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) Feraniadl § gfaeta et 3 ddaféra 4o enfaa 2.

B) WYX AcdoR @di & 3 snfRaar AT T & 7T 3 o
aut & a1e aRee fosam mar &, foRT 39 sniar &1 w9y nfis
ST AT ST &,

17.5 IR-3f%w snfear

iR-dfe snfaat &1 3eera anTg W fhar ST 2.

17.6 rored frerfzor

F) dF THRT AR W TGIHT B ATV o0 JOTIel! 379T &7 &,
W) I T3/ §b TRICH TRART PRIGR/ TR GeT & 3RT &
faaRoT R HHEE, AR BRI, B F aURI R TS, AT,

u@&;mﬁmwmwmmﬁwﬁﬁﬁm
TR foram ST &

M  IRfwes ®ol vd 3 w® @mer ge How @ ko
AR Rerd §% & faamyof feen fel & SR awgelt o dmr
% fesar ST &

) S @R S T s e ¥ af aweh @ fifve s
o0 § orifesd fomar 5 et 2.

T) 22 3R, 2008 P IR IT6 g€ GRUST 3/ &l ST
At & Al § uRudadr 3afer & a1e & fov et &1 fgae saa
b &= 1R fopar s 2.

) IR, gist e & e & oo o1 5 o 7 = fosar man 39
¥ # fewra # forar siar 2.

B) 3Idd uiitadt # 5 aut 3 318 of srafer dd us iR erarmd S
oSt &1 “fafaer smor & Su § T 517 @ 2. g9 uedd & d, afe
It BT & 3761 fbe T8 & dF 3 47a a¥ § I & B9 H JHIRA
fear T &.

) dC <RR @l & aHar § fafte it e @ ug ' oy o
STET ST 8.

17.7 Wftes Aarf-ga dism @d o1 fefRor

Wied Jai-glad ASHT T T IGH T A diel aF F 21fier fdaT ST &.
17.8 faeht fafma

®) IO G feeT gaT Aiaarsi Jfed TH gbR o facen gar
RTAT T ST BT HHcATdT hsls gRT duT H SIRI &R W
foram ST & T 3 UBR & YAHcI I B el 909 &I aTel ¢ U
I BT T vd @i orat 7 geifar mar &

@) TR, IRg uAl, Wigtadl, Wik iR faeeh gar & s/
AT BT I T H TR & T H BEl gRI SIRN R R
g-eaited fosar g,

T T T A AT HRT P oo Bf [ty B gaferd fatwa
T R feiRa fosar mar .

17.9 THaR! gfaen

IgE!, UeH vd Jarafa 89 W < @RI AGSIaRoT & fae
JTTEN 37 ¥ T 37 §RT SN oIl AT a1 el SR arHifehe
eI & IFFIR 3uTad IR R fhe 3 2

17.10 TR BT

®) TAHHE IR B 08 TGN AR PR DA , Ndd Greonsii/
faféres wat qer gd FefRol & 3R o ToMT & 15 IR R AR B
B & BT 39T B g fear mam &,

f) Fixed Assets include Capital Work-in-Progress.

g) Computer software expenses are considered as intangible
assets and are amortized over a period of five years, which is
considered as useful economic life of such assets.

17.5 NON-BANKING ASSETS
Non-Banking Assets are stated at cost.

17.6 REVENUE RECOGNITION
a) The Bank generally follows mercantile system of accounting.

b)  Commissionon letters of credit/ bank guarantees/ Government
Business/distribution of third party products, locker rent, interest
on refund of taxes, dividend, income on units of mutual funds and
rental income are recognized on realization basis.

c) Interest/discount on non-performing loans advances/
investments is recognized to the extent realized as per the
prudential guidelines of RBI.

d)  Recoveries in written off advances/investments are being
accounted for as ‘Miscellaneous Income’.

e) Interest on term deposits matured on or after 22nd August,
2008 but remained unpaid has been provided /accounted for at
saving bank rate.

f) Expenses on the issue of shares, bonds etc. are recognized
in the year of incurrence.

g) Unclaimed credit balances lying in Suspense Receipts for
more than five years are being considered as ‘Miscellaneous
Income’. Subsequent claims, if any paid to the parties are
charged to expenses in the year of payment.

h)  Legal expenses in case of suit filed accounts are charged
to Profit and Loss account.

17.7 TREATMENT OF VRS EXPENDITURE
Expenditure on VRS is recognized in the year of payment.
17.8 FOREIGN EXCHANGE

a) All foreign currency assets and liabilities including
outstanding forward exchange contracts in foreign currency are
valued at the year-end on the rates issued by FEDAI and the
resultant profit/loss arising out of such revaluation is accounted
for in the Profit and Loss Account.

b)  Guarantees, letters of credit, acceptances, endorsements
and other obligations in foreign currency are also revalued at
the year-end on the rates issued by FEDAI for the purpose of
Balance Sheet exposure.

c) Income and Expenditure items are recognized at the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

17.9 STAFF BENEFITS

Gratuity, Pension and Leave Encashment payable on retirement;
and other employee benefits are provided for as per actuarial
valuation as required by AS 15 issued by ICAI.

17.10 TAXES ON INCOME

a) Current tax is provided using applicable tax rates on the

amount worked out on the basis of applicable tax laws, judicial
pronouncements / legal opinions and the past assessments.



O St sroe

aiffe Ra€ 2009 - 2010|102

FFgfral SCHEDULES

@) smefig &R, foad 3 3afe & fau &R Ivg v o EidT
AT & O P THT AR Bl B YU IMHA 2, B Uga
IMRINTT R 3Rl & Faied i ufawer o1 ea= o I@HR oF
ST 1

Il - 18

T 9T S U A fewfort

18.1 P) A 2010 ddb 3R MGl oidl H s ufafedr &r
gar orm forar T & 3R 396 gaEie of aRemr gfhar yta
W E.

W) PO AEBI H AEHd ARG $ AgaT T FD
Je™ WA T B B G R 8. < "7 g, for
I I fhe U gIUel, 39d @i, YA fhe T arHieveTs
AT, TATINET THIATSET AT aT IMEnst 3R qEEe o
HIT o Tl SRS & ST FHTI Al Hod ofdl ene § U
gorar ytaftear € f5e Tamas=/~aHmem o ufshar sTRT 2.

M urag Red d@ afea fofim dof & poe amat § smafa
T & HROT g glaftedt Famanfsra Fal of T8 €.

) IR afvid (&, @ vd T H) dfea qEreny dgan Es &
@At R GRUTH TH97T BT 39 THT I oW1 H9 a1 8.

18.2 WRAT Red d6 & Feniea feenfdel & IR, @@ §
A 3MRTal R 7 3R urae= fee e § |

®) P qUT g T HegH ITH & b Jcaal Ml R IbrT FoT
BT 0.25%.

@) gvIsad RITIT UGT (I3RS ) & BT FhrT 70T BT 1.00%
M) I A AFG AT R SERT HOT & 0.40% (3R IR
Sfeifad () Td (W) BT BIsHR).

18.3 A 3Nl & 3TelTaT 3= T snfqal & faw oral # uraem
AR Red 96 gR1 SIRT 35 AR AFCsl & AR e
T 8.

18.4 IRAT Yaursi GRT fGU T gwioT WAl & 3R 261 IR orEr
I emaratt o 31T o Eifexor B graeHT afed afffea faan
T &

18.5 §b = 3T aY P ATH B.511.25 PRIS (T Y 3. 422.66 PIS) T I
153.38 PRI'S (T IY 5. 126.80 PHRIS) PY AT BT Fifaferes sRfafaar
o Taeed Ao ¥ I 1 fafemt o e § 9 3. 16.40 BRIS (TF a9
B. 26.13 BRIZ) B ot sRf&faat & (wifafte smefafaar # o= v
3TRUT BT TIeTx) AR fhar &. b =1 3 Aiffram 1961 B &RT 36
(i) (viii) % 7T G faery TRl # <. 15 Hrs (frsdl av 20 HIre)
iR fopan 3. § 7 1o 9 &q URATGd CTHTET (U ] AfEd)
3. 67.11 IS (1T Y 9.40.27 BIS) P UG D. 259.36 PIS
(T g . 209.47 FRIZ) BT WY o< R &t # siafka fpar 2.

18.6 3. 9.86 PRIS (1d T4 %.9.86 PBRIS) P a4l &b Ufdhd H AT
R dfdsm snfat () daiiaor 8g afiad €.

b)  Deferred tax, comprising of tax effect due to time difference
between taxable and as per accounts income for the period, is
recognized keeping in view the consideration of prudence in
respect of deferred tax assets read with Accounting Standard 22
issued by ICAI.

SCHEDULE - 18
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

18.1 a) Initial matching of entries in respect of Inter Branch
transactions has been done up to March 2010 for the purpose of
reconciliation, which is an ongoing process.

b.  Balancing of subsidiary ledgers/registers and reconciliation
with generalledgers are in progress at some branches. Outstanding
entries in some heads of account including demand drafts payable,
drafts paid ex-advice, suspense accounts, dividend/ interest
warrants, refund orders paid and clearing adjustments between
service branches and participating branches in clearing are in the
process of reconciliation/ adjustments.

c) Balances with Reserve Bank of India/ other banks have been
reconciled except certain entries under process of reconciliation.

d)  The consequential impact on the accounts of all as stated
above [in a, b & c.] is not ascertainable pending reconciliation /
balancing / adjustment.

18.2 Provision on standard assets has been given effect in the
accounts according to revised RBI guidelines as under:

a) 0.25% of the outstanding in the direct advances to
Agriculture and SME Sector

b)  1.00% of the outstanding in Commercial Real Estate (CRE)
Sector

c) 0.40% of the outstanding in all other advances [i.e. except
a. and b. above.]

18.3 Provision on all assets other than standard assets has also
been given effect in the accounts in accordance with the IRAC
norms issued by RBI.

18.4 The classification of advances and provisioning there-
against in case of 261 Un-audited branches have been
incorporated as certified by the branch mangers.

18.5 The Bank has transferred Rs. 153.38 crores (Previous
year Rs. 126.80 crores) to Statutory Reserve out of profit of
Rs. 511.25 crores for the year (Previous year Rs. 422.66 crores)
& Rs. 16.40 crores (Previous year Rs. 26.13 crores) to Capital
Reserve (Net of taxes and Transfer to Statutory Reserve) from
the profit on sale of investments held under HTM Category. The
Bank has transferred Rs. 15 crores in Special Reserve created
u/s 36 (1) (viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (Previous Year
Rs. 20.00 crores). The Bank has also transferred Rs. 259.36
Crores to Revenue Reserve (Previous Year Rs. 209.47 crores)
after proposed dividend (inclusive of dividend tax) of Rs. 67.11
crores (Previous Year Rs. 40.27 crores).

18.6 Non-banking asset (land) acquired in satisfaction of claim
amounting to Rs. 9.86 crores (Previous Year. Rs. 9.86 crores) is
pending for registration.
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7< Items fe=tie 31.03.2010 f&=ie 31.03.2009
P ITAR P ITAR
As on 31.03.2010 As on 31.03.2009
¥ - 1l Basel Il a9 - |1 Basel Il
i. 3R TR (%) CRAR (%) 12.77 12.07
ii. ¥ 3R U 3TR - TR | Y37 (%) CRAR - Tier | capital (%) 8.16 6.76
iii. T 3R TR - TR | tgs‘ﬁ (%) CRAR- Tier Il capital (%) 4.61 8.31
o o
HRd H(dﬁl(ﬂ%‘x’lﬂ(‘dll(dlﬁ&lld%ld . 51.19% 5119%
Percentage of the shareholding of the Government of India
7 ltems fomad Fy2009-10 | famad F Y 2008-09
IR 11 g5 & 0 H JTTg T3 TH0T 0T BY AR (B.FHRIE H) 0.00 500.00
Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier Il Capital (Rs. in crores) ' '
mﬁmllﬁ@'%ﬁqﬁ@aéﬂéﬁ%(ﬁaﬂk ) 0.00 0
Amount of Upper Tier Il Bonds raised (Rs. in crores)
FarRe eI 0T forad r AT — SR | Yo & U H FCTE TS I (3. BRIS H)
: : . : 125.00 0.00
Amount of Innovative Perpetual Debt Instruments — Tier | raised (Rs. in crores)

@) fafsrem b) Investments:
i. fafvrem=Afaemr enfRar ot SofiaR Rfa sauaRr 2.

The category wise position of holding of "Investment Portfolio" is as under:

2. IRIST ﬁ) (Rs. in crores)

foTT Categories

31.03.2010 31.03.2009

fafmem &1 9oa Hcd Gross Value of Investment
®. A. uRkuggar d& enfkd Held to Maturity 13097.80 9944.62
@, B. fam! & v 3ucter Available for Sale 2662.34 2489.27
T. C. IR & e enfRa Held for Trading 0.00 104.43
el Total 15760.14 12538.32
YeTU: YeIgy Less: Depreciation 65.91 65.24
fafrem &1 forae 9 Net value of Investment 15694.23 12473.08

§P T URT I TER E:Iﬂ's£ fafmems T8t fsar &, Bank does not have any investment outside India.

ii. ﬁﬁmwwm%qmaﬁmuz-aa Movement of Provision for Depreciation on Investments:

. HRIST ff) (Rs. in crores)

fera=or Particulars

2009-10 2008-09
317 91 Opening Balance 65.24 52.00
S : 9§ & SR fhaT 7T GG Add: Provision made during the year 26.11 21.05
39-INT Sub-Total 91.35 73.05
HTIU : 9¥ & &R STl T8 EIB_(\T W Less: Write off during the year 0.00 0.00
YT : TICIvd § 3fdRd uwed / vauwhe i & dgd fafem & sifthd qea & &7 7%
& TSI Heae™
Less: Depreciation adjusted by reducing book value of Investment under AFS/HFT
category shifted to HTM 25.44 7.81
3fer 919 Closing Balance 65.91 65.24
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ii. X9/ geamdfdd 4l @-ie REPO/Reverse REPO Transactions:

®) g e - FErdee giaen edees)
a) Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF)

(5. BRIST H)

(Rs. in crores)

¢ & SR ¥ & R ¥ & RM 31.3.10 @I
A Y| 3w 9w | & sia o CEARINL
Minimum Maximum Daily average Balance
outstanding outstanding outstanding as on
during the year | during the year| during the year 31.03.10
Rl o 3T St 1§ Ffr¥faat Securities sold under repos 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
yeamafcdd YuT & siarfa @Rier 15 uhaygfoat.
Securities purchased under reverse repos 0.00 2850.00 431.12 0.00
W) 3T -3 b) Others - NIL
iv. IR-wifafte gaffr srar faer EfIHmT Non-SLR Investment Portfolio:
®. IR ifafes gaffe s fHael o sRiedr SxaT. (3. PRIST H)
a. Issuer Composition of Non-SLR Investment: (Rs. in crores)
o | af wu| fsitfaea| faascidsaaet|  RIFErae R e
¥. |Issuer Amount FTRR gfengferal 1R | Rl srwR | afengferl a1wR
Sl. Extent of Extent of 'below Extent of Extent of
No. private investment grade' 'unrated' 'unlisted'
placement securities securities securities
1 | AdSIIE & & 3UhT PSUs 22468 219.67 10.00 0.00 14.00
2 |fa<ira =emv Fis 129257 129257 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 |9 Banks 385.89 382.07 0.00 0.00 8.00
4 |57 ®IURE Private Corporate 432.12 381.62 0.00 90.90 90.90
5 | TETI® SBura / WY IaH 21.72 21.72 0.00 20.32 20.32
Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures
6 |3 Others 31.97 18.08 13.89 4.13 18.02
I Total 2388.95 2315.73 23.89 115.35 151.24
7 | Heaer &g foar mar rae 45.99
Provision held towards depreciation
el & 3TAR I 9 2342.96
Balance as per books
@) IR pri-fues R -ravasR fafem (B. PRIST H)
b) Non-performing Non-SLR Investments: (Rs. in crores)
SIRT Particulars 1T Amount
37U Opening balance 24.50
¥ B AR 1 STQ\E, 2009 ¥ yRaef= Additions during the year since 1st April, 2009 0.00
BtRJf?ﬁ 31af¥r & SR detfadi Reductions during the above period 13.36
3% g Closing Balance 11.39
foar man T UTdeIT Total provisions held 11.39

d® 7 af & <R uRudgar R enika v F d'd aligd
qﬁﬂ{%ﬁr%ﬁ?ﬂtﬁa 33.35 A0S (TUeet a¥ 3.30.26 FRIS) BT eRAH
T 17.2 & AR aRenes foar 8. 37 69 ®F ¢ Ud g1 @rd
giRa fosar o & e deféa ufayfodt & Jea o 39 A ab T
o fear mar g,
vi. AR Red §6 g1 IR feenfdel & sgaR 6 4 a8 &
<R gfegfaat o Sfvrat & Reee fvar 2 gfaufaat @1 famr
& T Jucter Soft & oRudaar ad etlRa Soi & gRads & BROT
3. 25.44 P05 (BT a9 B, 7.81 HRS) T df AT b U 30T
URa! 3TaerauT df 3 Ul & 3ifcd Fea § AT Bl gU aH v
1 @ 7 g foar man 2,

v. The Bank has amortized Rs. 33.35 crores during the year
(Previous Year Rs. 30.26 crores) for securities classified under
“Held to Maturity” category, in terms of accounting policy 17.2
and the amount has been charged to Profit and Loss Account by
reducing value of the respective securities to that extent.

vi. In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, the bank
has shifted securities within the categories during the year.
The consequential depreciation amounting to Rs. 25.44 crores
(previous Year Rs. 7.81 crores) on account of shifting securities
from “Available for Sale” category to “Held to Maturity” category
has been charged to Profit and Loss Account by reducing book
value of these securities.
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vii. d® T 396 gRT UATSId a1 &g UTOT St 7 B, 21.72 FRIS
(Teer af 5. 21.72 F=18) o1 9 fhar €. 5w ¥ 3. 20.32 RIS
(et af ©. 20.32 RIE) T 9w &A= THOT IBT & gAGSHHROT
2q TR YN SRR & 20§ 8. &g T dof # fee e faaer
3 O & e | g8 B T FeriRor T fesar e & i g faae
BT HRAT Ro1d 96 & feenfdel & SR ana R geaiiod (ot
T &,

8.8 UH Derivatives:

P) TIETER IR / M1 & WY
a) Forward Rate Agreement/ Interest Rate Swap

vii. The Bank has investment of Rs 21.72 crores (Previous
year Rs 21.72 crores) in two Regional Rural Banks (RRBs)
sponsored by the Bank. This includes Investment of Rs. 20.32
crores (Previous Year Rs 20.32 crores) by way of Share Capital
deposits, towards recapitalisation of the RRBs. Diminution in
value of Investment in one of the RRB has not been recognized
as the said investment has been valued at cost in accordance
with the RBI guidelines.

(3. PRIST H)

(Rs. in crores)

7 Items 2009-10 2008-09
i, | XU IRR & Bicad HcT The notional principal of swap agreements ST NIL =T NIL
i. | afe gt ger IR & T8d 10 ST QUT TR H 3B a1 & df 81 aTell SHIad & 2 NIL 9T NIL
Losses which would be incurred if counter parties failed to fulfill their obligations under the
agreements
iii. | H ot 8 W a9 gRT 3l duiRas T NIL T NIL
Collateral required by the bank upon entering into swaps
iv. |37 3T FHOT SATEH BT HpaoT T NIL T NIL
Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps
v. | %39 a8 &1 3 I The fair value of the swap book I NIL 9T NIL

w) fafmosamRe s Rgas

b) Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives:

d% 7 ¥ & SR fafoma amRa @aret R oo o =@ fee &

The bank has not undertaken exchange traded interest rate derivative transactions during the year.

M Fead | SR HH T uSeT

c) Disclosures on risk exposure in derivatives:

i. gmm()ualitative disclosure
6 ¥ 9 P SR BIS U e W7 (31.3118.09) ai=e= =& fopar.

Bank has not undertaken any overnight interest rate swap (OIS) transaction during the year.

ii. URHAOIHS e Quantitative Disclosure

(2. a#rs ff) (Rs. in crores)

waw. |foazor GO |  &1sT &= Fead
Sr. No |Particulars Currency Interest rate
Derivatives derivatives

(i) gJAd &T%CIHHE XhH Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount)

®) a) [ e d sa@ & W For hedging 9= NIL I NIL

W) b) YR B A€ For trading =T NIL =T NIL
(ii) TR Te1fer &7 g8t 7 37 [1]

Marked to Market Positions [1]

®) a) 3N Asset (+) =T NIL I NIL

W) b) <HdlLiability (-) 91T NIL 91T NIL
(iii) RO SR Credit Exposure [2] 91 NIL 9 NIL
(iv) 15T X B U ufaerd uRkad= o FHTfad Y91d (100* Gr.ar.o1) T =

Likely impact of one percentage change in interest rate (100*PV01) NIL NIL

®) a) 5 sUdfed T on hedging derivatives =T NIL T NIL

) b) UMNR IJdH UX on trading derivatives 91 NIL 91 NIL
(v) a¥ & SR uraT TaT 100* G Y 01 & ifedHaR 3R AT

Maximum and Minimum of 100*PV01 observed during the year

®) a) &F ST TR on hedging 91 NIL 91 NIL

) b) MR UX on trading 9 NIL 91 NIL
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®. IR-Frwres anfar (3. PRIS H)
a. Non Performing Assets: (Rs. in crores)
fra=or Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
i.  fraer s &t e frae 3k freares st (%) Net NPA to Net Advances (%) 1.21% 1.09%
ii. odiR-frearee snfadl 3 ge-a¢ Movement of Gross NPAs
31T 91 Opening Balance 620.77 572.60
¥ & SR gfkag= Additions during the year 629.93 675.71
¥ & R BT Reductions during the year 608.71 627.54
3fd 919 Closing Balance * 641.99 620.77
iii.  frae A=-frreares snfRaal # ge-ag Movement of Net NPAs
3717 91 Opening Balance 313.38 215.43
¥ & SR uRkaefT Additions during the year 300.26 234.64
¥ & SR BT Reductions during the year 186.11 136.69
sﬁf Y Closing Balance 427.53 313.38
iv. R-frees snfiadl & fere gaam= & Yc-d¢ Movement of Provision for NPAs
31T 91 Opening Balance 292.26 347.62
Sﬁé ¥ & SR fHar 4T yTae Add: Provisions made during the year 97.79 199.44
geTe: aY & AR AR UTaemT & §¢¢ STAg-Rid B
Less: Write off / write back of excess provisions during the year 184.86 247 .41
S'T\H Y Closing balance 205.18# 299.65*

* %5, 7.40 BRI XHH B TA.ALE B faesT IR ek graen & 31 SR 11 g5t § enfe fovar mar €.
* Retained provision on amount of sale of NPA amounting to Rs. 7.40 crores included has since being taken to TIER Il capital.

# U U318 S0 (.10 ) & UTaY &b ol . 4.12 BRI 97 enfHel € Siifch U0h.37MS.E).0eT UR UTdei &b 3ichid 31eiT & I T &,
# Includes Rs. 4.12 crores towards Provision of FITL (NPA) which is separately maintained under Provision on FITL.

YIS of 2l U= 0T 3Tt ot fa=or

Details of Loan Assets subjected to Restructuring:

2. ﬁs’ ﬁ) (Rs. in crores)

AR TaRn | A E HOTDT =
CDR : Others
Mechanism SME debt
Restructuring
A AT SREATSN B T No. of borrowers 9 780 6413
@1 g Fmfo 1T 13T Amount outstanding 621.06 79.53 581.72
Standard advances ] . o .
restructured g1+ (e £ i) i:I) Sacrifice [diminution in the fair value] 14.82 1.70 2799
D AU BT | SURSBAT3T dF F&T No. of borrowers 174 725
9: THERUT Sub- FHIAT T2 Amount outstanding 5.99 31.74
Standard advances ] . Mo .
restructured g1+ (e £ i) i=I) Sacrifice [diminution in the fair value] 0 027 0.91
fever 3t YRGS I T No. of borrowers 5 20 105
&I I THYRO BT AT Amount outstanding 9.86 0.70 31.51
Doubtful advances ] = L .
restructured g1 (a\wﬁ Eﬁ&[) Sacrifice [diminution in the fair value] 0 0.02 0.04
SURGATAT T F=T No. of borrowers 14 974 7243
DT BT AT Amount outstanding 630.92 86.22 644.97
Sacrifice [diminution in the fair value] 14.82 1.99 28.94
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M snfe gAREor s e affresoygAfafor s o ddi T Rl snRet a1 fraxor

c) Details of Financial assets sold to Securitisation /Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction:
(2. Ebﬁs ff) (Rs. in crores)

7d Item 2009-10 2008-09
i. | @Tat & TR No. of accounts 1 1
i |CEA/ARIA. BT IU T G BT G o (T BT FeaHR)

Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC 8.29 8.93
iii. gfahe Aggregate consideration 20.35 10.28
iv. auf 7 R @Al & dae ¥ g rfaRs gfawe

Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years QA Nl S Nl
v. |fad s HeT WX el @14 Aggregate gain over net book value. 12.06 11,858

) @R A R frda snfad o1 faxor

d) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased/sold
e 78 1R-feess faira snfaar & faazor
Details of non-performing financial assets purchased: (3. ﬁs’ ﬁ) (Rs. in crores)
fa=or Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
¥ & SR WRIT T @Al T F&T No. of accounts purchased during the year 2= Nil ST Nil
T IHIIT Aggregate outstanding 2= Nil ST Nil
T ¥, a9 & AR GRTTea @ o g S Nil 2= Nil
Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year
e IhIAT Aggregate outstanding S Nil QA Nil
gar 18 R-Frees foaxira snfvaat @ faazor
Details of non-performing financial assets sold: (2. Wg ﬁ) (Rs. in crores)
fd@=oT Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
IJ 7T @rdt @ AT No. of accounts sold 9= Nil I Nil
T IhIIT Aggregate outstanding 2 Nil 9= Nil
9T et gfeter Aggregate consideration received R Nil QL Nil

T) UaYU et 3T (4. 31R)

O 0F Bl TR B YITU HARST 3T 78.61% & [oTd! TUHT HRAF Refd dc & TRUA F. RBI2009-10/240 DBOD.No.BP.

BC.64/21.4.048/2009-10 f&=1d5 01.12.2009 & AR @ Tl'é g

e) Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR)

As on Balance Sheet Date Provision Coverage Ratio is 78.61% calculated as per RBI Circular No. RBI2009-10/240 DBOD.No.BP

BC.64/21.4.048/2009-10 dated 01.12.2009.

18.10 A 3Mf¥Tal & feTe 19 Provision for Standard Assets:

e Item 2009-10 2008-09
A 3Nl & fote graen Provision for Standard Assets 16.72 417
18.11 RIGR ST 3FIUT Business Ratios:

f&a=or Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
i, SHGRI iR & yfhera & o § @rst o sma

Interest Income as a percentage to Working funds 7.96% 8.33%
i. BRI iR & gfaera & o # 1R wret s

Non-Interest Income as a percentage to Working funds 1.17% 1.04%
i, BRHAGRI it & gfaera & o § aRaes ma ay

Operating Profit as a percentage to Working Funds 1.67% 1.75%
iv. 3MRadl U= gfawsa Return on Assets 1.01% 1.02%
v. Ui SHaRI SRIGR (ST T 310, aRIg #)

Business (Deposits plus advances) per employee (Rs. in crores) 8.27 714
vi.  Ofq SHIRT e (ECR? GIEEl fr) Profit per employee (Rupees in lacs) 4.86 4.28

(3. PRIS ﬁ) (Rs. in crores)
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18.12  3nf¥ T yaieH Asset Liability Management:
3N vd aamit & Ffvad #et o uRuddar &1 T

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities: . Eib_@fé' ff) (Rs in crores)
fera=or fm| 29@7| 8W 1415 28| 29fw@| 3wEW| 6uEH| 1afd| 3afd| s5TN EIE)
Particular Day| fm| f=| f=| sveaw| sftwe| sfte 12|sft@3ad| sftes| sifts|  Total

1 2to| 8to14|15t028| 29 Days| HIEdD HIg dd d®| afa®s| Overs
7days| days| Days to3 Over 3 Over 6 Over1| Over3 Year
Months|Months to| Months to| Yearto 3| Yearto 5
6 Months|12 Months Years Years
SRS Deposits 71.48| 815.65| 1227.09| 947.87| 5280.98| 7384.01| 10439.70| 24115.58 613.38| 448.49| 51344.27
31TIH Advances 75.14| 458.30| 671.24| 742.68| 2040.46| 3202.11 3158.97| 12258.71| 2672.87|10181.94| 35462.44
fafemT Investments 0| 146.11| 189.03 5.01 306.07 104.20 10.71 1396.23| 1517.71| 12019.16| 15694.23
3YR Borrowings 0.07 0.44 0.51 0 0 4.49 0 0 360.00f 1156.00| 1561.92
foeeit ger st
Foreign Currency
Assets 543.44| 81.55 28.04| 219.31 230.71 393.58 0.50 0.85 0 0.08| 1498.05
ferrelt o e
Foreign Currency
Liabilities 569.82( 0.0051 10.92 11.81 39.34 113.55 178.74 134.19 15.98 0 1074.37

18.13 3R &1 BT 3UR Lending to Sensitive sector:

@) YHUCT &F P FHoT faer (3. PRIS W)
a) Exposure to Real Estate Sector: (Rs. in crores)
Srofy Category 2009-10 2008-09

&) gcger 7T ager
a. Direct Exposure
i.  3MAaRNY 996 Residential Mortgages
- YT & & STTd SN B 8 T Jach 3aTT o7

Individual Housing Loans eligible for inclusion in priority sector 1784.06 1578.88

- 31 Others 950.68 803.53
ﬁgTotal 2734.51 2382.41

i.  aIfofsad YFUeT [U% &1+8 U &l Commercial Real Estate [FB+NFB] 442 51 674.75

ii. e dud # fafrem ufayfa @ware) ik swa ufayfagma faer
Investment in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other
securitised exposure

@) a) AR Residential 0.00 0.00
) b) arfufsas ‘i-cJT\ErCIET Commercial real estate 0.00 0.00

@) 3t FoT g
G 3T dab 3R 31 3marie faxira st o faer

b) Indirect Exposure
Exposure on National Housing Bank and other Housing Finance
Companies 1554.67 1077.30

ST STTreTE & & e T Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 4731.92 4134.46
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b. Exposure to Capital Market: (3. PS5 H) (Rs. in crores)

2009-10 2008-09

1 | sfrach 2R, aRadra dor uat, uRad=ar fedwrt 3ik sfdact 3@ mrealRas faferit & gfet #
yeaer faer faaast ga faftr sRe or & frow =& o 18 2.

Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of
equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt. 73.85 58.48

2 |3faach IR (emeisSTasiaes afgd) afel 3k fedwi, sfdact =@ areaRa et &
it # fafrem & foe safwar @ 2Rt w ar e smeR w shm.

Advances against shares or on clean basis to individuals for investment in equity shares (including
IPOs/ ESOPS), bonds and debentures, units of equity oriented mutual funds. 0.00 0.00

3 |3 Tl yaiTer o foTe 3T STet RIaRT a1 uRad-rg aist a1 URad-1d feaeRi ar gidact 3@
reaRas fferat @ gfet & grafies ufagfa & vu § foar mr 2.

Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or
units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security. 1.90 1.82

4 |3RT B Fulds yfoyfa a1 aRad=a aist a1 aRad-rg fsae=i a1 gfdact 3@ IReRe
fAferdt @ gfvret grT ufaya e a6 3 fosit yaite & foe 3 srafq st SrRiaRad=a
qiehaRada fedrieRmcT 3 TReaRe fifert oot smerfies aferyfer it o ot e e
Tal PR &,

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where
the primary security other than shares/convertible bonds/convertible debentures/units of equity

oriented mutual funds "does not fully cover the advances. 0.00 0.00
5 |2roR @l o uferyd qen swfayd 3 vd SRR ST qT IRR Agemadisi @ 3R J SR

@ T8 MR,

Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers

and market makers. 132.12 171.10

6 |l & U B BT G H A BUlAl P FiFac! H o & R B IR P P [0
2R/ ate/ fedwRi & gferfodi R a1 3 = 3R TR U BT WTghd T

Loans sanctioned to corporate against the security of shares/ bonds/ debentures or other securities
or on clean basis for meeting promoters contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation
of raising resources. 0.00 0.00

7 | snfera sferact gares ffat wR duf-at &1 qras ot

Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/issues. 0.00 0.00

8 | 2RI & yratHeb IR a1 uRad-rar afst ar uRacd-a fSeert a1 gieact 393 uRwaiRes et o
et & Hae # ddl gRI B g R Ffagar.

Underwriting commitments taken up by the banks in respect of primary issue of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds. 0.00 0.00

9 |9t IR & 1w 2R aaret & faduryor,

Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading. 0.00 0.00

10 |3T Ysh faferdt (dofigsa sk TR dafigea &) @1 few e et Tt o gfeact & axTaR qHe Se.
3R gAfeTE oI SR 0T 13T (YeTeT 3R 3ucder Q) & ST & e 0T & S,

All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) will be deemed to be
on par with equity and hence will be reckoned for compliance with the capital market exposure
ceilings (both direct and indirect). 7.05 7.05

Sils Total 214.92 238.45
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18.13 S Aol aR 2er fas

®)

fadelt ga1 o7 &=t & Hee #, St wRaa Reid d & feenfaden & SR, ud® <o & fae oRefa i smenfa sifew d6
B P AT B 1%3 3w &, st e, fex O <o 8 § & FHaa ffte o7 o snfaat & 1% 3 sifee 78 €, 318
o graee (e af g=) =16t fovar mar €.

Risk Category wise country exposure:

a) In respect of Foreign Exchange transactions, where the Bank's net funded exposure computed as per the guidelines of the RBI
with each country exceeded 1% of the total assets of the Bank, the Bank is required to make the provision. Since, Banks net
funded exposure in any country does not exceed 1% of total assets, no provision (Previous year Nil) is made.

@) d@® GRT UG JURGAT AT (THSITE), T ITRGAT AT (SHarver) I 37ere ot fear S
a¥ & SR § 7 fodil T wrneder 3uReEdr B faadaad o AT 3 siftes or T8 fean 2

b)  Single Borrower Limit (SGL), Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the Bank.

During the year the Bank has not exceeded the prudential credit exposure limit in respect of any Group account / single
borrower.
18.14 3Rf& 0T Unsecured Loans (3. PIS H) (Rs. in crores)
&=t Particulars 31.03.2010
1. &A% 31.03.10 @I T 3RT&d kUT Total Unsecured Loans as of 31.03.10 7210.53
2. (@) fo= 3 sngct ufosgfoat Ry ot 466.72
(a) Out of which secured by intangible securities
(@) T Ui T JIAT g 466.72
(b) Estimated Value of such collateral
M P / TRHRI TRCT gRT 9T 3323.73
(c) Secured by Bank / Govt. Guarantee

3 31T 3RT&d 2kRUT Other Unsecured Loans [1 - (2a + 2c)] 3420.08

18.15 T & ERM HRA ReTd 90 3 9§ R $I5 &5 el e

Reserve Bank of India did not subject the Bank to any penalty during the year.

18.16 T & R @TH TF &1+ g & < 3T6) T8 YTaeI= Ud 3T Redarsit &7 faavor.

Details of Provisions and Contingencies debited to the Profit and Loss Account during the year: (3. IS H) (Rs. in crores)
&RT Particulars 2009-10 2008-09
(i) |TR-Frearees snfeaar & foe U1aem Provision for Non-Performing Assets 96.71 199.44
(ii) IHR & o8 YTae= Provision for Income Tax 74.51 243.91
(iii) | 3T PR TTame (FaeT) Deferred Tax Liability (Net) 101.03 *(-) 127.92
(iv) |3/ @ & & feTU UTaem Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax 0.00 278
(v) | =St SrféreamT Ated T 3nadl & e Y@ Provision for Standard Assets 13.99 (-) 54.78
JifSd @l IR .u.ar # 31T & foe graes
Provision for Sacrifice in NPV on restructured accounts 10.77 0.00
USISEISITRES 2008 TSI & 3iaifd UTaer Provision under ADWARD 2008 Scheme () 7.27 0.00
(vi) fafqert o= sraeror & fow grger= Provision for Depreciation on Investments 26.12 21.05
(vii) | 3BT TTATE Contingent liabilities 0.00 18.84
(viii) | 31~ Others 13.46 0.38
313 Total 329.32 303.70

* %, 3.21 BxIg fuser auf %%‘U% Rs. 3. 21 crores pertains to previous years.
18.17 3SR & foTe yTger :
Provision for Income Tax:

®)

a)

a9 & AR el aut & AT smaa & fore foe e fafae gratei/ smral eres snee/ 3ifaR yraam™i & SR, fomar
3T 3T & &, . 10.75 BRI (TS ¥ . 38.53 HRIZ) Y e bF 07 feram wam & e 37 faer aner & Fwnfea o< forar
T 8.

During the year, pursuant to various assessments/ appellate/ rectification orders, excess provision for Income Tax pertaining to
earlier years, no longer required, has been written back to the tune of Rs. 10.75 crores (Previous Year Rs. 38.53 crores) and
included in the net profit for the year.
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@) J9 & SRM IADR & [T T Jrae @i qrer

b)  Amount of provision made for Income-tax during the year;

2. ﬁs’ ff) (Rs. in crores)

oA e oreem af

Current Year Previous Year

¥ & IR & feT¢ YTGE Provision for Income-tax for the year 74.28 282.44
He: fUse auf ?ﬂ; I aMURTT Less: Written back for earlier years (-)10.75 (-) 38.53
Hd IHH Net Amount 63.53 243.91

18.18 ufReR & v wufy # 1/3 3ier #ft enfirer @ frent sifes TR S & wrr vy wifia A 2, o e yer 2.

Premises include 1/ 3rd share in a property jointly owned by the bank with another Bank, as under: (3. I8 H) (Rs. in crores)

& & TR Bank's share 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
oTd Cost 2.34 2.34
Tfaa Hod=_T Accumulated Depreciation 0.86 0.62
YclU U HeT Written Down Value 1.48 1.72

Tt BT YT aY 2005-06 o QIR o5 7T 2T 3R ge{caiioae St T gel g3 7o DT 15.23 RIS (FUee a¥ # 15.57 aR18) 7.

The property was revalued during the year 2005-06 and the Written down Value of the revalued property is Rs. 15.23 crores (Previous

Year Rs. 15.57 crores).

18.19 i) UTESDI B! BRI Customer complaints:

&) a) ¥ P IRY ¥ aftad Fradi &I e No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year 38
d) b) 9 P R Ut FEBTadt B TR No. of complaints received during the year 1439
T) ¢ ¥ & RE X B Tl'sc 3TTaal & T¥=T No. of complaints redressed during the year 1467
5) d) Y P 3= H cfad i dF W& No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 10
iy  Sfdr eArPuTer gRT U< fope e 31 Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsmen:
&) a) ¥ P IRY ¥ IR Hrif~ad 3arst o T No. of unimplemented awards at the beginning of the year 0
@) b) |a¥ & R ST elvpuTe gRT IR 3raTet B TRe
No. of awards passed by Banking Ombudsmen during the year 5
M ¢) |a¥ & IR Braif~ad @St & WA No. of awards implemented during the year 3
) d) ¥ & 3 H IR Frafi-ad 3rarsf o =T No. of unimplemented awards at the end of the year 0
1820 do / WeRI TR grT YRfda sl (39  18.20 The advances covered by Bank/ Govt. Guarantee

I & (i) ¥ swie w &) F ifRm Tso wRerT grRT WRdHa
. 2686.16 D15 (o) a9 ©. 2362.56 HRIs) A 2.

18.21  Tiehemm § 4fH & a1 @ic, ST BIh! 7T J b & deol H
¥, Afee 390 IR 7 dsiiaxvr o faftres sttoanfasan gof =& g¢
off, B aTAM TR HIG (IT Hedidh RUIE & YR W) TRIR
® qea # wnfia fosar mar @, ofker § enfia & 18 e w@a
B.1.57 BRI DI YSITd SIRTET (Y: Feaid- sTRI&d) 7 s fosar
T 2. fedieh 1 31 2009 I Uge & U8 PR fohaT T, aaH au
2009-10 3 SR 9 @D H [l | 37 3 BT gqeaiaT
et femar

18.22 AEHT A (B.8H) & AR Ude :
) OGS AN - TeH 5 & IR Jae :

a9 & R AT Aifa & B aRkad= T&l.
@) WGP A - TeH 10 & 3R Ude :

a¥ &5 SR §e 7 31T foett oY sraet anfid & gHeteT Tet
fema.
M AEiST AN - T 11 & 3R UdHe:

av & fore fafrwar 3feR 3 g8 Mae 310 .33.26 )15 (et af
$.43.86 TRIE) 1Y &I olval § 577 aF 718 &,

[shown in Schedule — 9 Para B (ii)] include Rs. 2686.16 crores
[Previous Year Rs. 2362.56 crores] guaranteed by various State
Governments.

18.21 Two plots of land at Gandhidham, which were in the
possession of the bank since long but in regard to which legal
formalities for registration were not complete, have been included
in the value of premises at their present market value (based
on valuation reports obtained). The net amount added to the
premises Rs. 1.57 crores has been credited to Capital Reserves
(Revaluation Reserve). The same was done prior to 1st April,
2009. No assets in this block have been revalued during the
current year 2009-10.

18.22 DISCLOSURE AS PER ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (AS):
a) Disclosure as per AS 5:

There is no change in any accounting policy during the year.
b) Disclosure as per AS 10:

The Bank has not revalued any of its fixed assets during the
year.

c) Disclosure as per AS 11:

Net income on account of exchange differences credited in the
Profit and Loss account for the year is Rs. 33.26 crores (Previous
Year: Rs. 43.86 crores).
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°)  OWieT A6 e 15 (FNTUd) & THR UHe - HHART o
d) Disclosure as per AS 15 (revised) - Employee Beneéfits:
gTCCHC 3T TS HBCCH AT 35T GRT SRI @D AFDI b AR FFATANGT FTHTC Ydhe B 7T &.
The following information is disclosed in terms of Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

(Rs. in Crores)

Ut Gratuity| Y% Pension

(i) | 7T SHifee SAM 3uKT H ee e €. Principal Actuarial Assumptions used:

7d f&¥@13e & Discount Rate Prev 8.00% 8.00%
Tﬁf o snfaal W UTqwa dF & Rate of Return on Plan assets Prev 8.00% 8.00%
Clj 30 gfg Salary Escalation Prev 5.00% 5.00%
A f8¥hi3e X Discount Rate Current 8.00% 2.00%
A it snfiaat R gfdwa @ &% Rate of Return on Plan assets Current 8.00% 8.00%
CREIGECGE ?ﬁ?«;: Salary escalation Current 4.00% 4.00%
(i) | aiRea % ufkad= g=1faY areft afersT Table showing change in Benefit Obligation:
¥ & 3RY T ST Liability at the beginning of the year 235.15 794.90
15T ¢TI Interest Cost 18.82 61.34
AH 9T @RI Current Service Cost 8.82 8.88

gd a1 @mrd (AR e @) Past Service Cost (Non-Vested Benefit) = =
Cﬁ T AT (%-I'%H o1T¥) Past Service Cost (Vested Benefit) - -
3iex 37dfRd ST Liability Transfer in - -
IER AR Saar Liability Transfer out - -

Ycxl T4 Benefit paid (17.40) (74.14)
SHifhe (ATH) / T UR BT Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation (22.80) 69.55
qY & 37T § <IATE Liability at the end of the year 222.59 860.53
(iii) | ForavsT st & 3 gea oY aifetat Table of Fair value of plan Assets:

¥ & 3RY H Fraree st &1 staa gea 215.13 782.29
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year

st snfeaat wR arufard ufawa Expected return on Plan Assets 16.58 61.86
3791&T Contributions 0.87 28.00

310 YA I 37dR0T Transfer from other Company - -
3= U BT 37ARUT Transfer to other Company - -

e ¢TH Benefit Paid (17.40) (74.14)

o o N [a LY o . .

AT TR WX dMHIThdD oATH / (8 :‘-I) Actuarial Gain / (Loss) on plan assets 7.41 4.25

¥ & 3fd ® frfora sniaar & 3faa gea

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year 222.59 802.26

feiRa fosar staren oo dmifees am@E)

Total Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) To br recognised 30.21 (65.30)
(iv) |afad aaar &1 faafor Recognition of Transitional Liability:

3IRY ¥ gRkadl ST Transitional Liability at start 14.59 12.61

¥ & R FreffRa afkadf Saar Transitional Liability recognized during the year 4.86 4.20

3id % ufkad! <IdT Transitional Liability at end 9.73 8.41
(v) |ferots snfaal o arsfas gfeet Actual return on Plan Assets:

Tars sl w 3mfard ufawer Expected Return on Plan Assets 16.58 61.86

Tars snfaar w aifes omey / (& :'-l) Actuarial gain/(loss) on Plan Assets 7.41 4.25

firs snfiadl u= arafad gfidwe Actual return on Plan Assets 23.99 66.11
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(Rs. in Crores)

TN Gratuity

U3 Pension

(vi)

T UF H SNFHE IHF Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet:

gy & 3id § <TaT Liability at the end of the year

222.59

860.53

av & 3id ¥ e snfaar Eb‘rﬁ?ﬂﬂf\’l Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year

222.59

802.26

3R Difference

(58.27)

CIERIIRSG] Ci\?f REIRSRIGE Unrecognized Past Service Cost

rfereriRe afkad! <o, Unrecognized Transition Liability

9.73

8.41

et o7 7 feiRd IhH Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet

OGS

(49.86)

(vii)

319 faa=or 3 fSrerffa aa Expenses recognized in the Income Statement:

JIH a1 @NTT Current Service Cost

8.82

8.88

&ToT AT Interest Cost

18.82

61.34

st snfeaar oR srfard ufawa Expected Return on Plan assets

(16.58)

(61.86)

EIRG) tla‘-@aa Td (ﬂ? e ¢1T¥) Past Service Cost (Non Vested Benefit) recognized

TeTRa Clﬁ NEIGRS ( e o1T¥) Past Service Cost (Vested Benefit) recognized

ufkad! eaamit &1 FafRor Recognition of Transition Liability

4.86

4.20

SHifche e AT g Actuarial Gain or Loss

(30.21)

65.30

oY Ud g1 oRg # 2NiHeT &I Expenses Recognized in P&L

(14.29)

77.86

(viii)

e ua &1 T Balance Sheet reconciliation:

3R faet <TaT Opening Net Liability

5.43

0.00

ag SQ?EI\_-B AINIX Expenses as above

(14.29)

77.86

TSI &7 373 Employers Contribution

(0.87)

(28.00)

et U7 H MHA IHhH Amount recognized in Balance Sheet

(9.73)

49.86

(ix)

31 f4a=oT Other Details:

T IS a1 ay & 1w 15 f& & 9a @ &= W YIa= dF e & qord {6 iftraaw
IHH .3 ,50,000 AT & B ANSHT B 3FFR &

Gratuity is payable at the rate of 15 days salary for each year of service subject to
maximum of 3,50,000 or as banks scheme

Yo Jid JaT aY o o0 I & 1/66 BT &% IR YA BF ST & G2 16 i 50% &

Pension is payable at the rate of 1/66 salary for each year of service subject to
maximum of 50%

o g U GRT < T T o SR Bl & Sife praidl oF e e /i o
3MYfT T ea # X g AT # gaferd ufthar 3 3R 8l 2.

Salary escalation is considered as advised by the Company, which is in line with the
industry practice considering promotion and demand and supply of the employees

Te=dT BT T¥=AT. No. of Members

10525

10525

CLERCILEIGE Salary per Month

24.15

24.15

3MTeT 99 o AU 372&T Contribution for next year

)

anf¥aat 31 Sioft Category of Assets:

YR IRBR AT Government of India Assets.

PIURE di Corporate bonds.

IERERLIRINE Special Deposits Scheme

XT3 HXBX State Govt.

Tuta Property

31T Other

222.59

802.26

STRdr gIRT Taterd M= Insurer Managed Funds

@ Total

222.59

802.26
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¥ & <R fafm drafafr st @ & fore fe e geamt (@Radt daar & 1/541 afea) & fyaor FrgaR &

Details of Provisions (including 1/5th of transitional liability) made for various long-term employee benefits during the year are as

follows: (3. PRI ) (Rs. in crores)

A9, |3 Erafaftr @t Other long-term benefits 13T Amount
Sr. No.

1 Y9 Pension 77.88

2 3TdPIYT THAIBIIT Leave encashment 9,73

3 |UCT Gratuity (-)8.85

4 |focR Stfaet Silver Jubilee (-)0.02

5 ‘Fﬁﬁ'\q Resettlement 0.28

6 37dHIYT 13T AT Leave Travel Concession 210

7 | SORY 35969 Sick Leave 3.83

Ddl Total 84.95

T HedTd &b 3TUR TR HHART A4l 31aTd U2, THCT, 3BT FHaIHRUT 3R cT@idh-T A UUH 15 (FLNE) & AR HHAIRDT &
3= et & foe uraen= fosar war 8. 3o 31, IR Tt RaTBR AT GIRT SERIFId SHART @l U= oraid HiHd-15 (F2NTer)
& 3FIUTCH & feTe 31 AT 2007 BT FHHUIBIC a3 B 1/5 B & BRUT 3. 21.58 I8 (TUeel a9-21.58 TRIS) I AT BT a9 & ARM
T vd g1 @ § g fear mm £, 3Ty ShuuThlel Sadmai B AT 6. 43.15 TRIS .

Provision has been made for Employees Benefits viz.; Pension, Gratuity, Leave Encashment and other Employees benefits in
accordance with AS-15 (revised)on the basis of actuarial valuation. In addition, a sum of Rs. 21.58 crores (Previous Yeear: 21.58
crore) has been changed to Profit and Loss account during the year, being 1/5th of transitional Liability as on 31st March, 2007,
in compliance with AS-15 (revised) on Employees Benefits notified by the ICAI. The amount of unrecognized transitional liability is
Rs. 43.15 crores.

5) ST A 17 & ded @8 RAfeT:
AR Rold 36 & FeNTe [CRmcel & 3R eRaid AM® -17 W, 36 & TRareH! df JTdiHe [Us 31 'RISToIT "Hke” / "<
dfdsm, "Rea 3T @1 enfhe des HRISR @og 3R "3 dfdsm aRara # FagarR aied faear mr g,

c) Segment Reporting under Accounting Standard 17:
As per the Reserve Bank of India revised guidelines on Accounting Standard -17, the Bank's Operations are classified into Primary Segment,
i.e., the business segment comprising of Treasury, Corporate/WWholesale Banking, Retail Banking and Other Banking Operations, as follows:

PRITR @US ST raRe/ ot SfbT Readfen 3= dfd uReane oo

Business Segment * Treasury Corporate/ wholesale Retail Banking Other Banking Total

ot Banking Operations

Particulars * o ay | fea oy | adamad | e o | adamad | frea o | adamad | e af | adamad | fea o
Current | Previous| Current| Previous Current | Previous | Current | Previous | Current | Previous

year year year year year year year year year year

XT5¥d Revenue 1217.01 948.11 2261.41 1844.48 999.34 935.79 121.23 149.23 4598.99 | 3877.61

qRUTH Result 5.5 15.04 683.94 517.98 272.98 193.26 105.63 111.93 1068.10 838.21

iR sriafea =

Unallocated Expenses 381.56 296.78

ORI o Operating Profit 686.54 541.43

ATIHY Income Taxes 175.29 118.77

STHTYRUT TH/E |

Extraordinary Profit/Loss 0 0

f5aeT e Net Profit 511.25| 422.66

U8 HTAT Segment Assets 19566.35| 17052.08 | 27553.42| 22119.35| 955513 | 8545.81 141.29 0| 56816.19| 47717.24

R sriafea snfeaar

Unallocated Assets 770.39 742.27

sl 3T|ﬁ¥1'C|T Total Assets 57586.58 | 48468.34

WUS I Segment Liabilities 19566.35| 17052.08 | 25105.46| 19907.34 9210.34| 8057.14 867.70| 1113.33| 54749.85| 46129.89

FE——— -

Unallocated Liabilities 2836.73 | 2329.62

WQ'Q?IT@ Total Liabilities 57586.58 48468.34

Gok] a%rs‘ Titoy (¥n E‘*ﬁ) WUS =&l 2. The Bank does not have any secondary (geographical) segment.
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oot

1)

3R TUS AN & HRUT WUE URUTH FAIATS & d16 & Hdend ©, fofe dd gRT ik & 3 aTell 37R0T Jed FawT & IR
R u ferar mar 2.

Segment Results are after adjustment on account of Inter Segment Cost, which has been considered on the basis of Transfer
Price mechanism decided by the Bank.

2)  Picad 3R I NMTT, aansil 31X e f Bis far mr 2.
Assumed Inter Segment Assets, Liabilities and Revenue have been ignored.
3) oy uRared # §& & Jgul ety fafer ardwiferar &1 Jwmaer &
Treasury Operations consist of entire treasury investment portfolio of the Bank.
4y R anafea eoamit ¥ goi vd srRefaar anfier &
Unallocated liabilities include Capital and Reserves.
) IFUIESE gRI IR A@i® AFG 18 3R AR Rad 96 & feenferde & sruem # wafta ot & d=-aa1 & wefta R
R gwgafeemed.
f)  Incompliance with Accounting Standard 18 issued by ICAl and RBI guidelines, details pertaining to Related Party Transactions
are as under:
uﬁgyfgmaﬂ' Key Management Personnel
am 9T e 3rafér SUCI R R
Name Designation ltem Period (Tua #) (Tua #)
Amount | Loan Amount
(inRs.) (inRs.)
A S, @A | 37eUET va Ye Y Hewid | Fdad ud uRateri 01.04.2009 ¥ 31.03.2010 ® | 22,06,029| T Nil
Shri D.L.Rawal CMD Salary Emoluments & Incentives | 01.04.2009 to 31.03.2010
MU IT | Yd HRIUES eed | Hdad ud aRateat 01.04.2009 ¥ 28.02.2010 dd | 16,37,801| = Nil
Shri Bhasker Sen | Ex-ED Salary Emoluments & Incentives | 01.04.2009 to 28.02.2010
M odad HRIUAS Heed Haa vd gRaferat 01.03.2010 § 31.03.2010 dH 82,550 = Nil
Shri A.K.Dutt ED Salary & Emoluments 01.03.2010 to 31.03.2010
B) 9 9R 316 - AEieT 91D
g) Earning per Share - Accounting Standard 20:
gfer 3R 3751 Earning Per Share 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
gfer IR 3751 gt vd &I (3.) EPS Basic & Diluted* (Rs.) 17.83 14.74
faders vu # (TUA FRIg H) IR A T 81 O & 3R faa
Net Profit as per Profit and Loss Account Considered as numerator (Rs. in crores) 511.25 422.66
e i & 20 H gfaact SRt o wika sitaa e
Weighted average number of Equity share considered as denominator 28,68,23,200 28,68,23,200
9 &7 3ifehd T (3.) Nominal value of share (Rs.) 10/- 10/-
*Sﬂ'fr ﬁ's‘ E‘I‘i\ﬂﬁ?ﬁq‘mé IR &1 €. *There are no diluted potential equity shares.
)  aufed faxia faaxfor - aaieos a9 21: h) Consolidated Financial Statements-Accounting
3o @ B eSS T ¥ o g e A oy g oeraard T . o .
i The Bank is not having any subsidiaries, therefore, this

7)) IR IR - AGDHT A 22

P 7 ARG Fa! DR HLRIH GRT STRT [T 7T "3 R A b
D 22 ' DI Y& BT 3 b &, 3R dagaR SR

accounting Standard does not apply.
i) Taxes on Income - Accounting Standard 22:

The Bank has complied with requirements of “AS 22 on
Accounting for Taxes on Income” issued by ICAIl and accordingly,

et ud T3 B Tge Bl TS &

deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized.
The net balance of Deferred Tax Asset as on 31st March, 2010

31 AT, 2010 BT 3. 176.61 PUs (UBel a¥ B. 277.64 FRIS) I
IPA B TN *X Ml & e 9w A F=fatad
Wg:

amounting to Rs. 176.61 crores (Previous Year Rs 277.64
crores) consists of the following:
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(®. Ng ﬁ) (Rs. in crores)

2009-10 2008-09
3 &% 3nf¥di Deferred Tax Assets
#=-Feess snfaat / areired ol & feTu UTgen= Provision for NPAs / Bad Debts 69.74 101.84
31T THAIPROT Leave Encashment 25.67 22.38
Tg.E1T. Qﬁ'ij‘fr!ﬁ J et aRkentérd fiffam Amortized premium on HTM securities 44.59 40.01
(RN HodgT & foTu gTgeI= Provision for depreciation on investments -24.46 *73.88
EIRT 40 (V) (3MST) & 37dqifd 3aidrt T Expenditure disallowable under Section 40(a)(ia) 2.05 2.05
EEERNICERIERIE] Wage revision provision 47.59 23.79
uRuaa araer faaen Hal Tfger v g1 / ey (-) Loss/ Profit (-) on unmatured Forward Forex contract 4.83 15.32
uRuaa Trater s/ ATt iR deef graen Adhoc provision on matured Term Deposits 3.29 2.60
USISYEI3RUH & o8 U@ Provision for ADWARDS 1.82 0.00
U373 1.0 & [oT¢ UTaen= Provision for FITL 3.98 0.00
e 3TRAATT % 3Nt Total Deferred Tax Assets 179.10 281.87
HETU: TG & 2T Less: Deferred Tax Liabilities
Iroredar afed Rer s IR HIE ™I Depreciation on Fixed Assets including software 249 4.23
e 3T &% I Total Deferred Tax Liabilities 2.49 4.23
I 11 (3 3nfRara) # gIfdy wiY st @R st & fae o 17661 77 64
Net balance of DTA shown in the Schedule 11 (Other Assets) ! i

* 3. 3.21 I8 fuset avf & APl *Rs. 3.21 crore pertains to previous years.

7 e faia faaxioml § aeanh dufsmal § FReraraaieod
- TG IS - 23

e o7 @ fafdr &1 § & P18 Feant s Tal &

?) o< fou e frar $e9 - AEieT A 24: I¥ P RM §b 7
B fopardery §e Fat fopar.

3) AEPHT AP - 28: TIUT B T H b nfaar § pig
SO a1 A&} & f5H W oo 7 ved 28 @) A8 2.

g)  UITUF, HHD IAT3T aUT e AG Nl IR ogidT

UMD - 29 B STINIR HcheH.

¥ & ERM d6 7 AT IR R Jwlad a1 deied & foe
3. 70 PRIS BT e Yrae foar {5t aratae HeRor wRdra 46
T Ud HHART I & aTd BRRAMT IR EHAER & §1& BT

) oAt & o e § ge-ae

j- Accounting for Investments in Associates in
Consolidated Financial Statements - Accounting Standard
-23

As on the Balance Sheet Date there is no such associate of the
Bank.

k. Discontinuing Activities - Accounting Standard - 24:
No activity has been discontinued in the Bank during the year.

I.  Accounting Standard - 28: In the opinion of the
Management, there is no impairment to its assets, to which
Accounting Standard - 28 is applicable.
m. Disclosure in terms of Accounting Standard - 29: on
provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets.
During the year, Bank has made adhoc provision of Rs. 70
crores for proposed wage revision on estimated basis, which
will be crystallized on signing the agreement between IBA and
employee unions.
i) Movement of Provisions for Liabilities

(3. a?@rs :},’) (Rs. in crores)

fara=oT Particulars B A/ S RADATE
Legal Cases / Contingencies

1 3TFET 2009 P AT Balance as at 1st April, 2009 21.38

¥ P <R YTae= Provided during the year 0.15

¥ & SR= gg<h 13T Amounts used during the year -

¥ & R geamafdd Reversed during the year 0.15

31 AT, 2010 PI Y Balance as at 31st March, 2010 21.38

SRIIHA / I3 & HIer Timing of Outflow/Uncertainties 31T Not ascertainable
ﬁaaqﬁtg% Reimbursement Expected T Not ascertainable
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i) SMEHRHG AR B HEY H JoE UF B SHFA-12 B A
T (i) ¥ (v) 3T 9T & AR G [af e YHR B 3Mh D
A3 B T &, T Rt B TS qeT Afaer rerar arat | A ferd
PUISTAT B YR W IITHIed D Ts &. 7 MbTd Sadni &
BRUT SEHT =MD TIIPRON GRT baH! & MIeR & aRom,
Tfgersit & fees, TRET A, AT U4t & g¥diaRoT, gl & e
anfE o= ForelR . o=y wrmet § st o gfgfd & Fmenn &1 gar
TAIHT 39 &R W) 9499 Ta1 2.

18.23 T Y@=
&b P U PIS TeT U el .
18.24  IIRf&fAl | 3RO

¥ & RN d® 7 (Uee Heaifhd TR @ faer & gaeaieT
IR IR yHmg B Bredy) ARG & B8 B0 MR T
G

18.25  da GRT SR gapicil MLART (Ua.31.) BT YabeA

fs §o o focwr § @ FeO® HU / I e &, gatae §6 3
facelt frome & ol & T & & fow B gdiar smear o
SR & e &

18.26 d® Pl 4 I BRIAR A T. 8.33 IRIS Yo / BHH B
B H YT ge.
18.27  BRIGR Hici-er (SI) Hisel & Aregs 3 dfcst Fare gar

A B IR F Ifa & GG | Gabed a2l 39 Ga¢ § §b g7 fbe T
g, aRua § SLalaNSr I, O).ee aIRN.63/22.01.009/2009-10 P

i)  Item Nos. (I) to (V) of the Schedule 12 of the balance
sheet on contingent liabilities, reflect the various types of
contingent liabilities categorized according to their nature. These
amounts are estimated on the basis of documents related to the
basic contracts or claims made. Outflow on account of these
contingent liabilities would depend upon the outcome of disposal
of litigations by the respective judicial authorities, execution
of contracts, invocation of guarantees, devolvement of LCs,
settlement of claims etc. The possibility of any reimbursement in
such cases is not ascertainable at this stage.

18.23 Floating Provisions
Bank does not have any floating provisions.
18.24 Draw Down from Reserves

Bank has not drawn any amount from the Reserves (except
effect on Revaluation Reserve due to sale of premises earlier
revalued) during the year.

18.25 Disclosure of Letter of Comforts (LOCs) issued by banks
Since the Bank does not have any subsidiary/branch in overseas,
Bank has not issued any Letter of Comfort [LOC] to meet the
requirement of foreign regulator.

18.26 Bank has received Rs.8.33 crores as fees/commission
from bancassurance business.

18.27 Disclosure regarding progress in respect of extending
banking services through the Business Correspondents (BC)
model and the initiatives taken by banks in this regard. As per

SR, circular no DBOD.No.BL.BC.63/22.01.009/2009-10
18.28  ITHT AFITIT BT HATHROT 18.28  Concentration of Deposits.
2. HRIS ff) (Rs. in crore)
fa=or Particulars IBH Amount
T 98 STATHAT3N Bl el STHIE Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 8524.03
d BI ot STHISN H ST TS STHISAT BT Ufererd s

Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest deposits to total deposits of the Bank

18.29 31fiMT &T heldxuT Concentration of Advances

2. Ebff's’ ff) (Rs. in crore)

f&a=or Particulars I9 Amount
a9 58 30 & el 31TIH Total Advances of twenty largest Advances 7215.88
d% & o AT § 9 g8 ST & STmT & ufaea 1479

Percentage of Advances of twenty largest Advances to total Advance of the Bank

18.30 YT BT BelBRUT Concentration of Exposure

2. ao—@rg ff) (Rs. in crore)

fa=or Particulars IH9 Amount
I TS JURBATS / TTEDT B PoeT 0T
Total Exposure of twenty largest borrowers/ customers 7221.53

JETHATIT / TTEDT B d6 & et 0N H ST T3 JURGASN / DT & 0N BT Ffererd

Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/ customers to total Exposure of the Bank on borrowers/ customers

11.15

18.31  EA.UL.E BT DHIBRUT Concentration of NPA (3. BIS H) (Rs. in crore)
fda=oT Particulars I$HH Amount
oY IR T.U1.T WAl & goct 0T Total Exposure to top four NPA Accounts 108.39
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18.32 &=71a T.UY.T Sector wise NPA

fda=or Particulars 39 &= A ot A0 e.d.E ST afoer
Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances in that sector

BT U Trag fghar semT Agriculture & Allied activities 1.68%

JT (&8 vd o1, HqeTq U9 §8 399 Industry (Micro and Small, Medium & large) 1.74%

Jamv Services 5.90%

I 0T Personal Loans 1.24%

18.33 ©1.4t.T # Tueae Movement of NPAs

. 6‘)‘@[3 ff) (Rs. in crore)

fa=or Particulars IH9 Amount
JaveT UF.A1.T (01 3T 2009 & 3R 372T81) Gross NPA (Opening Balance as on 1st April, 2009) 620.77
¥ & SR NS T (AT TA.91.T) Additions (Fresh NPA) during the year 629.93
39-T1T Sub-Total - A 1250.70
YCIu Less:
(i) 393 Upgradations 228.40
(i) g (FFT fpe e @rat § o T8 a¥Iel P BISdR) 195.43
Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded accounts)
(iii) ¢ Tt forRd T Write Offs 184.88
39 - I Sub Total - B 608.71
TheT BT (31 AT, 2010 HI 3Td2Y) Gross NPA (Closing Balance as on 31st March, 2010) 641.99
18.34 faeht anfiqai ea.tt.v vd I151%a Overseas Assets NPA & Revenue (3. IS H) (Rs. in crore)
fda=or Particulars I®HH Amount
Tl ST Total Assets 2 Nil
el TT.ULE Total NPAs 2 Nil
T XT51Rd Total Revenue QL Nil
18.35 do 7 folt v . &t o1y 7 fpan 2. 18.35 Bank has not sponsored any SPVs.
18.36 dFH A 5T | ol qaT SERToT foidl AT @exT g 18.36  Bank has engaged M/s Zero Micro Finance Savings

TR gdell g onrad geer & df Jam yee &1 & foe RER
gfafaier & B0 § A6 SIRT A1SHhT Ble-—7 A Fuic ISy
eI YT yarar b ou § 399 v fofed acs & Jam ot €. d
BRI 150 & gt Tofel # foxir IR & U2 URaTsHT & g
PRITR Frafrer & o0 7 qa% {61 Thaced W3S e giarfieor
UeIdr & BT U U9 BREA=R—d SN Sedd U SIS
fafies & rer Jusitar smo= fean g,

18.37  TUeel a9 & 37ids! Bl TTe a¥ & 3Tl & T e a1
& foTe SawdargaIR 3¢ qivfed / geatiied / qAedatrd faar

T 8.

Support Foundation as Business Correspondent with M/s A Little
World as technology provider for extending Banking Services in
Bhuj and Banaskantha districts of Gujarat State and Union Territory
of Dadra and Nagar Haveli. Bank has also entered into MOU with
M/s FINO Fintech Foundation as Business Correspondent and with
M/s Financial Information Network & Operations Ltd. as technology
provider for Financial Inclusion Pilot Project in Durg District of
Chattisgarh State.

18.37  Previous years figures have been regrouped / reclassified/
re-arranged, wherever necessary, to make them comparable with the
current year's figures.
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1.

g &A1 d% & 31 W, 2010 & Fa go--UF qr 39D
1T Her 3 dRg DI TEE AT b enH-E o’ dr
orar-uRterot fosar €, form R gRT ot uRiférd 20 2eane aem
21 &g Fraterar o fFaxforr o enfae €, s oar Wierhi
GRT ot WRITETd 846 TTRATC & T 261 SIRAT3T dF oT@m URIel
SIRAT3T BT TI AR Ra7d deb gRT a6 ot faw e e e
% 3R far T & IR o Wifda st & S H
AT & 2.61%, STARTRAT B 8.87%, TATSHIA 37T GoeT AT
3T & 0.72% 3R ST DT oA TSN FT & 4.03% BIT
g T gaT U7 & I R aRIE B FA 9y & faw Taar
yaTe fga=or oF Y orar wrer o €. g foxira faarott & foe d%
geee foeR 8. '9RT a1fed 3109 ol ORIeT & 3R 0R 5
forire foaRolt W 3199 Ao aeh BT 2.

EA 10T CTIETORTETT YR § AHII: ¥dlhd oIRaTIRIeT THe st
& IR B & 37 TGS B 3er & {5 &n oaien o
IS Td 39@T HAaaT $9 TBR B 16 34 Ul gihgeh
3eaT U 2 o6 3 faxira faaxor fessit wmges e 9 <fea
el €. craTRrer § FHAT 3R WX eIt 3R faxia faaxott
& Ude & A F AT T URIE0T enfHeT ST &. orear wier
H URTh or i NIl 3R TS gRT fhT T Heeaqut 3rgami
& 3HA & ATI-A1 T 30 3 o faavon & uqad &1
Heaid A SntHe 2rar & & favar & b &R orar wiem g IR

T HA BT GIhYh IR U RN &

q o3 3R a3 &It e dfce fafvrme siferfom, 1949 @F
TR S & 99 BiY "% 3R @ ¥ duR fer e E.

IR IRT 1 31k 2 7 Ffde oramRrer & TaBit $ s ik
STHIT U (3UHHT BT 3151 31X 3iaRoT) 3w, 1970 / 1980
ERT nuférd iR 398 T UdbeT bl T3 B 310eT B el
g Rurd o=t & 1 o of fewforat o sy 18 & fewofy
=T 18.1 W fobE TU 00T & SRR -

F) 3R ITET Adl HI Graredt & IRIYS e 31 9T
2010 dd HR foram T & 31X 39 T o gfchan
SR 2.

@) SFUM afediRfeRe=t & Fgem dum 36 yad §& 9
AT BT B HOD AR H STRT 2.

) YA & foTe < #i T g, foe @ are e e g,
THTINE THTATS, TaT ITET Ud JHTINEN 5§ 9T o= aTet
SIRITAT P ST TATEN Tl ¥R R1d S e 3/ St
DI SR & wTdt # g yfdftear &, 5T Ty
TARITS BRI SR &,
39GTH TAT 3T YHeA/3IUEl R 4T §9b THIT BT T
et e T g,

1.
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We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Dena Bank
as at 31st March, 2010 and the Profit and Loss Account
annexed thereto for the year ended on that date, in which
are incorporated the returns of 20 branches and 21 Regional
Offices audited by us, 846 branches audited by other auditors
and 261 branches which were not subject to audit. The
branches audited by us and those audited by other auditors
have been selected by the bank in accordance with the
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India. The unaudited
branches account for 2.61% of advances, 8.87% of deposits,
0.72% of interest income and 4.03% of interest expenses. We
have also audited the cash flow statement annexed to the
balance sheet for the year ended on that date. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the bank’s management.
Our responsibility is to express our opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing
standards generally accepted in India. These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of
material mis-statements. An audit includes examining on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosure
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have
been drawn up in Forms "A" and "B" respectively, of the Third
Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949.

Subject to the limitations of the audit indicated in paragraphs
1 & 2 above, and as required by the Banking Companies
(Acquisition and Transfer of Undertakings) Act, 1970 / 1980
and subject to the limitation of disclosures required therein, we
report that: as referred to in Note No.18.1 of Schedule 18 of
Notes to Accounts: -

(a) Initial matching of entries in Inter-Branch Accounts has
been done up to 31st March, 2010 and the process of
reconciliation is in progress.

(b) Balancing of subsidiary ledgers/ registers and reconciliation
with general ledgers is in progress at some branches.

(c) There are outstanding entries in the accounts of demand
drafts payable, drafts paid ex-advice, suspense accounts,
dividend / interest warrants, refund orders paid, clearing
adjustments, reconciliation between the service branches
and participating branches in respect of clearing, balances
with Reserve Bank of India and other banks which are in
the process of reconciliation / balancing / adjustments.

Impact of the above, as also on the other disclosures /
ratios is not ascertained.
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5. &m o Rté o # s

(i)

(iii)

o fewforat v 3aw Sfeafad srxfoal & Ay afsd
IRIE 4 § & 7 gAYy fewforat & o ) dqor gaRy
I A 3R BARY aiH I % 3R R aeT g4 few e
TEFROT & IR 05 Ja a1 afeat § g yeffa:

(@) Ae@qut orar Aifar 3k 39w & 78 fewfirat &
T UTS et U 3T 3T RT & A1 U7 3R
Ter & d 9 U9 3fud ou ¥ duR fear mr @ 6
3G9 31 AT, 2010 BT d6 & BRIGA BT Tl 3R
we o 3ufierd & 9.

mecyul arar Aifeat 3k 9 wdfta fewfort &
1y ufeSd @ i o1 31 |1, 2010 BT A a9
P oY B dIdTdD AT DT il &.

Thel yarg foexur 31 |, 2010 ®F AT oY B
qHhCT UaTE df ardfdes feif gortdar 2.

n

EARI AiH STHGRI B9 f9eaT & AR ARI el
TRIET & YT &g 89 THT Saede AU Bd TICIHR0T
gt fep & 3R 3 HAITSTD ureT €.

P P AHTER, 311 FIRI STHBRT H 3E &, T P HAUBR
GEERS
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5. We further report that:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

PANRSAIG WSS, Ha Ul Uik vos eaiaees HA & AT IS B.
TS TETBR TAET ATETBR SECURGECIoIRS

UH3TR <. 003145N UH3TR . 107564W UH3TR <. 000933C

For R.K.Deepak & Co. For P.Parikh & Associate For B Gupta & Co

Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 003145N

Chartered Accountants
FRN NO. 107564W

Chartered Accountants
FRN NO. 000933C

(3Rfe= 3eRTa) (GELLIRSC)) (CH.99TE)

(Arvind Uberoi) (Sandeep Parikh) (S Prasad)
TH.H. M.No. 90479 TH.H. M.No. 39713 TH.H. M.No. 80958

YAER Partner WTMER Partner YAER Partner

Subject to our comments in paragraphs 4 above, read
with the Notes to Accounts and Schedules mentioned
therein, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and as
shown by the books of the bank:

(a) The Balance Sheet read with the Significant
Accounting Policies and the Notes thereon is a full
and fair Balance Sheet containing the necessary
particulars and it is properly drawn up so as to exhibit
a true and fair view of the affairs of the Bank as at
31st March, 2010.

(b) The Profit and Loss Account read with the
Significant Accounting Policies and the Notes
thereon shows a true balance of profit for the year
ended 31st March, 2010.

() The Cash Flow Statement gives the true and
fair view of the cash flows for the year ended
31st March, 2010.

We have obtained all the information and explanations,
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found
them to be satisfactory.

The transactions of the bank, which have come to our
notice, have been within the powers of the bank.

P S aterd e . 3 T eve WS
TS TETBR TS ATETBR
UH3TR . 113267W UH3TR . 103264W
For Jain Chowdhary & Co. For Gokhale & Sathe

Chartered Accountants
FRN NO. 103264W

Chartered Accountants
FRN NO. 113267W

(Rt 31 (=T eY)
(Siddharth Jain) (Uday Sathaye)
TH.H. M.No. 104709 H.H. M.No. 35107
WMER Partner YAER Partner
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31 9, 2010 Y FHI aY BT Tbe) YaTe [da’ul CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010

(000 1 BIS feaard '000s omitted)
31.03.2010 3! feafer & IR 31.03.2009 F Rerfer & SR
As on 31.03.2010 As at 31.03.2009
J.Rs. 3.Rs. 3.Rs 3.Rs

97T - | uRener weel nfafafear @ Tod gaw

Part - | Cash flow from operating activities

WS geae f¥ae e Net profit after tax 5112531 4226622
S / (Tem) - R-THdt 7 3R 3o foreRa v

Add / (Less) - Non-cash items and items considered seperately

(1) TR snferi &R 319e1a0T Depreciation on fixed assets 276088 268413
2) R nfal o oo  a + /819 ) (5015) 7094
Profit (-) / Loss (+) on sale of fixed assets
(3) Tafemt R arer 5o mr Mifraw @ aRkenes 333526 302615
Amortisation of premium paid on Investments
(4) AFCdUR T T URDEN Amortisation of software expenses 24875 28369
(5) rafafér ol U= 31eT &T3T Interest paid on long-term loans 1486396 1101193
(6) YTdH 31X 3MHNHABAT Provision & Contingencies 1537826 1849343
(7) 3P UG SI.EL.UA. P ew graen 1752900 1159850
Provision for Income Tax & DTL
(8) Ut FHR YTGE Provision for Wealth tax 2500 0
9) 34'-":{51’1?[ WW?’@ 9TdeT Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax 22 27784
(10) 3TAHIRT FHEIERUT ST Hea= 97300 129000
Leave Encashment Actuarial valuation
(11) SR 31912 P feIT TG Provision for Sick Leave 38300 28700
(12) TR Sfaet A3 e 31a18 & fore yraen= (200) 7300
Provision For Silver Jubilee Milestone Award
(13) 3raerer feesmar Raraa & o graer Provision for LFC 21000 32000
(14) YHaT a1 & T gTaem Provision for Resettlement Service 2800 11700
(15) da=T TeNeH & U ITae Provision for Wage Revision 700000 700000
6268318 5653361
Frieia yait § aRad=i & gd o= am 11380849 9879983
Operating profit before Working capital changes
Friehe dsit aRad= & fere wwrisr:
Adjustments for working capital changes :
(1) fafemt # @fg)@ M (Increase)/Decrease in Investments (32806190) (22414080)
(2) 3t # (@fg)/@ar (Increase)/Decrease in Advances (66919720) (60534144)
(3) 3 anteaal # (gfg)/BHT (Increase)/Decrease in Other Assets (567384) (386945)
(4) SHRIERT # gig/(@H) Increase/(Decrease) in Deposits 82936618 91074332
(5) 3R T # ghgy(@a)fadra fosar wamat & faar) (62118) (3424882)
Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings (Excluding Financing Activities)
(6) 31T <TAA ¥ gfigy(@HN) Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 1492786 2970078
(15926008) 7284359
gRer ifsid Addl Cash Generated from operations (4545159) 17164342
ISR ATIY/(STT o T Ueaer 3%) (1785050) (422093)
Income tax refund / (Direct tax Paid)
gRermer nfafafial | fae Todt yare (6330209) 16742249

Net Cash flow from operating activities
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31 9, 2010 Y FHI aY BT Tbe) YaTe [da’ul CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010

(000 1 B feaard '000s omitted)
31.03.2010 3! fafer & IR 31.03.2009 F Rerfer & SR
As on 31.03.2010 As at 31.03.2009
D.Rs. %.Rs. JB.Rs JD.Rs
urr || - fafrem nfafaferal | Fod yae
Part Il - Cash flow from investing activities
3T Ut &1 Ha (3 Faf A enfe) (474980) (421130)
Purchase of fixed assets (Incl. intangible)
3ract Hutqat &1 faa Sale of fixed assets 19624 60276
fmfoT & G8d 19 Building under construction (1295) (10)
fafrem nfafaferat # fafranfsa fraa Tod (456651) (360864)
Net Cash used in Investment activities
gfame 3R fafrrem= nfafafal & Fod) ga= (6786860) 16381385
Cash flow from operating and Investing activities
ur |11 - forfr nfafaferal @ T gae
Part Il - Cash flow from financing activities
TeTaT 9T 3MSUIST3MS/ 70T 20T IPDI/ Sub ordinated debts raised 1250000 3250000
I fdaT AT ATHIET Dividend Paid (402683) (335569)
Srafafér o1 R YA 6T AT 15T Interest paid on long-term loan (1486396) (1101193)
ferita nfafaférat # fafranfsa fraa T (639079) 1813238
Net Cash used in Financing activities
Tdl 3R T wRea § Frraer gfeg/aHt (7425939) 18194623
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Tadl 3R T TR (37121 2) 58571148 40376525
Cash and Cash equivalents (Opening)
Tad! 3R Tt TRy (3 2 51145209 58571148
Cash and Cash equivalents (Closing)
Tadl Ud Andl THET & 3T A9 v 3 AT A 3R (7425939) 18194623
Difference in opening and closing cash and cash equivalents
(ERGRE)) (T &) (T9.%. 3H9)
3rezIeT Ug yaer fHeers PRI Heeh HET Ja e
(D.L. Rawal) (A. K. Dutt) (S.K. Jain)
Chairman & Managing Director Executive Director General Manager

AET-9_ 7! BT YA AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE
TA ST 3, T8 & 31.03. 2010 BT TAIK T & Adbal JaTE [GaR0T Bf ST BF 7. §6 GRT IR 6T T3 I8 fIaRvT Wi taisl & AT
TC UIaaal BRR (Ws-32) B & & 30 dIR 6T a7 & T2 HRA & AUl B IR SARI FHAED [eid df RUIe # FATTS
d% & dagour T Ud B 6 T g U OR STTeTRa & 31K 39d 379 B
We have examined the above Cash Flow Statement of Dena Bank for the year ended 31.03.2010. The statement has been prepared by the
bank in accordance with requirements of the Listing Agreements (Clause 32) with Stock Exchanges & is based on and in agreement with
the corresponding Profit & Loss account and Balance Sheet of the Bank covered by our Audit Report of even date to the President of India.

Fl 3TR.&. IS U5 . Fof ot aie uvs e F S, T TS . Ha S Tt s . FA MEA TUs Ao
TG CRATBR TG CRATBR SEARECIEARS SEERSECIEANS TG CIRATBR
For R.K.Deepak & Co. For P. Parikh & Associate For B. Gupta & Co. For Jain Chowdhary & Co. For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
UH3TRET H. FRN No. 003145N UH3TREA . FRN NO. 107564W  TWH3TREA . FRN NO. 000933C  UH3TRUA . FRN NO. 113267W  UH3TREH H. FRN NO. 103264W
(3Rfde sieRTa) (et o) (9. 9¥TR) (Riegmet 519) (3T TSR
(Arvind Uberoi) (Sandeep Parikh) (S Prasad) (Siddharth Jain) (Uday Sathaye)
TH.H. M. No. 90479 THA. M. No. 39713 TH.H. M. No. 80958 TH.H. M. No. 104709 H.H. M. No. 35107
UMNER Partner YNER Partner YANER Partner YINER Partner TSR Partner

R g8 {1 < 27 3wtd, 2010
Place: Mumbai, Date: 27th April, 2010
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Head Office: Dena Corporate Centre, C-10, G Block, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051.

Regd. Folio No.
(If not dematerialised)
D.P. ID No.
FORM B .
PROXY FORM Client ID No.
(to be filled in and signed by the Shareholder) (If dematerialised)

I/We resident/s

of in the district

of in the state of being a shareholder/shareholder(s)

of DENA BANK, Mumbai hereby appoint Shri/Smt.

resident of in the district of

in the state of or failing him /her, Shri/Smt.
resident of
in the district of inthe state of as my/our proxy to vote

forme/us and on my/ourbehalfatthe Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of DENA BANK to be held on Friday, 16th July, 2010
at 3.00 P.M. at Auditorium, Sir Sorabji Pochkhanawala Bankers’ Training College, J.V.P.D. Scheme, Near Cooper Hospital, Vile Parle (West),

Mumbai - 400 056, and at any adjournment thereof. Please Affix

Re. 1/-

Revenue

Stamp

Signed this day of 2010.
Signature of first named/sole shareholder
NAME (IN BLOCK LETTERS)
Signature of the Proxy ADDRESS

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SIGNING AND LODGING THE PROXY FORM

1. No instrument of proxy shall be valid unless,
(a) in the case of an individual shareholder, it is signed by him/her attorney duly authorised in writing,
(b) in the case of joint holders, it is signed by the shareholder first named in the Register or his/her attorney duly authorised in writing,
(c) in the case of a body corporate signed by its officer or an attorney duly authorized in writing.

2. An instrument of Proxy shall be sufficiently signed by any shareholder, who is, for any reason, unable to write his/her name, if his/her mark is
affixed thereto and attested by a Judge, Magistrate, Registrar or Sub-Registrar of Assurances or other Government Gazetted Officer or an Officer
of Dena Bank.

3. The Proxy together with
(a) the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed, or

(b) a copy of the power of attorney or authority, certified by a Notary Public or a Magistrate, should be deposited with the Company Secretary, Dena
Bank, Investor Relations Centre, Dena Corporate Centre, C-10, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051 Not later
than FOUR DAYS before the date of the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting i.e. on or before the close of office hours on 10th July, 2010.

4. In case the relevant power of attorney is already registered with Dena Bank or its Share Transfer Agents, the registration number of the power of
attorney and the date of registration may be mentioned.

No instrument of Proxy shall be valid unless it is duly stamped.
An instrument of Proxy deposited with the Bank shall be irrevocable and final.
In the case of an instrument of proxy granted in favour of two grantees in the alternative, not more than one form shall be executed.

The shareholder, who has executed an instrument of proxy, shall not be entitled to vote in person at the Annual General Meeting to which such
instrument relates.

9. No person shall be appointed as duly authorised representative or a proxy who is an officer or an employee of Dena Bank.

ORI ROl
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Head Office: Dena Corporate Centre, C-10, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051

dleed! arffe e a9T 2010 ¥ fere Juffe ot
ATTENDANCE SLIP FOR FOURTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2010
(T RICT IR U= @ ST ©)
(to be surrendered at the venue of the meeting)
# gaiord axar € / el & T # <1 a6 & Ui IRURS (IR & fee daiiged QraReRa / Graw / gfaffer g
| certify that | am a registered shareholder/ proxy/ representative for the registered shareholder(s) of DENA BANK.
# TACERT, YHAR 16 JeTTs, 2010 I FIRFE 3.00 Fof IR ARIGSH ArARIMTGTET St &I+ Pretel, of.al.U1El. FTHIH, HUR AT & I,
faerarer (afeaw), 4% - 400 056 ¥ AT 96 & YIRYRDT T Alaed! AT THT H 3701 JURRITT G BT / B &,
| hereby record my presence at the Fourteenth Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Dena Bank at Auditorium, Sir Sorabji

Pochkhanawala Bankers Training College, J.V.P.D Scheme, Near Cooper Hospital, Vile Parle (West), Mumbai - 400 056 on Friday,
16th July, 2010 at 3.00 P.M.

IRYRSD BT 19 3R Tar 35T, wiferar = .

Name and Address of the Shareholder (U‘%é‘dv‘mﬁ?‘p_d? E?f)
Regd. Folio No.
(if not dematerilised)
SIT 3TES! 7.
DP | D No.
ITED 37 =1 .
(@fE SBrTsihd &)

Client I D No.
(if dematerilised)

U7 H 3uferd SRRYRG/ UTaa/ Ufafifer & gxaer

Signature of the Shareholder/ Proxy/ Representative attending the meeting

fE IRURS & A HUAT T EAER B afe gienmfafafer & ar guor agt gxder o

If, Shareholder, please sign here If Proxy/ Representative, please sign here

-

YN STATed: ST HIARC Aex, A-10, I &A1, TIE-GHar dIrciad, el (Id), s - 400 051
Head Office: Dena Corporate Centre, C-10, G Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai - 400 051

diegd! arftfe M= w41 2010 & fere yaer o=
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registered with the Bank, along with the entry pass for admission to the meeting hall. The admission will however be subject to verification/checks as may be deemed
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: DENA BENK
Dear Shareholder,

Depository Services:

Your Bank is registered with Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) as a Depository Participant (DP) of National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL) offering full range of depository services since 23/12/1997 to its customers.

Capital Market Branch Mumbai is the DP Branch which is electronically connected to NSDL. As a part of major initiative to provide the
Depository services to its customers, Bank has extended the Depository services at the following 28 identified Branches at various centers:

MUMBAI
a) Bhat Bazar Branch b) Bhayander West Branch c) JVPD Vile Parle Branch
d) Kalyan Branch e) Kandivali West Branch f)  Kharghar Branch
g) Mulund East Branch h)  Mulund West Branch i) Peddar Road Branch
j) Share Bazar Branch k)  Thane Branch ) Yoginagar Branch
AHMEDABAD
a) Ashram Road Branch b) Ambawadi Branch c) Navrangpura Branch
SURAT
a) Nanpura Branch b) Ramnagar Branch
DELHI
a) Connaught Place Branch b)  Karol Baug Branch c) Nehru Place Branch
d) Scope Complex Branch
JAIPUR
a) M| Road Jaipur Branch |b) Haldio ka Rasta Branch |
CHENNAI
a) Mount Road Branch |b) Alwarpet Branch |c) Nuganbakum Branch
KOLKATA
a) Brabourne Road Branch | b)  Park Street Branch |

Shareholders who wish to maintain their shareholding in the electronic form by joining the depository system, may open an account with the
Bank at any of the above identified Branches.

Bank through the identified Branches is offering the full range of depository services including Direct IDeAS (Internet based demat account
statement) a facility available to the account holders who open the account with the Bank and mention their E-mail Address in the account
opening form. NSDL will send an E-mail to the account holder on the e-mail address provided with a link for registration under Direct IDeAS.
This facilitates the account holder to know through Internet the latest balances and transaction that have taken place in last 5 days in their
depository accounts.

The Shareholders are requested to note that the SEBI vide its circular No. NSDL/POLICY/2006/0007 dated 3rd March, 2006 has made PAN
a mandatory requirement w.e.f. 1st April, 2006 for all categories of demat account holders including minor, Trust, Foreign Corporate Body,
Banks, Corporate, Flls and NRIs. Any Shareholder who wish to open Demat account with the Bank through the identified Branches should
have PAN number for opening the Account.

Shareholders interested in any further information /clarification, may contact the Branch Manager, Dena Bank, Capital Market Branch, 17-B,
Horniman Circle, Fort, Mumbai- 400 023. Tel: 022- 22661206 Telefax: 022- 22694426 or Branch Manager of any of the identified Branches.

Il.  Other Important Information

1. Shareholders who have not encashed Dividend Warrants for the financial years 1996-97, 1997-98, 1998-99 ,1999-2000, 2006-2007,
2007-2008 and 2008-2009 are requested to send the unpaid instruments for revalidation to M/s. Sharepro Services (India) Private
Limited Unit: Dena Bank, 13 A/B Samhita Complex, Gala No. 52 to 56, Near Saki Naka Telephone Exchange, Andheri-Kurla Road,
Saki Naka, Mumbai - 400 072.

2. Any shareholders, who has not received Refund Order or allotted shares of our 2nd public offer may write to Bank or its Registrar with
copy of acknowledgement receipt and full details of the application.

3. For any change in mandated particulars like change of address, bank account no., name of bank and branch etc. shareholders holding
shares in physical forms are to write to our Registrar M/s. Sharepro Services ( India ) Pvt. Ltd. and those Shareholders who hold shares
in electronic form should write to their depositary participants and not to the bank or its registrar.
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Core Banking Solution

Multi-city Cheque Facility

Internet Banking

Dena ATM

Dena Bill Pay

Dena RTGS / Dena NEFT

Mobile Banking

Dena International Gold Card

Dena e-Tax

Dena Alpa Bachat Khata
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Dena Corporate Center, C-10, G Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai-400 05 1. www.denabank.com
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